
Metropolitan King County Council 

King County 

Meeting Agenda 

1200 King County 
Courthouse 

516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

Councilmembers: Joe McDermott, Chair;  
Rod Dembowski, Vice Chair of Policy Development and Review; 

Reagan Dunn, Vice Chair of Regional Coordination; 
Claudia Balducci, Larry Gossett, Jeanne Kohl-Welles,  

Kathy Lambert, Dave Upthegrove, Pete von Reichbauer 

Room 1001 11:00 AM Monday, November 7, 2016 

Consideration of the items on this agenda will begin at the Special Meeting at 
11:00 a.m. and will continue during the Regular Meeting that begins at 1:30 

p.m.

Additional items may be considered or acted upon during the regular meeting 

consistent with Council rules. 

Call to Order1.

Roll Call2.

Flag Salute and Pledge of Allegiance3.

Councilmember Dembowski 

Approval of Minutes of October 31, 20164.

Councilmember Dembowski 

Additions to the Council Agenda5.

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 1 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 1

norisan
Text Box
To show a PDF of the written materials for anagenda item, click on the agenda item below.



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

Special Items6.

Consideration of Item 6 will be taken up at 1:30 p.m. 

Recognition of the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation for their advancement of technology among 

public libraries 

Councilmember McDermott 

Proclamation of November 6-13, 2016, as Drowsy Driving Prevention Week in King County 

Councilmember Lambert 

Honoring the life and public service of State Senator Andy Hill 

Councilmember Lambert 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 2 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 2



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

Hearing and Second Reading of Ordinances from Standing Committees and 

Regional Committees 

There will be one public hearing on Items 7-34 at 11 a.m. 

Budget and Fiscal Management 

Councilmember Upthegrove 

7. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0399   pg 23

AN ORDINANCE authorizing certain county departments and agencies to absorb transaction processing 
costs for electronic payments; amending Ordinance 17293, Section 47, and K.C.C. 4A.10.245, Ordinance 
17293, Section 107, and K.C.C. 4A.10.585, Ordinance 13923, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C.
4A.601.010, Ordinance 13923, Section 5, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.601.030, adding a new section to
K.C.C. chapter 4A.601 and repealing Ordinance 16861, Section 6, and K.C.C. 4A.601.100 and Ordinance 
17230, Section 1, and K.C.C. 4A.601.120. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 9/6/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Passed Out of Committee Without a 
Recommendation. 

8. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0456.2  pg 35

AN ORDINANCE related to the provision of discounted transit fare media to human services agencies;
and amending Ordinance 12643, Section 19, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.210, Ordinance 17932,
Section 2, as amended,  Ordinance 12643, Section 19, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.210 and
Ordinance 12643, Section 17, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.350.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 9/12/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  

On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 3 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 3



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

9. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0463.2   pg 49

AN ORDINANCE establishing a paid parental leave program for employees eligible for leave benefits, 
including annual reports; amending Ordinance 12014, Section 5, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.12.010 and 
adding a new section to K.C.C. chapter 3.12. 

Sponsors: Mr. Dembowski and Ms. Kohl-Welles 

On 9/26/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

10. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0474.2   pg 79

AN ORDINANCE relating to school impact fees; adopting the capital facilities plans of the Tahoma, 
Federal Way, Riverview, Issaquah, Snoqualmie Valley, Highline, Lake Washington, Kent, Enumclaw, Fife, 
Auburn and Renton school districts as subelements of the capital facilities element of the King County 
Comprehensive Plan for purposes of implementing the school impact fee program; establishing school 
impact fees to be collected by King County on behalf of the districts; and amending Ordinance 10122, 
Section 3, as amended, Ordinance 10470, Section 2, as amended, Ordinance 10472, Section 2, as 
amended, Ordinance 10633, Section 2, as amended, Ordinance 10722, Section 2, as amended, 
Ordinance 10722, Section 3, as amended, Ordinance 10790, Section 2, as amended, Ordinance 10982, 
Section 2, as amended, Ordinance 12063, Section 11, as amended, Ordinance 12532, Section 12, as 
amended, Ordinance 13338, Section 13, as amended, Ordinance 17220, Section 14, as amended and 
Ordinance 10122, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.44.010. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/3/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Referred to Budget and Fiscal Management 
Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 4 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 4



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

11. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0475   pg 91

AN ORDINANCE that proposes the 2017-2018 Biennial Budget and makes appropriations for the
operation of county agencies and departments and capital improvements for the fiscal biennium
beginning January 1, 2017, and ending December 31, 2018.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/3/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Referred to Budget and Fiscal Management 
Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred. 

SUBJECT TO A MOTION TO SUSPEND THE RULES TO HOLD ADVERTISED PUBLIC 

HEARING - LEGISLATION REMAINS IN COMMITTEE 

12. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0476.2   pg 153

AN ORDINANCE setting the annual use payment for continuing use of the county road rights-of-way as
authorized in right-of-way use agreements for wireless telecommunications facilities; and amending
Ordinance 17515, Section 13, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.060, Ordinance 13734, Section 4, as
amended, and K.C.C. 14.45.020.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/3/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Referred to Budget and Fiscal Management 
Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

13. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0477.2   pg 163

AN ORDINANCE relating to sheriff's civil unit fees; and amending Ordinance 14792, Section 2, as
amended, and K.C.C. 4A.680.010.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/17/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 5 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 5



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

14. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0478.2   pg 175

AN ORDINANCE relating to fees; amending Ordinance 13332, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 
27.06.010, Ordinance 13332, Section 17, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.020, Ordinance 17923, Section 
45, and K.C.C. 27.10.035, Ordinance 17923, Section 46, and K.C.C. 27.10.037, Ordinance 13332, 
Section 20, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.050, Ordinance 13332, Section 21, as amended, and K.C.C. 
27.10.060, Ordinance 13332, Section 22, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.070, Ordinance 18000, Section 
83, and K.C.C. 27.10.075, Ordinance 13332, Section 23, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.080, Ordinance 
17453, Section 19, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.082, Ordinance 17453, Section 18, as amended, and 
K.C.C. 27.10.084, Ordinance 17224, Section 26, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.085, Ordinance 17453,
Section 21, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.087, Ordinance 13332, Section 24, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.090, Ordinance 13332, Section 28, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.130, Ordinance 13332, Section
30, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.150, Ordinance 13332, Section 31, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.160, Ordinance 13332, Section 32, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.170, Ordinance 13332, Section
33, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.180, Ordinance 13332, Section 34, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.190, Ordinance 13332, Section 35, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.200, Ordinance 13332, Section
36, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.210, Ordinance 13332, Section 37, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.220, Ordinance 13332, Section 40, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.320, Ordinance 13332, Section
42, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.350, Ordinance 13332, Section 43, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.360, Ordinance 13332, Section 46, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.380, Ordinance 17224, Section
39, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.385, Ordinance 17224, Section 40, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.395, Ordinance 17224, Section 43, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.425, Ordinance 13332, Section
53, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.510, Ordinance 13332, Section 54, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.550, Ordinance 17682, Section 46, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.560, Ordinance 17682, Section
47, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.570, Ordinance 17682, Section 48, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.580 and Ordinance 16959, Section 12, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.02.1905, adding a new section
to K.C.C. chapter 27.02, adding a new section to K.C.C. chapter 27.04 and repealing Ordinance 13332,
Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.030, Ordinance 17224, Section 20, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.045, Ordinance 13332, Section 41, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.330, Ordinance 13332, Section
49, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.430 and Ordinance 13332, Section 51, as amended, and K.C.C.
27.10.460.

Sponsors: Mr. Dembowski 

On 10/24/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 6 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 6



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

15. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0479.2   pg 235

AN ORDINANCE establishing an enhanced 911 emergency telephone system new capital fund for the
department of executive services; and adding a new section to K.C.C. chapter 4A.200.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/3/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Referred to Budget and Fiscal Management 
Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

16. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0480.2   pg 239

AN ORDINANCE consolidating funds relating to housing and community development; amending
Ordinance 17752, Section 12, and K.C.C. 4A.200.297, adding a new section to K.C.C. chapter 4A.200,
codifying K.C.C. 4A.200.297 and repealing Ordinance 9368, Sections 1-2, as amended, and K.C.C.
4A.200.360.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/10/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

17. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0481   pg 247

AN ORDINANCE relating to passenger ferry service, revising passenger ferry fares; amending Ordinance
17935, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C 4A.700.820.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/24/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  

On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred. 

SUBJECT TO A MOTION TO SUSPEND THE RULES TO HOLD ADVERTISED PUBLIC 

HEARING - LEGISLATION REMAINS IN COMMITTEE 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 7 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 7



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

18. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0482.2   pg 251

AN ORDINANCE relating to fees charged by the medical examiner's office; amending Ordinance 11137,
Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.650.100; and amending Ordinance 17733, Section 16, as
amended, and K.C.C. 4A.650.150.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/3/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Referred to Budget and Fiscal Management 
Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

19. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0483   pg 255

AN ORDINANCE establishing a new fund for the department of public health; and adding a new section
to K.C.C. chapter 4A.200.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/10/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  

On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass. 

20. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0484   pg 259

AN ORDINANCE amending the application fee of the public benefit rating system program for open space 
and timber lands current use assessment provisions; and amending Ordinance 1076, Section 4, as
amended, and K.C.C. 20.36.040.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/10/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Passed Out of Committee Without a 
Recommendation. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 8 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 8



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

21. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0486   pg 269

AN ORDINANCE relating to county property tax levies for collection in 2017; implementing RCW
84.55.0101, finding substantial need and providing for a limit factor of one hundred and one percent in
accordance with RCW 84.55.0101.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/3/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Referred to Budget and Fiscal Management 
Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass. 

22. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0488.2   pg 277

AN ORDINANCE relating to revenues from the sales and use tax on retail car rentals, amending the
name and uses of the fund receiving such revenues; and amending Ordinance 12076, Section 26, as
amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.810, and Ordinance 10454, Sections 1 through 2, as amended, and K.C.C.
4A.500.200.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/17/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  

On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

23. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0489   pg 285

AN ORDINANCE relating to the Strategic Climate Action Plan; amending K.C.C. chapter 18.25, Strategic
Climate Action Plan, in accordance with the 2015/2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance, Ordinance 17941,
Section 104, Proviso P1, as amended; and amending Ordinance 17270, Section 2, and K.C.C. 18.25.010
and Ordinance 17166, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 18.50.010.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/31/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 9 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 9



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

24. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0490.2   pg 299

AN ORDINANCE regarding surface water management; revising surface water management service
charges; and amending Ordinance 7590, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 9.08.070.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/24/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

25. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0491.2   pg 321

AN ORDINANCE relating to public transportation, adopting a two-year increase to the limit of lost revenue
from waiving or discounting fares; and amending Ordinance 12643, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C.
4A.700.610 and Ordinance 12643, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.610.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/10/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

26. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0492.2   pg 329

AN ORDINANCE establishing the fee for computer facilities and certain computer equipment use;
amending Ordinance 6666, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.660.010 and repealing Ordinance
14006, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.660.100.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/17/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 10 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 10



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

27. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0493.2   pg 341

AN ORDINANCE relating to county automotive parking facilities; and amending Ordinance 15648,
Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.006, Ordinance 8753, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C.
3.32.045, Ordinance 12077, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.055, Ordinance 8753, Section 6,
as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.045 and Ordinance 12077, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.055.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/17/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Passed Out of Committee Without a 

Recommendation. 

28. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0494.2   pg 355

AN ORDINANCE relating to the 2017 King County 10 Step Hourly Squared Schedule, 2017 King County 
10 Step Annual/FLSA-Exempt Squared Schedule, 2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary 
Schedule, 2017 King County Standardized Annual/FLSA-Exempt Salary Schedule, and the annual 
general wage increase for nonrepresented King County employees as stipulated in K.C.C. 3.12.130 and
K.C.C. 3.12.140. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/31/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 11 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 11



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

29. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0495   pg 381

AN ORDINANCE setting the fees and costs to be paid by a utility company applying for a franchise or
using the right-of-way of county roads under a franchise; amending Ordinance 17515, Section 4, as
amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.020, Ordinance 17515, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.030,
Ordinance 1710, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.020, Ordinance 1710, Section 3, and K.C.C.
6.27.030, Ordinance 10171, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.054, Ordinance 1710, Section 6, as
amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.060 and Ordinance 1711, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.040 and
adding new sections to K.C.C. chapter 6.27.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/24/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred. 

SUBJECT TO A MOTION TO SUSPEND THE RULES TO HOLD ADVERTISED PUBLIC 

HEARING - LEGISLATION REMAINS IN COMMITTEE 

30. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0497   pg 393

AN ORDINANCE relating to multiple internal service fund and certain capital funds; and amending 
Ordinance 12076, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.150, Ordinance 16976, Section 3, as 
amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.160, Ordinance 14306, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.250, 
Ordinance 14005, Section 7, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.260, Ordinance 11591, Section 1, as 
amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.290, Ordinance 17752, Section 13, and K.C.C. 4A.200.303, Ordinance 
14008, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.370, Ordinance 17752, Section 15, and K.C.C. 
4A.200.372, Ordinance 12076, Section 29, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.410, Ordinance 3581, 
Section 3, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.630 and Ordinance 12076, Section 15, as amended, and
K.C.C. 4A.200.670. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/10/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  

On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 12 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 12



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

31. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0499   pg 405

AN ORDINANCE that adopts the 2017 Annual Budget making appropriations for the capital improvements
for the Harborview Medical Center for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2017, and ending December
31, 2017.

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/10/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass. 

32. Proposed Substitute Ordinance No. 2016-0521.2   pg 411

AN ORDINANCE setting the reasonable compensation, fees and costs to be paid by a utility company
applying for a franchise or using the right-of-way of county roads under a franchise, and authorizing a
utility company to make a forbearance payment to King County; amending Ordinance 17515, Section 4,
as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.020, Ordinance 17515, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.030,
Ordinance 1710, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.020, Ordinance 1710, Section 3, and K.C.C.
6.27.030, Ordinance 10171, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.054, Ordinance 1710, Section 6, as
amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.060, Ordinance 1711, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.040 and
Ordinance 11790, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.055 and adding new sections to K.C.C.
chapter 6.27.

Sponsors: Ms. Balducci, Mr. Upthegrove, Ms. Lambert and Mr. Dembowski 

On 10/24/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass Substitute. 

33. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0523   pg 435

AN ORDINANCE relating to the disposition of sale proceeds; changing the designation of the distribution
of gross sale proceeds; and amending Ordinance 12045, Section 12, as amended, and K.C.C. 4.56.130.

Sponsors: Mr. Dembowski, Ms. Balducci, Ms. Lambert and Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/31/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass. 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 13 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 13



November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

34. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0524   pg 443

AN ORDINANCE approving and adopting a memorandum of agreement negotiated by and between King
County and the King County Coalition of Labor Unions, establishing a "Total Compensation" package for
King County employees for 2017 and 2018, which includes general wage adjustments, paid insurance
benefits and a timeline for bargaining a "Master Labor Agreement" that will reflect standardized labor
agreement provisions; representing employees in the departments of adult and juvenile detention,
community and human services, elections, executive services, judicial administration, information
technology, natural resources and parks, permitting and environmental review, public defense, public
health and transportation and the assessor, council, district court, superior court, sheriff's office and office
of the prosecuting attorney; and establishing the effective date of said agreement.

Sponsors: Mr. McDermott 

On 10/31/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Recommended Do Pass. 

First Reading and Referral of Ordinances 

35. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0529

AN ORDINANCE approving and adopting the collective bargaining agreement negotiated by and between 
King County and Public, Professional & Office-Clerical Employees and Drivers, Teamsters Local 763
(Department of Assessments) representing employees in the department of assessments; and
establishing the effective date of said agreement.

Sponsors: Mr. von Reichbauer 

First Reading and Referral to the Government Accountability and Oversight Committee 

First Reading and Referral of Motions 

36. Proposed Motion No. 2016-0527

A MOTION establishing the King County 2017 State Legislative Agenda.

Sponsors: Mr. McDermott 

First Reading and Referral to the Committee of the Whole 

37. Proposed Motion No. 2016-0530

A MOTION confirming the King County department of transportation director's appointment of Robert
Gannon as the general manager of the transit division of the King County department of transportation.

Sponsors: Ms. Lambert 

First Reading and Referral to the Committee of the Whole 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 14 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 14



 
November 7, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Agenda 

Reports on Special and Outside Committees 38. 

Other Business 

Rereferral 

39. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0484 

AN ORDINANCE amending the application fee of the public benefit rating system program for open space 
and timber lands current use assessment provisions; and amending Ordinance 1076, Section 4, as 
amended, and K.C.C. 20.36.040. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

On 10/10/2016, the Metropolitan King County Council Introduced and Referred to Budget and Fiscal 
Management Committee.  
On 10/25/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 10/26/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Deferred.  
On 11/1/2016, the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Passed Out of Committee Without a 
Recommendation. 

This item is being rereferred to Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

Adjournment 

Printed on 11/3/2016 Page 15  King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



1200 King County
Courthouse

516 Third Avenue
Seattle, WA 98104

King County

Meeting Minutes

Metropolitan King County Council
Councilmembers: Joe McDermott, Chair;  

Rod Dembowski, Vice Chair of Policy Development and Review; 
Reagan Dunn, Vice Chair of Regional Coordination; 

Claudia Balducci, Larry Gossett, Jeanne Kohl-Welles,  
Kathy Lambert, Dave Upthegrove, Pete von Reichbauer 

1:30 PM Room 1001 Monday, October 31, 2016

-DRAFT MINUTES-

Call to Order1.

The meeting was called to order at 1:39 p.m.. 
Councilmember Dembowski chaired the meeting. 

Roll Call2.

Councilmember Dunn participated by telephone, as authorized by K.C.C. 1.24.145.B.4.c.. 

Ms. Balducci, Mr. Dembowski, Mr. Dunn, Mr. Gossett, Ms. Kohl-Welles, Ms.
Lambert, Mr. Upthegrove and Mr. von Reichbauer

Present: 8 -  

Mr. McDermottExcused: 1 -  

Flag Salute and Pledge of Allegiance3.

Counciilmember Kohl-Welles led the flag salute and Pledge of Allegiance. 

Approval of Minutes of October 24, 20164.

Councilmember Gossett moved to approve the minutes of the October 24, 2016 meeting 
as presented.  Seeing no objection, the Chair so ordered. 

Additions to the Council Agenda5.

There were no additions to the agenda. 

Page 1 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 16



 

October 31, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Minutes 

Hearing and Second Reading of Ordinances from Standing 

Committees and Regional Committees 

The following person spoke: 
Alex Tsimerman 

Consent Item 6 

6. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0401 

AN ORDINANCE relating to commute trip reduction; amending Ordinance 10733, Section 1, as amended, 
and K.C.C. 14.60.010, Ordinance 10733, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.60.020, Ordinance 10733, 
Section 3, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.60.030, Ordinance 10733, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 
14.60.040, Ordinance 10733, Section 5, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.60.050, Ordinance 10733, Section 6, 
as amended, and K.C.C. 14.60.060, Ordinance 10733, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.60.070, 
Ordinance 10733, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.60.080 and Ordinance 10733, Section 10, as 
amended, and K.C.C. 14.60.100, recodifying K.C.C. 14.60.010, K.C.C. 14.60.020, K.C.C. 14.60.030, K.C.C. 
14.60.040, K.C.C. 14.60.050, K.C.C. 14.60.060, K.C.C. 14.60.070, K.C.C. 14.60.080, K.C.C. 14.60.100 and 
K.C.C. 28.94.110 and adding a new chapter to K.C.C. Title 28. 

Sponsors: Ms. Lambert 

On 10/31/2016, a public hearing was held and closed. 

The enacted number is 18383. 

A motion was made by Councilmember Balducci that this Ordinance be passed on 

the consent agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Yes: Ms. Balducci, Mr. Dembowski, Mr. Dunn, Mr. Gossett, Ms. Kohl-Welles, Ms. 
Lambert, Mr. Upthegrove, and Mr. von Reichbauer 

8 -  

Excused: Mr. McDermott 1 -  

Motions, from Standing Committees and Regional 

Committees, for Council Action 

Consent Item 7 

7. Proposed Motion No. 2016-0411 

A MOTION approving the Second Quarter 2016 Expenditures for Emergent Needs and Unanticipated 
Project Costs Summary Report prepared by the road services division in the department of transportation 
as required in the 2015/2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance, Ordinance 17941, Section 53, Proviso P2. 

Sponsors: Ms. Lambert 

The enacted number is 14753. 

A motion was made by Councilmember Lambert that this motion be passed on the 

Consent Agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote: 

Page 2 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 17



 

October 31, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Minutes 

Yes: Ms. Balducci, Mr. Dembowski, Mr. Dunn, Mr. Gossett, Ms. Kohl-Welles, Ms. 
Lambert, Mr. Upthegrove, and Mr. von Reichbauer 

8 -  

Excused: Mr. McDermott 1 -  

Employment and Administration Committee Consent Agenda Item 8 

Approve revised Ombudsman staff job descriptions, classification 

specifications and ranges and staff assignments 
8. 

A motion was made by Councilmember Gossett that this matter be passed.  The 

motion carried by the following vote: 

Yes: Ms. Balducci, Mr. Dembowski, Mr. Dunn, Mr. Gossett, Ms. Kohl-Welles, Ms. 
Lambert, Mr. Upthegrove, and Mr. von Reichbauer 

8 -  

Excused: Mr. McDermott 1 -  

First Reading and Referral of Ordinances 

9. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0489 

AN ORDINANCE relating to the Strategic Climate Action Plan; amending K.C.C. chapter 18.25, Strategic 
Climate Action Plan, in accordance with the 2015/2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance, Ordinance 17941, 
Section 104, Proviso P1, as amended; and amending Ordinance 17270, Section 2, and K.C.C. 18.25.010 
and Ordinance 17166, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 18.50.010. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

This matter had its first reading and was referred to the Budget and Fiscal 

Management Committee. 

10. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0494 

AN ORDINANCE relating to the 2017 King County 10 Step Hourly Squared Schedule, 2017 King County 10 
Step Annual/FLSA-Exempt Squared Schedule, 2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule, 
2017 King County Standardized Annual/FLSA-Exempt Salary Schedule, and the annual general wage 
increase for nonrepresented King County employees as stipulated in K.C.C. 3.12.130 and K.C.C. 3.12.140. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

This matter had its first reading and was referred to the Budget and Fiscal 

Management Committee. 

11. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0522 

AN ORDINANCE authorizing a rezone on certain property located at 1511 SW 107th Street Seattle WA 
98146, at the request of Darren Huddleson, department of permitting and environmental review file no. 
DPER LUT415-0002. 

Sponsors: Mr. McDermott 

This matter had its first reading and was referred to the Hearing Examiner. 

Page 3 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 18



 

October 31, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Minutes 

12. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0523 

AN ORDINANCE relating to the disposition of sale proceeds; changing the designation of the distribution of 
gross sale proceeds; and amending Ordinance 12045, Section 12, as amended, and K.C.C. 4.56.130. 

Sponsors: Mr. Dembowski, Ms. Balducci, Ms. Lambert and Mr. Upthegrove 

This matter had its first reading and was referred to the Budget and Fiscal 

Management Committee. 

13. Proposed Ordinance No. 2016-0524 

AN ORDINANCE approving and adopting a memorandum of agreement negotiated by and between King 
County and the King County Coalition of Labor Unions, establishing a "Total Compensation" package for 
King County employees for 2017 and 2018, which includes general wage adjustments, paid insurance 
benefits and a timeline for bargaining a "Master Labor Agreement" that will reflect standardized labor 
agreement provisions; representing employees in the departments of adult and juvenile detention, 
community and human services, elections, executive services, judicial administration, information 
technology, natural resources and parks, permitting and environmental review, public defense, public health 
and transportation and the assessor, council, district court, superior court, sheriff's office and office of the 
prosecuting attorney; and establishing the effective date of said agreement. 

Sponsors: Mr. McDermott 

This matter had its first reading and was referred to the Budget and Fiscal 

Management Committee. 

First Reading and Referral of Motions 

14. Proposed Motion No. 2016-0498 

A MOTION adopting objectives for each goal in the King County Vision Statement, Mission Statement, 
Guiding Principles and Goals. 

Sponsors: Mr. Upthegrove 

This matter had its first reading and was referred to the Committee of the Whole. 

Reports on Special and Outside Committees 15. 

Councilmember Kohl-Welles gave a report on the Puget Sound Regional Council 
(PSRC). She indicated that President John Marchione presented a Puget Sound 
Regional Council Vision 2040 Award for the SR-520 Bridge Replacement project.  Also, 
Josh Brown, Executive Director, announced that the PSRC is updating their State 
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) procedures. The Executive Board authorized a change 
in Transportation 2040 Project Status and TIP Programming for WSDOT's I-405 Corridor: 
Renton to Bellevue project.The Executive Board adopted the new 2017-2020 Regional 
Transportation Improvement Prorgram. 
 
Councilmember Kohl-Welles also made comments about the 4Culture Board and its 
community funding recommendations. 

Page 4 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 19



 

October 31, 2016 Metropolitan King County Council Meeting Minutes 

Other Business 

Councilmember Lambert requested that the record reflect that she has on several 
occasions extended an invitation to Mr. Tsimerman to meet and discuss his relevant 
matters.  At this time, he has not requested an appointment. 
 
The Chair stated that Mr. Tsimerman has disrupted these proceedings and has not 
complied with the council rules. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:54 p.m. 

Approved this _____________ day of ______________________. 

Clerk's Signature 

Page 5 King County 

King County Council November 7, 2016 20



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0399.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE authorizing certain county departments 1 

and agencies to absorb transaction processing costs for 2 

electronic payments; amending Ordinance 17293, Section 3 

47, and K.C.C. 4A.10.245, Ordinance 17293, Section 107, 4 

and K.C.C. 4A.10.585, Ordinance 13923, Section 4, as 5 

amended, and K.C.C. 4A.601.010, Ordinance 13923, 6 

Section 5, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.601.030, adding a 7 

new section to K.C.C. chapter 4A.601 and repealing 8 

Ordinance 16861, Section 6, and K.C.C. 4A.601.100 and 9 

Ordinance 17230, Section 1, and K.C.C. 4A.601.120. 10 

PREAMBLE: 11 

RCW 36.29.190 specifies that a payer desiring to pay by any means of 12 

electronic communication shall bear the cost of processing the transaction, 13 

unless the county legislative authority finds that it is in the best interests of 14 

the county to not charge transaction processing costs for all payment 15 

transactions made for nontax payments received by the county treasurer.  16 

Under Chapter 5, Laws of Washington 2016, effective June 28, 2016, the 17 

state legislature approved amendments to this law that limit the type of 18 

costs that may be charged for processing electronic payments. 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 21



Ordinance  

 
 

This ordinance is intended to specifically authorize designated county 20 

departments or agencies to not charge transaction processing costs 21 

associated with electronic payments because it is in the county's best 22 

interest to do so. 23 

The ordinance also effects the necessary changes to the King County Code 24 

to be in alignment with the amendments to RCW 36.29.190 that took 25 

effect June 28, 2016. 26 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 27 

 SECTION 1.  Findings:  The county council finds that it is in the best interest of 28 

the county to not charge transaction processing costs for the electronic payments of the 29 

departments and agencies listed in section 8 of this ordinance. 30 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 17293, Section 47, and K.C.C. 4A.10.245 are each 31 

hereby amended to read as follows: 32 

 "Electronic payments" means ((any financial transaction by which funds are 33 

transferred to the county through any type of electronic media.  The electronic media 34 

include, but are not limited to, automated clearing houses, credit cards, debit cards, smart 35 

cards and wire transfers)) payments made using credit cards, charge cards, debit cards, 36 

smart cards, stored value cards, federal wire, automatic clearing house system 37 

transactions or other electronic communications. 38 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 17293, Section 107, and K.C.C. 4A.10.585 are each 39 

herby amended to read as follows: 40 

 "Transaction ((fee)) processing cost" means ((a fee charged by a service provider 41 

for the execution of an electronic payment)) the cost of processing an electronic payment 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 22



Ordinance  

 
 
as determined by the finance and business operations division and may not exceed the 43 

additional direct costs incurred by the county to accept a specific form of electronic 44 

payment utilized by the payer. 45 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 13923, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.601.010 46 

are each hereby amended to read as follows:  47 

 A.  Requests to accept electronic payments must be initiated by the affected 48 

department or agency.  A department or agency is not required to accept electronic 49 

payments for any service it provides. 50 

 B.  A department or agency may accept electronic payments for a service it offers, 51 

only if the person making the payment bears the transaction ((fee)) processing costs in 52 

such an amount as determined by the finance and business operations division in 53 

accordance with state law. 54 

 C.  A department or agency may absorb the costs associated with electronic 55 

payment transactions, only if the council has given its approval to do so and absorption of 56 

the transaction ((fees)) processing costs does not conflict with state law, this chapter or 57 

established county policy. 58 

 D.  A department or agency may accept electronic payments for tax payments, 59 

including interest, penalties and other amounts associated with taxes, only if the person 60 

making the payment bears the transaction ((fee)) processing costs in such an amount as 61 

determined by the finance and business operations division in accordance with state law. 62 

 E.  A department or agency may accept electronic payments for specified nontax 63 

payments, including but not limited to code enforcement fines and penalties, special 64 

assessments, school and road mitigation payments, and fines, restitution and interest 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 23



Ordinance  

 
 
imposed by courts, only if the person making the payment bears the transaction ((fee)) 66 

processing costs in such an amount as determined by the finance and business operations 67 

division in accordance with state law. 68 

 F.  If a department or agency collects payments to be shared with another state or 69 

government agency, the department or agency may absorb the cost of the transaction 70 

fees, only if the benefits to the county are greater than the transaction ((fee)) processing 71 

costs, as determined by the head of the department or agency, and if approved by the 72 

council.  A department or agency that collects those types of payments may enter into 73 

negotiation with other state or governmental agencies regarding the sharing of transaction 74 

((fees)) processing costs, unless the share of payment collected to be paid to the other 75 

agency is specified by state law. 76 

 G.  The finance and business operations division shall develop and administer a 77 

comprehensive countywide request for proposal for credit card services.  The finance and 78 

business operations division shall award and administer agreements for the services.  A 79 

department or agency may not enter into such an agreement without the written consent 80 

of the manager of the finance and business operations division. 81 

 H.  Electronic payments may be accepted in person, over the phone, by fax, by 82 

mail or through the Internet, as determined appropriate by the head of each department 83 

and agency and as is consistent with this chapter and any agreement for electronic 84 

payment services. 85 

 I. ((Convenience fees may be added to electronic payments processed through an 86 

interactive voice response system or through the Internet.  The convenience fee may be 87 

calculated to cover any transaction costs borne by the department or agency and may 88 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 24



Ordinance  

 
 
include a fee for expedited transaction processing.  A department or agency may not 89 

impose a convenience fee unless the manager of the finance and business operations 90 

division has approved the fee. 91 

 J.  A)) Only if the council has made a finding that it is in the best interest of the 92 

county to do so, a department or agency accepting electronic payments shall include 93 

transaction ((fees)) processing costs in its ((annual)) biennial budget ((unless)).   94 

Otherwise, the customer must pay ((s)) the transaction ((fees)) processing costs.  95 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 13923, Section 5, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.601.030 96 

are each hereby amended to read as follows:  97 

 A.  A department or agency may initiate the acceptance of electronic payments 98 

without council approval, only if the person making the payment bears the transaction 99 

((fee)) processing costs in such an amount as determined by the finance and business 100 

operations division in accordance with state law. 101 

 B.  A department or agency wishing to absorb the costs associated with electronic 102 

payment transactions shall receive council approval to do so.  The process for receiving 103 

council approval is as follows: 104 

   1.  The department or agency must submit to the budget office and to the finance 105 

and business operations division a formal request to initiate acceptance of electronic 106 

payments along with a business analysis that, at a minimum, describes any combination 107 

of the service or services and product or products for which the electronic payment option 108 

is to be offered, assesses the benefits of absorbing the transaction costs associated with 109 

these payments, projects the annual fiscal impact of absorbing transaction costs over a 110 

three-year horizon, documents legal or contractual obligations that would be affected by 111 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 25



Ordinance  

 
 
acceptance of electronic payments and adequately cites or includes as attachments any 112 

documentation supporting its business analysis.  The council encourages the executive to 113 

develop an electronic payment business analysis template for use by interested agencies; 114 

and 115 

   2.  If the budget office agrees that absorbing the transaction costs serves the best 116 

interests of the county, and if the finance and business operations division confirms that 117 

the proposal meets its electronic payment processing protocol, the executive may transmit 118 

an appropriation request to the council.  The transmittal package must include the 119 

department or agency business analysis on which the original request is based and an 120 

ordinance amending section 8 of this ordinance and making a finding that it is in the best 121 

interest of the county to allow the department or agency to absorb the transaction 122 

processing costs.  The council encourages submittal of the electronic payment 123 

appropriation requests as part of the ((annual)) biennial budget. 124 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinance 16861, Section 6, and K.C.C. 4A.601.100 are each 125 

hereby repealed. 126 

 SECTION 7.  Ordinance 17230, Section 1, and K.C.C. 4A.601.120 are each 127 

hereby repealed. 128 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 8.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 4A.601 129 

a new section to read as follows: 130 

 Subject to appropriation by the county council, the following county departments 131 

and agencies are authorized to absorb the operational and business costs of accepting 132 

electron payments, including transaction processing costs, for the specified fees, fines, 133 

charges, fares or other payments listed: 134 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 26



Ordinance  

 
 
 A.  The department of executive services, records and licensing services division, 135 

for payments for animal shelter, care and control and pet licensing purposes, including all 136 

fees, donations and penalties in K.C.C. 11.04.035; 137 

 B.  District court for court-related fees, fines and other charges; 138 

 C.  The department of natural resources and parks, parks and recreation division, 139 

for park services and facilities usage provided to the public; 140 

 D.  The department of natural resources and parks, wastewater treatment division, 141 

for sewage capacity charges; 142 

 E.  The department of natural resources and parks, solid waste division, for 143 

municipal solid waste fees; 144 

 F.  The department of public health for public health environmental permits and 145 

community health clinic fees; 146 

 G.  The department of permitting and environmental review for permitting and 147 

environmental review permit fees; 148 

 H.  The department of information technology for geographic information system 149 

course fees; and150 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 27



Ordinance  

 
 
 I.  The department of transportation, transit division, and the water taxi division, 151 

for public transportation fares. 152 

 153 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 28



Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item: 26 Name: Greg Doss 

Proposed No.: 2016-0399 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

SUBJECT 

An ordinance that authorizes certain county departments and agencies to absorb 
transaction processing costs for electronic payments.  

SUMMARY 

State Law authorizes counties to accept various forms of electronic payments and 
requires that customers bear the costs of electronic payments unless the county 
legislative authority determines it is in the best interests of the county to absorb those 
costs1.  

The county departments listed in Section 8 of the proposed ordinance are currently 
absorbing the costs of electronic payment (e-payment) fees, or would soon be absorbing 
the costs of an e-payment fee that is proposed as part of the Executive’s 2017-18 
Proposed Budget.  This legislation would provide the necessary legal affirmation of the 
County’s intent to absorb these costs. The new and existing fees accrue across several 
County funds and are budgeted in various departments throughout the Executive’s 2017-
18 Proposed Budget. 

The ordinance also makes the necessary changes to the King County Code to be in 
alignment with the amendments to RCW 36.29.190 that took effect June 28, 2016.  These 
amendments prohibit a government from charging e-payment fees that exceed the direct 
costs that would be incurred by the County to accept a specific form of electronic payment. 
This change means that County departments and agencies would not be permitted to 
charge additional “convenience” costs.  

BACKGROUND

The Executive has indicated that there is now significant interest by both customers and 
departments to use electronic payments for the majority of financial transactions within 
the County. To this end, the Finance and Business Operations Division (FBOD) updated 
an Executive Policy regarding the acceptance of electronic payments which became 
effective March 3, 2016. The policy reiterates that any department or agency proposing 

1 RCW 36.29.190 

King County Council November 7, 2016 29



to absorb costs associated with electronic payment fees must receive Council approval. 
The policy also describes criteria for evaluating whether a department or agency should 
be allowed to absorb costs associated with electronic payment processing fees. One or 
more of these criteria were applied to the various electronic payment applications listed 
in Section 8.   
 

State and County statutes regarding electronic payment fees: 
 
Electronic payment fees are governed by a combination of Washington State laws and 
King County Code.  State law draws a distinction between fees for non-tax and tax 
electronic payments. For the myriad of non-tax payments, RCW 36.29.190 specifically 
indicates “a payer using electronic payment must pay the transaction processing cost” 
for an e-payment in an amount determined by the treasurer unless the County 
legislative authority finds that it is in the best interest of the County not to charge the 
payer the cost of processing the transaction for a specific category of nontax payment.  
For tax related payments, which include the payment of real and personal property 
taxes, State law mandates that counties pass on the costs of transactions to the 
taxpayer.  Counties cannot absorb fees for the payment of taxes2.   
 
KCC 4A.601.030 also requires that transaction fees generally be passed on to 
customers and that agencies wishing to absorb fees must receive the approval of the 
Council. In such cases, the agency must submit to the Budget Office, FBOD and the 
Council an Electronic Fee Business Case that describes any combination of the service 
or services and product or products for which the electronic payment option is to be 
offered, assesses the benefits of absorbing the transaction costs associated with these 
payments, projects the annual fiscal impact of absorbing transaction costs over a three-
year horizon, documents legal or contractual obligations that would be affected by 
acceptance of electronic payments and adequately cites or includes as attachments any 
documentation supporting its business analysis.  The code encourages the Executive to 
submit these business analyses as part of the annual budget.  
 
The 2016 Washington State legislature amended RCW 36.29.190 and if the customer 
must pay the costs for processing electronic payments, they may not exceed the direct 
costs that would be incurred by the County to accept a specific form of electronic 
payment. This change means that County departments and agencies would not be 
permitted to charge additional “convenience” costs or “surcharges” to customers that 
exceeded the actual transaction processing costs of an electronic payment, unless 
authorized by a different state law. This proposed ordinance amends the County Code 
to ensure compliance with state law. 
 

Council Proviso: 
 
During the 2015/2016 Biennial Budget discussions, Councilmembers expressed interest 
in making sure that the e-payment components of several disparate technology projects 
were being coordinated with FBOD’s e-payment process.  The members were 
specifically interested in ensuring that the County achieved economies of scale by 
using, when possible, the same back-end vendor /payment processor.  Council 

                                                 
2 There are additional state statutes that include provisions for certain specific fees, such as fees involving 
court related costs, vehicle operators, and vehicle and vessel certificates, and health records. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 30



members also expressed interest in making sure that electronic payment charges were 
not unreasonable relative to other retail transactions and that the County achieves cost 
recovery for e-payment fees when and where it is appropriate.  To this end, the Council 
adopted a proviso in the 2015/2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance (17941, Section 117, 
Proviso P1). 
 
In October 2015, The Council heard in response to the proviso Motion 2015-0243, 
which was accompanied by an Executive report that provided updated policies and 
procedures for fees involving electronic payments.  The Council chose to not act on the 
proviso pending review of the attached ordinance 2016-0399. 
 
Analysis:  
 
King County Code requires the Finance Director to approve the use of transaction fees 
for electronic payments and the methodology used in calculating it.  Like an agency’s 
request to absorb e-payment fees, this requirement is also managed by requiring the 
submission of an Electronic Payments Business Case assessment by the agency 
requesting to implement new or substantially changed electronic payments systems for 
customers.  The Executive indicates that no changes to this requirement are planned 
and that FBOD will continue to look for ways to strengthen it in the future.  Further, 
FBOD will retain lead responsibility for the oversight and management of the Electronic 
Payment Fee Policies and Procedures.  
 
The Executive reports that the agencies below are currently absorbing or will soon 
absorb the cost of transaction fees for electronic payments.   These agencies are 
reflected in Section 8 of the Proposed Ordinance: 
 

A. The Department of Executive Services, Records and Licensing Services Division, 
for payments for animal shelter, care and control and pet licensing purposes, 
including all fees, donations and penalties in K.C.C. 11.04.035; 

B. District Court for court-related fees, fines and other charges; 

C. The Department of Natural Resources and Parks, Parks and Recreation Division, 
for park services and facilities usage provided to the public (equipment and 
facility rentals, class registration); 

D. The Department of Natural Resources and Parks, Wastewater Treatment 
Division, for sewage capacity charges (wastewater capacity charges); 

E. The Department of Natural Resources and Parks, Solid Waste Division, for 
municipal solid waste fees (trash disposal fees); 

F. The Department of Public Health for public health environmental permits and 
community health clinic fees (clinic fees and permits); 

G. The Department of Permitting and Environmental Review for permitting and 
environmental review permit fees; 

H. The Department of Information Technology for geographic information system 
course fees; and 

I. The department of transportation, transit division, and the water taxi division, for 
public transportation fares (bus, marine and rail services). 

King County Council November 7, 2016 31



 
The Executive has provided a more complete listing of transaction fees, and total revenue 
collected, by agency in (Attachment 2).   
 

 
Recommended fee and cost recovery principles for electronic payments; 
and Recommended policies for determining the need for and granting 
exceptions to electronic fee payment policies: 
 
Cost Recovery Principles and Framework: 
 
The Executive has adopted an Electronic Payments Management Plan and has 
indicated that it identifies business practices and a fee absorption framework that will 
create less confusion for customers. The principles require agencies to use a Service 
Fee pricing structure with the payment channel that best meets consumer needs.  A full 
list of the principles can be found in the Electronic Payments Management Plan 
(Attachment 3). 
 

Electronic Payment Fee Policy – Granting Exceptions 
 
Consistent with current County Code and policies, an agency wishing to absorb fees 
must make a case for this approach as part of a business case analysis. The 
Executive’s policies and procedures include the following evaluation criteria: 
 

1. The agency has average transaction amounts that are very low and adding on a 
fee would likely be a major barrier for customer adoption. 

2. The agency can demonstrate strong customer adoption rates by absorbing fees, 
with increasing payments generating revenues or reducing administrative costs 
that more than offset the cost of absorbing fees. 

3. The agency has a pricing structure for its products/services and the prices will be 
set to recover the costs of an electronic transaction. 

4. The agency is influenced strongly by Equity and Social Justice Considerations 
due to the population demographic that the agency predominantly serves. 

5. An agency, with appropriate approvals, joins a regional, cooperative, State or 
Federal Business Application which requires the absorption of Service Fees for 
electronic payments. 

6. The agency has a Council adopted budget that includes the cost of absorbing 
fees. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0399  
2. King County Acceptance of Electronic Payments 
3. Electronic Payments Management Plan  

 
INVITED 
 

1. Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 
2. Ken Guy, Director, Finance & Business Operations 

King County Council November 7, 2016 32



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0456.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE related to the provision of discounted 1 

transit fare media to human services agencies; and 2 

amending Ordinance 12643, Section 19, as amended, and 3 

K.C.C. 4A.700.210, Ordinance 17932, Section 2, as 4 

amended,  Ordinance 12643, Section 19, as amended, and 5 

K.C.C. 4A.700.210 and Ordinance 12643, Section 17, as 6 

amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.350. 7 

STATEMENT OF FACTS: 8 

1.  K.C.C. 4A.700.210 authorizes a program for the sale and distribution 9 

of transit tickets to human services agencies at twenty percent of the face 10 

value for the purpose of meeting the transportation needs of low income 11 

and homeless populations. 12 

2.  With the March 26, 2016, service change, Metro reconfigured its bus 13 

service to provide better connections with Sound Transit's new Link light 14 

rail service to Capitol Hill and the University District. 15 

3.  The extension of light rail service to Capitol Hill and the University 16 

District, together with Metro's recent service change, has resulted in many 17 

riders transferring from Metro bus service to Sound Transit light rail 18 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 33



Ordinance  

 
 

service, including riders participating in Metro's human services ticket 19 

program. 20 

4.  Currently, riders who are using tickets provided under the human 21 

services agencies ticket program cannot transfer between Metro's bus 22 

service and Sound Transit's light rail service using a single ticket.  23 

Additionally, the price of the discounted tickets does not currently reflect 24 

the interagency transfer credits provided through the ORCA system. 25 

5.  Expenditures by the human services agencies for the twenty percent 26 

face value purchase price limits the amount of funding that these agencies 27 

can use for other client needs. 28 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 29 

 SECTION 1.  Section 2 of this ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017, and expires 30 

January 1, 2018. 31 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 12643, Section 19, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.210 32 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 33 

 A.  The director is authorized to establish a program for the sale and distribution 34 

of tickets to human service agencies at ((twenty)) ten percent of their cash value for the 35 

purpose of meeting the transportation needs of low income and homeless populations.  36 

The total amount of the ((eighty)) ninety percent discount provided under the program 37 

shall not exceed three million ((two)) six hundred thousand dollars for any one year.  38 

However, the amount of the ((eighty)) ninety percent discount may be increased by up to 39 

an additional two hundred thousand dollars annually under this human services ticket 40 

program for the value of tickets applied to it through the congestion reduction transit 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 34



Ordinance  

 
 
incentives program described in Ordinance 17295, Section 1.  The allocation of discount 42 

tickets under the program shall be made by the director in conjunction with local 43 

jurisdictions and the county's department or departments responsible for human services 44 

programs.  The local jurisdictions and the county department or departments shall 45 

determine the number of tickets from their respective allocations that shall be sold to the 46 

human service agencies eligible under the program.  Tickets sold under the program are 47 

valid on all public transportation and paratransit service for the purpose of meeting the 48 

transportation needs of low income and homeless populations.  The program shall 49 

provide for the following: 50 

   1.  Metro issued fare payment media, including but not limited to bus tickets, to 51 

be sold to human service agencies at ten percent of the cash value; and 52 

   2.  A fare payment medium consisting of a combination of a Metro-issued fare 53 

payment medium and a fare payment medium of another transportation agency, to be sold 54 

to human services agencies at the higher of either the ten percent of the cash value of the 55 

Metro fare medium or the discounted price of the fare medium provided by the other 56 

transportation agency under an interagency agreement between Metro and the other 57 

transportation agency. 58 

 B.  The allocation of discount fare payment media under the program shall be 59 

made by the director in conjunction with local jurisdictions and the county's department 60 

or departments responsible for human services programs.  The local jurisdictions and the 61 

county department or departments shall determine the quantity of fare payment media 62 

from their respective allocations that shall be sold to the human service agencies eligible 63 

under the program. 64 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 35



Ordinance  

 
 
 C.  The total amount of discount provided under the program established under 65 

section A. of this section shall not exceed three million six hundred thousand dollars for 66 

any one year. 67 

 D.  Metro fare payment media sold under the program shall be valid for all Metro 68 

transportation and paratransit service as well as for service on those Sound Transit bus 69 

routes agreed to by Metro and Sound Transit. 70 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 17932, Section 2, as amended, is hereby amended to 71 

read as follows: 72 

 Ordinance 17932, Section 3, ((and)) Ordinance 18370, Section 4 ((of this 73 

ordinance)) and section 4 of this ordinance take effect January 1, 2018. 74 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 12643, Section 19, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.210 75 

are each hereby amended to read as follows:  76 

 A.  The director is authorized to establish a program for the sale and distribution 77 

of ((tickets)) fare payment media to human service agencies at ((twenty)) ten percent of 78 

their cash value for the purpose of meeting the transportation needs of low income and 79 

homeless populations.  The total amount of the ((eighty)) ninety percent discount 80 

provided under the program shall not exceed three million ((two)) six hundred thousand 81 

dollars for any one year.  The allocation of discount tickets under the program shall be 82 

made by the director in conjunction with local jurisdictions and the county's department 83 

or departments responsible for human services programs.  The local jurisdictions and the 84 

county department or departments shall determine the ((number of tickets)) quantity of 85 

fare payment media from their respective allocations that shall be sold to the human 86 

service agencies eligible under the program.  Tickets sold under the program are valid on 87 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 36



Ordinance  

 
 
all public transportation and paratransit service for the purpose of meeting the 88 

transportation needs of low income and homeless populations.  The program shall 89 

provide for the following: 90 

   1.  Metro issued fare payment media, including but not limited to bus tickets, to 91 

be sold to human service agencies at ten percent of the cash value; and  92 

   2.  A fare payment medium consisting of a combination of a Metro-issued fare 93 

payment medium and a fare payment medium of another transportation agency, to be sold 94 

to human services agencies at the higher of either the ten percent of the cash value of the 95 

Metro fare medium or the discounted price of the fare medium provided by the other 96 

transportation agency under an interagency agreement between Metro and the other 97 

transportation agency. 98 

 B.  The allocation of discount fare payment media under the program shall be 99 

made by the director in conjunction with local jurisdictions and the county's department 100 

or departments responsible for human services programs.  The local jurisdictions and the 101 

county department or departments shall determine the quantity of fare payment media 102 

from their respective allocations that shall be sold to the human service agencies eligible 103 

under the program. 104 

 C.  The total amount of discount provided under the program established under 105 

section A. of this section shall not exceed three million six hundred thousand dollars for 106 

any one year. 107 

 D.  Metro fare payment media sold under the program shall be valid for all Metro 108 

transportation and paratransit service as well as for service on those Sound Transit bus 109 

routes agreed to by Metro and Sound Transit. 110 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 37



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 12643, Section 17, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.350 111 

are each hereby amended to read as follows.  112 

 A.  The executive is authorized to execute agreements with other transit agencies 113 

either to establish a system of fare payment for passengers transferring between 114 

transportation systems or for issuing a combined fare payment medium.  The agreements 115 

shall be subject to approval by the council to the extent the approval is required by the 116 

charter, ordinance or applicable state law, or any combination thereof.   117 

 B.  The agreements related to fare payment for passengers transferring between 118 

transportation systems shall provide that the county's share of the fares collected for trips 119 

involving transfers between transit agencies shall be the estimated revenue collected for 120 

the trips multiplied by the ratio of the revenue that would have been generated by 121 

application of the county's appropriate fares or prorated per trip pass prices due under 122 

other provisions of this chapter for the county portions of these interagency trips divided 123 

by the sum of the revenue that would have been generated by the application of each 124 

agency's appropriate fares or prorated per trip pass prices for all segments of the 125 

interagency trips. 126 

 C.  The agreements related to the issuance of a combined fare payment medium 127 

shall include terms that: 128 

   1.  Apportion the revenues from the sales of the combined fare payment medium 129 

between the county and the other transportation agency such that each party's share of the 130 

revenues shall be determined by multiplying: 131 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 38



Ordinance  

 
 
   a.  the ratio of the cost of that party's discounted payment fare if it were sold 132 

separately to the human services agencies divided by the sum of all the parties' 133 

discounted payment fares if they were sold separately to human services agencies; by 134 

   b.  the revenues generated from the combined fare payment medium sales; 135 

   2.  Identify the services, including service areas if appropriate, for which the 136 

other transportation agency's fare medium will be valid; and137 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 39



Ordinance  

 
 
   3.  If appropriate, provide for the reimbursement of the other transportation 138 

agency accepting discounted Metro bus tickets sold to human services agencies. 139 

 140 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 40



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 35 Name: Paul Carlson 

Proposed No.: 2016-0456 Date: November 1-2-3, 2016 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0456.2 modifies the ordinance to establish a 
10 percent human services agency matching payment for the human services 
ticket program and a 90 percent subsidy from the county.  The $4 million total 
amount of ticket value, as increased in September by Council action, remains in 
effect. 
 
The revised ordinance also authorizes combination fare media to be sold (such 
as a combination of a Link Light Rail all day pass and a Metro bus tickets) 
subject to agreement by the participating agencies.  The proposed ordinance 
passed out of committee on November 1, 2016, with a “Do Pass as amended” 
recommendation. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
An ordinance related to the provision of discounted transit fare media to human services 
agencies. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
K.C.C.4A.700.210 establishes the human services ticket program, which allows human 
services agencies to pay 20 percent of the face value of bus tickets which the agencies 
then distribute to clients.  The total annual amount of the 80 percent subsidy is now 
$3,200,000 following a recent increase (adopted via Ordinance 18370 in September 
2016).  Accordingly the total amount of human services tickets available to the agencies 
is valued at $4,000,000 per year. 
 
Through 2017, the program is authorized to use, in addition, the value of tickets donated 
through the Congestion Reduction Charge (CRC) program.  There will be no more 
donated tickets after the end of 2017.  For this reason, K.C.C. 4A.700.210 appears in 
the Code in two versions.  The first is the version now in effect, with the CRC donated 
tickets language; the second is the version effective in 2018 and beyond, without the 
CRC donated tickets reference. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 41



 
As transmitted by the Executive, Proposed Ordinance 2016-0456 would amend K.C.C. 
4A.700.210 to authorize the sale to human services agencies of a “combo” transit fare 
medium combining all-day Sound Transit Link Light Rail passes with Metro tickets (two 
Metro tickets are included for each Link all-day pass).  This combination of tickets would 
allow an agency client to make a round trip involving a Metro bus and Link Light Rail.  
As a trial program, combo fare media has been made available under the authority of 
K.C.C. 4A.700.610, allowing the waiver or discount of fares for ridership promotion.  
This pilot program responds to the extension of Link Light Rail to University of 
Washington Station and the resultant increased number of transit trips involving a 
transfer between Link and Metro buses. 
 
An amendment to Proposed Ordinance 2016-0456 is necessary because it does not 
amend the most current versions of K.C.C. 4A.700.210 adopted by Ordinance 18370, 
enacted after Proposed Ordinance 2016-0456 was transmitted.  In addition, Section 1 of 
the transmitted ordinance provides that the code amendment takes effective “on the 
effective date of the ordinance,” which would have the effect of deleting the CRC-
donated tickets language. 
 
A striking amendment under development is described later in the staff report.  Briefly, it 
would approve a policy change to reduce the agency matching requirement from 20 
percent to 10 percent, and it would revise the legislation so that it amends the current 
Code sections, substantially revises the mechanism for approving the combo fare 
media, and preserves the CRC-donated tickets language through the end of 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Since 1993, the County has authorized the sale of transit tickets to human service 
agencies at a discount:  The agency pays for part of the ticket cost, and K.C.C. 
4A.700.210 defines the discount as a percentage of the ticket cost (“twenty percent of 
cash value”) and as a maximum dollar value.  As bus ticket prices increase, the number 
of tickets that agencies can purchase declines.  For this reason, K.C.C. 4A.700.210 has 
been amended every few years. 
 
To distribute these tickets, the King County Department of Community and Human 
Services (DCHS) issues a Request for Proposals (RFP) to the agencies1.  Agencies are 
awarded an allotment of the available tickets and purchase a combination of adult two-
zone peak, adult one-zone peak, adult off-peak, youth, and regional reduced fare permit 
(RRFP) tickets.  The adult low-income fare is only available through the ORCA LIFT 
card, not in ticket form. 
 
When the County Council approved the temporary Congestion Reduction Charge 
(CRC) in 2012, the Transit Incentives Program was established allowing households 
paying the CRC to receive eight free transit tickets.  Individuals were permitted to 
donate the ticket value to the human services ticket program.  The Council amended 
K.C.C. 4A.700.210 to allow a temporary increase of up to $200,000 per year in the 

1 The City of Seattle no longer participates in this process. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 42



amount of discounted ticket value, until the end of 2016 when the value of the CRC 
donated tickets was expected to be exhausted. 
 
For 2016 and future years, the total amount of the 80 percent discount is set at 
$3,200,000.  In 2016 and 2017 only, there is an additional discount amount for the 
CRC-donated tickets.  For 2017, this corresponds to a total ticket amount estimated at 
$4,077,185.  
 
A state audit in 2013, addressing program implementation in 2011-2012, found that 
program administration could be improved with respect to control of the tickets and 
record-keeping.  Council staff understands that the County has implemented procedural 
changes and that agencies must track ticket distribution and report lost or stolen tickets.  
 
As described in the staff report for Proposed Ordinance 2016-0491, Transit has worked 
with Sound Transit to allow the sale of fare media combining Metro tickets with Sound 
Transit Link day passes through the Human Services Ticket program.  These “combo” 
fare media were priced to allow human services agencies to avoid having to pay for 
both Metro tickets and the Link day pass for those clients that needed to make a trip 
involving a transfer between Metro and Link. As a result, the Metro discount exceeded 
the 80 percent established in K.C.C. 4A.700.210.  To date, Metro has sold 704 books of 
combo fare media to human services agencies.  Each book contains 20 Metro tickets 
and 10 Link day passes and is priced at $11.  This has resulted in a revenue loss of 
about $3,700 beyond the 80 percent discount. 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
The striking amendment, currently under development, includes the following revisions: 
 

• It would redraft the proposal as recommended by the Council’s Senior  

Deputy Legal Counsel to revise the process for the County and Sound Transit to 

agree  to authorize the combo fare medium; 

• It would preserve the CRC-donated tickets language; and 

• It would reduce the 20 percent human services agency match to 10 percent, 

increase the 80 percent Transit subsidy to 90 percent, and increase the amount 

of the maximum allowable subsidy for human service bus tickets from 

$3,200,000 to $3,600,000 so that the total amount of tickets available in a year 

(that is, the dollar amount of the agency match plus the dollar amount of the 

subsidy) would remain at $4,000,000. 
 
As of this writing, issues to be resolved include the effective date of the revision and 
some details of the language relating to a County-Sound Transit agreement on the 
combo fare medium. 
 
A title amendment will be necessary, reflecting the striking amendment changes. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 43



Approval of the striking amendment would allow human service agencies to pay less for 
fare media for distribution to their low-income and homeless clients.  This action would 
reduce revenue to Transit; the human services agencies’ would either see available 
revenue freed up for other purposes or would have to raise less revenue for the same 
benefit.  The number of transit trips that clients could take would increase if the result is 
that agencies would buy more of the available tickets. 
 
Transit revenue would be reduced by approximately half compared to the amount of 
revenue generated if all available tickets were purchased in a given year2.  There would 
be some downward effect on the farebox recovery ratio, but there is no fiscal note for 
this and other impacts of the striking amendment.  It is not entirely clear how Ordinance 
18370 and the striking amendment would affect Metro Transit revenues and operations.  
As noted in the staff report for Ordinance 18370:  The impact of the human services 
ticket program is incorporated in the average fare per boarding calculation and farebox 
recovery ratios (both are assumed to be lower due to the human service tickets), but it 
is not known how many of the trips would have been taken anyway if the client had to 
pay the fare instead of using a human services ticket.  If the trip would not have been 
made, there is no foregone revenue lost to Transit.  It is also unclear how many tickets 
are used to fill empty seats, at minimal cost to Transit, versus how many are used on 
crowded bus routes. 
 
Table 1, A-C, shows the current law effects for 2017 and the striking amendment’s 
effects for 2017 (with the CRC-donated ticket value) and for 2018 and future years. 
 

Table 1A.  2017 Human Service Ticket Amounts, Current Law 

 
Total 80% Discount 20% HS Agency  

Base amount $  4,000,000.00   $  3,200,000.00   $   800,000.00  

Congestion Mitigation* $      77,185.00   $      61,748.16  $      15,436.84  

Total $  4,077,185.00   $  3,261,748.16   $   815,436.84 

        

Table 1B.  2017 Human Service Ticket Amounts, Striking Amendment 

 

 
Total 90% Discount 10% HS Agency 

Base amount $  4,000,000.00   $  3,600,000.00   $   400,000.00  

Congestion Mitigation* $        77,185.00   $        69,466.50  $      7,718.50  

Total $  3,514,685.00   $  3,669,,466.50  $   407,718.50  

 
*Authorized, but amount not specifically mentioned in the version of K.C.C. 4A.700.210 effective 
in 2017 

        

Table 1C.  2018 Human Service Ticket Amounts, Striking Amendment 

 

 
Total 90% Discount 10% HS Agency 

2 Metro ticket matching funds would decrease by half.  The combo fare media would be priced at the 
higher of the two cooperating agency discount amounts.  The cost for a set of 10 Link all day passes and 
20 bus tickets would decrease from $11 to $10. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 44



Total $  4,000,000.00   $  3,600,000.00   $   400,000.00  

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 45



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0463.2 Sponsors Dembowski and Kohl-Welles 

 
AN ORDINANCE establishing a paid parental leave 1 

program for employees eligible for leave benefits, 2 

including annual reports; amending Ordinance 12014, 3 

Section 5, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.12.010 and adding a 4 

new section to K.C.C. chapter 3.12. 5 

STATEMENT OF FACTS:  6 

1.  Under federal and state law, eligible employees are entitled to take up 7 

to twelve weeks of leave for the birth, adoption or foster placement of a 8 

child.  During that period, employees' jobs are protected, and they 9 

continue to receive employer paid health benefits; however, there is no 10 

requirement that employees be paid during the leave. 11 

2.  The United States is the only industrialized nation in the world that 12 

does not mandate paid parental leave. 13 

3.  Paid maternity leave can increase breastfeeding rates and duration, 14 

reduce the risk of infant mortality and increase the likelihood of infants 15 

receiving well-baby care and vaccinations. 16 

4.  Fathers who take time off from work around childbirth are likely to 17 

spend more time with their children in the months following their 18 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 46



Ordinance  

 
 

children's birth, which could reduce stress on the family and contribute to 19 

father-infant bonding. 20 

5.  A 2012 U.S. Department of Labor survey found that the number of 21 

employees who reported needing leave, but not using it, had doubled since 22 

2000. The most-common reasons for not using leave were inability to 23 

afford an unpaid leave and fear of losing one's job.  Those who did not 24 

take needed leave were disproportionately women, nonwhite, unmarried, 25 

and earning less than $35,000 per year. 26 

6.  The King County women's advisory board has issued a report, 27 

Improving Wage Equity and Promoting Family Friendly Workplace 28 

Policies throughout King County, that recommends that King County offer 29 

paid parental leave to its employees. 30 

7.  Providing paid parental leave may help attract and retain employees 31 

and may reduce employee turnover, which has been estimated to cost 32 

twenty-one percent of an employee's annual salary. 33 

8.  Providing paid parental leave supports King County's commitment to 34 

equity and social justice, in that it makes parental leave more affordable 35 

for lower-paid employees. 36 

9.  Paid parental leave is associated with improved health outcomes for 37 

infants and children, which may result in avoided healthcare costs for 38 

King County, which is self-insured. 39 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 47



Ordinance  

 
 

10.  In the absence of a paid parental leave program, childbirth and 40 

adoption can take a significant financial and emotional toll on working 41 

parents and thereby can impair their ability to serve the public. 42 

11.  Based on the success of King County’s 2016 paid parental leave pilot 43 

program, establishing an on-going paid parental leave program is in the 44 

best interest of King County employees, their families and the public that 45 

the employees serve. 46 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 47 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance 12014, Section 5, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.12.010 are 48 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 49 

 For the purposes of this chapter, all words shall have their ordinary and usual 50 

meanings except those defined in this section which shall have, in addition, the following 51 

meanings.  In the event of conflict, the specific definitions set forth in this section shall 52 

presumptively, but not conclusively, prevail. 53 

 A.  "Accrued paid leave" includes accrued vacation leave, sick leave, executive 54 

leave and other similar leaves, but excludes compensatory time. 55 

 B.1.  "Administrative interns" means employees who are: 56 

     a.  enrolled full-time during the regular school year in a program of education, 57 

internship or apprenticeship; or 58 

     b.  veterans temporarily working to gain practical workforce experience. 59 

   2.  All administrative internships in executive departments shall be approved by 60 

the manager.  Administrative interns are exempt from the career service under Section 61 

550 of the charter. 62 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 48



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((B.)) C.  "AmeriCorps" means those who apply for and are selected to serve in 63 

positions at King County government through either AmeriCorps or Washington Service 64 

Corps programs, or both. 65 

 ((C.)) D.  "Appointing authority" means the county council, the executive, chief 66 

officers of executive departments and administrative offices, or division managers having 67 

authority to appoint or to remove persons from positions in the county service. 68 

 ((D.)) E.  "Basis of merit" means the value, excellence or superior quality of an 69 

individual's work performance, as determined by a structured process comparing the 70 

employee's performance against defined standards and, where possible, the performance 71 

of other employees of the same or similar class. 72 

 ((E.)) F.  "Board" means the county personnel board established by Section 540 of 73 

the charter. 74 

 ((F.)) G.  "Budgetary furlough" means a circumstance in which projected county 75 

revenues are determined to be insufficient to fully fund county agency operations and, in 76 

order either to achieve budget savings or to meet unallocated budget reductions, which 77 

are commonly known as contras, or both, cost savings may be achieved through 78 

reduction in days or hours of service, resulting in placing an employee for one or more 79 

days in a temporary furlough status without duties and without pay. 80 

 ((G.)) H.  "Career service employee" means a county employee appointed to a 81 

career service position as a result of the selection procedure provided for in this chapter, 82 

and who has completed the probationary period. 83 

 ((H.)) I.  "Career service position" means all positions in the county service 84 

except for those that are designated by Section 550 of the charter as follows:  all elected 85 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 49



Ordinance  

 
 
officers; the county auditor, the clerk and all other employees of the county council; the 86 

county administrative officer; the chief officer of each executive department and 87 

administrative office; the members of all boards and commissions; the chief economist 88 

and other employees of the office economic and financial analysis; the chief economist 89 

and other employees of the office of economic and financial analysis; administrative 90 

assistants for the executive and one administrative assistant each for the county 91 

administrative officer, the county auditor, the county assessor, the chief officer of each 92 

executive department  and administrative office and for each board and commission; a 93 

chief deputy for the county assessor; one confidential secretary each for the executive, the 94 

chief officer of each executive department and administrative office, and for each 95 

administrative assistant specified in this section; all employees of those officers who are 96 

exempted from the provisions of this chapter by the state constitution; persons employed 97 

in a professional or scientific capacity to conduct a special inquiry, investigation or 98 

examination; part-time and temporary employees; administrative interns; election 99 

precinct officials; all persons serving the county without compensation; physicians; 100 

surgeons; dentists; medical interns; and student nurses and inmates employed by county 101 

hospitals, tuberculosis sanitariums and health departments of the county. 102 

 Divisions in executive departments and administrative offices as determined by 103 

the county council shall be considered to be executive departments for the purpose of 104 

determining the applicability of Section 550 of the charter. 105 

 All part-time employees shall be exempted from career service membership 106 

except, all part-time employees employed at least half time or more, as defined by 107 

ordinance, shall be members of the career service. 108 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 50



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((I.)) J.  "Charter" means the King County Charter, as amended. 109 

 ((J.)) K.  "Child" means a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild, a legal 110 

ward or a child of an employee standing in loco parentis to the child, who is: 111 

   1.  Under eighteen years of age; or 112 

   2.  Eighteen years of age or older and incapable of self care because of a mental 113 

or physical disability. 114 

 ((K.)) L.  "Class" or "classification" means a position or group of positions, 115 

established under authority of this chapter, sufficiently similar in respect to the duties, 116 

responsibilities and authority thereof, that the same descriptive title may be used to 117 

designate each position allocated to the class. 118 

 ((L.)) M.  "Classification plan" means the arrangement of positions into 119 

classifications together with specifications describing each classification. 120 

 ((M.)) N.  "Compensatory time" means time off granted with pay in lieu of pay 121 

for work performed either on an authorized overtime basis or work performed on a 122 

holiday that is normally scheduled as a day off. Such compensatory time shall be granted 123 

on the basis of time and one-half. 124 

 ((N.)) O.  "Competitive employment" means a position established in the county 125 

budget and that requires at least twenty-six weeks of service per year as the work 126 

schedule established for the position. 127 

 ((O.)) P.  "Council" means the county council as established by Article 2 of the 128 

charter. 129 

 ((P.)) Q.  "County" means King County and any other organization that is legally 130 

governed by the county with respect to personnel matters. 131 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 51



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((Q.)) R.  "Developmental disability" means a developmental disability, as 132 

defined in RCW 71A.10.020(2), as amended, attributable to mental retardation, cerebral 133 

palsy, epilepsy, autism or other neurological or other condition of an individual found by 134 

the secretary of the Washington state Department of Social and Health Services, or the 135 

secretary's designee, to be closely related to mental retardation or to require treatment 136 

similar to that required for individuals with mental retardation, which disability originates 137 

before the individual attains age eighteen, that has continued or can be expected to 138 

continue indefinitely and that constitutes a substantial handicap for the individual. 139 

 ((R.)) S.  "Direct cost" means the cost aggregate of the actual weighted average 140 

cost of insured benefits, less any administrative cost therefor.  Any payments to part-time 141 

and temporary employees under this chapter shall not include any administrative 142 

overhead charges applicable to administrative offices and executive departments. 143 

 ((S.)) T.  "Director" means the manager of the human resources management 144 

division. 145 

 ((T.)) U.  "Division" means the human resources management division or its 146 

successor agency. 147 

 ((U.)) V.  "Domestic partners" are two people in a domestic partnership, one of 148 

whom is a county employee. 149 

 ((V.)) W.  "Domestic partnership" is a relationship whereby two people: 150 

   1.  Have a close personal relationship; 151 

   2.  Are each other's sole domestic partner and are responsible for each other's 152 

common welfare; 153 

   3.  Share the same regular and permanent residence; 154 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 52



Ordinance  

 
 
   4.  Are jointly responsible for basic living expenses which means the cost of 155 

basic food, shelter and any other expenses of a domestic partner that are paid at least in 156 

part by a program or benefit for which the partner qualified because of the domestic 157 

partnership.  The individuals need not contribute equally or jointly to the cost of these 158 

expenses as long as they agree that both are responsible for the cost; 159 

   5.  Are not married to anyone; 160 

   6.  Are each eighteen years of age or older; 161 

   7.  Are not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the state of 162 

Washington; 163 

   8.  Were mentally competent to consent to contract when the domestic 164 

partnership began. 165 

 ((W.)) X.  "Employed at least half time or more" means employed in a regular 166 

position that has an established work schedule of not less than one-half the number of 167 

hours of the full-time positions in the work unit in which the employee is assigned, or 168 

when viewed on a calendar year basis, nine hundred ten hours or more in a work unit in 169 

which a work week of more than thirty-five but less than forty hours is standard or one 170 

thousand forty hours or more in a work unit in which a forty hour work week is standard.  171 

If the standard work week hours within a work unit varies (employees working both 172 

thirty five and forty hours) the manager, in consultation with the department, is 173 

responsible for determining what hour threshold applies. 174 

 ((X.)) Y.  "Employee" means any person who is employed in a career service 175 

position or exempt position. 176 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 53



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((Y.)) Z.  "Executive" means the county executive, as established by Article 3 of 177 

the charter. 178 

 ((Z.)) AA.  "Exempt employee" means an employee employed in a position that is 179 

not a career service position under Section 550 of the charter.  Exempt employees serve 180 

at the pleasure of the appointing authority. 181 

 ((AA.)) BB.  "Exempt position" means any position excluded as a career service 182 

position by Section 550 of the charter.  Exempt positions are positions to which 183 

appointments may be made directly without a competitive hiring process. 184 

 ((BB.)) CC.  "Full-time regular employee" means an employee employed in a 185 

full-time regular position and, for full-time career service positions, is not serving a 186 

probationary period. 187 

 ((CC.)) DD.  "Full-time regular position" means a regular position that has an 188 

established work schedule of not less than thirty-five hours per week in those work units 189 

in which a thirty-five hour week is standard, or of not less than forty hours per week in 190 

those work units in which a forty-hour week is standard. 191 

 ((DD.)) EE.  "Furlough day" means a day for which an employee shall perform no 192 

work and shall receive no pay due to an emergency budget crisis necessitating emergency 193 

budget furloughs. 194 

 ((EE.)) FF.  "Furloughed employee" means an employee who is placed in a 195 

temporary status without duties and without pay due to a financial emergency 196 

necessitating budget reductions. 197 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 54



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((FF.)) GG.  "Grievance" means an issue raised by an employee relating to the 198 

interpretation of rights, benefits, or condition of employment as contained in either the 199 

administrative rules or procedures, or both, for the career service. 200 

 ((GG.)) HH.  "Immediate family" means spouse, child, parent, son-in-law, 201 

daughter-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, domestic partner and the child, parent, 202 

sibling, grandparent or grandchild of the spouse or domestic partner. 203 

 ((HH.)) II.  "Incentive increase" means an increase to an employee's base salary 204 

within the assigned pay range, based on demonstrated performance. 205 

 ((II.)) JJ.  "Integrated work setting" means a work setting with no more than eight 206 

persons with developmental disabilities or with the presence of a sensory, mental or 207 

physical handicap as specified in K.C.C. 3.12.180.  This definition refers to all county 208 

offices, field locations and other work sites at which supported employees work 209 

alongside employees who are not persons with development disabilities employed in 210 

permanent county positions. 211 

 ((JJ.)) KK.  "King County family and medical leave" means a leave of absence 212 

taken under K.C.C. 3.12.221. 213 

 ((KK.)) LL.  "Life-giving and life-saving procedures" means a medically-214 

supervised procedure involving the testing, sampling, or donation of blood, organs, 215 

fluids, tissues and other human body components for the purposes of donation without 216 

compensation to a person for a medically necessary treatment.  217 

 ((LL.)) MM.  "Manager" means the manager of the human resources division* or 218 

its successor agency. 219 

10 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 55



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((MM.)) NN.  "Marital status" means the presence or absence of a marital 220 

relationship and includes the status of married, separated, divorced, engaged, widowed, 221 

single or cohabiting. 222 

 ((NN.)) OO.  "Part-time employee" means an employee employed in a part-time 223 

position.  Under Section 550 of the charter, part-time employees are not members of the 224 

career service. 225 

 ((OO.)) PP.  "Part-time position" means an other than a regular position in which 226 

the part-time employee is employed less than half time, that is less than nine hundred ten 227 

hours in a calendar year in a work unit in which a thirty-five hour work week is standard 228 

or less than one thousand forty hours in a calendar year in a work unit in which a forty-229 

hour work week is standard, except as provided elsewhere in this chapter.  Where the 230 

standard work week falls between thirty-five and forty hours, the manager, in 231 

consultation with the department, is responsible for determining what hour threshold will 232 

apply.  Part-time position excludes administrative intern. 233 

 ((PP.)) QQ.  "Part-time regular employee" means an employee employed in a 234 

part-time regular position and, for part-time career service positions, is not serving a 235 

probationary period.  Under Section 550 of the charter, such part-time regular employees 236 

are members of the career service. 237 

 ((QQ.)) RR.  "Part-time regular position" means a regular position in which the 238 

part-time regular employee is employed for at least nine hundred ten hours but less than a 239 

full-time basis in a calendar year in a work unit in which a thirty-five hour work week is 240 

standard or for at least one thousand forty hours but less than a full-time basis in a 241 

calendar year in a work unit in which a forty-hour work week is standard.  Where the 242 

11 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 56



Ordinance  

 
 
standard work week falls between thirty-five and forty hours, the manager, in 243 

consultation with the department, is responsible for determining what hour threshold will 244 

apply. 245 

 ((RR.)) SS.  "Pay plan" means a systematic schedule of numbered pay ranges with 246 

minimum, maximum and intermediate steps for each pay range, a schedule of assignment 247 

of each classification to a numbered pay range and rules for administration. 248 

 ((SS.)) TT.  "Pay range" means one or more pay rates representing the minimum, 249 

maximum and intermediate steps assigned to a classification. 250 

 ((TT.)) UU.  "Pay range adjustment" means the adjustment of the numbered pay 251 

range of a classification to another numbered pay range in the schedule based on a 252 

classification change, competitive pay data or other significant factors. 253 

 ((UU.)) VV.  "Personnel guidelines" means only those operational procedures 254 

promulgated by the manager necessary to implement personnel policies or requirements 255 

previously stipulated by ordinance or the charter.  Such personnel guidelines shall be 256 

applicable only to employees assigned to executive departments and administrative 257 

agencies. 258 

 ((VV.)) WW.  "Position" means a group of current duties and responsibilities 259 

assigned by competent authority requiring the employment of one person. 260 

 ((WW.)) XX.  "Probationary employee" means an employee serving a 261 

probationary period in a regular career service. Probationary employees are temporary 262 

employees and excluded from career service under Section 550 of the charter. 263 

 ((XX.)) YY.  "Probationary period" means a period of time, as determined by the 264 

director, for assessing whether an individual is qualified for a career service position to 265 

12 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 57



Ordinance  

 
 
which the employee has been newly appointed or has moved from another position, 266 

whether through promotion, demotion or transfer, except as provided in K.C.C. 3.12.100. 267 

 ((YY.)) ZZ.  "Probationary period salary increase" means a within-range salary 268 

increase from one step to the next highest step upon satisfactory completion of the 269 

probationary period. 270 

 ((ZZ.)) AAA.  "Promotion" means the movement of an employee to a position in 271 

a classification having a higher maximum salary. 272 

 ((AAA.)) BBB.  "Provisional appointment" means an appointment made in the 273 

absence of a list of candidates certified as qualified by the manager.  Only the manager 274 

may authorize a provisional appointment.  An appointment to this status is limited to six 275 

months. 276 

 ((BBB.)) CCC.  "Provisional employee" means an employee serving by 277 

provisional appointment in a regular career service.  Provisional employees are temporary 278 

employees and excluded from career service under Section 550 of the charter. 279 

 ((CCC.)) DDD.  "Qualifying event" means the birth of the employee's child, the 280 

employee's adoption of a child or the foster-to-adopt placement of a child with the 281 

employee. 282 

 EEE.  "Recruiting step" means the first step of the salary range allocated to a class 283 

unless otherwise authorized by the executive. 284 

 ((DDD.)) FFF.  "Regular position" means a position established in the county 285 

budget and identified within a budgetary unit's authorized full time equivalent (FTE) 286 

level as set out in the budget detail report. 287 

13 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 58



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((EEE.)) GGG.  "Salary or pay rate" means an individual dollar amount that is one 288 

of the steps in a pay range paid to an employee based on the classification of the position 289 

occupied. 290 

 ((FFF.)) HHH.  "Section" means an agency's budget unit comprised of a particular 291 

project program or line of business as described in the budget detail plan for the previous 292 

fiscal period as attached to the adopted appropriation ordinance or as modified by the 293 

most recent supplemental appropriations ordinance.  This definition is not intended to 294 

create an organization structure for any agency. 295 

 ((GGG.)) III.  "Serious health condition" means an illness or injury, impairment 296 

or physical or mental condition that involves one or more of the following: 297 

   1.  An acute episode that requires more than three consecutive calendar days of 298 

incapacity and either multiple treatments by a licensed health care provider or at least one 299 

treatment plus follow-up care such as a course of prescription medication; and any 300 

subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition; 301 

   2.  A chronic ailment continuing over an extended period of time that requires 302 

periodic visits for treatment by a health care provider and that has the ability to cause 303 

either continuous or intermittent episodes of incapacity; 304 

   3.  In-patient care in a hospital, hospice or residential medical care facility or 305 

related out-patient follow-up care; 306 

   4.  An ailment requiring multiple medical interventions or treatments by a health 307 

care provider that, if not provided, would likely result in a period of incapacity for more 308 

than three consecutive calendar days; 309 

14 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 59



Ordinance  

 
 
   5.  A permanent or long-term ailment for which treatment might not be effective 310 

but that requires medical supervision by a health care provider; or 311 

   6.  Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or prenatal care. 312 

 ((HHH.)) JJJ.  "Temporary employee" means an employee employed in a 313 

temporary position and in addition, includes an employee serving a probationary period 314 

or is under provisional appointment.  Under Section 550 of the charter, temporary 315 

employees shall not be members of the career service. 316 

 ((III.)) KKK.  "Temporary position" means a position that is not a regular position 317 

as defined in this chapter and excludes administrative intern.  Temporary positions 318 

include both term-limited temporary positions as defined in this chapter and short-term 319 

(normally less than six months) temporary positions in which a temporary employee 320 

works less than nine hundred ten hours in a calendar year in a work unit in which a thirty-321 

five hour work week is standard or less than one thousand forty hours in a calendar year 322 

in a work unit in which a forty hour work week is standard, except as provided elsewhere 323 

in this chapter.  Where the standard work week falls between thirty-five and forty hours, 324 

the manager, in consultation with the department, is responsible for determining what 325 

hour threshold will apply. 326 

 ((JJJ.)) LLL.  "Term-limited temporary employee" means a temporary employee 327 

who is employed in a term-limited temporary position.  Term-limited temporary 328 

employees are not members of the career service.  Term-limited temporary employees 329 

may not be employed in term-limited temporary positions longer than three years beyond 330 

the date of hire, except that for grant-funded projects capital improvement projects and 331 

information systems technology projects the maximum period may be extended up to five 332 

15 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 60



Ordinance  

 
 
years upon approval of the manager.  The manager shall maintain a current list of all 333 

term-limited temporary employees by department. 334 

 ((KKK.)) MMM.  "Term-limited temporary position" means a temporary position 335 

with work related to a specific grant, capital improvement project, information systems 336 

technology project or other nonroutine, substantial body of work, for a period greater 337 

than six months.  In determining whether a body of work is appropriate for a term-limited 338 

temporary position, the appointing authority will consider the following: 339 

   1.  Grant-funded projects:  These positions will involve projects or activities that 340 

are funded by special grants for a specific time or activity. These grants are not regularly 341 

available to or their receipt predictable by the county; 342 

   2.  Information systems technology projects:  These positions will be needed to 343 

plan and implement new information systems projects for the county. Term-limited 344 

temporary positions may not be used for ongoing maintenance of systems that have been 345 

implemented; 346 

   3.  Capital improvement projects:  These positions will involve the management 347 

of major capital improvement projects.  Term-limited temporary positions may not be 348 

used for ongoing management of buildings or facilities once they have been built; 349 

   4.  Miscellaneous projects:  Other significant and substantial bodies of work may 350 

be appropriate for term-limited temporary positions.  These bodies of work must be either 351 

nonroutine projects for the department or related to the initiation or cessation of a county 352 

function, project or department; 353 

   5.  Seasonal positions:  These are positions with work for more than six 354 

consecutive months, half-time or more, with total hours of at least nine hundred ten in a 355 

16 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 61



Ordinance  

 
 
calendar year in a work unit in which a thirty-five hour work week is standard or at least 356 

one thousand forty hours in a calendar year in a work unit in which a forty hour work 357 

week is standard, that due to the nature of the work have predictable periods of inactivity 358 

exceeding one month. Where the standard work week falls between thirty-five and forty 359 

hours, the manager, in consultation with the department, is responsible for determining 360 

what hour threshold will apply; and 361 

   6.  Temporary placement in regular positions:  These are positions used to back 362 

fill regular positions for six months or more due to a career service employee’s absence 363 

such as extended leave or assignment on any of the foregoing time-limited projects. 364 

 All appointments to term-limited temporary positions will be made by the 365 

appointing authority in consultation with the manager before the appointment of term-366 

limited temporary employees. 367 

 ((LLL.)) NNN.  "Volunteer for the county" means an individual who performs 368 

service for the county for civic, charitable or humanitarian reasons, without promise, 369 

expectation or receipt of compensation from the county for services rendered and who is 370 

accepted as a volunteer by the county, except emergency service worker volunteers as 371 

described by chapter 38.52 RCW.  A "volunteer for the county" may receive reasonable 372 

reimbursement of expenses or an allowance for expenses actually incurred without losing 373 

his or her status as a volunteer.  "Volunteer for the county" includes, but is not limited to, 374 

a volunteer serving as a board member, officer, commission member, volunteer intern or 375 

direct service volunteer. 376 

 ((NNN.)) OOO.  "Volunteer intern" means volunteers who are also enrolled full-377 

time during the regular school year in a program of education, internship or 378 

17 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 62



Ordinance  

 
 
apprenticeship who are receiving scholastic credit or scholastic recognition for 379 

participating in the internship. 380 

 ((NNN.)) PPP.  "Work study student" means a student enrolled or accepted for 381 

enrollment at a post-secondary institution who, according to a system of need analysis 382 

approved by the higher education coordinating board, demonstrates a financial inability, 383 

either parental, familial or personal, to bear the total cost of education for any semester or 384 

quarter. 385 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 2.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 3.12 a 386 

new section to read as follows: 387 

 A.  The executive shall create a program that provides nonrepresented employees, 388 

on the terms in this ordinance, paid parental leave following a qualifying event. 389 

 B.  The executive is directed to enter into memoranda of agreement with the labor 390 

organizations that represent King County employees, with the organizations' consent, to 391 

provide to those employees paid parental leave on the terms in this ordinance. 392 

 C.  The program for paid parental leave shall be subject to the following: 393 

   1.  The program is intended to provide employees eligible for leave benefits with 394 

twelve weeks of paid parental leave during the twelve months following a qualifying 395 

event; 396 

   2.  Participation in the program shall be limited to employees eligible for leave 397 

benefits who have been employed with the county for at least six months of continuous 398 

service at the time of the qualifying event and are either nonrepresented or represented by 399 

a union that has signed a paid parental leave memorandum of agreement in subsection B. 400 

of this section; 401 

18 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 63



Ordinance  

 
 
   3.  An employee’s supplemental paid leave benefit shall be calculated based on 402 

the employee’s accrued paid leave balances at the time of the qualifying event. 403 

   4.  An employee electing to participate in the program must reserve one week of 404 

accrued vacation and one week of accrued sick leave, or whatever smaller amount of 405 

each the employee has accrued.  An employee with twelve weeks or more of unreserved, 406 

accrued paid leave at the time of the qualifying event may use up to twelve weeks of 407 

accrued paid leave as paid parental leave during the twelve months after the qualifying 408 

event.  An employee who has less than twelve weeks of unreserved, accrued paid leave at 409 

the time of the qualifying event shall be granted supplemental paid leave in an amount 410 

sufficient, when combined with the employee's unreserved accrued paid leave, to equal a 411 

total of twelve weeks of paid parental leave.  For example, if an employee has two weeks 412 

of accrued vacation and three weeks of accrued sick leave at the time of the qualifying 413 

event, the employee shall be granted nine weeks of supplemental paid leave, bringing the 414 

total available paid parental leave to twelve weeks. 415 

   5.  An employee may use supplemental paid leave and accrued paid leave in any 416 

order and is not required to use any of the accrued paid leave as paid parental leave. 417 

   6.  An employee on paid leave in the program shall be compensated at the 418 

employee's base pay rate. 419 

   7.  An employee should provide notice to the designated representative of the 420 

employee's department that the employee intends to participate in the program. The 421 

notice should meet the notice requirements for taking family and medical leave under 422 

federal law. 423 

19 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 64



Ordinance  

 
 
   8.  Paid parental leave under the program must begin and end within twelve 424 

months after the qualifying event. 425 

   9.  The employee and the employee's supervisor shall agree upon a schedule for 426 

taking paid parental leave that is consistent with the county's operational needs. An 427 

employee may use the paid parental leave on a part-time basis as long as that is consistent 428 

with the county's operational needs and is approved in writing by the supervisor before 429 

the leave begins. 430 

   10.  Paid parental leave under this ordinance shall run concurrently with King 431 

County family and medical leave, as well as federal and state family and medical leave, 432 

to the extent permitted by law. 433 

   11.  During the time that an employee is on leave in the program, the employee's 434 

job shall be protected to the same extent that an employee's job is protected while the 435 

employee is on family or medical leave under federal or state law. No retaliatory action 436 

may be taken against an employee for participating or planning to participate in the 437 

program or for exercising the employee's rights under this ordinance. In particular, 438 

permission to use accrued paid leave shall not be denied or delayed on the basis that the 439 

employee intends to participate in the program. This is a general statement of county 440 

policy that cannot form the basis of a private right of action. 441 

   12.  Taking leave under the program shall not affect an employee's health 442 

benefits or an employee's accrual of paid leave, which shall continue during the period of 443 

paid parental leave. 444 

   13.  Employees shall not be compensated in any manner for not using the 445 

supplemental paid leave that is available under this ordinance. 446 

20 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 65



Ordinance  

 
 
   14.  An employee who does not return to work for at least six months of 447 

continuous service following the paid parental leave, will be required to reimburse King 448 

County for the supplemental paid parental leave funds received. 449 

 SECTION 3.  The executive shall monitor the usage and costs associated with the 450 

program established by this ordinance and shall report to the council by April 1, 2018, on 451 

2017 usage and costs and by April 1, 2019, on 2018 usage and costs.  The reports shall 452 

include:  the number, gender, compensation rate, and tenure at King County of the 453 

employees who have used the program; their distribution among the county's departments 454 

and divisions; the amount of supplemental paid leave that each employee was granted 455 

under the program; the type of qualifying event; whether the positions of the employees 456 

taking leave were backfilled and the costs of backfilling, to the extent that it can be 457 

determined; and any other costs associated with the program.  The executive shall file the 458 

reports in the form of a paper original and an electronic copy with the clerk of the 459 

council, who shall retain the original and provide an electronic copy to all 460 

councilmembers, the council chief of staff, the policy staff director and the lead staff for 461 

the transportation, economy and environment committee, or its successor. 462 

 SECTION 4.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or its application to 463 

21 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 66



Ordinance  

 
 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance or the 464 

application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 465 

 466 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

22 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 67



Attachments A-M are available in the Clerk’s office. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 68



 
Metropolitan King County Council 

Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 
 

1 of 7 

 

REVISED STAFF REPORT 
 

Agenda Item: 30 Date: November 1, 2016 

Proposed No.: 2016-0463 Name: Nick Wagner 

 

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0463 was amended by Amendment 2 and Title 
Amendment T2 and reported out of committee with a Do Pass recommendation. 

SUBJECT 

Conversion of the County’s paid parental leave pilot program into an ongoing employee 
benefit. 

SUMMARY 

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0463 would convert the County’s paid parental leave (PPL) 
pilot program into an ongoing employee benefit, effective January 1, 2017. 

As in the pilot program, the benefit would be available only to employees who are 
eligible for leave benefits. An employee's participation in the program would continue to 
be contingent on a "qualifying event," of which there are three: 

• The birth of the employee's child 

• The employee's adoption of a child 

• The foster-to-adopt placement of a child with the employee. 

The permitted duration of the leave would be 12 weeks when combined with: (1) all but 
one week of the vacation that the employee had accrued as of the qualifying event; and 
(2) all but one week of the sick leave that the employee had accrued as of the qualifying 
event. The employee would receive “supplemental paid leave” sufficient to bring the 
total to 12 weeks of leave. An employee on PPL would be compensated at the 
employee's base pay rate. 

A represented employee’s participation in the program would be contingent on the 
employee’s union having signed a memorandum of agreement (MOA) with the County 
providing for the employees represented by the union to participate in the program on 
the terms set forth in the ordinance. 

Other terms of the program are spelled out in the proposed ordinance and are 
described below under Analysis. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 69



The Executive estimates the cost of the program to be about $6.5 million for the 2017-
2018 biennium and about $6.7 million for the 2019-2020 biennium (Att. 4: Fiscal Note). 
This estimate makes certain assumptions, which are described below under Fiscal 
Impact. 

BACKGROUND 

In December 2015, by Ordinance 18190, the Council directed the Executive to create a 
one-year pilot program granting PPL to leave-eligible county employees. The pilot was 
limited to “qualifying events” (birth, adoption, or foster-to-adopt) occurring during 2016. 

In July of this year, the Executive transmitted, at the Council’s request, a report on the 
County’s experience during the first six months of the pilot program. In his transmittal 
letter accompanying the report, the Executive said: 

I am happy to report that the preliminary usage and cost estimates for the 
first six months are consistent with those predicted in our initial proposal to 
the Council last year, and it appears that we are meeting our objectives of 
supporting our employees during one of the most important events of their 
lives, while at the same time remaining good stewards of public resources. 

Some of the findings in the report were: 

• 120 employees were awarded in PPL hours, which was consistent with 
the Executive’s original estimate of 241 for the full year. 

• The cost of the program through June 2016 was $1.4 million, which was 
consistent with the Executive’s projection of $2.9 million for the year. 

• Of the 120 participating employees, 73 (60.8%) were male and 47 
(39.2%) were female, which was consistent with the gender breakdown 
among all county employees. 

In his transmittal letter (Att. 4) in support of Proposed Ordinance 2016-0463, the 
Executive said: “Based on the success of the pilot program, I recommend that we 
make Paid Parental Leave a permanent benefit, effective January 1, 2017, using 
the same program that was utilized in the pilot.” The Executive observed that 
doing so would: 
 

• “Improve infant and child health, by permitting parents to bond with their 
children during the first crucial stages of life, which is one of the most 
important ways we can support best starts for kids; 

• “Help attract and retain workers, especially workers in the millennial 
generation who are moving into prime child-bearing years and, in general, 
are looking for better integration between work and family lives; and  

Page 2 of 7 

King County Council November 7, 2016 70



• “Support the County’s Equity and Social Justice guiding principles by 
reducing disparities between how low- and high-wage employees take 
leave.” 

ANALYSIS 

The PPL program that would be approved by Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494 is 
essentially the same as the one-year pilot program that the Council directed the 
Executive to create in December 2015, but without the requirement that the qualifying 
event occur during the 2016 calendar year. 

The ordinance would make PPL an ongoing benefit for county employees on the 
following terms: 

1. Covered Employees 

The program would be limited to non-represented county employees and to those 
represented employees whose unions have entered an MOA with the County containing 
the terms set forth in the ordinance (Att. 1, lines 397401).1 

2. Eligibility 

To participate in the program an employee must be leave-eligible and must have at 
least six months of continuous service with the County at the time of the qualifying 
event. (Att. 1, lines 398-99) 

3. Qualifying Events 

There are three qualifying events: (a) birth of a child; (b) adoption of a child; or 
(c) foster-to-adopt placement. (Att. 1, lines 68-69) 

1 Some bargaining units declined to sign an MOA to participate in the PPL pilot 
program, because the Executive included in the MOA, not only the terms of Ordinance 
18190, but aslo the terms of Ordinance 18191, which provided that King County Family 
and Medical Leave (KCFML) would henceforth run concurrently with federal and state 
family and medical leave (“KCFML concurrency”) to the extent permitted by law. In the 
past, coverage under the two programs had run consecutively. Some unions objected to 
the linkage between participation in the PPL pilot program and KCFML concurrency, at 
least in part because the PPL pilot had a limited duration of one year, whereas the 
change to KCFML concurrency had no time limit. 

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494 would also require participating bargaining units to sign 
an MOA, and the MOA again provides for KCFML concurrency. This time, however, the 
PPL program is an ongoing benefit, not just a pilot, so executive staff do not anticipate 
any objection from the bargaining units that declined to sign the MOA for the PPL pilot 
program. 

Page 3 of 7 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 71



4. Period of Coverage 

The leave must begin and end within 12 months after the qualifying event. (Att. 1, lines 
424-25) 

5. Amount of Leave 

The program is intended to provide 12 weeks of PPL. (Att. 1, lines 394-96) Employees 
would be required to reserve one week of accrued vacation and one week of accrued 
sick leave, or whatever smaller amount of each the employee had accrued at the time of 
the qualifying event. (Att. 1, lines 404-06) All other accrued paid leave (including all 
executive leave) would be considered unreserved for the purpose of the program. 

• An employee who has 12 or more weeks of unreserved accrued paid leave at the 
time of the qualifying event would be permitted to use up to 12 weeks of accrued 
paid leave as PPL during the twelve months after the qualifying event. (Att. 1, 
lines 406-09) 

• An employee who has less than 12 weeks of unreserved accrued paid leave at 
the time of the qualifying event would be granted supplemental paid leave in an 
amount sufficient, when combined with the employee’s unreserved accrued paid 
leave, to equal a total of 12 weeks of PPL. (Att. 1, lines 409-12) 

• Examples: 

a. An employee with five weeks of accrued vacation and 10 weeks of 
accrued sick leave would have a total of 15 weeks of accrued paid leave, 
two of which would be reserved—for a net total of 13 weeks of unreserved 
accrued paid leave. The employee would be permitted to use up to 12 
weeks of accrued paid leave as PPL. 

b. An employee with two weeks of accrued vacation and three weeks of 
accrued sick leave would have a total of five weeks of accrued paid leave, 
two of which would be reserved—for a net total of three weeks of 
unreserved accrued paid leave. The employee would be granted nine 
weeks of supplemental paid leave and would be permitted to use the three 
weeks of unreserved accrued paid leave to bring the total paid leave to 12 
weeks. (Att. 1, lines 412-15) 

6. Use of Leave 

An employee would be permitted to use supplemental paid leave and accrued paid 
leave in any order and would not be required to use any of the accrued paid leave as 
PPL. (Att. 1, lines 416-17) For example, an employee with three weeks of unreserved 
accrued paid leave could choose to take a PPL of only nine weeks (using the nine 
weeks of supplemental paid leave that the employee would receive under the program) 
and save the accrued paid leave for the future. 

Page 4 of 7 

King County Council November 7, 2016 72



7. Compensation Rate 

While on PPL, an employee would be compensated at the employee’s base pay rate. 
(Att. 1, lines 418-19) 

8. Notice 

An employee should provide the same notice to participate in the PPL program as is 
required for taking family and medical leave under federal law. (Att. 1, lines 420-23) 

9. Scheduling of Leave 

An employee and the employee’s supervisor would need to agree on a schedule for 
taking PPL that is consistent with the County’s operational needs. (Att. 1, lines 426-27) 
For example, they might agree that the employee will take eight weeks of paid leave 
immediately after the qualifying event and the remaining four weeks at a specified time 
later in the year. 

The leave could be taken on a part-time basis if that was consistent with the County’s 
operational needs and was approved in writing by the employee’s supervisor before the 
leave began. (Att. 1, lines 427-30) 

10. Concurrency 

PPL would run concurrently with King County family and medical leave (KCFML) and 
with federal and state family and medical leave to the extent permitted by law.2 (Att. 1, 
lines 431-33) 

11. Job-protection 

While an employee is on leave under the PPL program, the employee’s job would be 
protected to the same extent that an employee’s job is protected while the employee is 
on family or medical leave under federal or state law. This would not protect the 
employee against layoffs due to budget cuts, as long as the employee’s position was 
not eliminated on the basis of his or her participation or intent to participate in the PPL 
program. (Att. 1, lines 434-36) 

12. Retaliation Prohibited 

The proposed ordinance provides: 

No retaliatory action may be taken against an employee for participating or planning 
to participate in the program or for exercising the employee's rights under this 
ordinance. In particular, permission to use accrued vacation or executive leave shall 
not be denied or delayed on the basis that the employee intends to participate in the 

2 The concurrency of KCFML with federal and state family and medical leave was established by 
Ordinance 18191, which the Council adopted on Dec. 7, 2015, the same date that it adopted Ordinance 
18190, which directed the Executive to establish the PPL pilot program. 

Page 5 of 7 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 73



program. This is a general statement of county policy that cannot form the basis of a 
private right of action. (Att. 1, lines 436-41) 

13. Continuation of Health Benefits and Leave Accrual 

An employee would continue to receive health benefits and accrue paid leave during the 
time that the employee was on PPL. (Att. 1, lines 442-44) 

14. No Cash-outs 

An employee could not be compensated for declining to use the supplemental paid 
leave that was available under the proposed ordinance. (Att. 1, lines 445-46) 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The estimated fiscal impact of the PPL program is about $6.5 million in 2017-2018 and 
about $6.7 million in 2019-2020. As described in the Fiscal Note (Att. 5), this estimate: 

• Assumes a 1.0 backfill for all, knowing that certain employees may not need 
to be backfilled and others will need to be backfilled at 1.5 times their normal 
rate of pay; 

• Does not include lost revenue from employees being off work; 

• Does not factor in costs of coverage for foster-to-adopt instances, because it 
is difficult to estimate how many employees will participate in this program3; 
and 

• Assumes employee leave use behavior does not change prior to the addition 
of the new child.4 

According to executive staff, it is assumed that county appropriation units will absorb the 
cost of the PPL taken by their employees, except to the extent that the proposed 2017-
2018 budget includes funding to compensate individual appropriation units that 
experience a disproportionate number of employees taking PPL during the pilot 
program.5 

3 According to the Executive’s July 2016 report on the PPL pilot program, three of 96 participants during 
the first six months of the pilot did so on the basis of a foster-to-adopt. 
4 The cost estimate assumes that employees will not make an effort to use up their accrued vacation and 
executive leave before beginning their PPL (doing so would increase the amount of paid supplemental 
leave they would receive under the program). To the extent that this assumption is incorrect, the cost of 
the program in the 2017-2018 biennium could increase by up to about $1.4 million, according to executive 
staff. 
5 For example, the budget for the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office includes an expenditure of $250,000 for 
hiring Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Assistants (contract attorneys) to cover for PAO attorneys who are on 
PPL. 

Page 6 of 7 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 74



AMENDMENTS 
 
Amendment 2 (Att. 2) would: (1) amend the definition of “accrued paid leave” to make 
clear that the definition is not substantively different from the definition used in the paid 
parental leave pilot program; (2) require annual reports on the usage and costs of the 
PPL program in the 2017 and 2018 calendar years; and (3) make two technical 
changes. 
 
Title Amendment T2 (Att. 3) would amend the title to reflect the annual report 
requirement. 
 

Page 7 of 7 

King County Council November 7, 2016 75



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0474.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to school impact fees; adopting 1 

the capital facilities plans of the Tahoma, Federal Way, 2 

Riverview, Issaquah, Snoqualmie Valley, Highline, Lake 3 

Washington, Kent, Enumclaw, Fife, Auburn and Renton 4 

school districts as subelements of the capital facilities 5 

element of the King County Comprehensive Plan for 6 

purposes of implementing the school impact fee program; 7 

establishing school impact fees to be collected by King 8 

County on behalf of the districts; and amending Ordinance 9 

10122, Section 3, as amended, Ordinance 10470, Section 2, 10 

as amended, Ordinance 10472, Section 2, as amended, 11 

Ordinance 10633, Section 2, as amended, Ordinance 12 

10722, Section 2, as amended, Ordinance 10722, Section 3, 13 

as amended, Ordinance 10790, Section 2, as amended, 14 

Ordinance 10982, Section 2, as amended, Ordinance 15 

12063, Section 11, as amended, Ordinance 12532, Section 16 

12, as amended, Ordinance 13338, Section 13, as amended, 17 

Ordinance 17220, Section 14, as amended and Ordinance 18 

10122, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.44.010.  19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 76



Ordinance  

 
 

STATEMENT OF FACTS: 20 

1.  Chapter 36.70A RCW, which is the Growth Management Act, and 21 

chapter 82.02 RCW authorize the collection of impact fees for new 22 

development to provide public school facilities to serve the new 23 

development. 24 

2.  Chapter 82.02 RCW requires that impact fees may only be collected for 25 

public facilities that are addressed in a capital facilities element of a 26 

comprehensive land use plan. 27 

3.  King County adopted Ordinances 9785 and 10162 for the purposes of 28 

implementing Chapter 82.02 RCW. 29 

4.  The Tahoma School District, Federal Way School District, Riverview 30 

School District, Issaquah School District, Snoqualmie Valley School 31 

District, Highline School District, Lake Washington School District, Kent 32 

School District, Northshore School District, Enumclaw School District, 33 

Fife School District, Auburn School District and Renton School District 34 

have previously entered into interlocal agreements with King County for 35 

the collection and distribution of school impact fees.  Each of these school 36 

districts, through this ordinance, seeks to renew its capital facilities plan 37 

for adoption as a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King 38 

County Comprehensive Plan. 39 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 40 

 SECTION 1.  This ordinance is adopted to implement King County 41 

Comprehensive Plan policies, Washington State Growth Management Act and King 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 77



Ordinance  

 
 
County Ordinance 10162, with respect to the Tahoma School District, Federal Way 43 

School District, Riverview School District, Issaquah School District, Snoqualmie Valley 44 

School District, Highline School District, Lake Washington School District, Kent School 45 

District, Northshore School District, Enumclaw School District, Fife School District, 46 

Auburn School District and Renton School District.  This ordinance is necessary to 47 

address identified impacts of development on the districts to protect the public health, 48 

safety and welfare, and to implement King County's authority to impose school impact 49 

fees under RCW 82.02.050 through 82.02.080. 50 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 10122, Section 3, as amended, is hereby amended to 51 

read as follows: 52 

 The Tahoma School District No. 409 Capital Facilities Plan, ((2015 to 2020, 53 

adopted July 28, 2015)) 2016 to 2021, adopted June 28, 2016, which is included in 54 

Attachment A to ((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by 55 

reference, is adopted as a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County 56 

Comprehensive Plan. 57 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 10470, Section 2, as amended, is hereby amended to 58 

read as follows: 59 

 The Federal Way Public Schools ((2016)) 2017 Capital Facilities Plan, ((adopted 60 

July 28, 2015)) adopted May, 2016, which is included in Attachment B to ((Ordinance 61 

18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as a 62 

subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 63 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 10472, Section 2, as amended, is hereby amended to 64 

read as follows: 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 78



Ordinance  

 
 
 The Riverview School District No. 407 2016 Capital Facilities Plan, adopted 66 

((June 23, 2015)) adopted May 24, 2016, which is included in Attachment C to 67 

((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as 68 

a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 69 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 10633, Section 2, as amended, is hereby amended to 70 

read as follows: 71 

 The Issaquah School District No. 411 ((2015)) 2016 Capital Facilities Plan, 72 

adopted ((August 12, 2015)) May 25, 2016, which is included in Attachment D to 73 

((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as 74 

a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 75 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinance 10722, Section 2, as amended, is hereby amended to 76 

read as follows: 77 

 The Snoqualmie Valley School District No. 410 Capital Facilities Plan ((2015 78 

adopted June 11, 2015)) 2016 adopted June 23, 2016, which is included in Attachment E 79 

to ((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted 80 

as a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 81 

 SECTION 7.  Ordinance 10722, Section 3, as amended, is hereby amended to 82 

read as follows: 83 

 The Highline School District No. 401 Capital Facilities Plan ((2015-2020 adopted 84 

July 8, 2015)) 2016-2021 adopted June 22, 2016, which is included in Attachment F to 85 

((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as 86 

a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 87 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 79



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 8.  Ordinance 10790, Section 2, as amended, is hereby amended to 88 

read as follows: 89 

 The Lake Washington School District No. 414 Six-Year Capital ((Facilities)) 90 

Facility Plan 2016-2021 adopted June 6, 2016, which is included in Attachment G to 91 

((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as 92 

a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 93 

 SECTION 9.  Ordinance 10982, Section 2, as amended, is hereby amended to 94 

read as follows: 95 

 The Kent School District No. 415 Capital Facilities Plan ((2015-2016 - 2020-96 

2021)) 2016-2017 - 2021-2022, dated ((June 2015 and adopted July 14, 2015)) May 2016 97 

and adopted May 11, 2016 , which is included in Attachment H to ((Ordinance 18182)) 98 

this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as a subelement of the 99 

capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 100 

 SECTION 10. Ordinance 11148, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 20.12.468 101 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 102 

 The Northshore School District No. 417 ((2015)) Capital Facilities Plan 2016, 103 

adopted ((June 23, 2015)) September 27, 2016, which is included in Attachment I to 104 

((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as 105 

a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 106 

 SECTION 11.  Ordinance 12063, Section 11, as amended, is hereby amended to 107 

read as follows: 108 

 The Enumclaw School District No. 216 Capital Facilities Plan ((2015-2020, 109 

adopted July 20, 2015)) 2016-2021, adopted on July 18, 2016, which is included in 110 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 80



Ordinance  

 
 
Attachment J to ((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by 111 

reference, is adopted as a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County 112 

Comprehensive Plan. 113 

 SECTION 12.  Ordinance 12532, Section 12, as amended, is hereby amended to 114 

read as follows: 115 

 The Fife School District No. 417 Capital Facilities Plan ((2015-2021)) 2016-2022, 116 

adopted ((June 29, 2015)) June 27,2016 which is included in Attachment K to 117 

((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by reference, is adopted as 118 

a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County Comprehensive Plan. 119 

 SECTION 13.  Ordinance 13338, Section 13, as amended, is hereby amended to 120 

read as follows: 121 

 The Auburn School District No. 408 Capital Facilities Plan ((2015 through 2021)) 122 

2016 through 2022, adopted ((June 8, 2015)) June 13, 2016, which is included in 123 

Attachment L to ((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by 124 

reference, is adopted as a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County 125 

Comprehensive Plan. 126 

 SECTION 14.  Ordinance 17220, Section 13, as amended, is hereby amended to 127 

read as follows: 128 

 The Renton School District No. 403 ((Six-Year)) 2016 Capital Facilities Plan 129 

((2015-2021), ((dated and)) adopted ((May 27, 2015)) May 25, 2016, which is included 130 

in Attachment M to ((Ordinance 18182)) this ordinance and is incorporated herein by 131 

reference, is adopted as a subelement of the capital facilities element of the King County 132 

Comprehensive Plan. 133 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 81



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 15. Ordinance 10122, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.44.010 134 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 135 

 A.  The following school impact fees shall be assessed for the indicated types of 136 

development: 137 

SCHOOL DISTRICT SINGLE FAMILY MULTIFAMILY 138 

  per dwelling unit per dwelling unit 139 

Auburn, No. 408 $((5,330)) 5,469 $((2,625)) 1,640 140 

Enumclaw, No. 216 ((5,762)) 5,497 ((1,618)) 1,595 141 

Federal Way, No. 210 ((2,899)) 3,198 ((506)) 8,386 142 

Fife, No. 417 ((3,216)) 6,670 ((6,875)) 1,772 143 

Highline, No. 401 ((8,229)) 7,528 ((7,453)) 6,691 144 

Issaquah, No. 411 ((4,635)) 7,921 ((1,534)) 2,386 145 

Kent, No. 415 ((4,990)) 5,100 ((2,163)) 2,210 146 

Lake Washington, No. 414 ((9,715))10,822 ((816)) 956 147 

Northshore, No. 417 ((0))10,563 0 148 

Renton, No. 403 ((5,643)) 6,432 ((1,385)) 1,448 149 

Riverview, No. 407 ((4,868)) 5,325 ((1,247)) 1,483 150 

Snoqualmie Valley, No. 410 ((8,490)) 10,052 ((1,657)) 1,291 151 

Tahoma, No. 409 ((5,496)) 7,077 ((1,196)) 1,393 152 

 B.  The county's administrative costs of administering the school impact fee 153 

program shall be thirteen dollars per dwelling unit and shall be paid by the applicant to 154 

the county as part of the development application fee. 155 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 82



Ordinance  

 
 
 C.  The school impact fees established in subsection A. of this section take effect 156 

January 1, ((2016)) 2017. 157 

 SECTION 16.  If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person 158 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 83



Ordinance  

 
 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance or the application of the 159 

provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 160 

 161 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  
Attachments: A. Tahoma - 2016 CFP, B. Federal Way - 2016 (2017) Capital Facilities Plan, C. 
Riverview SD 2016 CFP, D. Issaquah SD - 2016 CFP, E. Snoqualmie Valley - 2016 CFP FINAL 
Adopted 6.23, F. Highline School District No. 401 Capital Facilities Plan 2016-2021 adopted June 22, 
2016, dated October 17, 2016, G. LWSD - 2016 CFP, H. Kent 2016 CFP, I. Northshore School District 
No. 417 Proposed Capital Facilities Plan 2016 adopted September 27, 2016, dated October, 17, 2016, J. 
Enumclaw - 2016 CFP -2021 Final Draft, K. Fife - 2016-2022 CFP Adopted June 27, 2016, L. Auburn - 
2016 CFP, M. Renton 2016 CFP 

 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 84



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 21 Name: Christine Jensen 

Proposed No.: 2016-0474 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0474.2 adopting the 2017 school impact 
fees and school capital facility plans, passed out of committee on November 1, 
with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The ordinance was amended in committee 
with Amendment 1 to replace the draft Northshore School District capital 
facilities plan with the final plan adopted by the School District, and replace the 
Highline capital facilities plan with a version that includes all of the appendices. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0474 would adopt the 2017 school impact fees and school 
capital facility plans. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0474 would update certain school capital facilities plans and 
implement the collection of impact fees by the County on behalf of the school districts.  
If approved, the proposed impact fees would go into effect on January 1, 2017.  School 
impact fees are updated every year, after a review by the School Technical Review 
Committee (STRC) of the districts' capital facilities plans. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) authorizes local jurisdictions to 
collect impact fees as a method of financing public facilities that are necessary as a 
result of new growth and development.  All public facilities that are financed with impact 
fees are required to be part of the capital facilities element of a jurisdiction’s 
comprehensive land use plan. 
 
King County administers the School Impact Fee Program by collecting fees from 
residential developers on behalf of each school district that chooses to participate.  The 
program is voluntary.  The fees are calculated every year based on a number of factors 

King County Council November 7, 2016 85



including changes in student enrollment, changes in district’s building plans, new 
residential growth, and state reimbursement.   
 
The capital facilities plans are reviewed by the STRC and impact fees based upon those 
plans are adopted by the King County Council.  School Impact fees adopted by King 
County apply only to new single family and multi-family units in unincorporated areas 
and do not apply to:  

• non-residential development;  

• housing exclusively for senior citizens including nursing homes and retirement 
centers; 

• reconstruction, remodeling or replacement of existing dwelling units;  

• temporary and transitional housing facilities, including group homes;  

• qualified low or moderate income housing;  

• temporary dwellings for medical hardship; or  

• accessory dwelling units 
 
King County maintains the impact fees in separate accounts for each school district, 
which utilize the funds to implement their capital facilities plans.  The GMA requires an 
annual report showing the source and amount of monies collected and the capital 
improvements financed with the impact fees. 
 
The districts’ capital facilities plans would become a sub-element of the King County 
Capital Facilities Plan in the King County Comprehensive Plan if this ordinance is 
adopted.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The following table summarizes the existing and proposed fees by school district, 
included in Proposed Ordinance 2016-0474. 
 

School District Single Family Fee Multi Family Fee 

 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Auburn $5,330 5,469 $2,625 1,640 

Enumclaw 5,762 5,497 1,618 1,595 

Federal Way 2,899 3,198 506 8,386 

Fife 3,216 6,670 6,875 1,772 

Highline 8,229 7,528 7,453 6,691 

Issaquah 4,635 7,921 1,534 2,386 

Kent 4,990 5,100 2,163 2,210 

Lake Washington 9,715 10,822 816 956 

Northshore (draft1) 0 10,563 0 0 

Renton 5,643 6,432 1,385 1,448 

Riverview 4,868 5,325 1,247 1,483 

Snoqualmie Valley 8,490 10,052 1,657 1,291 

Tahoma 5,496 7,077 1,196 1,393 
1 Final adoption by the School District anticipated prior to County Council adoption 

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 86



Overall Impact Fee Trends 
 
Single-family impact fees 

• Twelve districts increased single-family impact fees: Auburn, Enumclaw, Federal 
Way, Fife, Issaquah, Kent, Lake Washington, Northshore, Renton, Riverview, 
Snoqualmie Valley and Tahoma.   

• One district decreased single-family impact fees: Highline  
 
Multi-family impact fees 

• Seven districts increased multi-family impact fees: Federal Way, Issaquah, Kent, 
Lake Washington, Renton, Riverview and Tahoma.  

• Four districts decreased multi-family impact fees:  Auburn, Enumclaw, Fife and 
Highline.   

• One district made no change (Northshore does not have a multi-family impact 
fee.) 

 
The ordinance also maintains the administrative fee for costs of administering the 
school impact fee program of $13 per dwelling unit.   
 
The STRC review of the district capital facilities plans determined that the growth rates 
projected by each district are reasonable and reflect the use of appropriate student 
generation factors. 
 
The proposed legislation includes a draft version of the Northshore School District’s 
Capital Facilities Plan, which had not be adopted by the District as of transmittal.  Since 
transmittal, the District adopted its final Plan and provided the final version to the 
County.  An amendment to Proposed Ordinance 2016-0474 will be required to reflect 
the final Plan. 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
Amendment 1 would replace the draft Capital Facilities Plan from the Northshore School 
District with the final version adopted by the School District on September 27, 2016.  
The proposed impact fee in the final plan has not changed from the proposed fee in the 
transmitted draft plan. 
 
Amendment 1 would also add Appendices B, C and D of the Highline School District 
Capital Facilities Plan, which were omitted in the Executive’s transmittal. 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 87



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0475.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE that proposes the 2017-2018 Biennial 1 

Budget and makes appropriations for the operation of 2 

county agencies and departments and capital improvements 3 

for the fiscal biennium beginning January 1, 2017, and 4 

ending December 31, 2018. 5 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 6 

 SECTION 1.  The 2017-2018 Biennial Budget is proposed and, subject to the 7 

provisions hereinafter set forth and the several amounts hereinafter specified or so much 8 

thereof as shall be sufficient to accomplish the purposes designated, appropriations are 9 

hereby authorized to be distributed for salaries, wages and other expenses of the various 10 

agencies and departments of King County, for capital improvements, and for other 11 

specified purposes for the fiscal biennium beginning January 1, 2017, and ending 12 

December 31, 2018, out of the following funds of the county hereinafter named and set 13 

forth in the following sections. 14 

 SECTION 2.  The fund appropriations are sums to cover merit pay and labor 15 

settlements.  The county executive is authorized to distribute the required portions of 16 

these monies among the affected positions in each operating fund effective 17 

 January 1, 2017.  In the event the general wage increase is greater than the 18 

appropriations authorized herein or in this ordinance provided, all budgets shall be 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 88



Ordinance  

 
 
augmented as required from monies available to the county not otherwise appropriated in 20 

that case.  An ordinance shall be transmitted by the executive to the council appropriating 21 

those funds by appropriation unit. 22 

 SECTION 3.  Notwithstanding sections 1 and 2 of this ordinance, section 126 of 23 

this ordinance takes effect ten days after the executive's approval of this ordinance, as 24 

provided in the King County Charter. 25 

 SECTION 4.  The definition in this section apply throughout this ordinance unless 26 

the context clearly requires otherwise. 27 

 "FTEs" means full-time equivalents. 28 

 SECTION 5.  COUNTY COUNCIL - From the general fund there is hereby 29 

appropriated to: 30 

 County council $3,692,000 31 

The maximum number of FTEs for county council shall be: 9.0 32 

 SECTION 6.  COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION - From the general fund there is 33 

hereby appropriated to: 34 

 Council administration $28,206,000 35 

The maximum number of FTEs for council administration shall be: 97.1 36 

 SECTION 7.  HEARING EXAMINER - From the general fund there is hereby 37 

appropriated to: 38 

 Hearing examiner $1,200,000 39 

The maximum number of FTEs for hearing examiner shall be: 3.0 40 

 SECTION 8.  COUNTY AUDITOR - From the general fund there is hereby 41 

appropriated to: 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 89



Ordinance  

 
 
 County auditor $4,966,000 43 

The maximum number of FTEs for county auditor shall be: 17.3 44 

 SECTION 9.  OMBUDSMAN/TAX ADVISOR - From the general fund there is 45 

hereby appropriated to: 46 

 Ombudsman/tax advisor $2,869,000 47 

The maximum number of FTEs for ombudsman/tax advisor shall be: 10.0 48 

 SECTION 10.  KING COUNTY CIVIC TELEVISION - From the general fund 49 

there is hereby appropriated to: 50 

 King County civic television $1,332,000 51 

The maximum number of FTEs for King County civic television shall be: 5.0 52 

 SECTION 11.  BOARD OF APPEALS - From the general fund there is hereby 53 

appropriated to: 54 

 Board of appeals $1,862,000 55 

The maximum number of FTEs for board of appeals shall be: 4.0 56 

 SECTION 12.  OFFICE OF LAW ENFORCEMENT OVERSIGHT - From the 57 

general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 58 

 Office of law enforcement oversight $1,623,000 59 

The maximum number of FTEs for office of law enforcement oversight shall be: 4.0 60 

 SECTION 13.  OFFICE OF ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - 61 

From the general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 62 

 Office of economic and financial analysis $984,000 63 

The maximum number of FTEs for office of economic and financial  64 

analysis shall be: 2.5 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 90



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 14.  COUNTY EXECUTIVE - From the general fund there is hereby 66 

appropriated to: 67 

 County executive $584,000 68 

The maximum number of FTEs for county executive shall be: 1.0 69 

 SECTION 15.  OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE - From the general fund there is 70 

hereby appropriated to: 71 

 Office of the executive $9,872,000 72 

The maximum number of FTEs for office of the executive shall be: 25.0 73 

 SECTION 16.  OFFICE OF PERFORMANCE, STRATEGY AND BUDGET - 74 

From the general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 75 

 Office of performance, strategy and budget $22,320,000 76 

The maximum number of FTEs for office of performance, strategy and budget 77 

shall be: 60.0 78 

 SECTION 17.  OFFICE OF EQUITY AND SOCIAL JUSTICE - From the 79 

general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 80 

 Office of equity and social justice $1,976,000 81 

The maximum number of FTEs for office of equity and social justice shall be: 5.0 82 

 SECTION 18.  SHERIFF - From the general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 83 

 Sheriff $343,816,000 84 

The maximum number of FTEs for sheriff shall be: 1,011.5 85 

 SECTION 19.  DRUG ENFORCEMENT FORFEITS - From the general fund 86 

there is hereby appropriated to: 87 

 Drug enforcement forfeits $1,998,000 88 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 91



Ordinance  

 
 
The maximum number of FTEs for drug enforcement forfeits shall be: 3.0 89 

 SECTION 20.  SHERIFF OFFICE SUCCESSION PLANNING - From the 90 

general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 91 

 Sheriff office succession planning $970,000 92 

The maximum number of FTEs for sheriff office succession planning shall be: 6.0 93 

 SECTION 21.  OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT - From the general 94 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 95 

 Office of emergency management $4,570,000 96 

The maximum number of FTEs for office of emergency management shall be: 6.0 97 

 SECTION 22.  EXECUTIVE SERVICES - ADMINISTRATION - From the 98 

general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 99 

 Executive services - administration $4,692,000 100 

The maximum number of FTEs for executive services - administration shall be: 13.0 101 

 SECTION 23.  HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT - From the general 102 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 103 

 Human resources management $15,398,000 104 

The maximum number of FTEs for human resources management shall be: 40.0 105 

 SECTION 24.  OFFICE OF LABOR RELATIONS - From the general fund there 106 

is hereby appropriated to: 107 

 Office of labor relations $6,150,000 108 

The maximum number of FTEs for office of labor relations shall be: 17.6 109 

 SECTION 25.  CABLE COMMUNICATIONS - From the general fund there is 110 

hereby appropriated to: 111 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 92



Ordinance  

 
 
 Cable communications $770,000 112 

 SECTION 26.  REAL ESTATE SERVICES - From the general fund there is 113 

hereby appropriated to: 114 

 Real estate services $8,367,000 115 

The maximum number of FTEs for real estate services shall be: 19.0 116 

 SECTION 27.  RECORDS AND LICENSING SERVICES - From the general 117 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 118 

 Records and licensing services $23,734,000 119 

The maximum number of FTEs for records and licensing services shall be: 81.5 120 

 SECTION 28.  PROSECUTING ATTORNEY - From the general fund there is 121 

hereby appropriated to: 122 

 Prosecuting attorney $140,389,000 123 

The maximum number of FTEs for prosecuting attorney shall be: 456.5 124 

 SECTION 29.  PROSECUTING ATTORNEY ANTIPROFITEERING - From the 125 

general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 126 

 Prosecuting attorney antiprofiteering $120,000 127 

 SECTION 30.  SUPERIOR COURT - From the general fund there is hereby 128 

appropriated to: 129 

 Superior court $101,965,000 130 

The maximum number of FTEs for superior court shall be: 324.1 131 

 SECTION 31.  DISTRICT COURT - From the general fund there is hereby 132 

appropriated to: 133 

 District court $67,081,000 134 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 93



Ordinance  

 
 
The maximum number of FTEs for district court shall be: 247.3 135 

 SECTION 32.  ELECTIONS - From the general fund there is hereby appropriated 136 

to: 137 

 Elections $38,334,000 138 

The maximum number of FTEs for elections shall be: 65.5 139 

 SECTION 33.  JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION - From the general fund there is 140 

hereby appropriated to: 141 

 Judicial administration $43,653,000 142 

The maximum number of FTEs for judicial administration shall be: 185.9 143 

 SECTION 34.  STATE AUDITOR - From the general fund there is hereby 144 

appropriated to: 145 

 State auditor $2,098,000 146 

 SECTION 35.  BOUNDARY REVIEW BOARD - From the general fund there is 147 

hereby appropriated to: 148 

 Boundary review board $769,000 149 

The maximum number of FTEs for boundary review board shall be: 2.0 150 

 SECTION 36.  FEDERAL LOBBYING - From the general fund there is hereby 151 

appropriated to: 152 

 Federal lobbying $520,000 153 

 SECTION 37.  MEMBERSHIPS AND DUES - From the general fund there is 154 

hereby appropriated to: 155 

 Memberships and dues $1,554,000 156 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 94



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 38.  INTERNAL SUPPORT - From the general fund there is hereby 157 

appropriated to: 158 

 Internal support $38,122,000 159 

 SECTION 39.  ASSESSMENTS - From the general fund there is hereby 160 

appropriated to: 161 

 Assessments $54,931,000 162 

The maximum number of FTEs for assessments shall be: 213.0 163 

 SECTION 40.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE - From the 164 

general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 165 

 General Fund transfer to debt service $54,121,000 166 

 SECTION 41.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO DEPARTMENT OF 167 

PERMITTING AND REVIEW - From the general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 168 

 General fund  transfer to department of permitting and review $4,773,000 169 

 SECTION 42.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO DEPARTMENT OF 170 

COMMUNITY AND HUMAN SERVICES - From the general fund there is hereby 171 

appropriated to: 172 

 General fund transfer to department of community and human  173 

services $21,986,000 174 

 SECTION 43.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO DEPARTMENT OF 175 

EXECUTIVE SERVICES - From the general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 176 

 General fund transfer to department of executive services $5,814,000 177 

 SECTION 44.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO DEPARTMENT OF 178 

PUBLIC HEALTH - From the general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 179 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 95



Ordinance  

 
 
 General fund transfer to department of public health $50,466,000 180 

 SECTION 45.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO DEPARTMENT OF 181 

NATURAL RESOURCES AND PARKS - From the general fund there is hereby 182 

appropriated to: 183 

 General fund transfer to department of natural resources and parks $2,788,000 184 

 SECTION 46.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO KING COUNTY 185 

INFORMATION TECHNOLGY - From the general fund there is hereby appropriated to: 186 

 General fund transfer to King County information technology $1,724,000 187 

 SECTION 47.  GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO DEPARTMENT OF 188 

EXECUTIVE SERVICES CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - From the general 189 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 190 

 General fund transfer to department of executive services capital improvement 191 

program $9,000,000 192 

 SECTION 48.  JAIL HEALTH SERVICES - From the general fund there is 193 

hereby appropriated to: 194 

 Jail health services $67,440,000 195 

The maximum number of FTEs for jail health services shall be: 160.9 196 

 SECTION 49.  MEDICAL EXAMINER - From the general fund there is hereby 197 

appropriated to: 198 

 Medical examiner $11,781,000 199 

The maximum number of FTEs for medical examiner shall be: 27.9 200 

 SECTION 50.  ADULT AND JUVENILE DETENTION - From the general fund 201 

there is hereby appropriated to: 202 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 96



Ordinance  

 
 
 Adult and juvenile detention $292,678,000 203 

The maximum number of FTEs for adult and juvenile detention shall be: 892.5 204 

 SECTION 51.  PUBLIC DEFENSE - From the general fund there is hereby 205 

appropriated to: 206 

 Public defense $136,490,000 207 

The maximum number of FTEs for public defense shall be: 390.9 208 

 SECTION 52.  INMATE WELFARE - ADULT - From the inmate welfare fund 209 

there is hereby appropriated to: 210 

 Inmate welfare - adult $2,602,000 211 

The maximum number of FTEs for inmate welfare - adult shall be: 1.0 212 

 SECTION 53.  INMATE WELFARE - JUVENILE - From the inmate welfare 213 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 214 

 Inmate welfare - juvenile $8,000 215 

 SECTION 54.  FACILITIES MANAGEMENT DIVISION PARKING 216 

FACILITIES - From the FMD parking facilities fund there is hereby appropriated to: 217 

 Facilities management division parking facilities $7,437,000 218 

 SECTION 55.  ROADS - From the road operating fund there is hereby appropriated to: 219 

 Roads $188,369,000 220 

The maximum number of FTEs for roads shall be: 363.5 221 

 SECTION 56.  ROADS CONSTRUCTION TRANSFER - From the road 222 

operating fund there is hereby appropriated to: 223 

 Roads construction transfer $29,600,000 224 

10 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 97



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 57.  SOLID WASTE POSTCLOSURE LANDFILL MAINTENANCE 225 

- From the solid waste postclosure landfill maintenance fund there is hereby appropriated 226 

to: 227 

 Solid waste postclosure landfill maintenance $3,421,000 228 

The maximum number of FTEs for solid waste post-closure landfill maintenance  229 

shall be: 1.0 230 

 SECTION 58.  VETERANS SERVICES - From the veterans relief services fund 231 

there is hereby appropriated to: 232 

 Veterans services $6,173,000 233 

The maximum number of FTEs for veterans services shall be: 10.0 234 

 SECTION 59.  DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES - From the developmental 235 

disabilities fund there is hereby appropriated to: 236 

 Developmental disabilities $65,297,000 237 

The maximum number of FTEs for developmental disabilities shall be: 19.0 238 

 SECTION 60.  COMMUNITY AND HUMAN SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 239 

- From the community and human services administration fund there is hereby 240 

appropriated to: 241 

 Community and human services administration $11,679,000 242 

The maximum number of FTEs for community and human services 243 

administration shall be: 25.0 244 

 SECTION 61.  RECORDER'S OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE - From the 245 

recorder's operation and maintenance fund there is hereby appropriated to: 246 

 Recorder's operation and maintenance $4,238,000 247 

11 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 98



Ordinance  

 
 
The maximum number of FTEs for recorder's operation and maintenance shall be: 6.5 248 

 SECTION 62.  ENHANCED-911 - From the e-911 fund there is hereby 249 

appropriated to: 250 

 Enhanced-911 $61,985,000 251 

The maximum number of FTEs for enhanced-911 shall be: 10.0 252 

 SECTION 63.  BEHAVIORAL HEALTH RECOVERY DIVISION - 253 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH - From the behavioral health fund there is hereby appropriated 254 

to: 255 

 Behavioral health and recovery division - behavioral health $857,918,000 256 

The maximum number of FTEs for behavioral health and recovery division - behavioral 257 

health shall be: 137.8 258 

 SECTION 64.  JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION MENTAL ILLNESS AND 259 

DRUG DEPENDENCY - From the mental illness and drug dependency fund there is 260 

hereby appropriated to: 261 

 Judicial administration mental illness and drug dependency $3,342,000 262 

The maximum number of FTEs for judicial administration mental illness and drug 263 

dependency shall be: 11.6 264 

 SECTION 65.  PROSECUTING ATTORNEY MENTAL ILLNESS AND DRUG 265 

DEPENDENCY - From the mental illness and drug dependency fund there is hereby 266 

appropriated to: 267 

 Prosecuting attorney mental illness and drug dependency $3,013,000 268 

The maximum number of FTEs for prosecuting attorney mental illness and drug 269 

dependency shall be: 10.9 270 

12 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 99



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 66.  SUPERIOR COURT MENTAL ILLNESS AND DRUG 271 

DEPENDENCY - From the mental illness and drug dependency fund there is hereby 272 

appropriated to: 273 

 Superior court mental illness and drug dependency $3,810,000 274 

The maximum number of FTEs for superior court mental illness and drug dependency 275 

shall be: 14.7 276 

 SECTION 67.  PUBLIC DEFENDER MENTAL ILLNESS DRUG 277 

DEPENDENCY - From the mental illness and drug dependency fund there is hereby 278 

appropriated to: 279 

 Public defender mental illness and drug dependency $5,406,000 280 

The maximum number of FTEs for public defender mental illness and drug dependency 281 

shall be: 15.9 282 

 SECTION 68.  DISTRICT COURT MENTAL ILLNESS AND DRUG 283 

DEPENDENCY - From the mental illness and drug dependency fund there is hereby 284 

appropriated to: 285 

 District court mental illness and drug dependency $2,778,000 286 

The maximum number of FTEs for district court mental illness and drug dependency 287 

shall be: 9.8 288 

 SECTION 69.  MENTAL ILLNESS AND DRUG DEPENDENCY FUND - 289 

From the mental illness and drug dependency fund there is hereby appropriated to: 290 

 Mental illness and drug dependency fund $116,305,000 291 

The maximum number of FTEs for mental illness and drug dependency fund 292 

shall be: 17.0 293 

13 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 100



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 70.  VETERANS AND FAMILY LEVY - From the veterans and 294 

family levy fund there is hereby appropriated to: 295 

 Veterans and family levy $9,340,000 296 

The maximum number of FTEs for veterans and family levy shall be: 11.0 297 

 SECTION 71.  HUMAN SERVICES LEVY - From the human services levy fund 298 

there is hereby appropriated to: 299 

 Human services levy $9,340,000 300 

The maximum number of FTEs for human services levy shall be: 5.0 301 

 SECTION 72.  CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - From the arts 302 

and cultural development fund there is hereby appropriated to: 303 

 Cultural development authority $6,396,000 304 

 SECTION 73.  EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES - From the emergency 305 

medical services fund there is hereby appropriated to: 306 

 Emergency medical services $162,345,000 307 

The maximum number of FTEs for emergency medical services shall be: 142.1 308 

 SECTION 74.  WATER AND LAND RESOURCES SHARED SERVICES - 309 

From the water and land resources shared services fund there is hereby appropriated to: 310 

 Water and land resources shared services $73,033,000 311 

The maximum number of FTEs for water and land resources shared  312 

services shall be: 168.8 313 

 SECTION 75.  SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT LOCAL DRAINAGE 314 

SERVICES - From the surface water management local drainage services fund there is 315 

hereby appropriated to: 316 

14 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 101



Ordinance  

 
 
 Surface water management local drainage services $72,948,000 317 

The maximum number of FTEs for surface water management local drainage services 318 

shall be: 122.6 319 

 SECTION 76.  AUTOMATED FINGERPRINT IDENTIFICATION SYSTEM - 320 

From the AFIS fund there is hereby appropriated to: 321 

 Automated fingerprint identification system $45,496,000 322 

The maximum number of FTEs for automated fingerprint identification  323 

system shall be: 90.0 324 

 SECTION 77.  LOCAL HAZARDOUS WASTE - From the local hazardous 325 

waste fund there is hereby appropriated to: 326 

 Local hazardous waste $38,728,000 327 

 SECTION 78.  YOUTH SPORTS FACILITIES GRANTS - From the youth 328 

sports facilities grant fund there is hereby appropriated to: 329 

 Youth sports facilities grants $10,106,000 330 

The maximum number of FTEs for youth sports facilities grants shall be: 5.0 331 

 SECTION 79.  NOXIOUS WEED CONTROL PROGRAM - From the noxious 332 

weed fund there is hereby appropriated to: 333 

 Noxious weed control program $5,630,000 334 

The maximum number of FTEs for noxious weed control program shall be: 16.5 335 

 SECTION 80.  PLANNING AND PERMITTING - From the DPER planning and 336 

permitting sub fund there is hereby appropriated to: 337 

 Planning and permitting $28,918,000 338 

The maximum number of FTEs for planning and permitting shall be: 77.6 339 

15 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 102



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 81.  DEPARTMENT OF PERMITTING AND ENVIRONMENTAL 340 

REVIEW ABATEMENT - From the DPER abatement subfund there is hereby 341 

appropriated to: 342 

 Department of permitting and environmental review abatement $1,318,000 343 

The maximum number of FTEs for department of permitting and environmental review 344 

abatement shall be: 1.0 345 

 SECTION 82.  GENERAL PUBLIC SERVICES - From the dper general public 346 

services sub fund there is hereby appropriated to: 347 

 General public services $4,089,000 348 

The maximum number of FTEs for general public services shall be: 9.0 349 

 SECTION 83.  COMMUNITY SERVICES OPERATING - From the community 350 

services operating fund there is hereby appropriated to: 351 

 Community services operating $11,459,000 352 

The maximum number of FTEs for community services operating shall be: 11.6 353 

 SECTION 84.  REGIONAL ANIMAL SERVICES OF KING COUNTY - From 354 

the animal services fund there is hereby appropriated to: 355 

 Regional animal services of King County $14,646,000 356 

The maximum number of FTEs for regional animal services of King County  357 

shall be: 43.2 358 

 SECTION 85.  ANIMAL BEQUEST - From the animal bequest fund there is 359 

hereby appropriated to: 360 

 Animal bequest $380,000 361 

16 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 103



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 86.  PARKS AND RECREATION - From the parks operating levy 362 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 363 

 Parks and recreation $87,237,000 364 

The maximum number of FTEs for parks and recreation shall be: 219.1 365 

 SECTION 87.  PARKS OPEN SPACE AND TRAILS LEVY - From the parks, 366 

recreation and open space fund there is hereby appropriated to: 367 

 Parks open space and trails levy $142,474,000 368 

 SECTION 88.  HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROGRAM - From the historical 369 

preservation and historical programs fund there is hereby appropriated to: 370 

 Historic preservation program $1,097,000 371 

 SECTION 89.  BEST START FOR KIDS - From the best start for kids fund there 372 

is hereby appropriated to: 373 

 Best start for kids $132,040,000 374 

The maximum number of FTEs for best start for kids shall be: 26.0 375 

 SECTION 90.  PUGET SOUND EMERGENCY RADIO NETWORK LEVY - 376 

From the puget sound emergency radio network levy fund there is hereby appropriated 377 

to: 378 

 Puget sound emergency radio network levy $61,365,000 379 

The maximum number of FTEs for puget sound emergency radio network levy 380 

shall be: 4.0 381 

 SECTION 91.  KING COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL CONTRACT - From the 382 

flood control operating contract fund there is hereby appropriated to: 383 

 King County flood control contract $127,183,000 384 

17 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 104



Ordinance  

 
 
The maximum number of FTEs for King County flood control contract shall be: 56.0 385 

 SECTION 92.  PUBLIC HEALTH - From the public health fund there is hereby 386 

appropriated to: 387 

 Public health $376,696,000 388 

The maximum number of FTEs for public health shall be: 800.1 389 

 SECTION 93.  INTERCOUNTY RIVER IMPROVEMENT - From the 390 

intercounty river improvement fund there is hereby appropriated to: 391 

 Intercounty river improvement $100,000 392 

 SECTION 94.  ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - From the environmental health 393 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 394 

 Environmental health $51,733,000 395 

The maximum number of FTEs for environmental health shall be: 148.5 396 

 SECTION 95.  PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION - From the public health 397 

administration fund there is hereby appropriated to: 398 

 Public health administration $64,437,000 399 

The maximum number of FTEs for public health administration shall be: 75.3 400 

 SECTION 96.  GRANTS - From the grants fund there is hereby appropriated to: 401 

 Grants $32,258,000 402 

The maximum number of FTEs for grants shall be:  53.9 403 

 SECTION 97.  BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT FFY 2016 - From the 404 

Byrne JAG grant FFY 2016 fund there is hereby appropriated to: 405 

 Byrne justice assistance grant FFY 2016 $203,000 406 

18 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 105



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 98.  EMPLOYMENT AND EDUCATION RESOURCES - From the 407 

employment and education resources fund there is hereby appropriated to: 408 

 Employment and education resources $21,927,000 409 

The maximum number of FTEs for employment and education resources shall be: 40.5 410 

 SECTION 99.  HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - From the 411 

housing and community development fund there is hereby appropriated to: 412 

 Housing and community development $170,572,000 413 

The maximum number of FTEs for housing and community development shall be: 32.8 414 

 SECTION 100.  NATURAL RESOURCES AND PARKS ADMINISTRATION - 415 

From the solid waste fund there is hereby appropriated to: 416 

 Natural resources and parks administration $16,249,000 417 

The maximum number of FTEs for natural resources and parks 418 

administration shall be: 32.0 419 

 SECTION 101.  SOLID WASTE - From the solid waste fund there is hereby 420 

appropriated to: 421 

 Solid waste $274,891,000 422 

The maximum number of FTEs for solid waste shall be: 405.5 423 

 SECTION 102.  AIRPORT - From the airport fund there is hereby appropriated 424 

to: 425 

 Airport $34,529,000 426 

The maximum number of FTEs for airport shall be: 48.5 427 

 SECTION 103.  AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION TRANSFER - From the airport 428 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 429 

19 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 106



Ordinance  

 
 
 Airport construction transfer $7,331,000 430 

 SECTION 104.  RADIO COMMUNICATION SERVICES - From the radio 431 

communications operations fund there is hereby appropriated to: 432 

 Radio communication services $8,794,000 433 

The maximum number of FTEs for radio communication services shall be: 14.0 434 

 SECTION 105.  I-NET OPERATIONS - From the I-Net operations fund there is 435 

hereby appropriated to: 436 

 I-Net operations $6,934,000 437 

The maximum number of FTEs for I-Net operations shall be: 2.5 438 

 SECTION 106.  MARINE DIVISION - From the marine division operating fund 439 

there is hereby appropriated to: 440 

 Marine division $18,163,000 441 

The maximum number of FTEs for marine division shall be: 25.0 442 

 SECTION 107.  WASTEWATER TREATMENT - From the water quality fund 443 

there is hereby appropriated to: 444 

 Wastewater treatment $301,489,000 445 

The maximum number of FTEs for wastewater treatment shall be: 622.7 446 

 SECTION 108.  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR'S 447 

OFFICE - From the public transportation fund there is hereby appropriated to: 448 

 Department of transportation director's office $12,144,000 449 

The maximum number of FTEs for department of transportation director's  450 

office shall be: 29.1 451 

20 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 107



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 109.  TRANSIT - From the public transportation fund there is hereby 452 

appropriated to: 453 

 Transit $1,578,034,000 454 

The maximum number of FTEs for transit shall be: 4,584.2 455 

 SECTION 110.  SAFETY AND CLAIMS MANAGEMENT - From the safety 456 

and workers compensation fund there is hereby appropriated to: 457 

 Safety and claims management $73,399,000 458 

The maximum number of FTEs for safety and claims management shall be: 51.0 459 

 SECTION 111.  WASTEWATER EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND REVOLVING 460 

- From the wastewater equipment rental and revolving fund there is hereby appropriated 461 

to: 462 

 Wastewater equipment rental and revolving $9,338,000 463 

 SECTION 112.  FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS - From the 464 

financial services fund there is hereby appropriated to: 465 

 Finance and business operations $63,260,000 466 

The maximum number of FTEs for finance and business operations shall be: 182.5 467 

 SECTION 113.  GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS - From the 468 

geographc information systems fund there is hereby appropriated to: 469 

 Geographic information systems $17,407,000 470 

The maximum number of FTEs for geographic information systems shall be: 34.0 471 

 SECTION 114.  BUSINESS RESOURCE CENTER - From the business resource 472 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 473 

 Business resource center $36,260,000 474 

21 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 108



Ordinance  

 
 
The maximum number of FTEs for business resource center shall be: 57.0 475 

 SECTION 115.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - From the employee benefits fund 476 

there is hereby appropriated to: 477 

 Employee benefits $567,052,000 478 

The maximum number of FTEs for employee benefits shall be: 15.0 479 

 SECTION 116.  FACILITIES MANAGEMENT INTERNAL SERVICE - From 480 

the facilities management - internal service fund there is hereby appropriated to: 481 

 Facilities management internal service $113,201,000 482 

The maximum number of FTEs for facilities management internal service shall be: 328.0 483 

 SECTION 117.  RISK MANAGEMENT - From the insurance fund there is 484 

hereby appropriated to: 485 

 Risk management $85,797,000 486 

The maximum number of FTEs for risk management shall be: 26.0 487 

 SECTION 118.  KING COUNTY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 488 

- From the KCIT services fund there is hereby appropriated to: 489 

 King County Information Technology services $192,561,000 490 

The maximum number of FTEs for King County technology services shall be: 349.2 491 

 SECTION 119.  EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND REVOLVING - From the 492 

equipment rental and revolving fund there is hereby appropriated to: 493 

 Equipment rental and revolving $28,222,000 494 

The maximum number of FTEs for equipment rental and revolving shall be: 53.0 495 

 SECTION 120.  MOTOR POOL EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND REVOLVING - 496 

From the motor pool equipment rental fund there is hereby appropriated to: 497 

22 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 109



Ordinance  

 
 
 Motor pool equipment rental and revolving $33,694,000 498 

The maximum number of FTEs for motor pool equipment rental and  499 

revolving shall be: 19.0 500 

 SECTION 121.  LIMITED GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND REDEMPTION - 501 

From the limited G.O. bond redemption fund there is hereby appropriated to: 502 

 Limited general obligation bond redemption $244,197,000 503 

 SECTION 122.  HUD SECTION 108 LOAN REPAYMENT - From the HUD 504 

Section 108 loan repayment fund there is hereby appropriated to: 505 

 HUD Section 108 loan repayment $577,000 506 

 SECTION 123.  TRANSIT DEBT SERVICE - From the public transportation 507 

fund there is hereby appropriated to: 508 

 Transit debt service $44,614,000 509 

 SECTION 124.  UNLIMITED GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND 510 

REDEMPTION - From the unlimited G.O. bond redemption fund there is hereby 511 

appropriated to: 512 

 Unlimited general obligation bond redemption $34,338,000 513 

 SECTION 125.  WASTEWATER TREATMENT DEBT SERVICE - From the 514 

water quality revenue bond fund there is hereby appropriated to: 515 

 Wastewater treatment debt service $536,057,000 516 

 SECTION 126.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - The executive 517 

proposed capital budget and program for 2017-2018 - 2021-2022 is incorporated herein 518 

as Attachment A to this ordinance.  The executive is hereby authorized to execute any 519 

utility easements, bill of sale or related documents necessary for the provision of utility 520 

23 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 110



Ordinance  

 
 
services to the capital projects described in Attachment A to this ordinance, provided that 521 

the documents are reviewed and approved by the custodial agency, the real estate services 522 

division, and the prosecuting attorney's office.  Consistent with the requirements of the 523 

Growth Management Act, Attachment A to this ordinance was reviewed and evaluated 524 

according to the King County Comprehensive Plan.  Any project slated for bond funding 525 

will be reimbursed by bond proceeds if the project incurs expenditures before the bonds 526 

are sold, and an intent to reimburse motion has been approved by the executive finance 527 

committee.   528 

 From the several capital improvement project funds there are hereby appropriated 529 

and authorized to be disbursed the following amounts for the specific projects identified 530 

in Attachment A to this ordinance. 531 

Fund Fund Name 2017-2018 532 

3151 CONSERVATION FUTURES LEVY SUBFUND $24,247,631 533 

3160 PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE $13,765,118 534 

3170 E 911 CAPITAL $5,100,000 535 

3292 SWM CIP NON-BOND $22,207,228 536 

3310 LONG TERM LEASE $32,794,623 537 

3350 YOUTH SERVICES FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION $191,964,731 538 

3380 AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION $11,718,966 539 

3421 MAJOR MAINTENANCE RESERVE SUBFUND $18,129,504 540 

3522 OPEN SPACE KING COUNTY NON-BOND FUND SUBFUND $6,333,901 541 

3581 PARKS CAPITAL $77,026,281 542 

3591 KC MARINE CONSTRUCTION $33,066,558 543 

24 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 111



Ordinance  

 
 
3611 WATER QUALITY CONSTRUCTION UNRESTRICTED $627,296,763 544 

3641 PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION CONSTRUCTION  545 

  UNRESTRICTED $489,376,701 546 

3642  PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION REVENUE FLEET CAPITAL $565,617,022 547 

3673 CRITICAL AREAS MITIGATION $6,227,382 548 

3681 REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX (REET) #1 $14,578,040 549 

3682 REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX (REET) #2 $13,755,487 550 

3691 TRANSFER OF DEVELOPMENT CREDITS PROGRAM $21,070,022 551 

3771 OIRM CAPITAL $30,381,396 552 

3781 ITS CAPITAL $4,347,031 553 

3810 SOLID WASTE CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT $15,800,000 554 

3840 FARMLAND AND OPEN SPACE ACQUISITION $75,093 555 

3855 COUNTY ROAD MAJOR MAINTENANCE $51,934,595 556 

3865 KING COUNTY ROAD CONSTRUCTION $21,596,093 557 

3901 SOLID WASTE 1993 BONDS CONSTRUCTION SUBFUND $5,220,799 558 

3910 LANDFILL RESERVE   $49,764,106 559 

3951 BUILDING REPAIR/REPLACEMENT SUBFUND $14,130,596 560 

 TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM $2,367,526,000 561 

 SECTION 127.  If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person 562 

25 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 112



Ordinance  

 
 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance or the application of the 563 

provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 564 

 565 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: A. Capital Improvement Program Dated September 17, 2016 
 

26 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 113



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 1 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1116226 WLCF KC Mid Fork Snoq NA
STANDALONE

$59,305 $0 $0 $59,305

1116231 WLCF KC Bear Crk Waterways
STANDALONE

$281,789 $0 $0 $281,789

1116241 WLCF KC Wetland 14 / Spring LK
STANDALONE

$330,000 $0 $0 $330,000

1047228 WLCF ISS-ISSAQUH CRK WTRWY
STANDALONE

$200,000 $0 $0 $200,000

1113919 WLCF KC Patterson Creek
STANDALONE

$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000

1116223 WLCF KC TDR Active Farmland
STANDALONE

$300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

$0 $0 $250,000

1047220 WLCF TDR PROGRAM SUPPORT
STANDALONE

$142,983 $151,253 $160,465 $454,701

1047226 WLCF SNO - SNO RVRFRNT RCH
STANDALONE

$150,000 $0 $0 $150,000

1047227 WLCF BEL BELLEVUE GRNWY&OS
STANDALONE

$397,500 $0 $0 $397,500

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

3151 CONSERV FUTURES SUB-FUND
Tech
Adj

1047152 WLCF CFL PROGRAM SUPPORT
STANDALONE

$349,418 $369,631 $392,142 $1,111,191

1047186 WLCF KC TOLT RVR NATRL AREA
STANDALONE

$200,000 $0 $0 $200,000

1047194 WLCF LWR CDR R CNSRVTN ARA
STANDALONE

$50,000 $0 $0 $50,000

1047196 WLCF COUG-SQUAK CORIDR ADD
STANDALONE

$250,000

King County Council November 7, 2016 114



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 2 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1126743 WLCF KC GR LWR NEWAUKUM CK
STANDALONE

$300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

1126744 WLCF KC GR MID NEWAUKUM SP 
CK
STANDALONE

$300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

1126724 WLCF BTH WAYNE GC FRONT NINE
STANDALONE

$200,000 $0 $0 $200,000

1126725 WLCF BTH WAYNE GC BACK NINE
STANDALONE

$800,000 $0 $0 $800,000

1126728 WLCF KRK JUANITA HGTS PK/CK
STANDALONE

$135,000 $0 $0 $135,000

1123818 WLCF NEW LAKE BOREN / MAY CK 
T
STANDALONE

$199,000 $0 $0 $199,000

1123828 WLCF KC MITCHELL HILL FOR ADD
STANDALONE

$250,000 $0 $0 $250,000

1123830 WLCF KC SOUTH FORK SKYKOMISH
WLCF CONSRVTN FUTURES BDGT

$0 $0 $0 $0

1122034 WLCF COV South Covington Park
STANDALONE

$100,000 $0 $0 $100,000

1122057 WLCF KC Dairies in King Co/TDR
STANDALONE

$400,000 $0 $0 $400,000

1122058 WLCF KC Griffin Creek Nat Area
STANDALONE

$70,000 $0 $0 $70,000

1116245 WLCF KC Soos Cr Add
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $0 $0

1116248 WLCF KC Paradise Vlly-Judd Cr
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $0 $0

1116264 WLCF KC MASTER
STANDALONE

$12,191,836 $23,866,358 $26,075,822 $62,134,016

King County Council November 7, 2016 115



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 3 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1129252 WLCF KC SNOQUALMIE FOREST
STANDALONE

$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000

1129237 WLCF MAGNOLIA GREENBELT
STANDALONE

$40,000 $0 $0 $40,000

1129238 WLCF SEA NTH BEACH NAT AREA
STANDALONE

$30,000 $0 $0 $30,000

1129250 WLCF KC EMERALD NECKLACE 
TRAIL
STANDALONE

$200,000 $0 $0 $200,000

1129233 WLCF SEA DELRIDGE OPEN SPACE
STANDALONE

$40,000 $0 $0 $40,000

1129234 WLCF SEA LAKERIDGE PARK ADD
STANDALONE

$30,000 $0 $0 $30,000

1129235 WLCF LONGFELLOW CREEK ADD
STANDALONE

$200,000 $0 $0 $200,000

1129223 WLCF RNT MAY CK FAWCETT S
STANDALONE

$400,000 $0 $0 $400,000

1129231 WLCF SEA BITTER LK PLAY ADD
STANDALONE

$1,000,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

1129232 WLCF SEA LK CITY URB VILL ADD
STANDALONE

$1,200,000 $0 $0 $1,200,000

1129220 WLCF FED HYLEBOS CK CONS
STANDALONE

$98,300 $0 $0 $98,300

1129221 WLCF LFP SPU PROPERTY
STANDALONE

$250,000 $0 $0 $250,000

1129222 WLCF NBD PART PARK RSNAKE 
MTN
STANDALONE

$1,000,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

1129219 WLCF CAR CARN TOLT COMMONS 
PK
STANDALONE

$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000

King County Council November 7, 2016 116



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 4 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$24,247,631 $24,387,242 $26,628,429 $75,263,302

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129314 WLCF AUB WATTS PROPERTY
STANDALONE

$111,000 $0 $0 $111,000

3151 - CONSERV FUTURES SUB-FUND Total

3160 FMD-PARKS,REC,OPEN SPACE
Tech
Adj

1039583 PKS AUDITOR CPO
ADMIN

$8,982 $0 $0 $8,982

1129271 WLCF KC FARMLAND SAMM 
APD/TDR
STANDALONE

$125,000 $0 $0 $125,000

1129272 WLCF KC FARMLAND GREEN 
APD/TDR
STANDALONE

$125,000 $0 $0 $125,000

1129273 WLCF KC RED BARN RANCH
STANDALONE

$161,500 $0 $0 $161,500

1129268 WLCF KC VASHON SPRING BEACH
STANDALONE

$140,000 $0 $0 $140,000

1129269 WLCF KC FARMLAND ENUM 
APD/TDR
STANDALONE

$190,000 $0 $0 $190,000

1129270 WLCF KC VASHON IS S UP FOR
STANDALONE

$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000

1129264 WLCF KC BIG BEACH
STANDALONE

$350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

1129266 WLCF KC MAURY IS ADD-COMM 
TR
STANDALONE

$200,000 $0 $0 $200,000

1129267 WLCF KC PINER POINT NAT AREA
STANDALONE

$250,000 $0 $0 $250,000

1129253 WLCF KC COUGAR MTN PARK ADD
STANDALONE

$50,000 $0 $0 $50,000

1129255 WLCF KC LWR CEDAR/MTH TAY
STANDALONE

$300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

King County Council November 7, 2016 117



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 5 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$13,765,118 $28,750,000 $18,110,000 $60,625,118

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1130200 E911 Small PSAP Equipmt
STANDALONE

$1,600,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $4,600,000

1130202 E911 Security System $3,500,000 $0 $0 $3,500,000

1130265 PKS PRESTON ATHLETIC FIELDS
STANDALONE

$650,000 $0 $0 $650,000

1130266 PKS MARYMOOR PARK FIELDS
STANDALONE

$2,400,000 $0 $0 $2,400,000

3160 - FMD-PARKS,REC,OPEN SPACE Total

3170 E 911 CAPITAL
Tech
Adj

1122162 PKS M: SYNTHETIC TURF REPLACE
PROGRAMMATIC

($1,321,648) $2,290,000 $700,000 $1,668,352

1129678 PKS GRANT CONTINGENCY 3160
ADMIN

$868,750 $0 $0 $868,750

1129686 PKS M:SMALL CAPITAL
PROGRAMMATIC

$3,153,596 $3,160,000 $3,160,000 $9,473,596

1046229 PKS M:MARYMOOR 
FIELDPARTNER
PROGRAMMATIC

($571,592) $0 $0 ($571,592)

1121442 PKS M:CIP MITIGATION 
MONITORNG
PROGRAMMATIC

$640,500 $850,000 $1,050,000 $2,540,500

1122161 PKS M: CENTRAL MAINT FACILITY
PROGRAMMATIC

$6,700,000 $14,800,000 $0 $21,500,000

1039611 PKS M:PARKS FACILITY REHAB
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,536,530 $6,450,000 $12,000,000 $19,986,530

1039848 PKS ASSOC DLVP/ PARTNER PM
PROGRAMMATIC

($500,000) $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000

1046228 PKS ACQN EVALTNS MASTER
PROGRAMMATIC

$200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $600,000

  

King County Council November 7, 2016 118



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 6 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$5,100,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $8,100,000

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1117841 WLFAC 3RD BURDEN IMPCT 
2013/14
ADMIN

($44,916) $0 $0 ($44,916)

1129370 WLSWC STEWARDSHIP 
WATERQUALITY
STANDALONE

$150,000 $166,368 $176,500 $492,868

1129371 WLSWC GENERAL
PROGRAMMATIC

$420,000 $465,830 $494,199 $1,380,029

1034287 WLER SMALL HABITAT 
RESTORATION
PROGRAMMATIC

$817,999 $1,129,083 $1,197,844 $3,144,926

1048125 WLSWC PUBLIC SAFETY/PROPERTY
PROGRAMMATIC

($4,990,801) $0 $0 ($4,990,801)

1111168 WLFAC CAPITAL PROJECT 
OVERSIGH
ADMIN

$44,916 $0 $0 $44,916

1034245 WLER WRIA9 ECOSYSTEM 
RESTORATN
PROGRAMMATIC

($1,913,781) $4,493,402 $1,267,666 $3,847,287

1034280 WLER WRIA10 ECOSYSTM 
RESTORATN
PROGRAMMATIC

$998,000 $646,894 $465,449 $2,110,343

1034282 WLER VASHON ECOSYSTEM 
RESTORAT
PROGRAMMATIC

$392,844 $4,430,461 $5,410,911 $10,234,216

1033882 WLER ECO RESTORE & PROTECT
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,176,947 $1,247,846 $1,320,796 $3,745,589

1034167 WLER WRIA 7 ECOSYSTM 
RESTORATN
PROGRAMMATIC

$505,750 $27,283,452 $2,927,145 $30,716,347

1034171 WLER WRIA8 ECOSYSTEM 
RESTORATN
PROGRAMMATIC

$5,232,779 $2,048,809 $1,961,491 $9,243,079

  
STANDALONE

3170 - E 911 CAPITAL Total

3292 SWM CIP NON-BOND SUBFUND
Tech
Adj

King County Council November 7, 2016 119



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 7 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$22,207,228 $63,159,028 $40,600,899 $125,967,155

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$32,794,623 $33,478,762 $34,791,816 $101,065,201

1039895 DES LTLF MASTER PROJECT
PROGRAMMATIC

$32,794,623 $33,478,762 $34,791,816 $101,065,201

3310 - LONG-TERM LEASES Total

1129460 WLER FUND GRANT 
CONTINGENCY
PROGRAMMATIC

$3,000,000 $0 $0 $3,000,000

1129530 WLER EMERGENT NEED 
CONTINGENCY
STANDALONE

$150,000 $166,368 $176,500 $492,868

3292 - SWM CIP NON-BOND SUBFUND Total

3310 LONG-TERM LEASES
Tech
Adj

1129383 WLSWCDF NATURAL DRAINAGE 
FLOOD
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,105,000 $1,511,359 $3,621,175 $7,237,534

1129385 WLSWCWQ WATER QUALITY
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,701,571 $2,368,498 $3,078,867 $7,148,936

1129388 WLSWCA ASSET PRESERVATION
PROGRAMMATIC

$4,009,804 $6,909,737 $4,732,459 $15,652,000

1129380 WLSWCAD AGRICULTURE 
DRAINAGE
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,100,000 $1,247,348 $1,324,181 $3,671,529

1129381 WLSWCND NEIGHBORHOOD 
DRAINAGE
PROGRAMMATIC

$120,000 $133,095 $141,199 $394,294

1129382 WLSWCE EMERGENCY
PROGRAMMATIC

$400,000 $443,647 $470,665 $1,314,312

1129377 WLSWC EMERGENT NEED CONTG
STANDALONE

$200,000 $221,824 $235,332 $657,156

1129378 WLSWC SWS GRANT 
CONTINGENCY
STANDALONE

$5,750,000 $7,145,341 $10,358,112 $23,253,453

1129379 WLSWCFS FEASBILITY STUDIES
WLSWCFS FEASIBILITY STUDIES

$881,116 $1,099,666 $1,240,408 $3,221,190

King County Council November 7, 2016 120



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 8 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$191,964,731 $0 $0 $191,964,731

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129951 AD AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
STANDALONE

$862,436 $0 $0 $862,436

1129953 AD AIRPORT EMERGENT NEEDS
STANDALONE

$500,000 $100,000 $100,000 $700,000

1129960 AD PERIMETER INTRUSION DET 
SYS
STANDALONE

$1,651,526 $0 $0 $1,651,526

1126426 AD AIRPORT PHYS SEC 
IMPROVMNTS
STANDALONE

$1,020,063 $0 $0 $1,020,063

1129947 AD EQUIPMENT SNOW SHED
STANDALONE

$1,414,000 $0 $0 $1,414,000

1129949 AD MAGVAR RUNWAY 
RENUMBERING
STANDALONE

$2,750,000 $0 $0 $2,750,000

1120730 AD AIRPORT FACILITIES REPAIR
AD AIRPORT FACILITIES REPAIR

$0 $1,700,000 $3,000,000 $4,700,000

1120731 AD AIRPORT FLEET
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,998,594 $1,250,000 $1,390,000 $4,638,594

1121024 AD CIP OVERSIGHT
STANDALONE

$7,647 $0 $0 $7,647

3350 - YOUTH SRVS FACILTS CONST Total

3380 AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION
Tech
Adj

1028653 AD PAVEMENT REHABILITATION
PROGRAMMATIC

$200,000 $1,250,000 $1,000,000 $2,450,000

1119982 AD AIRPORT REDEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $10,000,000 $2,250,000 $12,250,000

3350 YOUTH SRVS FACILTS CONST
Tech
Adj

1121298 DES FMD 3350 T/T 3951 1117106 $191,964,731 $0 $0 $191,964,731

King County Council November 7, 2016 121



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 9 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$11,718,966 $14,864,700 $8,304,700 $34,888,366

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129774 DES FMD PBDEO D3050 TP UNITS
STANDALONE

$1,043,131 $0 $0 $1,043,131

1129776 DES FMD PBDEW D5010 ELE/DIST $218,118 $0 $0 $218,118

1129710 DES FMD 24/7 FACILITY GROUP
PROGRAMMATIC

$5,919,505 $0 $0 $5,919,505

1129770 DES FMD ARV D4010 FIRE/SPRINK
STANDALONE

$1,447,361 $0 $0 $1,447,361

1129771 DES FMD DIS NE D5010 ELEC/DIST
STANDALONE

$134,192 $0 $0 $134,192

1124472 DES FMD KCCH SYS REVITALIZ
STANDALONE

($500,000) $0 $0 ($500,000)

1124606 DES FMD MMRF QUICK RESPONSE
DES FMD MMRF CONTINGENCY

$100,000 $0 $0 $100,000

1127248 DES FMD AB REPL CHILLER CTRLS
STANDALONE

$137,073 $0 $0 $137,073

1039688 DES FMD MMRF CONTINGENCY
PROGRAMMATIC

$323,008 $0 $0 $323,008

1039756 DES FMD MMRF CAP PRJT 
OVRSIGHT
ADMIN

$11,838 $0 $0 $11,838

1124124 DES FMD AB HEAT GEN SYSTMS
STANDALONE

$900,883 $0 $0 $900,883

1130061 AD AIRPORT GRANT 
CONTINGENCY
STANDALONE

$1,000,000 $200,000 $200,000 $1,400,000

1130186 AD CITYWORKS ADDL MODULES
STANDALONE

$314,700 $364,700 $364,700 $1,044,100

3380 - AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION Total

3421 MJR MNTNCE RSRV SUB-FUND
Tech
Adj

    

STANDALONE

King County Council November 7, 2016 122



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 10 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$18,129,504 $0 $0 $18,129,504

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$6,333,901 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $16,333,901

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1047267 WLOS GRANT CONTINGENCY
PROGRAMMATIC

$6,333,901 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $16,333,901

3522 - OS KC NON BND FND SUBFUND Total

3581 PARKS CAPITAL
Tech
Adj

1044590 PKS BEAR CREEK WATERWAYS $349,695 $0 $0 $349,695

1129791 DES FMD ADMIN BLDG D3049 FAU
STANDALONE

$507,721 $0 $0 $507,721

1129793 DES FMD BLACK RIV B3010 ROF/EX
STANDALONE

$2,090,606 $0 $0 $2,090,606

3421 - MJR MNTNCE RSRV SUB-FUND Total

3522 OS KC NON BND FND SUBFUND
Tech
Adj

1129788 DES FMD BLACK RIV D3050 TER/PA
STANDALONE

$785,254 $0 $0 $785,254

1129789 DES FMD ADMIN BLDG D3060 CI
STANDALONE

$462,427 $0 $0 $462,427

1129790 DES FMD ADMIN BLDG D3050 TPU
STANDALONE

$1,446,665 $0 $0 $1,446,665

1129785 DES FMD P#4 BUR D5031 FIRE ALM
STANDALONE

$177,587 $0 $0 $177,587

1129786 DES FMD ADMIN BLDG D5031 FIRE
STANDALONE

$737,994 $0 $0 $737,994

1129787 DES FMD ADMIN BLDG D5010 
ELE/D
STANDALONE

$1,760,474 $0 $0 $1,760,474

    
STANDALONE

1129784 DES FMD P#4 BUR D5010 ELE/DIST
STANDALONE

$425,667 $0 $0 $425,667

King County Council November 7, 2016 123



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 11 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1114769 PKS ISSAQUAH CREEK 
PROTECTION
STANDALONE

($205,000) $0 $0 ($205,000)

1114770 PKS SOOS CREEK REGIONAL PARK $0 $0 $0 $0

1047185 PKS ENUMCLAW FORESTED 
FOOTHIL
STANDALONE

($166,000) $0 $0 ($166,000)

1112621 PKS South County Regional Tra
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,356,208 $9,000,000 $0 $10,356,208

1114767 PKS SNOQUALMIE-FALL CITY 
REACH
STANDALONE

$371,000 $0 $0 $371,000

1044750 PKS MITCHELL HILL DUTHIE
STANDALONE

$500,000 $0 $0 $500,000

1044755 PKS PATTERSON CREEK ADDTN-
PEL
STANDALONE

$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000

1044835 PKS REGIONAL OPEN SPACE INITI
PROGRAMMATIC

$7,474,000 $7,470,035 $0 $14,944,035

1044600 PKS M:E Lake Samm Trail
PROGRAMMATIC

$9,971,781 $1,650,000 $0 $11,621,781

1044668 PKS FOOTHILLS REGIONAL TRAIL
STANDALONE

$4,811,000 $1,000,000 $0 $5,811,000

1044743 PKS LWR CEDAR CONS AREA-PEL
STANDALONE

$530,000 $0 $0 $530,000

1044592 PKS CAPITAL PROJECT OVERSIGHT
ADMIN

$50,341 $0 $0 $50,341

1044596 PKS COUGAR MTN PRECIPICE TRL
STANDALONE

$350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

1044598 PKS COUGAR-SQUAK CORRIDOR 
PEL
STANDALONE

$550,000 $0 $0 $550,000

   
STANDALONE

King County Council November 7, 2016 124



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 12 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1121500 PKS M:REG TRL SURFACE IMPR $3,616,035 $2,500,000 $0 $6,116,035

1121455 PKS M:RTS MOBILITY 
CONNECTIONS
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,749,850 $750,000 $0 $3,499,850

1121498 PKS M:PLAYAREA REHAB
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,003,500 $700,000 $0 $1,703,500

1121499 PKS M:BRIDGE&TRESTLE 
PROGRAM
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,700,000 $500,000 $0 $3,200,000

1121451 PKS M:GRIFFIN CREEK NA
STANDALONE

$70,000 $0 $0 $70,000

1121452 PKS M:PINER POINT NATURAL 
AREA
STANDALONE

$350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

1121454 PKS M:RTS 
GATEWAYS/TRAILHEADS
PROGRAMMATIC

($573,545) $0 $0 ($573,545)

1121443 PKS M:TRAILHEAD DEV & ACCESS
PROGRAMMATIC

$6,454,778 $1,800,000 $0 $8,254,778

1121444 PKS M:STEVE COX MEMORIAL 
PARK
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,098,728 $700,000 $0 $2,798,728

1121445 PKS M:NEWAUKUM/BIG SPRING 
CRK
STANDALONE

$400,000 $0 $0 $400,000

1116951 PKS WETLAND 14
STANDALONE

$330,000 $0 $0 $330,000

1116958 PKS MAURY IS ADDITIONS
STANDALONE

$500,000 $0 $0 $500,000

1121155 PKS M:EASTSIDE RAIL CORR (ERC)
PROGRAMMATIC

$7,503,000 $6,000,000 $0 $13,503,000

    
STANDALONE

1116947 PKS MIDDLE FORK SNOQ NA ADD
STANDALONE

$59,305 $0 $0 $59,305

King County Council November 7, 2016 125



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 13 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1124478 PKS M: LOWER GREEN RIVER
STANDALONE

($385,496) $0 $0 ($385,496)

1126266 PKS CPITAL PLAN ADM
ADMIN

$3,036,371 $1,566,945 $0 $4,603,316

1127075 PKS LOWER NEWAUKUM CRK $400,000 $0 $0 $400,000

1123928 PKS M:SNO CORR REC PTNSHP
STANDALONE

$302,000 $0 $0 $302,000

1124055 PKS: M ASSET MGT SYS
ADMIN

$573,545 $600,000 $0 $1,173,545

1124477 PKS M: CHINOOK WIND ACQ
STANDALONE

$185,496 $0 $0 $185,496

1123925 PKS M:EMERALD NCKLCE TR
STANDALONE

$500,000 $0 $0 $500,000

1123926 PKS M:S FRK SKYKMSH CORR 
CONSV
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $0 $0

1123927 PKS M: SVT MILL SITE TR
STANDALONE

$296,000 $0 $0 $296,000

1123894 PKS M: PK LOT & PTHWY RHB
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,338,500 $1,100,000 $0 $2,438,500

1123895 PKS M: BLDG STRUCTURE
PROGRAMMATIC

$566,765 $650,000 $0 $1,216,765

1123896 PKS M: DRNGE/SWR/WTR SYSTM 
RHB
PROGRAMMATIC

$858,000 $650,000 $0 $1,508,000

    
PROGRAMMATIC

1123804 PKS M:GRN RVR TR EXT
PROGRAMMATIC

$500,000 $500,000 $0 $1,000,000

1123892 PKS M: BALLFLD, SPRT CRT REHAB
PROGRAMMATIC

($460,000) $0 $0 ($460,000)

King County Council November 7, 2016 126



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 14 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1129692 PKS M:RTS STANDARDS & SAFETY
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,202,945 $1,500,000 $0 $2,702,945

1129700 PKS M:SKYWAY PARK $500,000 $0 $0 $500,000

1129676 PKS GRANT CONTINGENCY 3581
ADMIN

$7,818,750 $0 $0 $7,818,750

1129688 PKS M:RTS ADA TRANSITION PLAN
PROGRAMMATIC

$200,000 $200,000 $0 $400,000

1129690 PKS M:RTS MONITORING & MAINT
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,302,000 $1,000,000 $0 $2,302,000

1129476 PKS VASHON ISLND S UPLAND 
FRST
STANDALONE

$175,000 $0 $0 $175,000

1129671 PKS M:PARKS ENERGY EFFICIENCY
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,466,000 $600,000 $0 $2,066,000

1129673 PKS EMERGENT CONTINGENCY 
3581
ADMIN

$2,430,729 $270,000 $0 $2,700,729

1129473 PKS BURTON PIT
STANDALONE

$150,000 $0 $0 $150,000

1129474 PKS VASHON GOLF COURSE
STANDALONE

$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000

1129475 PKS SPRING BEACH
STANDALONE

$140,000 $0 $0 $140,000

1127078 PKS BIG BEACH
STANDALONE

$350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

1129471 PKS SNOQUALMIE FOREST
STANDALONE

$25,000 $0 $0 $25,000

1129472 PKS LWR CEDAR RV/TAYLOR
STANDALONE

$300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

   
STANDALONE

King County Council November 7, 2016 127



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 15 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$77,026,281 $40,706,980 $0 $117,733,261

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129120 MD Spirit Engine Replacement
STANDALONE

$626,150 $0 $0 $626,150

1129121 MD W Sea Terminal Relocation
STANDALONE

$0 $500,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000

1129122 MD Maint Facility Relocation
STANDALONE

$0 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000

1129117 MD Float Expansion
STANDALONE

$0 $6,865,084 $0 $6,865,084

1129118 MD Grant Contingency
ADMIN

$5,000,000 $0 $0 $5,000,000

1129119 MD Emergent Need Contingency
ADMIN

$1,250,000 $0 $0 $1,250,000

1111720 MD MARINE GENERAL CAPITAL
ADMIN

$21,578 $0 $0 $21,578

1111723 MD TERMINAL PRESERVATION
STANDALONE

$0 $500,000 $750,000 $1,250,000

1129116 MD Float Replacement
STANDALONE

$5,287,897 $0 $0 $5,287,897

1111713 MD VESSEL PRESERVATION
STANDALONE

$0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $2,000,000

1111716 MD TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS
STANDALONE

$180,000 $0 $0 $180,000

1111718 MD SEATTLE FERRY TERMINAL
STANDALONE

$20,700,933 $0 $0 $20,700,933

  
STANDALONE

3581 - PARKS CAPITAL Total

3591 KC MARINE CONST
Tech
Adj

King County Council November 7, 2016 128



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 16 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$33,066,558 $9,865,084 $2,750,000 $45,681,642

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1038129 WTC LOWER DUWAMISH 
SUPERFUND
STANDALONE

$14,375,335 $1,229,895 $0 $15,605,230

1038273 WTC ODOR CORROSION
PROGRAMMATIC

$4,502,217 $5,513,282 $4,388,373 $14,403,872

1038098 WTC CSO CONTROL AND IMPRV
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $0 $41,162,818 $41,162,818

1038099 WTC MITIGATION SITE MAINT 
MON
STANDALONE

$2,769,797 $2,093,310 $1,037,922 $5,901,029

1038122 WTC SUNSET HEATH PS FM 
UPGRADE
STANDALONE

$50,352,111 $304,333 $0 $50,656,444

1037769 WTC WTD TECHNOLOGY 
PROGRAM DEV
STANDALONE

($707,748) $0 $0 ($707,748)

1037789 WTC CONVEYANCE SYS 
IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $18,845,404 $22,670,803 $41,516,207

1037815 WTC EAST DIVISION CORR 
REPAIRS
STANDALONE

$630,657 $716,012 $985,545 $2,332,214

1037549 WTC CAPITAL PROJECT OVERSIGHT
STANDALONE

$754,721 $28,356 $0 $783,077

1037765 WTC WATER QUALITY CAP 
OUTLAY
STANDALONE

$663,032 $803,328 $717,332 $2,183,692

1037767 WTC BIOSOLIDS SITE 
DEVELOPMENT
STANDALONE

$617,160 $606,858 $1,176,747 $2,400,765

3591 - KC MARINE CONST Total

3611 WATER QUALITY CONST-UNRES
Tech
Adj

1037498 WTC STRUCTURE SITE 
IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $2,947,586 $3,999,999 $6,947,585

1037513 WTC BIOSOLIDS TRANSP
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $2,158,459 $2,158,459

King County Council November 7, 2016 129



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 17 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1114367 WTC SP RPLS RS PMPS MTRS DRVS
STANDALONE

$2,204,504 $0 $0 $2,204,504

1113247 WTC PIPELINE REPLACEMENT
PROGRAMMATIC

$721,639 $6,099,999 $5,505,185 $12,326,823

1113334 WTC COMP PLANNING 
REPORTING
PROGRAMMATIC

$9,005,109 $5,589,489 $7,939,522 $22,534,120

1113351 WTC LAB ASSET MGMT PROGRAM
STANDALONE

$596,747 $1,290,815 $2,190,358 $4,077,920

1048079 WTC ROOF REPL WTD FACILITIES
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,814,960 $0 $0 $1,814,960

1113189 WTC PROCESS REPLACEMENT 
IMPROV
PROGRAMMATIC

$11,119,456 $7,200,000 $5,399,999 $23,719,455

1113196 WTC MECHANICAL UPGRADE AND 
REP
PROGRAMMATIC

$7,549,573 $6,334,452 $5,399,999 $19,284,024

1048049 WTC WTD CIP CONTINGENCY 
FUND
STANDALONE

$8,900,000 $0 $0 $8,900,000

1048076 WTC CONVEYANCE H2S CORR 
REHAB
PROGRAMMATIC

$5,878,072 $0 $0 $5,878,072

1048077 WTC ENVIR LAB ENERGY 
IMPROVMNT
STANDALONE

$1,751,819 $0 $0 $1,751,819

1038295 WTC BIOSOLIDS EQUIPMENT
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $113,140 $113,140

1038314 WTC E DIV SCNDRY TANK 
COATING
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $226,119 $226,119

1038335 WTC ELECTRICAL I AND C
PROGRAMMATIC

$8,505,451 $7,200,000 $5,400,000 $21,105,451

  

1038294 WTC NOAA NON PROJECT SPEC
STANDALONE

$0 $80,229 $42,934 $123,163

King County Council November 7, 2016 130



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 18 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1121409 WTC WEST DUWAMISH CSO 
CONTROL
STANDALONE

$11,924,113 $201,806 $0 $12,125,919

1121410 WTC UNIVERSITY GSI
STANDALONE

$27,098,123 $1,456,631 $0 $28,554,754

1121411 WTC MONTLAKE GSI
STANDALONE

$26,461,748 $358,510 $0 $26,820,258

1116802 WTC HANFD AT RAINIER & BVIEW 
N
STANDALONE

$1,555,672 $0 $0 $1,555,672

1121402 WTC GEORGETOWN WET 
WEATHER TS
STANDALONE

$213,377,092 $0 $818,510 $214,195,602

1121404 WTC IPS HIGH VOLT SG REPL
STANDALONE

$3,512,147 $125,429 $0 $3,637,576

1116798 WTC WP OGADS REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$45,942,187 $1,723,323 $1,317,987 $48,983,497

1116800 WTC N MERCER ENATAI INT PAR
STANDALONE

$9,922,064 $64,020,232 $5,074,953 $79,017,249

1116801 WTC LK HILLS&NW LK SAM INTCPT
STANDALONE

$12,162,516 $67,002,104 $4,014,543 $83,179,163

1116794 WTC N LK SAM FLOW DIVERSION
STANDALONE

$5,754,302 $19,244,033 $192,187 $25,190,522

1116796 WTC SP RECLAIMED H2O FAC 
MODS
STANDALONE

$1,986,022 $0 $0 $1,986,022

1116797 WTC JAM/ARC BLDG 
REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $202,997 $202,997

      

1114374 WTC WP RPLC SOLIDS CNTRL SYS
STANDALONE

$60,392 $0 $0 $60,392

1114383 WTC RECLAIM H2O PLAN & 
INFSTRC
STANDALONE

$1,510,249 $3,402,315 $3,331,348 $8,243,912

King County Council November 7, 2016 131



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 19 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1128354 WTC INTERBY PS PARTIAL FM RPLC
STANDALONE

$5,490,917 $21,062,946 $1,908,434 $28,462,297

1129526 WTC WP LSG PIPING 
REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$2,515,523 $9,138,658 $887,692 $12,541,873

1126444 WTC CAPITAL PROJECTS 
CLOSEOUT
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,267,551 $2,534,646 $346,058 $5,148,255

1127126 WTC JOINT SHIP CANAL CSO
STANDALONE

$15,061,399 $45,207,423 $59,805,223 $120,074,045

1127489 WTC PRIMARY SED ROOF 
STRUCTURE
STANDALONE

$4,653,824 $20,028,768 $273,379 $24,955,971

1123630 WTC ESI SECT 2 REHAB PHASE II
STANDALONE

$16,266,278 $318,267 $0 $16,584,545

1123632 WTC KENT AUBURN PHASE B
STANDALONE

$13,434,902 $120,599 $0 $13,555,501

1123633 WTC NB OUTFALL REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$0 $1,282,861 $25,646,013 $26,928,874

1123626 WTC SP BIOGAS HEAT SYS 
IMPROVE
STANDALONE

$18,132,635 $664,953 $0 $18,797,588

1123627 WTC WP 2ND MIX LIQ BLOWER 
REPL
STANDALONE

$447,376 $0 $0 $447,376

1123629 WTC DENNY RS BACKUP POWER
STANDALONE

$372,725 $688,167 $0 $1,060,892

1123517 WTC E FLEET MAINT FAC 
REPLCMNT
STANDALONE

$2,398,901 $0 $0 $2,398,901

1123624 WTC COAL CRK SIPHON TRUNK 
PARA
STANDALONE

$12,761,872 $13,813,081 $57,843,529 $84,418,482

1123625 WTC SP HYPO CAUSTIC CHEM 
STORE
STANDALONE

$1,814,529 $0 $0 $1,814,529

  

King County Council November 7, 2016 132



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 20 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$627,296,763 $430,141,973 $324,849,728 $1,382,288,464

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1028617 TD REGIONAL SIGNAL PRIORITY ($2,468) $0 $0 ($2,468)

1129538 WTC TECH ASSESS & INNOVATION
STANDALONE

$2,016,285 $2,139,078 $2,269,347 $6,424,710

1129756 WTC MEDINA FM ODOR CONTROL
STANDALONE

$2,448,352 $9,409,926 $294,724 $12,153,002

3611 - WATER QUALITY CONST-UNRES Total

3641 PUBLIC TRANS CONST-UNREST
Tech
Adj

1129535 WTC FUTURE CSI PROJECT
STANDALONE

$0 $6,525,270 $6,000,000 $12,525,270

1129536 WTC CAPITAL PROJECT 
FORMULATE
STANDALONE

$7,557,298 $0 $0 $7,557,298

1129537 WTC H2S CORR REHAB 2020-2021
STANDALONE

$745,992 $4,963,106 $1,174,848 $6,883,946

1129532 WTC BW OPTIMIZE AERATION 
BASIN
STANDALONE

$2,587,792 $10,426,597 $876,210 $13,890,599

1129533 WTC CHELAN AVE CSO
STANDALONE

$9,086,838 $43,059,805 $24,996,184 $77,142,827

1129534 WTC SAMMAMISH PLATEAU DIV
STANDALONE

$3,243,272 $5,993,272 $11,000,002 $20,236,546

1129528 WTC OFFSITE REPLACE SMALL 
GENS
STANDALONE

$1,061,423 $5,717,633 $5,743,962 $12,523,018

1129529 WTC WP REFURB PE & RAS PIPES
STANDALONE

$4,666,851 $940,404 $316,344 $5,923,599

1129531 WTC SP C2/C3 PIPE REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$4,109,875 $0 $0 $4,109,875

    

STANDALONE

1129527 WTC IBAY PS FM ODOR/CORR 
CNTRL
STANDALONE

$883,114 $1,688,782 $0 $2,571,896

King County Council November 7, 2016 133



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 21 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1028830 TD TRANSIT PRIORITY 
IMPROVEMET
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,099,875 $755,000 $2,752,000 $5,606,875

1028854 TD VANPOOL VEHICLE PURCHASE
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $0 $0

1111770 TD CIP CONTINGENCY $14,878,033 $0 $0 $14,878,033

1028793 TD ADA VAN PURCHASES
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $0 $0 $0

1028816 TD BUS 60FT MB06 2 HYBRID
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $0 $0 $0

1028827 TD CAPITAL PROJECT OVERSIGHT
ADMIN

$318,211 $320,000 $320,000 $958,211

1028718 TD NON REV VEHICLE 
REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$1,861,832 $4,371,031 $4,679,373 $10,912,236

1028723 TD BUS 40FT MB08 1 HYBRID
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $0 $0 $0

1028777 TD SIGNAGE REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$1,201,648 $247,324 $0 $1,448,972

1028636 TD BUS VAPOR CLASS ADJ PEDALS
STANDALONE

($2,998) $0 $0 ($2,998)

1028637 TD SO KIRKLAND TOD
STANDALONE

($24,836) $0 $0 ($24,836)

1028644 TDC MDT REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$0 $5,470,000 $0 $5,470,000

   
STANDALONE

1028620 TD TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOP
STANDALONE

$988,451 $510,000 $510,000 $2,008,451

1028624 TDC TOD CONVENTION PLACE
PROGRAMMATIC

$6,644,178 $0 $0 $6,644,178

King County Council November 7, 2016 134



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 22 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1116014 TD IS PRESERVATION BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$17,484 $82,056 $0 $99,540

1116015 TD TOH, SHELTER, EQUIP BUDGET $7,456,679 $9,514,658 $10,192,340 $27,163,677

1114074 TDC 60 FT TROLLEY
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $0 $0

1114075 TD 40 FT TROLLEY
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $0 $0 $0

1115954 TDC TRANSIT ASSET MAINT 
BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

($25,218,717) $0 $0 ($25,218,717)

1111993 TD FIBER REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

($36,584) $0 $0 ($36,584)

1112015 TDC DOWNTOWN SOUTHEND 
PATHWAY
PROGRAMMATIC

$300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

1112016 TD SE CONNECTOR FACILITIES
STANDALONE

($722) $0 $0 ($722)

1111971 TDC BATTERY DOMINANT BUS
PROGRAMMATIC

$0 $0 $0 $0

1111975 TD RT 120 TRANSIT 
IMPROVEMENTS
STANDALONE

($8,071) $0 $0 ($8,071)

1111992 TD DSTT ESCALATOR REFURB
STANDALONE

($381,474) $0 $0 ($381,474)

1111771 TD RADIO ALASKAN WAY TUNNEL
STANDALONE

($500,000) $0 $0 ($500,000)

1111785 TD CUSTOMER INFO SYS 
PLATFORM
PROGRAMMATIC

$765,394 $486,633 $0 $1,252,027

1111786 TD FACILITY MASTER PLAN
STANDALONE

($5,676) $0 $0 ($5,676)

  
ADMIN

King County Council November 7, 2016 135



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 23 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1124413 TDC REAL TIME IMPROVEMENTS $565,018 $144,182 $0 $709,200

1124256 TDC REGL TRANSIT CONNECTIVITY
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,661,808 $3,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,661,808

1124395 TDC INTERIM POLICE FACILITY
STANDALONE

$966,757 $0 $0 $966,757

1124396 TDC RAPIDRIDE AWV & ELINK FAC
PROGRAMMATIC

$238,202 $1,733,824 $118,675 $2,090,701

1116746 TD RELACE LEGACY TSP 
EQUIPMENT
STANDALONE

($965,464) $0 $0 ($965,464)

1124125 TDC A/C OPS & WAREHOUSE 
DEMOS
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,669,318 $0 $0 $1,669,318

1124234 TDC RADIO LIFE CYCLE REPLACE
STANDALONE

$0 $500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000

1116073 TD SHELTERS & LIGHTING
PROGRAMMATIC

$4,617,088 $6,150,615 $5,266,662 $16,034,365

1116112 TD TROLLEY MOD BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,639,902 $1,664,501 $443,294 $3,747,697

1116236 TD RIDER INFO SYSTEMS BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,089,998 $0 $0 $1,089,998

1116057 TD NORTHGATE TOD BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$8,093,185 $2,151,785 $2,878,151 $13,123,121

1116071 TD OP FACILITY IMP BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,770,088 $4,184,616 $1,901,186 $8,855,890

1116072 TD BUS ZONE SAFETY BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,120,998 $2,391,429 $2,636,550 $7,148,977

    
PROGRAMMATIC

1116036 TD CAPITAL OUTLAY BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,482,979 $407,000 $435,000 $2,324,979

King County Council November 7, 2016 136



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 24 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1129510 TDC TRANSFER ENV IMPR BUD
STANDALONE

$977,919 $1,118,070 $1,163,520 $3,259,509

1129621 TDC BICYCLE PARKING EXP
STANDALONE

$304,010 $1,711,948 $1,711,948 $3,727,906

1129622 TDC VAN DISTR CENTER PARKING $2,375,745 $2,808,518 $0 $5,184,263

1127330 TDC COMFORT STATIONS
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,746,495 $2,562,042 $2,020,000 $7,328,537

1129299 TDC EL BUS CHRG INFRASTR
STANDALONE

$5,466,727 $7,165,194 $2,951,776 $15,583,697

1129343 TDC DT SEATTLE LAYOVER FAC
STANDALONE

$20,041,876 $77,033,014 $137,847 $97,212,736

1124538 TDC BUS SECURITY CAMERA REPL
STANDALONE

($4,913,350) $1,052,222 $1,285,556 ($2,575,572)

1126349 TDC ALTERNATIVE SERVICES
STANDALONE

$5,612,859 $0 $0 $5,612,859

1126880 TDC RT 245 OPERATIONAL IMP
STANDALONE

$1,915,001 $0 $0 $1,915,001

1124429 TDC REPL 4.9 NETWK & ROUTERS
STANDALONE

$23,950,639 $2,500,000 $0 $26,450,639

1124456 TDC ORCA REPLACEMENT
STANDALONE

$42,933,167 $11,099,255 $2,347,496 $56,379,918

1124523 TDC CIP GRANT CONTINGENCY
PROGRAMMATIC

($862,420) $3,559,600 $0 $2,697,180

   
STANDALONE

1124415 TDC HASTUS PLANNING MODULE
STANDALONE

$99,444 $0 $0 $99,444

1124427 TDC REPL SIGNAL PRIORITY EQUIP
STANDALONE

$4,328,805 $1,290,000 $0 $5,618,805

King County Council November 7, 2016 137



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 25 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

1129643 TDC YESLER WAY ELECTRIFIC
STANDALONE

$1,973,953 $2,228,305 $24,932,124 $29,134,382

1129644 TDC CNTRL/ATL BASE EXP $59,974,752 $6,292,300 $17,927,500 $84,194,552

1129634 TDC AB REPL MAINT BLD HVAC
STANDALONE

$2,299,556 $10,572,627 $0 $12,872,183

1129636 TDC ST LINK STATION INTEGR
STANDALONE

$1,719,668 $1,696,236 $555,220 $3,971,124

1129642 TDC SOUTH BASE EXPANSION
STANDALONE

$47,248,587 $7,347,750 $22,354,667 $76,951,004

1129631 TDC 8TH BASE CONSTRUCTION
STANDALONE

$30,406,055 $2,634,684 $22,304,970 $55,345,709

1129632 TDC MOVE SEATTLE RR EXP
PROGRAMMATIC

$4,041,970 $17,873,705 $22,275,688 $44,191,363

1129633 TDC CCMP 2019 PROGRAM
PROGRAMMATIC

$27,190,210 $842,340 $0 $28,032,550

1129628 TDC BUILDING ASSET MGMT
PROGRAMMATIC

$57,658,563 $28,911,928 $45,546,211 $132,116,702

1129629 TDC EQUIP ASSET MGMT
PROGRAMMATIC

$3,592,691 $2,035,000 $2,179,943 $7,807,634

1129630 TDC SGR ADMINISTRATION
PROGRAMMATIC

$11,681,064 $1,792,512 $1,841,837 $15,315,413

1129624 TDC PASS SELES OFFICE RENOV
STANDALONE

$455,351 $0 $0 $455,351

1129626 TDC INFRASTR ASSET MGMT
PROGRAMMATIC

$40,753,142 $2,800,000 $2,300,000 $45,853,142

1129627 TDC SITE ASSET MGMT
PROGRAMMATIC

$27,175,175 $14,906,588 $15,754,808 $57,836,571

    
STANDALONE

King County Council November 7, 2016 138



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 26 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$489,376,700 $370,875,783 $540,224,426 $1,400,476,909

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129881 TDC RAIDO MICROWAVE REPL
STANDALONE

$2,819,313 $0 $0 $2,819,313

3641 - PUBLIC TRANS CONST-UNREST Total

3642 PUBLIC TRANS REVENUE FLEET CAPITAL
Tech
Adj

1130169 TDC VANPOOL VEHICLE PURCHASE
STANDALONE

$14,710,525 $21,079,000 $21,108,000 $56,897,525

1129799 TDC VEH TELEMAT FOR COACHES
STANDALONE

$3,428,817 $0 $0 $3,428,817

1129800 TDC SAFETY & SECURITY SYS
STANDALONE

$2,114,368 $292,100 $0 $2,406,468

1129801 TDC TR BUSINESS INTEL DATA
STANDALONE

$1,678,764 $4,322,212 $0 $6,000,976

1129748 TDC MC TRANSIT HUB IMPR
STANDALONE

$0 $15,150,000 $41,410,000 $56,560,000

1129749 TDC MC S&R PROGRAM
STANDALONE

$0 $8,000,000 $21,000,000 $29,000,000

1129798 TDC OB CAMERA MGMT SYSTEM
STANDALONE

$640,778 $0 $0 $640,778

1129745 TDC ON BORAD SYSTEM REPL
STANDALONE

$0 $1,500,000 $12,000,000 $13,500,000

1129746 TDC MC P&R EXPANSION
STANDALONE

$0 $3,335,953 $6,820,420 $10,156,373

1129747 TDC MC RR EXPANSION
STANDALONE

$13,646,635 $81,235,875 $234,827,515 $329,710,025

   
STANDALONE

1129648 TDC ON BUS CAMERA EXP
STANDALONE

$7,600,255 $1,121,150 $942,150 $9,663,555

King County Council November 7, 2016 139



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 27 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$565,617,022 $81,091,875 $137,374,661 $784,083,558

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$6,227,382 $4,005,000 $4,005,000 $14,237,382

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1130281 PSB REET 1 RSD TRANSFER
STANDALONE

$3,000,000 $0 $0 $3,000,000

1033533 PSB REET 1 TRANSFER TO 3490
STANDALONE

$1,197 $0 $0 $1,197

1033534 PSB REET 1 DEBT SERVICE
STANDALONE

$1,175,230 $256,935 $257,375 $1,689,540

1122223 PSB REET 1 TRANSFER TO 3581
STANDALONE

$1,505,439 $1,587,061 $0 $3,092,500

1047594 WLMR CAO MR MASTER
STANDALONE

$6,227,382 $4,005,000 $4,005,000 $14,237,382

3673 - CRITICAL AREAS MITIGATION Total

3681 REAL ESTATE EXCISE TX CAP
Tech
Adj

1033532 PSB REET 1 TRANSFER TO 3160
STANDALONE

$8,896,174 $11,856,553 $12,020,576 $32,773,303

1130289 TDC BATTERY BUS BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$9,182,978 $0 $0 $9,182,978

1130290 TDC ADA PARATR BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$12,768,232 $10,505,832 $15,199,461 $38,473,525

3642 - PUBLIC TRANS REVENUE FLEET CAPITAL Total

3673 CRITICAL AREAS MITIGATION
Tech
Adj

1130286 TDC 40' HYBRID BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$209,974,239 $0 $0 $209,974,239

1130287 TDC 60' HYBRID BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$297,499,452 $49,507,043 $101,067,200 $448,073,695

1130288 TDC 60' TROLLEY BUDGET
PROGRAMMATIC

$21,481,596 $0 $0 $21,481,596

King County Council November 7, 2016 140



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 28 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$14,578,040 $13,700,549 $12,277,951 $40,556,540

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$13,755,487 $9,968,549 $8,946,477 $32,670,513

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$21,070,022 $6,414,592 $2,226,131 $29,710,745

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129348 DES RALS Records Mgmt Sys Upgd
STANDALONE

$1,393,685 $0 $0 $1,393,685

1129465 KCEO Tabulation System Rplc
STANDALONE

$3,165,626 $0 $0 $3,165,626

1123944 DOA PTAS
STANDALONE

$504,148 $0 $0 $504,148

1124170 DES FBOD CW Elec Pmt Imp Sppt
STANDALONE

$357,752 $0 $0 $357,752

1124179 DES HRD Replacement of NeoGOV
STANDALONE

$763,938 $0 $0 $763,938

1033971 WLTD TDR BANK
STANDALONE

$20,719,433 $6,043,723 $1,832,676 $28,595,832

1033976 WLTD TDR PROGRAM SUPPORT
STANDALONE

$350,589 $370,869 $393,455 $1,114,913

3691 - TRNSF OF DEV CREDIT PROG Total

3771 OIRM CAPITAL PROJECTS
Tech
Adj

1033538 PSB REET 2 TRANSFER TO 3490
STANDALONE

$2,992 $0 $0 $2,992

1122224 PSB REET 2 TRANSFER TO 3581
STANDALONE

$8,296,524 $4,149,758 $0 $12,446,282

3682 - REAL ESTATE EXCISE TX 2 Total

3691 TRNSF OF DEV CREDIT PROG
Tech
Adj

3681 - REAL ESTATE EXCISE TX CAP Total

3682 REAL ESTATE EXCISE TX 2
Tech
Adj

1033537 PSB REET 2 TRANSFER TO 3160
STANDALONE

$5,455,971 $5,818,791 $8,946,477 $20,221,239

King County Council November 7, 2016 141



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 29 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$30,381,396 $0 $0 $30,381,396

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$4,347,031 $0 $0 $4,347,031

1047610 KCIT WAN REPLACEMENT
KCIT ITS Equipment Replacement

$1,000,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

1129570 KCIT I-Net ER
KCIT ITS Equipment Replacement

$691,456 $0 $0 $691,456

3781 - ITS CAPITAL Total

3810 SW CAP EQUIP REPLACEMENT

1130197 KCSC ITA Court Video Improve
STANDALONE

$254,545 $0 $0 $254,545

3771 - OIRM CAPITAL PROJECTS Total

3781 ITS CAPITAL
Tech
Adj

1047605 KCIT DSS REPLACEMENT
KCIT ITS Equipment Replacement

$2,655,575 $0 $0 $2,655,575

1129763 DAJD Jail Management System
STANDALONE

$12,189,034 $0 $0 $12,189,034

1129863 DES RALS Hire License Sys Col
STANDALONE

$166,500 $0 $0 $166,500

1129910 PSB Hyperion Upgrade
STANDALONE

$1,108,081 $0 $0 $1,108,081

1129638 DCHS PH Data Integration
STANDALONE

$2,714,136 $0 $0 $2,714,136

1129703 DOT Fleet Vehicle Loc for NRV
STANDALONE

$1,781,050 $0 $0 $1,781,050

1129762 DAJD DAN Phase III
STANDALONE

$1,052,755 $0 $0 $1,052,755

   

1129637 DCHS Physical Behav Hlth Int
STANDALONE

$4,930,146 $0 $0 $4,930,146

King County Council November 7, 2016 142



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 30 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$15,800,000 $16,800,000 $12,235,000 $44,835,000

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$75,093 $0 $0 $75,093

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129589 RSD CWP CLEAR ZONE SAFETY $1,000,000 $1,600,000 $1,600,000 $4,200,000

1129586 RSD CWP DRAINAGE 
PRESERVATION
PROGRAMMATIC

$7,000,000 $6,000,000 $6,000,000 $19,000,000

1129587 RSD CWP GUARDRAIL 
PRESERVATION
PROGRAMMATIC

$4,800,000 $2,950,000 $0 $7,750,000

1129588 RSD CWP BRIDGE PRIORITY MAINT
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $3,000,000

1129583 RSD GRANT CONTINGENCY 3855
ADMIN

$10,000,000 $0 $0 $10,000,000

1129584 RSD CWP QUICK RESPONSE
PROGRAMMATIC

$5,000,000 $7,000,000 $8,000,000 $20,000,000

1129585 RSD CWP ROADWAY 
PRESERVATION
PROGRAMMATIC

$15,800,000 $11,000,000 $11,000,000 $37,800,000

1034868 WLR FARMLAND LEASE
STANDALONE

$75,093 $0 $0 $75,093

3840 - FARMLAND & OPEN SPACE ACQ Total

3855 COUNTY ROAD MAJOR MAINTENANCE
Tech
Adj

1129582 RSD EMERGENT NEED 3855
ADMIN

$2,500,000 $1,550,000 $1,400,000 $5,450,000

1033485 SW CERP CAPITAL REPAIRS
STANDALONE

$2,400,000 $3,400,000 $3,400,000 $9,200,000

1033487 SW CERP EQ REPLACEMNT 
PURCHASE
STANDALONE

$13,400,000 $13,400,000 $8,835,000 $35,635,000

3810 - SW CAP EQUIP REPLACEMENT Total

3840 FARMLAND & OPEN SPACE ACQ
Tech
Adj

Tech
Adj

King County Council November 7, 2016 143



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 31 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$51,934,595 $33,900,000 $29,800,000 $115,634,595

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129599 RSD RENTON AVE PH III SIDEWALK
STANDALONE

$3,200,000 $0 $0 $3,200,000

1129600 RSD HIGHLINE SCH DIST 
IMPRVMNT
STANDALONE

$5,250,000 $0 $0 $5,250,000

1129596 RSD OLD CASCADE/MILLER BR 
EAST
STANDALONE

$2,750,000 $0 $0 $2,750,000

1129597 RSD ISS HBRT RD@CDR GROV 
RNDBT
STANDALONE

$0 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000

1129598 RSD ISS HBRT RD@MAY VLLY 
RNDBT
STANDALONE

$0 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000

1129593 RSD GRANT CONTINGENCY 3865
ADMIN

$5,000,000 $0 $0 $5,000,000

1129594 RSD CWP GUARDRAIL 
CONSTRUCTION
PROGRAMMATIC

$1,350,000 $1,350,000 $850,000 $3,550,000

1129595 RSD OLD CASCADE/MILLER BR 
WEST
STANDALONE

$2,300,000 $0 $0 $2,300,000

1129841 RSD CIP OVERSIGHT 3855
ADMIN

$34,595 $0 $0 $34,595

3855 - COUNTY ROAD MAJOR MAINTENANCE Total

3865 KING COUNTY ROAD CONSTRUCTION
Tech
Adj

1129592 RSD EMERGENT NEED 3865
ADMIN

$600,000 $400,000 $40,000 $1,040,000

    
PROGRAMMATIC

1129590 RSD CWP HIGH COLLISION SAFETY
PROGRAMMATIC

$4,000,000 $2,000,000 $0 $6,000,000

1129591 RSD CWP SCHOOL ZONE SAFETY
PROGRAMMATIC

$800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $2,400,000

King County Council November 7, 2016 144



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 32 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$21,596,093 $7,750,000 $890,000 $30,236,093

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129850 SW HARBOR ISLAND DOCK DEMO
STANDALONE

$1,869,209 $1,422,939 $0 $3,292,148

1124104 SW HOBART LF COVER & GAS CTRL
STANDALONE

$1,503,356 $0 $0 $1,503,356

1124107 SW ALGONA TS DECONSTRUCT
STANDALONE

$0 $22,620 $2,115,190 $2,137,810

1129849 SW PC DUVALL ENVIRON CTRL SYS
STANDALONE

$549,247 $919,530 $642,601 $2,111,378

1033507 SW CONSTR CIP OVERSIGHT
ADMIN

$3,407 $0 $0 $3,407

1116838 SW ENUMCLAW ENV CNTRL SYS 
MOD
STANDALONE

$553,247 $0 $0 $553,247

1116840 SW VASHON ENV CNTRL SYS MOD
STANDALONE

$1,255,130 $0 $0 $1,255,130

1033497 SW SOUTH COUNTY RECYCLING & 
TS
STANDALONE

$0 $34,278,875 $55,844,577 $90,123,452

1033502 SW CH EQUIP WASH PLATFORM
STANDALONE

($1,611,291) $0 $0 ($1,611,291)

1033505 SW FAC CAPITAL PROJ CNTRL SPRT
ADMIN

$0 $0 $263,805 $263,805

1130261 RSD SE176&SE171 WAY 
ROUNDABOUT
STANDALONE

$340,000 $0 $0 $340,000

1130303 RSD CIP OVERSIGHT 3865
ADMIN

$14,093 $0 $0 $14,093

3865 - KING COUNTY ROAD CONSTRUCTION Total

3901 SOLID WASTE CONSTRUCTION
Tech
Adj

1130260 RSD SW 108&8 AV SW 
ROUNDABOUT
STANDALONE

$792,000 $0 $0 $792,000

King County Council November 7, 2016 145



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 33 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$5,220,799 $38,483,024 $60,146,375 $103,850,198

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

$49,764,106 $32,071,360 $28,038,819 $109,874,285

1129847 SW CHRLF N FLARE STATION 
REHAB
STANDALONE

$1,667,722 $5,000 $0 $1,672,722

1129848 SW CHRLF AREA 5 TOP DECK
STANDALONE

$482,223 $11,261,738 $11,665,317 $23,409,278

3910 - LANDFILL RESERVE Total

1112415 CH AREA 8 CLOSURE
STANDALONE

$0 $1,071,233 $15,362,727 $16,433,960

1115992 SW A8 DEV/FACILITY RELOCATION
STANDALONE

$37,046,951 $0 $0 $37,046,951

1129844 SW CHRLF PUMP STN REPAIR
STANDALONE

$3,130,475 $0 $0 $3,130,475

1033543 SW CH GW MONITORING WELLS
STANDALONE

($35,967) $0 $0 ($35,967)

1033547 SW LFR CAPITAL PROJ CNTRL SPRT
ADMIN

$0 $556,817 $528,628 $1,085,445

1033548 SW LFR CIP OVERSIGHT
ADMIN

$32,503 $0 $0 $32,503

3901 - SOLID WASTE CONSTRUCTION Total

3910 LANDFILL RESERVE
Tech
Adj

1033516 SW CH REV SITE DEV PLAN
STANDALONE

$405,128 $0 $0 $405,128

1033542 SW CH AREA 7 CLOSURE
STANDALONE

$7,035,071 $19,176,572 $482,147 $26,693,790

    

1129851 SW PC PUY/KIT CNR ENV CTRL SYS
STANDALONE

$549,247 $919,530 $642,601 $2,111,378

1129852 SW PC HOUGHTON ENV CTRL SYS
STANDALONE

$549,247 $919,530 $637,601 $2,106,378

King County Council November 7, 2016 146



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 34 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

Project
Number

Project Name
Class Code

FY17-18 FY19-20 FY21-22 Total 6-Year Budget

1129760 DES FMD PH NORTH DENTAL 
CLINIC
STANDALONE

$376,571 $0 $0 $376,571

1129769 DES FMD BULLET PROOF GLASS
STANDALONE

$223,176 $0 $0 $223,176

1129773 DES FMD ADMIN BLDG SECURITY
STANDALONE

$96,628 $0 $0 $96,628

1125015 DES FMD YESLER BR UTIL RELOC
STANDALONE

$468,333 $0 $0 $468,333

1129041 DES FMD MRJC SOLAR ENERGY
STANDALONE

$866,665 $0 $0 $866,665

1129759 DES FMD PH COLUMBIA DENTAL 
CLI
STANDALONE

$372,286 $0 $0 $372,286

1122048 DES FMD AFIS PROP MGMT UNIT 
PL
STANDALONE

$8,918,530 $0 $0 $8,918,530

1124148 DES FMD ASSET MANGMNT SYS
STANDALONE

$2,434,648 $0 $0 $2,434,648

1124441 DES FMD RESOURC CONSERV 
GRANTS
PROGRAMMATIC

($605,000) $0 $0 ($605,000)

1040874 DES FMD CAPITAL PRJCT 
OVERSGHT
ADMIN

$8,779 $0 $0 $8,779

1116719 DES FMD DC SECURITY VESTIBULES
STANDALONE

($176,668) $0 $0 ($176,668)

1117106 DES FMD Child/Fam Justice Ctr
STANDALONE

$0 $0 $0 $0

3951 BLDG REPAIR/REPL SUBFUND
Tech
Adj

1121771 DES FMD PRELIM & DESIGN 
PROGRAMMATIC

$2,100,000 $2,200,000 $4,300,000

King County Council November 7, 2016 147



11:24 AM 11/3/2016 Page 35 of 35

Project

Number

Project Name

Class Code

FY17-18 

Appropriation

FY19-20 

Planned

FY21-22 

Planned

Total 6-Year 

Budget

ATTACHMENT A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2016
2017-2018 Biennial - Executive Proposed

Tech

Adj

$14,130,596 $2,100,000 $2,200,000 $18,430,596

$2,367,525,667 $1,269,014,501 $1,300,900,412 $4,937,440,580

3951 - BLDG REPAIR/REPL SUBFUND Total

Grand Total

1130313 DES FMD CIVIC CAMPUS 
PLANNING
STANDALONE

$687,232 $0 $0 $687,232

1129781 DES FMD GENDER NEUTRAL 
RESTRMS
STANDALONE

$66,000 $0 $0 $66,000

1129783 DES FMD WELLNESS ROOM
STANDALONE

$69,067 $0 $0 $69,067

1130262 DES FMD KCSO S RANGE 
REMEDIATN
STANDALONE

$324,349 $0 $0 $324,349

King County Council November 7, 2016 148



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0476.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE setting the annual use payment for 1 

continuing use of the county road rights-of-way as 2 

authorized in right-of-way use agreements for wireless 3 

telecommunications facilities; and amending Ordinance 4 

17515, Section 13, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.060, 5 

Ordinance 13734, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 6 

14.45.020. 7 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 8 

 SECTION 1.  A. Section 2 of this ordinance proposes changes to the annual use 9 

payment currently charged for right-of-way use agreements by clarifying wireless 10 

communication facility antenna support structures, establishing a new annual use 11 

payment amount and revising the adjusted rate. 12 

 B.  These fees are assessed pursuant to K.C.C.299.030. 13 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 17515, Section 13, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.060 14 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 15 

 A.  The annual use payment for continuing use of the county rights-of-way ((as 16 

follows)) for wireless communications facilities shall be the following amounts for 2017 17 

and, for each year thereafter, the 2017 amount adjusted as provided in subsection C. of 18 

this section: 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 149



Ordinance  

 
 
 Type of Equipment/Facility within the right-of-way Use Payment 20 

 ((Separate )) Antenna support structure $((5,000)) 21 

 (((such as a monopole or lattice))) 10,000 22 

 used ((solely)) for wireless antenna, 23 

 with antenna/receiver transmitter 24 

 array and/or equipment cabinet 25 

 Antenna/receiver transmitter (on an existing or $3,000 26 

 replacement pole) and equipment cabinet 27 

 Antenna/receiver transmitter (on an existing or $2,000 28 

 replacement pole) or equipment cabinet, but not both 29 

 B.  For the purpose of this section, "replacement pole" means a new utility pole 30 

replacing an existing utility pole in the county right-of-way with no increase in the total 31 

number of utility poles in the right-of-way. Replacement poles provide extra capacity to 32 

support attached wireless telecommunications facilities. 33 

 C.  ((All)) The amount of the annual use payments ((prescribed)) established by 34 

subsection A. of this section shall be automatically ((escalated)) adjusted annually, 35 

beginning January 1, ((2001)) 2018, and every year thereafter, ((for the change in)) 36 

using the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer January 37 

through December Price Index for All Urban Consumers ("CPI-U") for the Seattle-38 

Tacoma-Bremerton Statistical Metropolitan Area for the year preceding the prior 39 

calendar year of the agreement's implementation. However, if the CPI-U is negative, 40 

there will be no adjustment. In the event the CPI-U (((or a successor or substitute 41 

index))) is no longer published, a reliable government or other ((non-partisan)) 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 150



Ordinance  

 
 
nonpartisan index of inflation selected by the county shall be used to calculate the 43 

adjusted amounts. 44 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 13734, Section 4, and K.C.C. 14.45.020 are each hereby 45 

amended to read as follows: 46 

 The ((following terms shall be applicable to this chapter:)) definitions in this 47 

section apply throughout this chapter unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 48 

 A.  "Antenna support structure" means any pole, post, tower or other structure 49 

supporting, permitted and sufficient for the mounting and operation of wireless 50 

communications facilities. 51 

 B.  "Right-of-way" ((is)) means land, property or property interest, such as an 52 

easement, usually in a strip, as well as bridges, trestles((,)) or other structures, dedicated 53 

to, or otherwise acquired by the county, for public motor vehicle transportation purposes, 54 

including, but not limited to, roads, streets, avenues((,)) and alleys, whether or not 55 

opened, improved or maintained for public motor vehicle transportation purposes. 56 

 ((B.)) C.  "Right-of-way use agreement" ((is)) means an agreement between the 57 

county and a wireless telecommunications provider through which is granted a site-58 

specific and revocable privilege to use county right-of-way at a location identified in the 59 

agreement for wireless telecommunications facilities, and through which are set forth the 60 

terms and conditions for exercising the granted privilege to use the county right-of-way. 61 

 ((C.)) D.  "Wireless" means transmissions through the airwaves including, but not 62 

limited to, infrared line of sight, cellular, microwave or satellite. 63 

 E.  "Wireless telecommunications facility" ((is)) means the capital, equipment and 64 

property, including, but not limited to, the poles and other antenna support structures, 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 151



Ordinance  

 
 
pipes, mains, conduits, ducts, pedestals((,)) and electronic equipment within the right-of-66 

way used for the purpose of transmitting, receiving, distributing, providing((,)) or 67 

offering wireless telecommunications. 68 

 ((D.)) F.  "Wireless telecommunications provider" ((is)) means every person that 69 

owns, controls, operates or manages a wireless minor telecommunication facility within 70 

the county right-of-way for the purpose of offering wireless telecommunication services 71 

(((i.e.)).  For the purposes of this subsection, "wireless telecommunication services" 72 

means transmission for hire of information in electronic or optical form, including, but 73 

not limited to, voice, video((,)) or data(())). 74 

 ((E.  "Wireless" means transmissions through the airwaves including, but not75 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 152



Ordinance  

 
 
limited to, infrared line of sight, cellular, microwave, or satellite.)) 76 

 SECTION 4.   This ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017. 77 

 78 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 153



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item:  Name: Andrew Kim 

Proposed No.: 2016-0476 Date: November 7, 2016 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0476.2, to increase the annual use for use 
of County Right-Of-Way for wireless telecommunication facilities, passed out of 
the Special Budget and Fiscal Management Committee on November 1, 2016, 
with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The proposed ordinance was amended in 
committee with Amendment 1, to specify granting fee-setting authority as per 
K.C.C.299.030, format fee-table to more closely match Code, and correct 
redundant language. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
A proposed ordinance to revise King County Code (KCC) to increase the annual use 
fees for use of County right-of-way (ROW) for wireless telecommunications facilities and 
to also allow the annual use fees to be adjusted for inflation, in accordance with the 
2017-2018 Executive Proposed Biennium budget. The proposed fee increase will 
generate $337,452 of additional estimated revenues for the General Fund for the 
upcoming biennium. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0476 proposes to amend King County Code to change the 
following regarding the use of County ROW for wireless telecommunication facilities: 

1. Increase the annual use fee for the “Antenna support structure for wireless 
antenna” tier from $5,000 to $10,000 

2. Allow the three-tier fee structure to be adjusted for inflation 
3. Provide clarity in allowing for only positive inflationary adjustments (a negative 

CPI-U will result in no adjustment to the fee for that year)  
4. Technical changes which include Code clarifications and addition of definition 

language for “Wireless” and “Antenna support structure” 
 
Changes to the annual use fee provisions were initially proposed in 2014 in accordance 
with the 2015-2016 Proposed Biennium budget, however, Council chose not to enact 

King County Council November 7, 2016 154



the Ordinance and instead issued a proviso through the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget 
requesting the Executive to provide a report relating to the impacts of, and options for 
updating the County’s wireless telecommunications facilities ROW use agreement fees. 
The report was adopted by Council through Motion 14560 in early 2016. 
 
Staff analysis indicate that the current proposal may be a more amenable solution given 
the results of the Executive report provided through the proviso, minimize potential legal 
risks, and prior feedback from wireless communication companies. However, Council 
may wish to evaluate the Executive’s 2017-2018 Biennium budget proposal to use the 
additional $337,542 of estimated revenue generated with the increase of the annual use 
fee, to fund 1 TLT to backfill work for current RES staff who are proposed to focus on 
implementing the findings from the RES Line of Business efforts. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
KCC 4A.675.060 sets the annual use fees for continued use of County ROW for 
wireless telecommunication facilities. Table 1 below provides the current three-tier fee 
structure based on type of equipment. 
 

Table 1: Annual Use Fee for Continued Use of County ROW for Wireless 
Telecommunication Facilities 

 

TYPE OF EQUIPMENT/FACILITY WITHIN THE ROW USE PAYMENT 

Separate support structure (such as a monopole or lattice) used 
solely for wireless antenna, with antenna/receiver  transmitter 
and/or equipment cabinet 

$5,000 

Antenna/receiver transmitter (on an existing or replacement pole) 
and equipment cabinet 

$3,000 

Antenna/receiver transmitter (on an existing or replacement pole) 
or equipment cabinet, but not both 

$2,000 

 
KCC 4A.675.060 also provisions that the annual use fees are increased by the most 
recent Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for All 
Urban Consumers (commonly known as the “CPI-U”) to account for inflation. The 
current fee structure and related provisions within KCC 4A.675.060 was established on 
March 6, 2000 by Ordinance 13734 and has not been updated since its establishment. 
 
Under the current Code, the annual use payment remains static for any new use 
agreements and inflationary adjustments are only applied to existing use agreements. 
For example, an entity that established a ROW use agreement with the County in 2001, 
for a separate support structure, and continues their agreement until today, would have 
paid $5,000 in 2001 and $5,000 plus 15 years of inflationary adjustments for 2016. 
However, for an entity that established a ROW use agreement with the County in 2016, 
for a separate support structure, would pay an annual use fee of $5,000. This creates a 
disparity in annual use fees for existing agreements and new agreements. 
 
It should be noted that a separate provision, KCC 4A.675.050, sets additional fees for 
entities requesting County ROW use for wireless telecommunication facilities. This 
includes a $500 initial application fee to establish an agreement and any surcharge 

King County Council November 7, 2016 155



assessed by the Real Estate Services (RES) section of the Facilities Management 
Division (FMD) to recover costs. 
  
In 2014, Proposed Ordinance 2014-0401, in accordance with the Executive’s 2015-
2016 Proposed Biennium budget, was transmitted from the Executive to eliminate the 
current three-tier fee structure and instead charge a uniform amount of $10,000 
regardless of type of equipment installed with an automatic compounded escalation rate 
of 4 percent per year. The Executive’s rationale for the proposed ordinance was to 
eliminate disparity under the existing payment structure between existing and new 
agreements, bring the fees to comparable market rates, and establish an equipment 
agnostic fee to eliminate burden on RES resources to determine the appropriate fee for 
a particular equipment. 
 
The Council chose not to enact PO 2014-0401 and instead required a proviso through 
the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance (Ordinance 17941, Section 28, Proviso P1, 
as amended)1 requesting the Executive to provide a report relating to the impacts of, 
and options for updating the County’s wireless telecommunications facilities ROW use 
agreement fees. The Council was briefed on the report at the Budget and Fiscal 
Committee Meeting on January 27, 2016 and approved the report by Motion 14560 on 
February 8, 2016. 
 
The transmitted report responded to the proviso requirements by providing a detailed 
description of the results of a fee comparability analysis with 23 other municipalities 
across the country. The following highlights the report’s key findings: 

• For those municipalities without a ROW use fee, other mechanisms were used to 
assess use of ROW (i.e. utility taxes, telecommunications franchise agreements 
and general siting permits) 

• For those municipalities with a ROW use fee, the County’s current fee structure 
is below the starting rate charged by most other municipalities 

• Other municipalities also consider “types of equipment” when assessing fees, 
however, sufficient evidence does not yet exist of a preferred alternative use fee 
that accommodates lighter technology for wireless communications 

• An incentive-based use fee (i.e. lower fees for more ROW usage) would be 
problematic to administer, potentially unfair to smaller carriers, and would not 
recover all the costs County 

• Wireless service appears to be generally available in the County's rural areas, 
only lacking in hard-to-reach spots in forested areas far outside of any areas 
where services are concentrated 

 
Executive staff did not transmit a new fee ordinance during the 2015-2016 biennium and 
alluded at that time that a new fee ordinance would be transmitted as part of the 2017-
2018 Proposed Biennium budget. 
 
The Executive staff have indicated that the County is currently entered into 42 
agreements for wireless telecommunications facilities ROW use and the average annual 
use payment is approximately $6,034. 
 

1 Adopted November 18, 2014. 
                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 156



ANALYSIS 
 
As anticipated, the Executive has transmitted Proposed Ordinance 2016-0476, in 
accordance with the 2017-2018 Proposed Biennium budget. The proposed ordinance 
proposes the following regarding the use of County ROW for wireless 
telecommunication facilities: 

1. Increase the annual use fee for the “Antenna support structure for wireless 
antenna” tier from $5,000 to $10,000 

2. Allow the three-tier fee structure to be adjusted for inflation 
3. Provide clarity in allowing for only positive inflationary adjustments (a negative 

CPI-U will result in no adjustment to the fee for that year)  
4. Technical changes which include Code clarifications and addition of definition 

language for “Wireless” and “Antenna support structure” 
 
Executive staff have stated that the rationale for the proposed changes are as follows: 
(1) establishes a market comparable annual use fee for antenna support structure as 
evidenced by the comparability report, and (2) minimizes legal risk by establishing 
equity between existing and new use agreements by modifying the inflationary 
adjustment language. 
 
The proposed ordinance does not eliminate the three-tier fee structure as originally 
proposed in the last biennium (Propose Ordinance 2014-0401). Executive staff have 
stated that the three-tier fee structure was not eliminated since the Comparability 
Analysis Report indicated that there is insufficient evidence to determine the appropriate 
fee levels that accommodate lighter technology for wireless communications at this 
time. Executive staff have also stated that wireless telecommunication companies have 
provided feedback that the industry is trending towards using lighter technologies and 
the companies were unopposed to the County’s current fee structure to accommodate 
these lighter technologies.  For now, Executive staff concludes that the proposed three-
tier fee structure fairly represents the cost to use the County’s ROW for wireless 
telecommunication equipment. 
 
Staff agree that the current proposal may be a more amenable solution given the 
negative feedback from wireless telecommunication companies back in 2014 when the 
Executive proposed a uniform rate of $10,000 for all equipment types. 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
Amendment 1 specifies granting fee-setting authority as per K.C.C.299.030, formats 
fee-table to more closely match Code, and corrects redundant language. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 157



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0477.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to sheriff's civil unit fees; and 1 

amending Ordinance 14792, Section 2, as amended, and 2 

K.C.C. 4A.680.010. 3 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 4 

 SECTION 1.  A.  Section 2 of this ordinance proposes changes to the civil process 5 

fees to cover cost increases in administration and operation of the sheriff's civil unit. 6 

 B.  These fees are assessed under RCW 36.18.040(1), which sets the base level 7 

fees that sheriff's collect for their official services.  The current fees are significantly 8 

lower than adjacent counties and do not cover operating costs to provide the service. 9 

 C.  County legislative authorities may set the amounts of  the fees to cover the 10 

costs of administration and operation under RCW 36.18.040(3). 11 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 14792, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.680.010, 12 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 13 

 The following fees apply as provided in this chapter: 14 

 A.  Service of civil process, service, summons and complaint, notice and 15 

complaint, summons and petition and notice of small claim: 16 

   1.  Serve one defendant $((30.00)) 33.00 17 

   2.  Serve two or more defendants, same address $((40.00)) 44.00 18 

   3.  All returns $((23.00)) 26.00 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 158



Ordinance  

 
 
   4.  Nonresident returns $((23.00)) 26.00 20 

   5.  Notary fee $10.00 21 

   6.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 22 

 B.  Attachment, writ - personal property: 23 

   1.  Levy, per hour $((67.00)) 74.00 24 

   2.  Serve, each defendant $((40.00)) 44.00 25 

   3.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 26 

   4.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 27 

 C.  Attachment, writ - real property: 28 

   1.  Levy (per hour) $((67.00)) 74.00 29 

   2.  Notice of levy $((5.00)) 6.00 30 

 Per Location $2.00 31 

   3.  Filing with auditor and auditor's filing fee $((30.00)) 33.00 32 

   4.  Serve defendant (if required) $((40.00)) 44.00 33 

   5.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 34 

   6.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 35 

 D.  Execution - personal property: 36 

   1.  Levy (per hour) $((67.00)) 74.00 37 

   2.  ((Notice of sale and copies (first copy)  $2.00 38 

   3.  Additional copies (each)               $1.00 39 

   4.)) Posting of each notice $((15.00)) 17.00 40 

   ((5.)) 3.  Conducting sale (per hour) $((67.00)) 74.00 41 

   ((6.)) 4. Bill of sale (each) $((67.00)) 74.00 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 159



Ordinance  

 
 
   ((7.)) 5.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 43 

   ((8.)) 6.  Serve defendant $((40.00)) 44.00 44 

   ((9.)) 7.  Serve notice (defendant) $((40.00)) 44.00 45 

   ((10.)) 8.  Postponement notice (each) $((15.00)) 17.00 46 

   ((11.)) 9.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 47 

 ((12.)) 10.  Mailing Actual costs of postage 48 

 E.  Warrants: 49 

   1.  Serve (each) $((67.00)) 74.00 50 

   2.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 51 

   3.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 52 

 F.  Subpoena: 53 

   1.  Serve (each) $((40.00)) 44.00 54 

   2.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 55 

   3.  Mileage Federal standard mileage rate 56 

 G.  Postage for mailing, required by statute 57 

  whether regular, certified, or registered: Actual cost of postage 58 

 H.  Mileage fee, each mile actually and necessarily 59 

 traveled in going to or returning from any 60 

 place of service or attempted service: Federal standard mileage rate 61 

+ I.  Execution - order of sale of real property: 62 

   1.  Levy (per hour) $((67.00)) 74.00 63 

   2.  Notice to publisher $2.00 64 

   3.  Recording with auditor $((30.00)) 33.00 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 160



Ordinance  

 
 
   4.  ((Notice of sale (plus copies) $3.00 66 

   5.))  Conducting sale (per hour) $((67.00)) 74.00 67 

   ((6.)) 5.  Certificate of sale $((67.00)) 74.00 68 

   ((7.)) 6.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 69 

   ((8.)) 7.  Posting of notice (each) $((15.00)) 17.00 70 

   ((9.)) 8.  Affidavit of posting $((10.00)) 17.00 71 

   ((10.)) 9.  Postponement (each notice) $((15.00)) 17.00 72 

   ((11.)) 10.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 73 

   ((12.)) 11.  Mailing Actual cost of postage 74 

 J.  Writ of garnishment: 75 

   1.  Serve garnishee $((40.00)) 44.00 76 

   2.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 77 

   3.  Serve defendant (if required) $((40.00)) 44.00 78 

   4.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 79 

   5.  Mailing Actual cost of postage 80 

 K.  Writ of replevin - affidavit, claim and delivery: 81 

   1.  Serve defendant with writ - affidavit and bond $((40.00)) 44.00 82 

   2.  Serve summons and complaint (one) $((30.00)) 33.00 83 

   3.  Serve summons and complaint (two or more) $((40.00)) 44.00 84 

   4.  Levy (per hour) $((67.00)) 74.00 85 

   5.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 86 

   6.  Mileage (per hour) Federal standard mileage rate 87 

 L.  Writ of restitution or writ of assistance, or both: 88 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 161



Ordinance  

 
 
   2.  Service with aid of county (((oust and eject)))) ((87.00)) 97.00 89 

   3.  Cost per hour after first hour $((67.00)) 74.00 90 

   4.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 91 

   5.  Mileage (per mile) Federal standard mileage rate 92 

 M.  Redemption: 93 

   1.  Serve notice of intent $((40.00)) 44.00 94 

   2.  Certificate of redemption $((67.00)) 74.00 95 

   3 ((Copies In accordance 96 

  with RCW 97 

  36.18.040)) 98 

 N.  Deed issuance $((67.00)) 74.00 99 

 O.  Habeas corpus, order to assist: 100 

   1.  Serve only $((40.00)) 44.00 101 

   2.  Executing of (per hour) $((67.00)) 74.00 102 

   3.  Return to court $((23.00)) 26.00 103 

 P.  Internal-only criminal history record check: $((15.00)) 17.00 104 

 Q.  Notarizing documents: $10.00 105 

 R.  All other documents and supporting papers for which no 106 

 other fee is provided in this section: $((40.00)) 44.00 107 

 S.  Fingerprinting: 108 

   1.  Noncriminal purpose up to two sets $((15.00)) 17.00 109 

   2.  Each additional set $((5.00)) 6.00 110 

 111 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 162



Ordinance  

 
 
 T.  Copies when sufficient copies are not furnished 112 

 For first page $1.00 113 

 Each additional page $0.50 114 

 115 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 163



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 5 Name: Greg Doss 

Proposed No.: 2016-0477 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 
 

 
Proposed Substitute 2016-0477.2, increasing KCSO civil filing fees, passed out of 
committee on November 1, 2017 with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The motion 
was amended in committee with Amendment 1 to 2016-0477.  Amendment 1 
corrected technical drafting errors. 
 

 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2007-0477 would increase fees for a variety of civil filing services 
that are provided by the King County Sheriff’s Office.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
This ordinance would increase civil process fees to account for inflationary increases to 
the cost of providing associated services. The projected revenue increase over existing 
fee collections is expected to be $207,000 and would accrue to the general fund.  
 
State law allows counties to raise fees to recoup costs under RCW 36.18.040 (1). The 
last update to these fees took effect on January 1, 2011.  This ordinance increases these 
fees by the consumer price index for urban wage earners in the West region since that 
time (11.1%).   
 
The costs of providing civil process services are driven by the cost of labor, supplies, 
central services and equipment.  This affects residents who live or work in unincorporated 
King County or contract cities and who may rely upon the KCSO for delivery or positing 
of civil notices.  Services subject to this fee increase include personal and real property 
court orders, protection orders, court ordered evictions, family law actions and notice of 
small claims.  These civil processing orders are delivered or posted by the Sheriff 
according to the schedule found in Section 2 of the proposed ordinance 
 
As proposed in the Executive’s 2017-18 Proposed Budget, the increased revenue that 
would result from this ordinance will accrue to the County’s General Fund and be 
appropriated in the Sheriff’s Office Budget. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 164



 
Background: 
 
The King County Sheriff’s Office, under state law, is responsible for providing services 
to citizens seeking to enforce civil court orders or processes.  The services range from 
the service of summonses, subpoenas, and warrants, serving writs, and posting notices 
of sale.  State law, RCW 36.18.040 and RCW 36.28.010, set fees to allow the Sheriff to 
recover the costs of providing these services.   
In addition, the Sheriff can recover the costs in support of these civil court duties, such 
as, for notarizing documents, postage, and fingerprint services. The state legislature set 
the base levels for these fees in 1992.  However, the statute contains the following 
language: 

“…Nothing contained in this section permits the expenditure of public funds 
to defray costs of private litigation. Such costs shall be borne by the party 
seeking action by the sheriff, and may be recovered from the proceeds of 
any subsequent judicial sale, or may be added to any judgment upon proper 
application to the court entering the judgment.  

     (3) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, a county legislative 
authority may set the amounts of fees that shall be collected by the 
sheriff under subsection (1) of this section to cover the costs of 
administration and operation.” 

The county has not adjusted these fees since 2011.  The Sheriff is requesting that fees 
be increased to reflect inflation since 2011 (the schedule of existing fees and the 
proposed new fees can be found in Section 2 of the proposed ordinance).   
 
The proposal would raise most fees and add a projected $207,000 in new revenues for 
the 2017-18 Biennium (the Fiscal Note is attached).  As noted above, the local 
legislative authority may set fees to capture the costs of administering these services.   
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2007-0477 would increase fees reflecting inflation since they were 
last raised in 2011.  In general, the fees are increasing by 11% or between $4 and $10.  
Please see the table below for the increase to each fee. 
 

Service Description 2011 
Rounded 

2017 
Proposed 

In-state Civil Process (Summons & Complaint, etc.)     

  Service (1 defendant) $30  $33  

  Service (2 defendants at same address) $40  $44  

  All Returns $23  $26  

  Nonresident Returns $23  $26  

  Notary Fee $10  $11  

TOTAL In-state Civil Process (1 defendant) $53  $59  

        

King County Council November 7, 2016 165



Writ of Attachment - Personal Property     

  Levy $67  $74  

  Return $23  $26  

  Service (plus mileage) $40  $44  

TOTAL Writ of Attachment - Personal Property $130  $144  

        

Writ of Attachment - Real Property     

  Levy $67  $74  

  Return $23  $26  

  Notice of Levy $5  $6  

  Per Location $2  $2  

  Filing (+ Auditor fees & service if required) $30  $33  

  Serve Defendant( if required) $40  $44  

TOTAL Writ of Attachment - Real Property $127  $141  

        

Writ of Execution - Personal Property     

  Levy (per hour) $67  $74  

  Notice of Sale and Copies $2  $2  

  Additional Copies (each) $1  $1  

  Serve Defendant/Notice $40  $44  

  Post Notice $45  $50  

  Conducting Sale (per hour) $67  $74  

  Bill of Sale (each) $67  $74  

  Return to Court $23  $26  

  Postponement Notice $30  $33  

TOTAL Writ of Execution - Personal Property $312  $345  

        

Warrants       

   Serve (each)  $67  $74  

  Return to Court $23  $26  

  Total Warrants $90  $100  

        

Subpoena       

   Serve (each)  $40  $44  

  Return to Court $23  $26  

  Total Subpoenas $63  $70  

        

Writ of Execution or Order of Sale - Real Property     

  Levy (+ $39/additional hour) $67  $74  

  Return $23  $26  

  Notiice to Publisher $2  $2  

  Recording with Auditor $30  $33  

  Notice of Sale $3  $3  

  Conducting Sale (first hour) $67  $74  

  Certificate of Sale (each) $67  $74  

King County Council November 7, 2016 166



  Posting of Notice (each) $30  $33  

  Affidavit of Posting $10  $11  

  Postponement Notice $15  $17  

TOTAL Writ of Execution or Order of Sale - Real 
Property 

$299  $330  

        

Writ of Garnishment     

  Serve garnishee $40  $44  

  Return to Court $23  $26  

  Serve Defendant (if required) $40  $44  

  TOTAL Writ of Garnishment $63  $70  

        

Writ of Replevin or Order Awarding Possession     

  Serve defendant with writ, affidavit and bond $40  $44  

  Executing Order (per hour) $67  $74  

  Serve summons & Complaint (one) $30  $33  

  Serve summons & Complaint (two or more) $40  $44  

  Return $23  $26  

TOTAL Writ of Replevin or Order Awarding Possession $130  $144  

        

Writ of Restitution     

  Service  $87  $97  

  Each additional hour $67  $74  

  Return $23  $26  

TOTAL Writ of Restitution  $110  $123  

        

Redemption     

  Serve notice of intent $40  $44  

  Certificate of Redemption $67  $74  

TOTAL Redemption $107  $119  

        

Deed $67  $74  

        

Writ of Habeas Corpus     

  Serve Only  $40  $44  

  Executing of (per hour) $67  $74  

  Return $23  $26  

  TOTAL Writ of Habeas Corpus $130  $144  

        

Internal only Criminal History Check $15  $17  

        

Notary Fee $10  $11  

King County Council November 7, 2016 167



        

All Other Documents $40  $44  

        

Fingerprinting non-criminal up to 2 sets $15  $17  

Each add set $5  $6  

        

 
Proposed Ordinance 2007-0477 appears to be a reasonable budget and policy 
decision.   
 
AMENDMENT 
 
Amendment 1 corrects drafting errors, updates the fee structure to reflect current practice 
and aligns the proposed ordinance with revenue estimates in the fiscal note and the 
Executive Proposed 2017-18 Budget. 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 168



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0478.2 Sponsors Dembowski 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to fees; amending Ordinance 1 

13332, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.06.010, 2 

Ordinance 13332, Section 17, as amended, and K.C.C. 3 

27.10.020, Ordinance 17923, Section 45, and K.C.C. 4 

27.10.035, Ordinance 17923, Section 46, and K.C.C. 5 

27.10.037, Ordinance 13332, Section 20, as amended, and 6 

K.C.C. 27.10.050, Ordinance 13332, Section 21, as 7 

amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.060, Ordinance 13332, Section 8 

22, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.070, Ordinance 18000, 9 

Section 83, and K.C.C. 27.10.075, Ordinance 13332, 10 

Section 23, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.080, Ordinance 11 

17453, Section 19, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.082, 12 

Ordinance 17453, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 13 

27.10.084, Ordinance 17224, Section 26, as amended, and 14 

K.C.C. 27.10.085, Ordinance 17453, Section 21, as 15 

amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.087, Ordinance 13332, Section 16 

24, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.090, Ordinance 13332, 17 

Section 28, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.130, Ordinance 18 

13332, Section 30, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.150, 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 169



Ordinance  

 
 

Ordinance 13332, Section 31, as amended, and K.C.C. 20 

27.10.160, Ordinance 13332, Section 32, as amended, and 21 

K.C.C. 27.10.170, Ordinance 13332, Section 33, as 22 

amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.180, Ordinance 13332, Section 23 

34, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.190, Ordinance 13332, 24 

Section 35, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.200, Ordinance 25 

13332, Section 36, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.210, 26 

Ordinance 13332, Section 37, as amended, and K.C.C. 27 

27.10.220, Ordinance 13332, Section 40, as amended, and 28 

K.C.C. 27.10.320, Ordinance 13332, Section 42, as 29 

amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.350, Ordinance 13332, Section 30 

43, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.360, Ordinance 13332, 31 

Section 46, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.380, Ordinance 32 

17224, Section 39, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.385, 33 

Ordinance 17224, Section 40, as amended, and K.C.C. 34 

27.10.395, Ordinance 17224, Section 43, as amended, and 35 

K.C.C. 27.10.425, Ordinance 13332, Section 53, as 36 

amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.510, Ordinance 13332, Section 37 

54, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.550, Ordinance 17682, 38 

Section 46, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.560, Ordinance 39 

17682, Section 47, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.570, 40 

Ordinance 17682, Section 48, as amended, and K.C.C. 41 

27.10.580 and Ordinance 16959, Section 12, as amended, 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 170



Ordinance  

 
 

and K.C.C. 27.02.1905, adding a new section to K.C.C. 43 

chapter 27.02, adding a new section to K.C.C. chapter 44 

27.04 and repealing Ordinance 13332, Section 18, as 45 

amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.030, Ordinance 17224, Section 46 

20, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.045, Ordinance 13332, 47 

Section 41, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.330, Ordinance 48 

13332, Section 49, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.430 and 49 

Ordinance 13332, Section 51, as amended, and K.C.C. 50 

27.10.460. 51 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 52 

 SECTION 1.  A.  Sections 2 through 40 of this ordinance propose changes in the 53 

fees currently charged related to the department of permitting and environmental review, 54 

the department of transportation and the department of natural resources and parks. 55 

 B.  These fees are assessed under K.C.C. 2.99.030.G.1. 56 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 13332, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.06.010 are 57 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 58 

 A.  A nonrefundable fee shall be charged for preapplication conferences as 59 

follows: 60 

   1. Already built construction for residential use: $((588.00)) 690.00 61 

   2. Already built construction for commercial use: $((2,353.00)) 2,760.00 62 

   3. ((Agricultural building or agricultural activity 63 

  per department staff participant: $294.00 64 

 4.)) Other - per staff participant from the 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 171



Ordinance  

 
 
  department of permitting and 66 

  environmental review: $((588.00)) 690.00 67 

 ((5.)) 4.  Other - per staff participant from the 68 

  department of transportation: $((686.00)) 727.00 69 

 ((6.)) 5.  Other - per staff attendee from the 70 

  department of natural resources and parks: $((686.00)) 727.00 71 

   6. Cancellation of a conference without notification 72 

  before its scheduled start time or 73 

  failure to attend $50.00 74 

 B.  The preapplication conference fee under subsection A. of this section shall be 75 

credited against any required application or permit fees for a subsequent permit 76 

application to address work commenced without permits, but only if the subsequent 77 

permit application is filed within one hundred eighty days of the preapplication 78 

conference or within sixty days of public health department or other agency approval 79 

required for a complete development permit application. 80 

 C.  A nonrefundable fee of ((three hundred ninety-two)) four hundred sixty 81 

dollars shall be charged for presubmittal project review ((for development proposals that 82 

do not require a preapplication conference)).  If the application fees are paid within one 83 

hundred eighty days after payment of the presubmittal project review fee, the 84 

nonrefundable fee for presubmittal project review shall be credited against fees due at 85 

submittal of an application. 86 

 D.  The fee for a zoning certification letter confirming an existing zoning 87 

designation or development rights is ((one hundred ninety-six)) two hundred thirty 88 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 172



Ordinance  

 
 
dollars.  The fee for zoning certification requiring historic research or review of other 89 

information is ((five hundred eighty-eight)) six hundred ninety dollars. 90 

 E.  A fee of three hundred seventy-nine dollars shall be charged for each 91 

inspection of structures for housing code compliance, damage from flood, storm, fire or 92 

other natural disaster, or for each site visit conducted prior to permit application. 93 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 13332, Section 17, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.020 94 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 95 

 A.  Except as otherwise provided in this section, fees for the review of buildings 96 

and structures, including additions ((and)), modifications and mechanical equipment, 97 

shall be calculated using valuations published by the International Code Council or other 98 

current nationally recognized standards.  The building official shall establish the final 99 

valuation.  The fee charged shall be based on the valuation established under this 100 

subsection as follows: 101 

  Valuation   Fee 102 

   1. (($1.00 to $500.00  $20.35 103 

   2. $500.01 to $2,000.00  $20.35 for the first $500.00 plus 104 

      $2.70 for each additional $100.00, or 105 

      fraction thereof, to $2,000.00 106 

   3.)) $((2,000.01)) 1.00 to 107 

   $25,000.00  $((60.85 for the first  108 

      $2,000.00)) $45.00 plus $((10.85)) 13.00 for 109 

      each ((additional)) $1,000.00, or fraction 110 

      thereof, to $25,000.00 111 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 173



Ordinance  

 
 
   ((4.)) 2. $25,000.01 to  $((310.40)) 370.00 for the first 112 

   $50,000.00  $25,000.00 plus $((8.15)) 9.00 for each 113 

      additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to 114 

      $50,000.00 115 

   ((5.)) 3. $50,000.01 to  $((514.15)) 595.00 for the first 116 

   $100,000.00  $50,000.00 plus $((5.40)) 6.00 for each 117 

      additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, 118 

      to $100,000.00 119 

   ((6.)) 4. $100,000.01 to  $((784.15)) 895.00 for the first  120 

   $500,000.00  $1000,000.00 plus $((4.40)) 5.00 for 121 

      each additional $1,000.00, or fraction 122 

      thereof, to $500,000.00 123 

   ((7.)) 5. $500,000.01 to  $((2,544.15)) 2,895.00 for the first 124 

   $1,000,000.00  $500,000.00 plus $((3.75)) 4.00 for each 125 

      additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to 126 

      $1,000,000.00 127 

   ((8.)) 6. $1,000,000.01 or $((4,419.15)) 4,895.00 for the first 128 

   more   $1,000,000.00 plus $((3.05)) 3.50 for each 129 

      additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof. 130 

 B.  Resubmittal of plans or revisions to an issued permit shall be charged a fixed 131 

fee that is a fraction of the original building plan review fee proportionate to the changes 132 

from the original plan submittal, as determined by the department. 133 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 174



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((C. The fee for review of an agricultural building permit application shall be a 134 

fixed fee of ninety-eight dollars.)) 135 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 17923, Section 45, and K.C.C. 27.10.035 are each 136 

hereby amended to read as follows: 137 

 Fees shall be charged for reviewing applications and inspecting or extending 138 

permits to construct new single family dwellings as follows: 139 

 A. Building, zoning and site application review 140 

   1. Custom home $((3,292.00)) 3,862.00 141 

   2. Modular home $((980.00)) 1,150.00 142 

   3. Mobile or manufactured home $((784.00)) 920.00 143 

   4. Accessory dwelling unit $((1,846.00)) 2,165.00 144 

   5. Basic home permit $((784.00)) 920.00 145 

   6. Registered basic home plan - building and 146 

  mechanical plan review only $((2,158.00)) 2,531.00 147 

 B. Drainage, right-of-way or critical area review 148 

   1. Custom home $((1,879.00)) 2,204.00 149 

   2.   Modular home $((1,879.00)) 2,204.00 150 

   3. Mobile or manufactured home $((1,879.00)) 2,204.00 151 

   4. Accessory dwelling unit $((1,465.00)) 1,718.00 152 

   5. Basic home $((1,019.00)) 1,195.00 153 

 C. Building permit inspection 154 

   1. Custom home, per square foot $((622.00 plus $0.72 155 

   per square foot)) 1.03 156 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 175



Ordinance  

 
 
   2.   Modular home $((867.00)) 1,017.00 157 

   3. Mobile or manufactured home $((715.00)) 839.00 158 

   4. Accessory dwelling unit, per square foot $((552.00 plus $0.72 159 

   per square foot)) 1.03 160 

   5. Basic home, per square foot $((579.00 plus $0.72 161 

   per square foot)) 1.03 162 

 D. Site development inspection $((588.00)) 690.00 163 

 E. Sprinkler system 164 

   1. Review $((453.00)) 531.00 165 

   2. Inspection $((809.00)) 949.00 166 

 F.  Each plan resubmittal or revision to an issued permit shall be charged a portion 167 

of the application review fee listed in subsection A. of this section, based on the plan 168 

changes as a portion of the entire project, as determined by the department. 169 

 G. Additional inspection or reinspection $199.00 170 

 H. Permit extension $((343.00)) 402.00 171 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 17923, Section 46, and K.C.C. 27.10.037 are each 172 

hereby amended to read as follows: 173 

 Fees shall be charged for reviewing applications and inspecting or extending 174 

permits to construct additions or alterations to existing single family dwellings as 175 

follows: 176 

 A. Building ((and site application review)) alteration or addition 177 

   1. Mechanical ((alterations, repair or replacement)) 178 

  installation only: (($147.00)) 179 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 176



Ordinance  

 
 
  Building plan review $172.00 180 

  Building inspection $199.00 181 

   2.   ((Alteration of, without addition to, an existing structure $147.00)) 182 

  In-kind building repair or replacement only: 183 

  Building plan review $172.00 184 

  Building inspection $266.00 185 

   3. Alteration without addition, limited to either the roof or truss 186 

  structure; or the foundation or footings; or the walls, ceiling, 187 

  floor, beams, columns, doors, windows, stairs, or fireplace 188 

  Building plan review $379.00 189 

  Building inspection $584.00 190 

   4. Alteration without addition, involving two of the structural 191 

  elements listed in subsection A.3. of this section 192 

  Building plan review $655.00 193 

  Building inspection $1,008.00 194 

   5. Alteration without addition, involving all of the structural 195 

  elements listed in subsection A.3. of this section 196 

  Building plan review $1,137.00 197 

  Building inspection $1,749.00 198 

   6. Deck addition (($549.00)) 199 

  Building plan review $644.00 200 

  Building inspection, per square foot $1.03 201 

   ((4.)) 7.  Carport addition (($659.00)) 202 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 177



Ordinance  

 
 
  Building plan review $773.00 203 

  Building inspection, per square foot $1.03 204 

   ((5.)) 8.  Other addition, inclusive of alterations((, to an 205 

  existing structure $1,258.00)) 206 

  Building plan review $1,476.00 207 

  Building inspection, per square foot $1.03 208 

   9. Building demolition, relocation, or seismic retrofit $266.00 209 

 B. ((Building permit inspection 210 

   1. Mechanical alterations, repair or replacement only $196.00 211 

   2.   Alteration of, without addition to, an existing structure - $227.00 212 

  one building inspection required 213 

   3. Alteration of, without addition to, an existing structure - $674.00 214 

  two building inspections required 215 

   4. Alteration of, without addition to, an existing structure - 216 

  three building inspections required $1,270.00 217 

   5. Alteration of, without addition to, an existing structure - $2,313.00 218 

  more than three building inspections required 219 

   6. Addition, inclusive of alterations, $208.00 plus $0.72 220 

  to an existing structure per square foot 221 

   7. Demolition, relocation or damage assessment $323.00)) 222 

 B. Site development  223 

   1. Title or easement review only $230.00 224 

   2. Basic site review with standardized conditions $965.00 225 

10 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 178



Ordinance  

 
 
   3. Basic critical area review $1,035.00 226 

   4. Other site or critical area review, or combination thereof $1,718.00 227 

   5. Site inspection $690.00 228 

 C. Sprinkler system 229 

   1. ((Review - system with 10 heads or fewer added or altered No Fee)) 230 

   2.)) Review(( - system with more than 10 heads $((392.00)) 460.00 231 

  added or altered)) 232 

   ((3.)) 2.  Inspection(( - system with 10 heads or fewer $((470.00)) 551.00 233 

  added or altered)) 234 

   ((4. Inspection - system with more than 10 heads added or altered $666.00)) 235 

 D.  Each plan resubmittal or revision to an issued permit shall be charged a 236 

portion of the application review fee listed in this section ((A. of this section)), based on 237 

the plan changes as a portion of the entire project, as determined by the department. 238 

 E. Permit extension 239 

   1. Mechanical ((alterations, repair $((25.00)) 29.00 240 

  or replacement)) installation only 241 

   2. Other alteration or addition $((196.00)) 150.00 242 

  ((to an existing structure)) 243 

 F. Additional inspection or reinspection $199.00 244 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinance 13332, Section 20, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.050 245 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 246 

 A fee shall be charged to cover the costs of the department to review fire systems 247 

and tank systems as follows: 248 

11 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 179



Ordinance  

 
 
 A. Fire alarm systems 249 

   1. Systems with more than 10 devices, each system $((392.00)) 1,241.00 250 

   2. ((Systems with more than 10 devices each device $8.30 251 

   3.)) Systems with 10 devices or fewer No Fee 252 

 B. Automatic sprinkler systems - new installation or 253 

  alteration 254 

   1. System with more than 10 heads, each riser $((784.00)) 1,701.00 255 

   2. ((System with more than 10 heads each head or plug $2.10 256 

   3.))  System with 10 heads or fewer No Fee 257 

 C. ((Standpipe systems)) Monitoring transmitter, each system $460.00 258 

   ((1. Class I, II, or III, each $441.00 259 

   2. Fire pump, each $588.00)) 260 

 D. Tank installation, removal or abandonment, each: $((392.00)) 460.00 261 

 E. ((High piled storage racks)) All other system $((1,177.00)) 754.00 262 

  construction or installation, each system 263 

 F. ((Underground piping to flammable or $980.00 264 

  combustible liquid storage tanks 265 

 G. Monitoring transmitter, each system $392.00 266 

 H. Emergency or standby power systems, each system $588.00 267 

 I. Water main extension or replacement: $490.00 268 

 J. Sprinkler supply main, each $588.00 269 

 K. Fire extinguishing system, each $882.00 270 

 L. Vapor recovery system No Fee)) 271 

12 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 180



Ordinance  

 
 
 M.)) Plan resubmittal or revision of an issued 25% of the original 272 

  permit, each plan review fee, 273 

   plus the fee for any 274 

    additional devices 275 

   added, as listed in this 276 

   section 277 

 ((N.)) G.  Any fire system permit application reviews not listed in this section 278 

shall be charged the fixed fee for the most comparable system. 279 

 SECTION 7.  Ordinance 13332, Section 21, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.060 280 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 281 

 Review for compliance with K.C.C. Title 21A standards, except for K.C.C. 282 

chapter 21A.24, and fire code shall be charged fees as follows: 283 

 A. New building - school portable $((686.00)) 1,264.00 284 

 B. New building  - school $((3,235.00)) 4,488.00 285 

 C. New building - ((other)) commercial $((1,373.00)) 2,300.00 286 

  or multifamily 287 

 D. Building additions or improvements ((- $((392.00)) 920.00 288 

  multifamily or commercial)) 289 

 E. Building ((additions or improvements)) - $((1,235.00)) 1,449.00 290 

   change of use 291 

 F. New ((B)) building - ((used for)) agricultural $((823.00)) 1,425.00 292 

  ((purposes described in K.C.C. 293 

  27.04.001.B. but not meeting the 294 

13 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 181



Ordinance  

 
 
  definition of agricultural building)) 295 

 G. ((Agricultural building $305.00 296 

 H.)) Electronic communication - pole/tower $((1,471.00)) 1,725.00 297 

 ((I.)) H.  Electronic communication - antenna $((980)) 1,150.00 298 

 ((J.)) I. New ((D)) dock (other than building) $((215.00)) 252.00 299 

 ((K.)) J.  New ((P)) pool (other than building) $((254.00)) 298.00 300 

 ((L. Landscape only - Type 1 $1,097.00 301 

 M. Landscape only - Type 2 $901.00 302 

 N. Landscape only - Type 3 $607.00)) 303 

 ((O.)) K.  New ((S))sign, deck, porch, $((490.00)) 575.00 304 

  covered pavilion or carport 305 

 ((P. Supplemental review for multiple $588.00 306 

  right-of-way frontages, special district 307 

  overlays, density transfers or incentives, 308 

  or incompatible adjacent uses or zoning)) 309 

 ((Q.)) L.  Plan resubmittal, each 25% of the original plan 310 

   review fee 311 

 ((R.)) M.  Any development type not listed in this section shall be charged the 312 

fixed fee for the most comparable review. 313 

 ((S.)) N.  Any application involving more than one development type shall be 314 

charged only one fee for zoning review equal to the maximum applicable fee. 315 

 SECTION 8.  Ordinance 13332, Section 22, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.070 316 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 317 

14 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 182



Ordinance  

 
 
 Review of variance requests shall be charged fees as follows: 318 

 A. Road variance review 319 

   1. Department of transportation (if required): $((1,716.00)) 1,819.00 320 

   2. Department of permitting and environmental 321 

  review: $((1,255.00)) 1,472.00 322 

   3. Plan resubmittal: $((392.00)) 460.00 323 

 B. Surface Water Design Manual adjustment review 324 

   1. Standard $((1,843.00)) 2,162.00 325 

   2. Complex or criteria exception $((4,000.00)) 4,692.00 326 

   3. Experimental Actual Cost 327 

 SECTION 9.  Ordinance 18000, Section 83, and K.C.C. 27.10.075 are each 328 

hereby amended to read as follows: 329 

 Temporary noise variance request review filed under K.C.C. 12.86.550.B. shall 330 

require the following fees: 331 

 A. Simple review: $((200.00)) 235.00 332 

 B. Medium review: $((395.00; and)) 463.00 333 

 C. Complex review: $((790.00.)) 927.00 334 

   SECTION 10.  Ordinance 13332, Section 23, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.080 335 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 336 

 Site engineering review includes review for code compliance with road design, 337 

drainage, erosion and sedimentation control, and right-of-way improvements.  Review 338 

fees shall be charged as follows. 339 

 A. Plan review - basic or standard: 340 

15 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 183



Ordinance  

 
 
   1. Minor repair, maintenance or drainage 341 

  Improvements not maintained by King County $((392.00)) 460.00 342 

   2. Basic review with standardized conditions $((823.00)) 965.00 343 

   3. Standard review ((with no critical areas, utility $((1,471.00)) 1,718.00 344 

  crossing or minor driveway construction)) 345 

   ((4. Standard review, completed critical areas $2,745.00 346 

  designation, 1 review 347 

   5. Standard review, completed critical areas $4,314.00 348 

  designation, 2 reviews 349 

   6. Review of residential critical area alteration $490.00 350 

  exception)) 351 

 B. Plan resubmittal or review of changes to approved plans - basic or 352 

standard 353 

   1. Basic review with standardized conditions(( or $((441.00)) 517.00 354 

  standard conditions review)) 355 

   2. Standard review ((with no critical areas, $((490.00)) 575.00 356 

  utility crossing, or minor driveway construction)) 357 

   ((3. Standard review, completed critical areas $882.00 358 

  designation, 1 review 359 

   4. Standard review, completed critical areas $1,373.00 360 

  designation, 2 reviews 361 

   5. Review of residential critical area alteration $245.00 362 

  Exception)) 363 

16 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 184



Ordinance  

 
 
 C. Plan review - complex 364 

   1. Nonengineered plans;  $((2,941.00)) 3,450.00 365 

  minimal road improvements; minimal drainage 366 

  review 367 

 2. Engineered plans; private or minor public road $((5,883.00)) 6,901.00 368 

  improvements; small project drainage, dispersion, 369 

  flow control best management practices, 370 

  conveyance only or detention only, or any 371 

  combination thereof 372 

   3. Engineered plans; private or public road $((8,824.00)) 10,351.00 373 

  improvements; full drainage review with 374 

  detention or water quality, or both 375 

   4. Engineered plans; private or public road $((11,765.00)) 13,800.00 376 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention 377 

  infiltration or water quality, or any combination 378 

  thereof 379 

   5. Engineered plans; private or public road $((17,648.00)) 20,701.00 380 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 381 

  basins 382 

   6. Engineered plans; large private or public road $((23,530.00)) 27,601.00 383 

  improvements; full drainage review with 384 

  multiple basins 385 

   7. Engineered plans; large and complex private or $((29,413.00)) 34,501.00 386 

17 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 185



Ordinance  

 
 
  public road improvements; full drainage review 387 

  with multiple basins 388 

 D. Plan resubmittal or review of changes to approved 389 

  plans - complex 390 

   1. Nonengineered plans; minimal $((1,177.00)) 1,381.00 391 

  road improvements; minimal drainage review 392 

   2. Engineered plans; private or minor public road $((1,765.00)) 2,070.00 393 

  improvements; small project drainage, dispersion, 394 

  flow control best management practices, conveyance 395 

  or detention 396 

   3. Engineered plans; private or public road $((2,353.00)) 2,760.00 397 

  improvements; full drainage review with either 398 

  detention or water quality, or both 399 

   4. Engineered plans; private or public road $((3,530.00)) 4,141.00 400 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention, 401 

  infiltration and/or water quality 402 

   5. Engineered plans; private or public road $((4,706.00)) 5,520.00 403 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 404 

  basins 405 

   6. Engineered plans; large private or public road $((5,883.00)) 6,901.00 406 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 407 

  basins 408 

   7. Engineered plans; large and complex private or $((7,059.00)) 8,280.00 409 

18 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 186



Ordinance  

 
 
  public road improvements; full drainage review 410 

  with multiple basins 411 

 ((E.  Site engineering review of applications for agricultural buildings or activities 412 

as defined in K.C.C. 27.04.001 and 27.04.002 shall be charged fifty percent of the fees 413 

listed in this section.)) 414 

 SECTION 11.  Ordinance 17453, Section 19, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.082 415 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 416 

 Fees for stormwater engineering and document review shall be charged as 417 

follows. 418 

 A. Minor facility plan, basic adjustment with a single $((229.00)) 243.00 419 

  item, minor state Environmental Policy Act threshold 420 

  determination, conditional use permit, preliminary 421 

  short plat or revised plan or document. 422 

 B. Minor facility plan, standard or minor $((572.00)) 606.00 423 

  multiitem adjustment, standard preliminary plat, 424 

  state Environmental Policy Act threshold 425 

  determination, conditional use permit or revised 426 

  plan or document. 427 

 C. Complex or multiitem adjustment, standard $((1,716.00)) 1,819.00 428 

  hydrology report, standard landscape management 429 

  plan or basic master drainage plan 430 

 D. Very complex or multiitem $((2,288.00)) 2,425.00 431 

  adjustment, complex hydrology report, basic 432 

19 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 187



Ordinance  

 
 
  modeling, complex landscape management plan 433 

  or basic master drainage plan 434 

 E. Very complex, multi-item, or basic experimental $((2,860.00)) 3,032.00 435 

  adjustment, complex hydrology report, standard 436 

  modeling or standard master drainage plan 437 

 F. Basic experimental adjustment, very complex $((3,432.00)) 3,638.00 438 

  hydrology report, complex modeling or complex 439 

  master drainage plan 440 

 G. Standard experimental adjustment, very complex $((4,576.00)) 4,851.00 441 

  hydrology report, very complex modeling or very 442 

  complex master drainage plan 443 

 SECTION 12.  Ordinance 17453, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.084 444 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 445 

 Fees for road engineering review shall be charged as follows: 446 

 A. Nonengineered plans;  $((343.00)) 364.00 447 

  minimal road improvements; minimal drainage 448 

  review 449 

 B. Engineered plans; private or minor public road $((801.00)) 849.00 450 

  improvements; small project drainage, dispersion, flow 451 

  control best management practices, conveyance only 452 

  or detention only, or any combination thereof 453 

 C. Engineered plans; private or public road $((1,258.00)) 1,333.00 454 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention 455 

20 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 188



Ordinance  

 
 
  or water quality, or both 456 

 D. Engineered plans; private or public road $((3,432.00)) 3,638.00 457 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention, 458 

  infiltration or water quality, or any combination 459 

  thereof 460 

 E. Engineered plans; private or public road $((6,864.00)) 7,276.00 461 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 462 

  basins 463 

 F. Engineered plans; large private or public road $((12,012.00)) 12,733.00 464 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 465 

  basins 466 

 G. Engineered plans; large and complex private or $((17,274.00)) 18,310.00 467 

  public road improvements; full drainage review 468 

  with multiple basins 469 

 SECTION 13.  Ordinance 17224, Section 26, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.085 470 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 471 

 Fees for review of road constructability shall be charged as follows. 472 

 A. Nonengineered plans; minimal No fee 473 

  road improvements; minimal drainage review 474 

 B. Engineered plans; private or minor public road No fee 475 

  improvements; small project drainage, dispersion, 476 

  flow control BMPs, conveyance only or detention 477 

  only, or any combination thereof 478 

21 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 189



Ordinance  

 
 
 C. Engineered plans; private or public road $((915.00)) 970.00 479 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention 480 

  or water quality, or both 481 

 D. Engineered plans; private or public road $((915.00)) 970.00 482 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention, 483 

  infiltration or water quality, or any combination 484 

  thereof 485 

 E. Engineered plans; private or public road $((1,373.00)) 1,455.00 486 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 487 

  basins 488 

 F. Engineered plans; large private or public road $((1,830.00)) 1,940.00 489 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 490 

  basins 491 

 G. Engineered plans; large and complex private or $((2,288.00)) 2,425.00 492 

  public road improvements; full drainage review 493 

  with multiple basins 494 

 SECTION 14.  Ordinance 17453, Section 21, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.087 495 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 496 

 Fees for constructability review of stormwater facilities shall be charged as 497 

follows. 498 

 A. Base fee for one facility $((723.00)) 766.00 499 

 B. Each additional facility $((114.00)) 121.00 500 

22 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 190



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 15.  Ordinance 13332, Section 24, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.090 501 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 502 

 Grading or clearing site plan review includes review for compliance with King 503 

County grading and clearing code requirements.  Grading or clearing site plan review 504 

fees shall be charged as follows: 505 

 A. Grading up to 2,000 square feet, or clearing 506 

  up to 0.2 acre $((392.00)) 460.00 507 

 B. Grading between 2,001 square feet and 0.2 acres $((686.00)) 805.00 508 

 C. Grading or clearing from 0.21 to 1.0 acres $((1,667.00)) 509 

   1,955.00 510 

 D. Grading or clearing from 1.01 to 5.0 acres: base fee $((1,667.00)) 511 

   1,955.00 512 

 E. Grading or clearing from 1.01 to 5.0 acres: fee $((490.00)) 575.00 513 

  per acre over 1.0 acre 514 

 F. Grading or clearing from 5.01 to 10.0 acres: base fee $((3,628.00)) 515 

   4,255.00 516 

 G. Grading or clearing from 5.01 to 10.0 acres: fee $((392.00)) 460.00 517 

  per acre over 5.0 acres 518 

 H. Grading or clearing from 10.01 to $((5,588.00)) 519 

  20.0 acres: base fee 6,555.00 520 

 I. Grading or clearing from 10.01 to 20.0 acres: fee $((196.00)) 230.00 521 

  per acre over 10.0 acres 522 

 J. Grading or clearing over 20.0 acres $((7,549.00)) 523 

23 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 191



Ordinance  

 
 
   8,855.00 524 

 K. Annual review of surface mine and Applicable fee in 525 

  material processing facility subsections A. 526 

   through J. of this 527 

   section 528 

 L. Forest practices act - class IV review - residential $((686.00)) 805.00 529 

 M. Forest practices act - class IV review - nonresidential $((1,373.00)) 530 

   1,611.00 531 

 N. Forest practices act - release of moratorium, $((5,883.00)) 6,901.00 532 

  excluding engineering or critical areas review 533 

 O. Forest practices act - conversion option $((1,177.00)) 1,381.00 534 

  harvest plan: base fee 535 

 P. Forest practices act - conversion option $((98.00)) 115.00 536 

  harvest plan: fee per acre 537 

 Q. Forest practices act - activities with approved $((196.00)) 230.00 538 

  forest management plan - 5 acres or less 539 

 R. Forest practices act - activities with approved $((490.00)) 575.00 540 

  forest management plan - more than 5 acres 541 

 ((S. Clearing or grading: 1- 10 hazard trees $391.00 542 

 T. Clearing or grading: 11- 20 hazard trees $539.00 543 

 U.)) S. Tree Review Concurrent with Site Engineering $((490.00)) 575.00 544 

   Review 545 

 ((V.)) T. Clearing or grading: farm pad or agricultural $((392.00)) 460.00 546 

24 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 192



Ordinance  

 
 
   drainage maintenance in accordance with 547 

   county- and state-approved best management  548 

   practices 549 

 ((W.)) U. Recreation Facility or Landscape Type 1 $1,287.00 550 

 V. Landscape Type 2 $1,057.00 551 

 W. Landscape Type 3 $712.00 552 

 X. Plan resubmittal, each 25% of the original 553 

   plan review fee 554 

 ((X.  Grading or clearing plan review of applications for agricultural activities as 555 

defined in K.C.C. 27.04.001 shall be charged fifty percent of the fees listed in this 556 

section.)) 557 

 SECTION 16.  Ordinance 13332, Section 28, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.130 558 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 559 

 Fees for critical areas review, inquiries and designation shall be charged as 560 

follows: 561 

 A. Critical areas review 562 

   1. Critical area notice on title only $((196.00)) 230.00 563 

   2. ((Residential review, basic, per discipline $882.00 564 

   3. Residential review, complex, level 1, with preferred $1,177.00 565 

  consultant, per discipline 566 

   4. Residential review, complex, level 2, with preferred $2,745.00 567 

  consultant, per discipline 568 

   5. Residential review, complex, with other consultant,  $4,118.00) 569 

25 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 193



Ordinance  

 
 
   per discipline) 570 

   6.)) Nonresidential review, basic, per discipline $((1,078.00)) 1,264.00 571 

 ((7.)) 3.  Nonresidential review, complex, per discipline $((1,765.00)) 2,070.00 572 

   ((8.)) 4.  Stewardship planning $((1,569.00)) 1,840.00 573 

   ((9.)) 5.  Plan resubmittal, each 25% of the original 574 

   plan review fee 575 

 ((10. Critical area review of applications for agricultural buildings or activities 576 

as defined in K.C.C. 27.04.001 and 27.04.002 shall be charged fifty percent of the fees 577 

listed in this subsection A.)) 578 

 B. Critical areas inquiries or designations 579 

   1. Minimum fee per ((parcel)) application $((666.00)) 781.00 580 

   2. Fee per discipline if the parcel or parcels for which $((490.00)) 575.00 581 

  designations are requested have one or more critical 582 

  areas, excepting critical aquifer recharge, seismic 583 

  hazard, or erosion hazard area 584 

   3. Fee for resubmittal of critical area study, per $((490.00)) 575.00 585 

  discipline 586 

   4. Extension of approval $((441.00)) 517.00 587 

 C. Critical area alteration exception 588 

   1. ((Without stewardship plan)) Review, per discipline $((5,883.00)) 5,060.00 589 

   2. ((With stewardship plan)) Base fee $((1,569.00)) 1,840.00 590 

   3. Extension of approval $((882.00)) 1,035.00 591 

26 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 194



Ordinance  

 
 
   4. If applications for a shoreline permit and critical area alteration exception 592 

are reviewed concurrently, the critical area alteration exception application shall be 593 

charged fifty percent of the fees required by this section. 594 

 D. Flood hazard certification review 595 

   1. Residential or commercial $((587.00)) 622.00 596 

   2. Agricultural $((49.00)) 52.00 597 

 E. Flood elevation certification inspection $345.00 598 

   ((1. Residential or commercial $294.00 599 

   2. Agricultural $147.00)) 600 

 F. Letter-of-map-amendment community $((980.00)) 1,150.00 601 

  acknowledgement 602 

 SECTION 17.  Ordinance 13332, Section 30, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.150 603 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 604 

 Review of environmental checklists and preparation of threshold determinations 605 

of nonsignificance and mitigated determinations of nonsignificance and supplemental 606 

reviews 607 

shall be charged fees as follows: 608 

 A.  Review of environmental checklists and preparation of threshold 609 

determinations of nonsignificance 610 

   1. Minor new construction, including single family $((980.00)) 1,150.00 611 

  residential and agricultural buildings 612 

   2. Class IV forest practices $((980.00)) 1,150.00 613 

   3. Minor clearing or grading permits $((980.00)) 1,150.00 614 

27 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 195



Ordinance  

 
 
   4. Other construction $((2,745.00)) 3,220.00 615 

 B. Review of environmental checklists and preparation $((2,745.00)) 3,220.00 616 

  of threshold determinations of mitigated 617 

  determinations of nonsignificance 618 

 C. Supplemental reviews 619 

   1. Addendum $((490.00)) 575.00 620 

   2. Expanded checklist $((882.00)) 1,035.00 621 

 D. Exemption $((343.00)) 402.00 622 

 E.  Preparation of an environmental impact statement shall be charged at actual 623 

cost to the department including consultant costs, administrative costs and cost of review 624 

by other county departments and governmental agencies. 625 

 SECTION 18.  Ordinance 13332, Section 31, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.160 626 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 627 

 A.  Fees for review of shoreline exemption applications shall be charged as 628 

follows: 629 

   1. Repair and maintenance - programmatic $((196.00)) 230.00 630 

   2. Repair and maintenance - other $((588.00)) 690.00 631 

   3. Agricultural activities $((392.00)) 460.00 632 

   4. Timber harvest operations within the forest $((392.00)) 460.00 633 

  production district 634 

   5. Boring or moorage buoy $((392.00)) 460.00 635 

   6. Stream-lined joint aquatic resources permit No Fee 636 

  application 637 

28 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 196



Ordinance  

 
 
   7. Watershed restoration No Fee 638 

   8. Other $((1,177.00)) 1,381.00 639 

   9. Supplemental review of mitigation plan and $((196.00)) 230.00 640 

  amendment of conditions 641 

 B.  Fees for review of a shoreline substantial development permit, conditional use 642 

permit or variance application shall be charged as follows: 643 

   1. Value of work:  $10,000.00 or less $((5,176.00)) 6,071.00 644 

   2. Value of work:  $10,000.01 to $100,000.00 $((5,372.00)) 6,301.00 645 

   3. Value of work:  $100,000.01 to $500,000.00 $((5,961.00)) 6,992.00 646 

   4. Value of work:  $500,000.01 to $1,000,000.00 $((6,549.00)) 7,682.00 647 

   5. Value of work:  more than $1,000,000.00 $((7,333.00)) 8,602.00 648 

   6. If multiple permit applications are reviewed concurrently, one application 649 

shall be charged the fee required by this section; the other application or applications 650 

shall be charged fifty percent of the fee required by this section. 651 

   7. Extension of approval $((196.00)) 230.00 652 

 SECTION 19.  Ordinance 13332, Section 32, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.170 653 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 654 

 Fees for use permits shall be charged as follows: 655 

 A. Conditional use permit 656 

   1. Residential or home industry $((2,627.00)) 3,081.00 657 

   2. Cell tower $((2,627.00)) 3,081.00 658 

   3. Commercial $((5,372.00)) 6,301.00 659 

   4. Industrial, institutional, or other $((7,333.00)) 8,602.00 660 

29 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 197



Ordinance  

 
 
   ((5. Permit extension $196.00)) 661 

 B. Transfer of development rights sending site 662 

  Certification $((470.00)) 551.00 663 

 C. Special use permit Actual Cost 664 

 D. Temporary Use Permit 665 

   1. Medical Hardship Mobile Home Placement $((98.00)) 115.00 666 

   2. Homeless Encampment $((2,098.00)) 2,461.00 667 

   3. Other $((4,196.00)) 4,922.00 668 

   4. Annual ((P))permit extension $((196.00)) 690.00 669 

 E.  Resubmittal of plans or revisions to an issued permit shall be charged a fee 670 

equal to twenty-five percent of the original application review fee. 671 

 SECTION 20.  Ordinance 13332, Section 33, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.180 672 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 673 

 Fees for zoning or comprehensive plan or map modification shall be charged as 674 

follows: 675 

 A. Variance 676 

   1. Review $((5,372.00)) 6,301.00 677 

   2. Extension of approval $((196.00)) 230.00 678 

 B. Site-specific amendment of land use map, plan, $((1,794.00)) 2,104.00 679 

  code or shoreline redesignation 680 

 C. Other zoning reclassification requests including $((7,333.00)) 8,602.00 681 

  shoreline environment redesignation, deletion of 682 

  special district overlay, or amendment or deletion 683 

30 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 198



Ordinance  

 
 
  of p-suffix conditions 684 

 D.  If a site-specific amendment is implemented as part of the Comprehensive 685 

Plan amendment process, the application fee will be credited toward the zoning 686 

reclassification fee, provided that the application for zoning reclassification is filed within 687 

one year of the effective date of the site-specific land use map amendment. 688 

 SECTION 21.  Ordinance 13332, Section 34, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.190 689 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 690 

 Preliminary subdivision, short subdivision, urban planned development or binding 691 

site plan applications shall be charged fees for planning, fire flow and access, site 692 

engineering, critical area, survey and state Environmental Policy Act review as follows: 693 

 A. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, simple $((6,745.00)) 18,556.00 694 

 B. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, complex $((9,490.00)) 21,776.00 695 

 C. Short plat - urban 5 to 9 lots $((14,392.00)) 27,526.00 696 

 D. Short plat - rural $((9,490.00)) 21,776.00 697 

 E. Subdivision, urban planned development,  $((17,138.00)) 34,108.00 698 

  or binding site plan - base fee 699 

 F. Subdivision - additional fee per lot $((98.00)) 115.00 700 

 G. Minor plan revisions before or after preliminary approval 701 

   1. Short plat $((1,667.00)) 1,955.00 702 

   2. Subdivision, urban planned development $((4,265.00)) 5,003.00 703 

  or binding site plan 704 

 H. ((Landscape or recreation plan 705 

   1. Plan review $1,097.00 706 

31 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 199



Ordinance  

 
 
   2. Plan resubmittal $274.00 707 

 I.)) Extension of plat approval $((245.00)) 287.00 708 

 SECTION 22.  Ordinance 13332, Section 35, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.200 709 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 710 

 Final subdivision, short subdivision, urban planned development, binding site 711 

plan, subdivisional legal description or title review, approval and resubmittal shall be 712 

charged fees as follows: 713 

 A. Final plan review and approval 714 

   1. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, simple $((4,980.00)) 5,842.00 715 

   2. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, complex $((6,941.00)) 8,142.00 716 

   3. Short plat - urban 5 to 9 lots $((10,667.00)) 12,512.00 717 

   4. Short plat - rural $((6,941.00)) 8,142.00 718 

   5. Subdivision, binding site plan, or urban $((10,667.00)) 12,512.00 719 

  planned development 720 

 B. Final plan resubmittal 721 

   1. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, simple $((686.00)) 805.00 722 

   2. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, complex $((980.00)) 1,150.00 723 

   3. Short plat - urban 5 to 9 lots $((1,961.00)) 2,300.00 724 

   4. Short plat - rural $((980.00)) 1,150.00 725 

   5. Subdivision, binding site plan or urban $((1,961.00)) 2,300.00 726 

  planned development 727 

 C. Alteration after recordation 728 

   1. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, simple $((3,333.00)) 3,910.00 729 

32 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 200



Ordinance  

 
 
   2. Short plat - urban 2 to 4 lots, complex $((4,706.00)) 5,520.00 730 

   3. Short plat - urban 5 to 9 lots $((7,157.00)) 8,395.00 731 

   4. Short plat - rural $((4,706.00)) 5,520.00 732 

   5. Subdivision, binding site plan or $((8,530.00)) 10,006.00 733 

  urban planned development 734 

 D. Subdivisional legal description review 735 

   1. 1-50 lots - base fee $((470.00)) 551.00 736 

   2. 1-50 lots - per lot $((117.00)) 137.00 737 

   3. 51-100 lots - base fee $((6,320.00)) 7,401.00 738 

   4. 51-100 lots - per lot $((47.00)) 55.00 739 

   5. More than 100 lots - base fee $((8,670.00)) 10,151.00 740 

   6. More than 100 lots - per lot $((11.00)) 13.00 741 

   7. Name change $418.00 742 

 ((E. Title review 743 

   1. Affidavit - modification of recorded  $1,255.00 744 

  building envelope 745 

   2. Affidavit - modification resubmittal $392.00 746 

   3. Affidavit - name change $356.00 747 

   4. Title elimination $60.00 748 

   5. Residential site title or easement review $196.00)) 749 

 SECTION 23.  Ordinance 13332, Section 36, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.210 750 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 751 

33 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 201



Ordinance  

 
 
 A fixed fee shall be charged for separate lot recognitions, subdivision exemptions, 752 

and innocent purchaser reviews as follows: 753 

 A. Innocent purchaser - review $((803.00)) 942.00 754 

 B. Innocent purchaser - resubmittal $((196.00)) 230.00 755 

 C. Separate lot - basic - platted lots - review $((1,059.00)) 1,242.00 756 

 D. Separate lot - basic - platted lots - resubmittal $((392.00)) 460.00 757 

 E. Separate lot - complex - nonplatted lots, minimum $((1,059.00)) 552.00 758 

  review fee(( - one lot)) 759 

 F. Separate lot - complex - nonplatted lots, review fee $((588.00)) 690.00 760 

  per ((additional)) lot 761 

 G. Separate lot - complex - nonplatted lots - resubmittal $((392.00)) 460.00 762 

 H. Miscellaneous lot exemption - review $((2,078.00)) 2,437.00 763 

 I. Miscellaneous lot exemption - resubmittal $((392.00)) 460.00 764 

 J. Condominium conversion - application $2,162.00 765 

 K. Condominium conversion - re-submittal $460.00 766 

 SECTION 24.  Ordinance 13332, Section 37, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.220 767 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 768 

 Boundary line adjustments and lot mergers shall be charged fixed fees as follows, 769 

plus the cost of recording documents: 770 

 A. Boundary line adjustment - basic - review $((2,902.00)) 3,404.00 771 

 B. Boundary line adjustment - basic - resubmittal, each $((784.00)) 920.00 772 

 C. Boundary line adjustment - complex - review $((4,470.00)) 5,243.00 773 

34 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 202



Ordinance  

 
 
 D. Boundary line adjustment - complex -   $((1,177.00)) 774 

1,381.00 775 

  resubmittal, each 776 

 E. Boundary line adjustment - deferred submittal of $((392.00)) 460.00 777 

  final, signed and notarized Mylar more than ninety 778 

  days after approval of adjustment 779 

 F. Lot merger - review $((1,059.00)) 1,242.00 780 

 G. Lot merger - resubmittal, each $((392.00)) 460.00 781 

 H.  Concurrent review of additional applications for contiguous parcels shall be 782 

charged fifty percent of the review fees listed in this section. 783 

 SECTION 25.  Ordinance 13332, Section 40, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.320 784 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 785 

 ((A.))  Except as otherwise provided in this section, permit fees for the inspection 786 

of buildings and other structures, including additions(( and)), modifications, and 787 

mechanical equipment, shall be calculated using valuations published by the International 788 

Code Council or other current nationally recognized standards.  The building official 789 

shall establish the final valuation.  The permit inspection fee charged shall be based on 790 

the valuation established under this subsection as follows: 791 

  Valuation   Fee 792 

 ((1. $1.00 to $500.00  $110.00 793 

 2. $500.01 to $2,000.00  $110.00 for the first $500.00 plus 794 

      $4.00 for each additional $100.00, or 795 

      fraction thereof, to $2,000.00 796 

35 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 203



Ordinance  

 
 
 3.)) A. $((2,000.01)) 1.00 to  $((170.00 for the first $2,000.00)) 150.00 797 

  $25,000.00   plus $((16.70)) 20.00 for each ((additional)) 798 

      $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to $25,000.00 799 

 ((4.)) B.  $25,000.01 to $50,000.00 $((554.10)) 650.00 for the first $25,000.00 800 

      plus $((12.50)) 14.00 for each additional 801 

      $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to $50,000.00 802 

 ((5.)) C.  $50,000.01 to $100,000.00 $((866.60)) 1,000.00 for the first $50,000.00 803 

      plus $((8.35)) 10.00 for each additional 804 

      $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to 805 

      $100,000.00 806 

 ((6.)) D.  $100,000.01 to  $((1,284.10)) 1,500.00 for the first 807 

  $500,000.00   $100,000.00 plus $((6.80)) 8.00 for each 808 

      additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to 809 

      $500,000.00 810 

 ((7.)) E.  $500,000.01 to  $((4,004.10)) 4,700.00 for the first 811 

  $1,000,000.00   $500,000.00 plus $((5.75)) 7.00 for each 812 

      additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to 813 

      $1,000,000.00 814 

 ((8.)) F.  $1,000,000.01 or more $((6,879.10)) 8,200.00 for the first 815 

      $1,000,000.00 plus $((4.70)) 5.00 for each 816 

      additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof 817 

 ((B.  Each reinspection shall be charged a fee of one hundred seventy dollars. 818 

36 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 204



Ordinance  

 
 
 C.  Inspections of agricultural building shall be charged a minimum fee of one 819 

hundred seventy-six dollars plus twenty-one cents per square foot of building area added 820 

or modified. 821 

 D.  Inspection of structures for relocation, demolition, housing code compliance, 822 

or damage from flood, storm, fire, or other natural disaster shall be charged a fee of three-823 

hundred twenty-three dollars. 824 

 E. Extension of a building permit shall be charged fees as follows: 825 

   1. Sign       $110.00 826 

   2. Other structure      $343.00)) 827 

 SECTION 26.  Ordinance 13332, Section 42, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.350 828 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 829 

 Fees shall be charged to cover the costs of physical inspections to assure that 830 

projects are constructed in accordance with approved plans as follows. 831 

 A. Fire alarm systems - new installation or alteration 832 

   1. ((System with more than 10 devices, each $666.00 833 

  system 834 

   2.)) System with more than 10 devices, each $((3.90)) 14.00 835 

  device 836 

 ((3.)) 2.  System with ((fewer than)) 10 devices $((470.00)) 551.00 837 

  or fewer 838 

 B. Automatic sprinkler systems - new installation or alteration 839 

   1. ((System with more than 10 heads, each riser $666.00)) 840 

 2.))  System with more than 10 heads, each head $((4.90)) 8.00 841 

37 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 205



Ordinance  

 
 
  or plug 842 

 ((3.)) 2.  System with ((fewer than)) 10 heads or fewer $((470.00)) 551.00 843 

 C. ((Standpipe fixed systems)) Monitoring $460.00 844 

  Transmitter, each system 845 

   ((1. Class I, II or III, each system $588.00 846 

   2. Fire pump, each $588.00)) 847 

 D.  Tank installation, removal or abandonment,  $((392.00)) 460.00 848 

  each 849 

 E.  ((High piled storage racks)) All other system 850 

  construction or installation, each system $((392.00)) 813.00 851 

 ((F.  Underground piping to flammable or combustible $784.00 852 

  liquid storage tanks 853 

 G.  Water main extension, or replacement, or both $588.00  854 

 H. Monitoring transmitters, each system $392.00  855 

 I. Emergency or standby power system, each $666.00 856 

 J. Sprinkler supply main, each $784.00 857 

 K. Fire extinguishing system, each $882.00 858 

 L.  Vapor recovery system, each tank $784.00 859 

 M.  Reinspection, each $170.00 860 

 N.  Any fire system inspections not listed in this section shall be charged the fixed 861 

fee for the most comparable system. 862 

 O.  Extension of a permit shall be charged a fee of one hundred ten dollars.)) 863 

38 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 206



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 27.  Ordinance 13332, Section 43, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.360 864 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 865 

 ((Fire code review, inspections, mitigations and code enforcement f))Fees shall be 866 

charged for reviewing applications and inspecting permits for special events, and building 867 

demolition, relocation and occupancy as follows: 868 

 A. ((Review of an application and inspection of a permit 869 

  for a f))Fireworks stand    Maximum allowed 870 

         under chapter 70.77 871 

         RCW 872 

 B. ((Review of an application for a s))Special event or 873 

  fireworks display 874 

   1. Application fee     $((196.00)) 230.00 875 

 ((C.)) 2.  Inspection ((of a special event or   $((392.00)) 379.00 876 

  fireworks display)) fee, per site visit 877 

 C. Building demolition or relocation   $379.00 878 

 D. Adult family home conversion 879 

   1. Application fee     $460.00 880 

   2. Inspection fee      $199.00 881 

 E. Additional inspection or reinspection of a  $199.00 882 

  building, fire, mechanical, or sign construction 883 

  permit or demolition permit 884 

 ((D.)) F. Building occupancy inspection, per building 885 

  per site visit      $((196.00)) 199.00 886 

39 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 207



Ordinance  

 
 
 ((E.)) G.  Inspection for an operational permit  ((Fees adopted per 887 

  under the International Fire Code   current International 888 

         Fire Code)) 889 

   1. Initial permit, per code item    $141.00 890 

   2. Permit renewal, per code item    $94.00 891 

 SECTION 28.  Ordinance 13332, Section 46, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.380 892 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 893 

 Site inspections of grading, clearing, drainage systems, landscaping and other site 894 

development, site monitoring and pre-site work engineering meetings shall be charged as 895 

follows: 896 

 A. Inspection of ((residential or small)) construction  $690.00 897 

  sites of less than one acre not requiring 898 

  engineered plan, per inspection 899 

 ((1. Residential building site - less than one acre $588.00 900 

  disturbance 901 

   2. Other small construction site - less than one acre,  $588.00)) 902 

  per inspection 903 

 B. Inspection of other site development 904 

   1. Nonengineered plans; minimal $((4,264.00)) 5,002.00 905 

  road improvements; minimal drainage review 906 

   2. Engineered plans; private or minor public road $((7,989.00)) 9,371.00 907 

  improvements; small project drainage, dispersion, 908 

  flow control BMPs, conveyance only or detention 909 

40 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 208



Ordinance  

 
 
  only, or any combination thereof 910 

   3. Engineered plans; private or public road $((13,676.00)) 911 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention 16,042.00 912 

  or water quality, or any combination thereof 913 

   4. Engineered plans; private or public road $((18,872.00)) 914 

  improvements; full drainage review with 22,137.00 915 

  detention, infiltration or water quality, or any 916 

  combination thereof 917 

   5. Engineered plans; private or public road $((22,696.00)) 918 

  improvements; full drainage review with 26,622.00 919 

  multiple basins 920 

   6. Engineered plans; large private or public road 921 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 922 

  basins $((27,990.00)) 923 

   32,832.00 924 

   7. Engineered plans; large and complex private or $((33,284.00)) 925 

  public road improvements; full drainage review 39,042.00 926 

  with multiple basins 927 

 C. Inspection of landscape, street tree, significant tree $((588.00)) 690.00 928 

  or critical area mitigation installation only 929 

 D. Postapproval or postdevelopment monitoring $((431.00 per 930 

  or inspection, or both, for p-suffix conditions, site visit)) 931 

  or compliance with conditional use permits, 506.00 932 

41 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 209



Ordinance  

 
 
  special use permits, state Environmental Policy Act 933 

  conditions, shoreline development permit 934 

  conditions, critical areas conditions or other 935 

  conditions or mitigation associated with project 936 

  approval, or to ascertain existing site conditions, 937 

  per site visit 938 

  E. Monitoring inspections of active surface 939 

  mines, material processing facilities and other 940 

  long-term industrial operations 941 

   1. Inactive sites $((1,029.00)) 1,207.00 942 

   2. Semiactive sites - 20 acres or less $((1,814.00)) 2,128.00 943 

   3. Semiactive sites - more than 20 acres $((4,167.00)) 4,888.00 944 

   4. Active sites - 20 acres or less $((4,167.00)) 4,888.00 945 

   5. Active sites - more than 20 acres $((8,873.00)) 10,408.00 946 

 F.  ((The department may reduce by twenty percent the inspection fee due upon 947 

the first extension of a site development permit if site construction commenced more than 948 

five months after initial issuance of the permit. 949 

 G.)) Reinspection, each     $((431.00)) 506.00 950 

 ((H.  Inspection of site development for agricultural activities or buildings as 951 

defined in K.C.C. 27.04.001 or 27.04.002 shall be charged fifty percent of the fees listed 952 

in this section.)) 953 

 SECTION 29.  Ordinance 17224, Section 39, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.385 954 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 955 

42 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 210



Ordinance  

 
 
 Site inspections and pre-site work engineering meetings for construction of 956 

stormwater facilities shall be charged as follows: 957 

 A. Preconstruction meeting and inspection of $((2,324.00)) 2,463.00 958 

  stormwater facilities - one facility site 959 

 B. Inspection of stormwater facilities - each additional $((801.00)) 849.00 960 

  facility site 961 

 SECTION 30.  Ordinance 17224, Section 40, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.395 962 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 963 

 A. Preconstruction meeting and inspections. 964 

   1. Nonengineered plans; minimal road improvements $((458.00)) 485.00 965 

  minimal drainage review 966 

   2.   Engineered plans; private or minor public road $((915.00)) 970.00 967 

  improvements; small project drainage; dispersion, 968 

  flow control BMPs, conveyance only or detention 969 

  only, or any combination thereof 970 

   3. Engineered plans; private or public road $((3,432.00)) 3,638.00 971 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention 972 

  or water quality, or both 973 

   4. Engineered plans; private or public road $((6,864.00)) 7,276.00 974 

  improvements; full drainage review with detention, 975 

  infiltration or water quality, or any combination 976 

  thereof 977 

   5. Engineered plans; private or public road $((10,067.00)) 10,671.00 978 

43 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 211



Ordinance  

 
 
  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 979 

  basins 980 

   6. Engineered plans; large private or public road $((13,229.00)) 14,023.00 981 

  improvements; full drainage review with multiple 982 

  basins 983 

   7. Engineered plans; large and complex private or $((16,474.00)) 17,462.00 984 

  public road improvements; full drainage review 985 

  with multiple basins 986 

 B. Permit revisions, reinspection or supplemental $((343.00)) 364.00 987 

  inspection 988 

 SECTION 31.  Ordinance 17224, Section 43, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.425 989 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 990 

 A.  Whenever any work for which a permit or application approval required under 991 

K.C.C. Title 16, 19A, 20, 21A or 25 has commenced without first obtaining the required 992 

permit or application approval or has proceeded without obtaining necessary inspections, 993 

a fixed fee shall be charged for investigation of work done without a required permit or 994 

approval whether or not a permit or application approval is subsequently issued. 995 

 B. ((The investigation fee shall equal the amount of the plan review and 996 

inspection fees for site and building construction activity required by this title.)) Fees for 997 

residential buildings shall be charged as follows: 998 

   1. Interior alterations only $379.00 999 

   2. Deck or porch addition $644.00 1000 

   3. Carport or pole building addition $773.00 1001 

44 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 212



Ordinance  

 
 
   4. Garage or living space addition or conversion $1,476.00 1002 

   5. New accessory dwelling unit $2,165.00 1003 

   6. New mobile home $920.00 1004 

   7. New custom home $3,862.00 1005 

 C.  Fees for commercial buildings shall be charged as follows: 1006 

   1. Alterations to an existing structure $920.00 1007 

   2. New structure $3,862.00 1008 

 D.  Fees for site development shall be charged as follows: 1009 

   1. Minor drainage improvement not maintained by the county $460.00 1010 

   2. Basic with standardized conditions $965.00 1011 

   3. Other $1,718.00 1012 

 E.  Fees for land disturbance shall be charged as follows: 1013 

   1. Clearing less than 0.2 acre $460.00 1014 

   2. Grading less than 2,000 square feet $460.00 1015 

   3. Grading between 2,000 square feet and 0.2 acre $805.00 1016 

   4. Grading or clearing more than 0.2 acre $1,995.00 1017 

 F.  Property owners not responsible for initiating work without a permit shall be 1018 

exempted from the fees in this section. 1019 

 SECTION 32.  Ordinance 13332, Section 53, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.510 1020 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 1021 

 Certificates of compliance or completion shall require a fixed fee to cover the 1022 

administrative and clerical costs to the department of processing and issuing the 1023 

certificate. 1024 

45 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 213



Ordinance  

 
 
 A. Temporary occupancy permit per building $((392.00)) 460.00 1025 

  or tenant space 1026 

 B. Occupancy permit when more than one $((392.00)) 460.00 1027 

  building per permit 1028 

 C. Occupancy permit for individual ((condominiums))  $((180.00)) 211.00 1029 

  townhouses or other portions of building 1030 

 D. Letter of completion for shell construction when more $((392.00)) 460.00 1031 

  than one building per permit 1032 

 SECTION 33.  Ordinance 13332, Section 54, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.550 1033 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 1034 

 A fee of one thousand ((three hundred seventy-three)) six hundred eleven dollars 1035 

shall be charged for processing and review of preissuance construction authorization.  1036 

Building and site inspections shall be charged the regular fees adopted by this title. 1037 

 SECTION 34.  Ordinance 17682, Section 46 and K.C.C. 27.10.560 are each 1038 

hereby amended to read as follows: 1039 

 Requests for address or road name changes where no site visit is required shall be 1040 

charged ((seventy-eight dollars per parcel, plus seventy-eight)) ninety-one dollars per 1041 

address((,)) affected by the requested change. 1042 

 SECTION 35.    Ordinance 17682, Section 47 and K.C.C. 27.10.570 are each 1043 

hereby amended to read as follows: 1044 

 Fees shall be charged as follows for processing, monitoring, extending and 1045 

administering the default of financial guarantees: 1046 

 A. Standard monitoring of maintenance and defect guarantees 1047 

46 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 214



Ordinance  

 
 
  for completed installation 1048 

   1. ((d))Department of permitting and environmental 1049 

  review administration $((1,880.00)) 2,205.00 1050 

   2. Inspection of stormwater facilities - small $((3,563.00)) 3,777.00 1051 

   3. Inspection of stormwater facilities - medium $((4,335.00)) 4,595.00 1052 

   4. Inspection of stormwater facilities - large $((6,636.00)) 7,034.00 1053 

   5. Reinspection of stormwater facilities, each $((668.00)) 708.00 1054 

   6. Inspection of road improvements - small $((3,563.00)) 3,777.00 1055 

   7. Inspection of road improvements - medium $((4,335.00)) 4,595.00 1056 

   8. Inspection of road improvements - large $((6,636.00)) 7,034.00 1057 

   9. Reinspection of road improvements, each $((668.00)) 708.00 1058 

   10. Inspection of critical area mitigation, 1059 

  landscaping, street or significant trees, 1060 

  per year required $((441.00)) 506.00 1061 

   11. Reinspection of critical $((441.00)) 506.00 1062 

  area mitigation, landscaping, street or 1063 

  significant trees, each 1064 

 B. Extended monitoring of maintenance and defect guarantees - additional 1065 

year 1066 

   1. Inspection of stormwater facilities $((1,708.00)) 1,810.00 1067 

   2. Inspection of road improvements $((1,708.00)) 1,810.00 1068 

   3. Department of permitting and environmental review $((940.00)) 1,103.00 1069 

  administration 1070 

47 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 215



Ordinance  

 
 
 C. Administering default of financial guarantees - annual fee 1071 

   1. Department of permitting and environmental review $((2,256.00)) 2,646.00 1072 

   2. Department of transportation $((3,838.00)) 4,068.00 1073 

   3. Department of natural resources and parks $((3,838.00)) 4,068.00 1074 

 SECTION 36.  Ordinance 17682, Section 48 and K.C.C. 27.10.580 are each 1075 

hereby amended to read as follows: 1076 

 Fees shall be charged for permit processing, clerical services, and contractor 1077 

certification as follows: 1078 

 A.  A fee of seventy-five dollars shall be charged for ((re-issuing)) reissuing a 1079 

public notice. 1080 

 B.  The department may charge fees for clerical services unrelated to permits 1081 

including, but not limited to, making copies, scanning documents, notarizing documents, 1082 

gathering, preparing and publishing special request reports and providing publications.  1083 

The fees shall be the actual cost to the department and shall be collected at the time 1084 

services are requested.  The department shall publish a schedule of these fees on the 1085 

internet and in the public areas of its offices. 1086 

 C.  The fee for annual certification of a tank removal contractor is ((one hundred 1087 

ninety-six)) two hundred thirty dollars. 1088 

 D.  The fee for a title elimination is sixty dollars. 1089 

 E.  The fee for extension of a nonresidential building, fire, mechanical, sign, 1090 

demolition, grading, site development or conditional use permit is one hundred fifty 1091 

dollars. 1092 

48 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 216



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 37.  Ordinance 16959, Section 12, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.02.1905 1093 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 1094 

 A.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection B. of this section, the department 1095 

shall assess a surcharge of ((four and sixty-three hundredths)) one and seven tenths 1096 

percent on all fees established in K.C.C. chapters 27.06 and 27.10.  The surcharge shall 1097 

only be used to provide funding for((: 1098 

   1.  T)) the department's undesignated fund balance for working capital in order 1099 

to achieve an undesignated fund balance of forty-five days of operating and maintenance 1100 

expenses. 1101 

   ((2.  Customer service enhancements to the department’s permitting processes 1102 

and systems.)) 1103 

 B.  The following fees shall not be subject to the surcharge established in 1104 

subsection A. of this section: 1105 

   1.  Road variance review under K.C.C. 27.10.070.A; 1106 

   2.  Stormwater facility engineering review under K.C.C. 27.10.082; 1107 

   3.  Road engineering review under K.C.C. 27.10.084; 1108 

   4.  Road constructability review under K.C.C. 27.10.085; 1109 

   5.  Stormwater facility constructability review under K.C.C. 27.10.087; 1110 

   6.  Flood hazard certification review under K.C.C. 27.10.130.D; 1111 

   7.  Stormwater facility site inspection under K.C.C. 27.10.385; 1112 

   8.  Road construction inspection under K.C.C. 27.10.395; and 1113 

   9.  Financial guarantee monitoring and administration under K.C.C. 27.10.570. 1114 

49 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 217



Ordinance  

 
 
 C.  The surcharge amount shall be rounded to the nearest whole dollar for each 1115 

fee that is a whole dollar amount. 1116 

 D.  The surcharge applies to fee assessments made between January 1, ((2015)) 1117 

2017, and December 31, ((2016)) 2018. 1118 

 E.  This section expires on January 1, ((2017)) 2019. 1119 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 38.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 27.02 1120 

a new section to read as follows: 1121 

 Processing, review or inspection of applications or permits for agricultural 1122 

buildings or activities shall be charged fifty percent of the fees listed in this title.  This 1123 

section does not apply to processing, review, or inspections related to applications or 1124 

permits required for any use related to a product excluded from the definition of 1125 

"agricultural product" under RCW 82.04.213. 1126 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 39.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 27.04 1127 

a new section to read as follows: 1128 

 The definitions in this chapter apply to this title unless the context clearly requires 1129 

otherwise. 1130 

 SECTION 40.  The following are each hereby repealed: 1131 

 A.  Ordinance 13332, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.030; 1132 

 B.  Ordinance 17224, Section 20, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.045; 1133 

 C.  Ordinance 13332, Section 41, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.330; 1134 

 D.  Ordinance 13332, Section 49, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.430; and 1135 

 E.  Ordinance 13332, Section 51, as amended, and K.C.C. 27.10.460. 1136 

50 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 218



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 41.  If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person 1137 

or circumstance is held invalid the remainder of the ordinance or the application of the 1138 

provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 1139 

 SECTION 42.  This ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017. 1140 

 1141 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

51 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 219



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 7 Name: Christine Jensen 

Proposed No.: 2016-0478 Date: November 1-3, 2016 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0478.2 adopting permit fees, passed out of 
committee on November 1, with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The ordinance 
was amended in committee with Amendments S1 and T1 to: 

• reduce the permit fee increase from 20 percent  to 17.3 percent, 
• extend the surcharge to the end of 2018 at a 1.7 percent rate, 
• remove a new CUP fee for agricultural building expansions in the APD, and 
• clarify that marijuana uses are not eligible for the 50 percent agricultural 

permit discount. 
 
SUBJECT 
 
A proposed ordinance related to development permit review fees charged by County 
agencies. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0478 would make a number of revisions to Title 27 of the 
King County Code (K.C.C.), which governs fees charged by the Department of 
Permitting and Environmental Review (DPER), the Department of Transportation (DOT) 
and the Department of Natural Resources and Parks (DNRP).   
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The Executive is proposing a 20 percent fee increase in the 2017-2018 Budget for 
DPER’s Planning and Permitting appropriation unit.  Staff reports on the components of 
this fee increase were provided to the General Government Panel on October 12 and 
19, 2016. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed ordinance proposes changes to the rates for development permit fees, as 
well as several restructures to the fees within Title 27.  The following is a summary of 

King County Council November 7, 2016 220



the proposed changes.1  If the proposed fees in this ordinance are amended or not 
approved, then DPER’s proposed expenditures as part of the 2017-2018 Budget would 
need to be adjusted. 
 
The largest global change in the Proposed Ordinance would increase almost all of 
DPER’s permit fees by approximately 20 percent.  This increase is proposed to be 
achieved through a combination of a 12.6 percent Pro Forma fee increase and a 7.4 
percent administrative service changes fee increase, as summarized in Table 1.  
 

Table 1. 2017-2018 Proposed DPER Fee Increase 

Purpose 
Percent 
Increase 

Estimated 
Revenues 

Pro Forma   

- Labor 7.87% $1,803,000 

- Supplies and Services 1.66% $380,000 

- Central rates 3.08% $705,000 

Pro Forma Total 12.61% $2,888,000 

   

Administrative Service Changes   

- Bank credit card fees 1.66% $380,000 

- MyBuildingPermit.com 1.86% $426,000 

- 2017-2018 retirement costs 1.66% $380,000 

- Fund Balance 2.18% $500,000 

Administrative Service Changes 
Total 

7.36% $1,686,000 

   

2017-2018 Proposed Fee 
Increase Total 

19.97%2 $4,574,000 

 
Additionally, the Proposed Ordinance includes elimination of obsolete fees and 
consolidations of multiple fees into a single fee amount by permit type, such as related 
to fire system reviews.   
 
Other notable changes include: 

 Restructures to discounted fees for applications and permits for agricultural 

buildings and activities (multiple sections) 

 New $50 fee for missed pre-application conferences (Section 2) 

 Pre-application conference fees can now only be credited towards permit fees  if 

the permit application is filed within 180 days (Section 2) 

 New $200 fee for additional inspections or reinspections for single family 

residential (Sections 2 and 3) 

 Restructures of inspection fees (multiple sections) 

 New $1,883 fee for agricultural building expansions in the Agricultural Production 

District (APD) (Section 19) 

1 A more detailed matrix of the proposed changes is included as Attachment 4 of the staff report. 
2 Proposed Ordinance 2016-0478 uses 20% as the escalation rate for the proposed 2017-2018 fee 
increase. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 221



 Increases Temporary Use Permit fees from $196 to $706 to reflect actual staff 

time needed to process and review permits, and 20 percent DPER fee increase 

(Section 19) 

 Codifies operational permit inspection fees from the International Fire Code 

(Section 27) 

 Adds a specific list of fees for investigation of work done without a permit, which 

replaces general language that calls for fees that are equal to the regular permit 

review and inspection fees for the applicable type of construction fee (Section 31) 
 
There is currently a 4.63 percent temporary fee surcharge that is set to expire at the end 
of 2016. This surcharge is not proposed to be extended.   
 
The following is a more detailed analysis of the key policy considerations within the 
Proposed Ordinance. 
 
I. 12.6 percent DPER “Pro Forma” fee increase 
A 12.6 percent “Pro Forma” fee increase is proposed as part of the overall 20 percent 
DPER increase.  This portion would fund labor, supplies and services, and central rates.  
A portion of the Pro Forma fee increase is due to general inflation costs for the 2017-
2018 biennium.  DPER also indicates that the Pro Forma increase is intended to 
address an existing deficit in operating revenues needed to match current expenditures.  
Staff have identified no issues with this portion of the fee increase. 
 
II. 1.7 percent DPER fee increase for bank credit card fees 
A 1.7 percent fee increase is proposed in order to allow DPER to accept credit card 
payments and to absorb the associated bank fees into the underlying fixed fees for all 
permits.  DPER’s estimate3 is that 50 percent of permit fees will be paid for via credit 
card.   
 
All of the 14 jurisdictions that participate in MyBuildingPermit.com (MBP) - which DPER 
is proposing that the County joins as part of the 2017-2018 budget - do not pass 
through the bank fees to the individual customer.  DPER has shared that MBP policies 
“precludes member jurisdictions from adding on card-specific merchant bank fees to 
individual permit payments, and the MBP storefront is not configured to do so.” 
 
The Council may wish to consider this in the context of the e-payments ordinance,4 
which currently proposes to authorize DPER to absorb electronic payment fees. 
 
III. 1.9 percent DPER fee increase for MyBuildingPermit.com 
A 1.9 percent fee increase is proposed to enable DPER to join and utilize the online 
permitting capability of MBP.  The proposed fee increase would fund the costs to bridge 
the County’s current online permitting system with MBP, work with MBP staff to set up 
the service, a late-comer investment fee into MBP, and an annual subscription fee, as 
shown in Table 2.   
 

3 Based on 2015 actuals for the Snohomish County Planning and Development Services Department, by 
dollar value. 
4 Proposed Ordinance 2016-0399 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 222



Table 2. MBP 2017-2018 Expenses 

Purpose 2017 2018 Total 

Interface between Accela and MBP $48,000 - $48,000 

On-boarding services by MBP $60,000 - $60,000 

Late-comer investment fee $108,000 - $108,000 

Annual subscription fee - $210,000 $210,000 

MBP total $216,000 $210,000 $426,000 
 

If the funding for membership in MBP is approved in the 2017-2018 budget, DPER 
indicates that some permits5 would be available via MBP by January, 2018 and 
estimates that full implementation could occur in three years.    
 
Adoption of an interlocal agreement (ILA) would be required for the County to join MBP 
and to utilize their services.  If budgetary authorization is approved, DPER’s goal would 
be for the Council to adopt the ILA in the first quarter of 2017.  If adoption of the ILA is 
delayed, then the aforementioned timeline for online permit offerings would be 
impacted. 
 
IV. 1.7 percent DPER fee increase for 2017-2018 retirement costs 
A 1.7 percent fee increase is proposed to fund anticipated retirement payouts in 2017 
and 2018.  DPER notes that there are 12 retirees expected in the coming biennium, and 
expects that there will be fewer retirees in future years.  Beyond 2018, the unused 
revenues from this portion of the ongoing fee increase could potentially be used to 
address future fluctuations in inflationary increases in expenses; however, that is yet to 
be determined. 
 
V. 2.2 percent DPER fee increase to replenish reserves 
A 2.2 percent fee increase is proposed to replenish DPER’s fund balance and 
associated reserves.  It is estimated that the 2015-2016 biennium will end with a $2.5 
million reserve shortfall.  If the proposed fee increase is approved, the reserve deficit is 
expected to improve slightly to a $2.2 million shortfall by the end of 2018 and then 
return a positive balance equivalent to 45 days of expenditures by the end 2020.  
Beyond 2020, the undesignated fund balance revenues from this portion of the ongoing 
fee increase could potentially be used to address future fluctuations in inflationary 
increases in expenses; however, that is yet to be determined. 
 
VI. Six percent DOT and DNRP fee increase 
Separate from the 20 percent DPER fee increase, a six percent fee increase is also 
proposed for DOT and DNRP permit fees.  These underlying permit fees are for reviews 
performed by DOT and DNRP staff as required for certain permits, and these fees are 
not impacted by the DPER fee increase. The proposed six percent increase would fund 
current inflationary increases in salaries, benefits, supplies, and County overhead 
charges.  This would be a three percent increase annually, which appears to be 
reasonable.  Staff have identified no issues with this proposed fee increase. 
 
VII. New CUP fee for agricultural building expansion in APD 

5 Registered plans for basic homes, basic home permits, residential HVAC permits, residential sprinkler 
permits, and residential tank permits. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 223



Section 19 of the Proposed Ordinance includes a new $1,883 Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) permit fee in K.C.C. 27.10.170 for agricultural building expansions in the 
Agricultural Production District (APD).  This fee was proposed in order to be consistent 
with related proposed code changes that were included in the Executive’s transmitted 
2016 update to the King County Comprehensive Plan (KCCP).6 
 
The transmitted 2016 KCCP included substantive amendments to the zoning code 
related to allowed agricultural uses in unincorporated King County.  These changes 
included new standards, and a new permitting evaluation process, for expansion of 
agricultural buildings in the APD.  When reviewing the KCCP transmittal, the Council 
identified several policy issues with the proposed agricultural zoning code changes.  As 
a result the Transportation, Economy, and Environment (TrEE) Committee Chair’s 
Striking Amendment to the 2016 KCCP7 removed these zoning code changes and 
reinstated to the current code provisions.  Instead, the Striking Amendment added a 
new Workplan item8 that directed an interbranch team to review the agricultural code 
provisions, address the identified policy issues, perform outreach, draft new proposed 
code changes, and transmit a new ordinance to the Council by September 30, 2017.  
The 2016 KCCP, as amended, is scheduled for final action at the full Council on 
December 5, 2016.   
 
Given the anticipated Workplan item in the KCCP, the Executive has requested that this 
new permit fee be removed from Proposed Ordinance 2016-0478.   
 
VIII. Consolidation of fees 
Since moving away from hourly permit fees to final implementation of a new fix fee rate 
model in 2014, DPER has identified some areas of further refinement of its fixed fees.   
These refinements include several consolidations of separate, multiple fees for one 
permit or activity into one single permit fee, such as for fire system fees, inspection fees, 
building plan review fees, and grading plan review fees.  Elimination of obsolete fees is 
also proposed. 
 
Additionally, the ordinance proposes to more fully implement the restructure and 
consolidation of residential permit fees for single family residential dwellings that was 
initially adopted as part of the 2015-2016 Budget in Ordinance 17923.  That ordinance 
created two new sections to consolidate residential permit fees based on the dwelling 
type, both for new construction and for additions and remodels (K.C.C. 27.10.035 and 
27.10.037, respectively).  Proposed Ordinance 2016-0478 proposes further refinements 
to incorporate some additional consolidations, particularly for additions and remodels.  
The proposed consolidated fee rates are consistent with the aggregates of the current 
individual fee rates, escalated due to the proposed overall 20 percent rate increase. 
 
IX. 50 percent fee discount for agricultural buildings and activities 
Under the current Code, there are some development permits where the associated 
fees are reduced for agricultural buildings and activities.9  These fee reductions vary 

6 Proposed Ordinance 2016-0155 
7 adopted by the TrEE Committee with a “do pas” recommendation on September 20 
8 Workplan Action 7 in Chapter 12 of the proposed KCCP 
9 Either on Rural Area (RA) zoned land with an approved farm plan or in the Agricultural Production 
District (APD), and as defined in KCC 27.04.001 and 002. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 224



from permit to permit, and include either: 1) a specific, reduced flat fee, or 2) a 50 
percent discount from the regular fee.  These current fee reductions include: 

• A flat $294 fee per department staff for pre-application conferences; 

• A flat $98 fee for agricultural building permit applications; 

• A flat $305 fee for code compliance review; 

• A flat $1,569 fee for critical area alteration exceptions with a stewardship plan; 

• A flat $147 fee for flood elevation certificate inspections; 

• A flat $176 base fee plus $0.20 per square foot of building area added or 

modified for inspections of agricultural buildings; and 

• 50 percent discount for site engineering applications, grading or clearing, critical 

area review, and site development inspections. 

 
The Executive proposes to remove all of the individual agricultural discount fee 
references and replace them with a new section of Title 27 that states that processing, 
review, or inspection of applications or permits for agricultural buildings and activities 
will be given a 50 percent discount of regular fees.10  DPER indicates that the proposed 
across-the-board 50 percent agricultural fee discount would apply to the same fees as 
those presently discounted under the current code.   
 
It appears that the impact of this change may be minimal for some permit fees, 
especially for the code sections that currently reference a similar 50 percent discount.  
However, some of the other sections of the code that currently identify a flat, reduced 
fee for agricultural permits may result in increased permit fees for agricultural 
customers.  Under current staff analysis, Table 3 outlines anticipated impacts of the 
proposed changes 
 

10 Section 37 of the Proposed Ordinance 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 225



Table 3. Agriculture Permit Discounts 

Fee Name  
Code 

Section 

Current 
Flat Ag 

Fee 

Proposed 
50% 

Ag Fee at 
Current 
Rates 

Proposed 
50% 

Ag Fee 
With 20% 
Increase 

Additional  
Information 

Ag pre-
application 
conferences 

27.06.010 
$294, per 
department 
staff 

$294, per 
DPER staff, 
$343 per 
DOT or 
DNRP staff 

$353, per 
DPER staff, 
$365.50 per 
DOT or 
DNRP staff 

In practice, DOT and 
DNRP do not participate 
in Ag pre-app 
conferences – so the 
departure from the flat 
ag fee would have no 
on-the-ground impact. 

Commercial 
Already Built 
Construction 
(ABC) pre-
application 
conference 

27.06.010 

$294, per 
department 
staff (under 
separate 
ag pre-app 
fee) 

$1,176.50 $1,412 

There were no ABC pre-
apps that were eligible 
for the ag discount in 
2015, so the impact of 
this change is expected 
to be minimal. 

  

King County Council November 7, 2016 226



Fee Name  
Code 

Section 

Current 
Flat Ag 

Fee 

Proposed 
50% 

Ag Fee at 
Current 
Rates 

Proposed 
50% 

Ag Fee With 
20% 

Increase 

Additional  
Information 

Agricultural 
building 
permit 
applications 

27.10.020 $98 

Based on 
building 
valuation, 
with base 
fees 
ranging 
from $10 to 
$2,209, 
plus fee 
per 
additional 
valuation 

Based on 
building 
valuation, 
with base 
fees ranging 
from $25 to 
$2,700, plus 
fee per 
additional 
valuation 

Ag buildings less than 
$25K valuation would 
see a reduction in fees, 
and ag buildings valued 
more than $25K would 
see an increase in fees.  
 
From historical data, 
about 77% of ag 
structures are valued 
less than $25K, and 
23% are valued more 
than $25K. 

Code 
compliance 
review 

27.10.060 $305 $607.50 $729 - 

Critical area 
alteration 
exceptions 
with a 
stewardship 
plan 

27.10.130 $1,569 

$784.50 
base fee, 
plus 
$2,157 per 
discipline 
= 
$2,941.50 

$941.50 
base fee, 
plus 
$2,588.50 
per 
discipline 
= $3,530 

- 

Flood 
elevation 
certificate 
inspections 
 

27.10.130 $147 $147 $176.50 
Change from flat fee to 
50% discount would 
have no impact. 

Inspections 
of 
agricultural 
buildings 
 

27.10.320 

$176 base 
fee, plus 
$0.20 per 
square foot 
of building 
area added 
or modified 

Based on 
building 
valuation, 
with base 
fees 
ranging 
from $55 to 
$3,439, 
plus fee 
per 
additional 
valuation 

Based on 
building 
valuation, 
with base 
fees ranging 
from $75 to 
$4,100, plus 
fee per 
additional 
valuation 

Ag buildings less than 
$25K valuation would 
see a reduction in fees, 
and ag buildings valued 
more than $25K would 
see an increase in fees.  
 
From historical data, 
about 77% of ag 
structures are valued 
less than $25K, and 
23% are valued more 
than $25K. 

 
  

King County Council November 7, 2016 227



The Council may wish to consider the fiscal impact of these fee changes on agricultural 
customers, while also considering DPER’s full reliance on permit fees for cost recovery 
of permit processing.  It is also worth noting that the reduced revenues DPER receives 
as a result of the agricultural discount are offset by General Fund revenues. 
 
The agricultural discount was originally adopted in 2007.11  In 2015, there were nine 
permits that were eligible for the discount, which resulted in a cumulative discount of 
$16,000 in permit fees for the year. 
 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Striking Amendment S1 would make the following changes: 

• Reduce the Department of Permitting and Environmental Review (DPER) fee 
increase from 20 percent to 17.3 percent, which includes: 

o 12.6 percent for Pro Forma costs; 
o 1.7 percent for bank credit card fees; 
o 1.9 percent for participation in MyBuildingPermit.com; and 
o 1.1 percent to replenish reserves. 

• Extend the temporary surcharge (currently set to expire at the end of 2016) 
through December 31, 2018, and reduce surcharge from 4.63 percent to 1.7 
percent. 

• Remove a new CUP fee for expansion of agricultural structures in the APD. 

• Clarify that permits for marijuana uses do not qualify for the 50 percent permit fee 
discount for agricultural buildings and activities, consistent with state tax law.12 

 
When compared to 2016 fees, the cumulative impact to a customer would be a 14.37 
percent increase in fees. 
 
There is also an associated Title Amendment, T1. 

11 Ordinance 15957 
12 RCW 82.04.213(1) 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 228



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0479.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE establishing an enhanced 911 1 

emergency telephone system new capital fund for the 2 

department of executive services; and adding a new section 3 

to K.C.C. chapter 4A.200. 4 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 5 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 1.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 4A.200 6 

a new section to read as follows: 7 

 A.  There is hereby created the enhanced 911 emergency telephone system capital 8 

fund. 9 

 B.  The fund shall be a first tier fund.  It is a capital projects fund. 10 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 11 

the fund. 12 

 D.  All receipts from transfers from the enhanced 911 emergency telephone 13 

system fund, bond proceeds, grants, and other revenues for enhanced 911 with a capital 14 

appropriation shall be deposited in the fund.15 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 229



Ordinance  

 
 
 E.  The fund shall be used to support capital projects and equipment replacement 16 

related to the provision of an enhanced 911 emergency telephone system in King County. 17 

 18 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 230



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item:  Name: Lise Kaye 

Proposed No.: 2016-0479 Date: November 7, 2016 

 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0479.2 passed out of the Special Budget 
and Fiscal Management Committee on November 1, 2016, with a “Do Pass” 
recommendation. The proposed ordinance was amended in committee with 
Amendment 1, which made technical corrections to the program name and the 
name of the E911 operating fund. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
A proposed ordinance creating a new fund for enhanced 911 capital projects. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The proposed ordinance would establish a capital fund for enhanced 911 projects. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Historically, capital projects for the enhanced 911 (E911) system have been funded 
through the operating budget, which has artificially driven multi-year project timelines 
and milestones by limited appropriation periods. Consequently, the operating budget 
has seen large under-expenditures in some years and reappropriations in subsequent 
years to accommodate project timing crossing into new fiscal years or biennial budget 
cycles. According to Executive staff, a newly created capital budget for large multi-year 
projects will support a more methodical and strategic approach to project delivery. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed ordinance would establish a capital fund for E911 projects.  Staff have 
not identified any policy issues with the proposed legislation. 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 231



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0480.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE consolidating funds relating to housing 1 

and community development; amending Ordinance 17752, 2 

Section 12, and K.C.C. 4A.200.297, adding a new section 3 

to K.C.C. chapter 4A.200, codifying K.C.C. 4A.200.297 4 

and repealing Ordinance 9368, Sections 1-2, as amended, 5 

and K.C.C. 4A.200.360. 6 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 7 

 SECTION 1.  Section 2 of this ordinance takes effect June 30, 2017. 8 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 9368, Sections 1-2, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.360 9 

are each hereby repealed. 10 

 SECTION 3.  K.C.C. 4A.200.297, as amended by this ordinance, is hereby 11 

recodified as a new section in K.C.C. chapter 4A.200. 12 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 17752, Section 12, and K.C.C. 4A.200.297 are each 13 

hereby amended to read as follows: 14 

 A.  There is hereby created the ((federal)) housing and community development 15 

fund. 16 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((second)) first tier fund.  It is a special revenue fund. 17 

 C.  The director of the department of community and human services shall be the 18 

manager of the fund. 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 232



Ordinance  

 
 
 D.1.  The fund shall be used to collect revenue from federal, state and other 20 

funding sources ((and)) to ((expend direct costs and related administration)) support 21 

housing and community development projects. 22 

   2.  Moneys in the fund shall be expended consistent with applicable funding 23 

sources to support: 24 

     (a)  ((non-county)) noncounty organization((s)) projects that acquire, renovate 25 

or construct housing for very low to moderate-income individuals and families, including 26 

homeless households and households with special housing needs ((by securing)); 27 

     (b)  operating costs for housing projects identified in subsection D.2.a. of this 28 

section, rental assistance and services for low-income individuals and families, including 29 

homeless households and households with special housing needs; 30 

     (c)  noncounty organization projects related to community development 31 

activities; and 32 

     (d)  county costs to administer this fund. 33 

   3.  When moneys in the fund are used to support housing projects identified in 34 

subsection D.2.a. of this section, the noncounty organization shall grant King County a 35 

property interest in the housing project, in a form acceptable to the county.  ((The fund 36 

may also support housing operating costs, rental assistance and services for low-income37 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 233



Ordinance  

 
 
individuals and families, including homeless households and households with special 38 

housing needs.)) 39 

 40 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 234



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 8 Name: Mary Bourguignon 

Proposed No.: 2016-0480 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0480.2, which would consolidate two 
housing funds into the new Housing and Community Development Fund, passed 
out of committee on November 1, 2016, with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The 
motion was amended in committee with Amendment 1 to correct a drafting error. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0480 would make the Code changes necessary to 
consolidate two funds – the Federal Housing and Community Development and the 
Housing Opportunity Fund – into a new Housing and Community Development Fund.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0480 would make the Code changes necessary to combine 
two housing funds into a new Housing and Community Development Fund. The funds to 
be combined are: 
 

• The Federal Housing and Community Development Fund. This fund was 
established to administer federal funding programs that support homeless 
prevention, housing repair, low-income and special needs housing development, 
and community development: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), 
HOME Investment Partnership (HOME), Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG), and 
others. 

 

• The Housing Opportunity Fund (HOF). This fund was created in 19901 to 
acquire, purchase, renovate, and construct housing for low-income families, 
seniors at risk of displacement and homelessness, homeless individuals and 
persons with special housing needs. The HOF has been funded with state and 
local dedicated funds, including the King County Veterans & Human Services 

1 Ordinance 9368 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 235



Levy (VHSL), dedicated document recording fees, homeless housing funds, the 
Mental Illness and Drug Dependency (MIDD) Levy, Best Starts for Kids Youth 
and Family Homelessness Prevention Initiative, and other funding sources.  

 
The proposed ordinance would not change the funds’ revenue sources or their allowed 
uses. It would simply consolidate the two funds. Executive staff have stated that this 
consolidation is proposed to increase transparency on housing and homelessness 
spending. Passage of this legislation is necessary to adopt the Housing and Community 
Development appropriation unit as transmitted in the proposed 2017-2018 budget.  

King County Council November 7, 2016 236



 
BACKGROUND  
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0480 would make the Code changes necessary to 
consolidate two funds – the Federal Housing and Community Development and the 
Housing Opportunity Fund – into a new Housing and Community Development Fund. 
This new fund would hold and disburse $170.6 million in revenues from federal, state 
and local housing and homelessness funding sources. 
 
Federal Housing and Community Development Fund. The Federal Housing and 
Community Development (FHCD) Fund2 was established to administer federal funding 
programs that support homeless prevention, housing repair, low-income and special 
needs housing development, and community development, including:  
 

• Community Development Block Grant (CDBG): CDBG funds help develop viable 
urban communities by providing funding for decent housing, a suitable living 
environment, and economic opportunities, principally for those earning 80 percent of 
the area median income or less. CDBG funds can be used for a variety of activities, 
including property acquisition; demolition; rehabilitation; construction of public 
facilities, such as water and sewer facilities, streets, and neighborhood centers; 
energy conservation; and economic development and job creation activities.3 

 

• HOME Investments Partnership (HOME): HOME funds are used to create 
affordable housing for low-income households.4  

 

• Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG): ESG funds help individuals and families with 
temporary and permanent housing needs after experiencing a housing crisis or 
homelessness.5   

 
King County’s Department of Community and Human Services (DCHS) administers 
these funds on behalf of the County and most of the County’s cities and towns using a 
HUD-approved “Consortium” model.6 This model provides smaller jurisdictions with 
administrative support and efficiencies of scale, while allowing them to retain a level of 

2 4A.200.297 
3 The CDBG program was first authorized in 1974, and currently provides annual grants on a formula 
basis to states and  local governments. 
(http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/communitydevelopment/programs ) 
4 The HOME Investments Partnership is a Federal block grant program used to create affordable housing 
for low-income households. HOME funds are awarded annually as formula grants to participating 
jurisdictions. The program’s flexibility allows States and local governments to use HOME funds for grants, 
direct loans, loan guarantees or other forms of credit enhancements, or rental assistance or security 
deposits. (http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/affordablehousing/programs/home/ ) 
5 Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG, formerly called Emergency Shelter Grant) funds are used to help 
individuals and families quickly regain stability in permanent housing after experiencing a housing crisis or 
homelessness. The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 
(HEARTH Act) amended the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, revising the Emergency Shelter 
Grants Program in significant ways and renaming it the Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) program. 
(https://www.onecpd.info/esg/ ) 
6 The King County Consortium is established and its duties outlined in K.C.C. 24.13. The City of Seattle 
participates in the Consortium for the allocation of state document recording fees, but receives and 
administers federal funds on its own, and so does not participate in the Consortium for those funds. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 237

http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/communitydevelopment/programs
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/affordablehousing/programs/home/
https://www.onecpd.info/esg/


autonomy about the use of housing and community development funds in their 
communities.  
 
The King County Consortium includes most of the cities in King County. Cities have 
different types of membership in the Consortium depending on their size and 
population, as well as, in some cases, their choice about whether to administer specific 
funding sources on their own or in partnership with the Consortium. Each different type 
of membership is governed by federal Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) regulations and an interlocal agreement between the County and the city.  
 
The Consortium is guided by a Joint Recommendations Committee,7 which is made up 
of local officials and which meets regularly to review and discuss funding 
recommendations and to provide advice on Consortium guidelines and procedures. The 
Consortium’s recommendations on fund allocations are effectuated through the King 
County Consortium Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan 
(Consolidated Plan), a planning document that must be updated and submitted to HUD 
every several years. King County’s current Consolidated Plan, for the years 2015 
through 2019, was adopted by the Council in June 2015.8 
 
Revenues in the FHCD Fund are allocated based on the federal requirements for each 
funding source, as well as the policies outlined in the adopted Consolidated Plan. 
 
Housing Opportunity Fund. The Housing Opportunity Acquisition Fund (HOF) was 
created in 1990 through Ordinance 9368 to acquire, purchase, renovate, and construct 
housing for low-income families, seniors at risk of displacement and homelessness, 
homeless individuals and persons with special housing needs. The County contracts 
with outside organizations, such as non-profit housing developers and human service 
providers, to develop and manage the housing and to provide needed services to the 
residents. 
 
The HOF is funded through a variety of state and local dedicated funds, including the 
King County Veterans & Human Services Levy (VHSL), Mental Illness and Drug 
Dependency Levy (MIDD), Best Starts for Kids (BSK) Levy Youth and Family 
Homelessness Prevention Initiative, and dedicated document recording fees,9 homeless 
housing funds, and mental illness funding sources.  
 
Disbursement of funds within the HOF is undertaken consistent with the regulations 
governing each funding source.  
 
Proposed Consolidation of Funds. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0480 would 
consolidate the two funds into a new Housing and Community Development Fund. 
 
It would do this by repealing K.C.C. 4A.200.360, which regulates the Housing 
Opportunity Fund; and by amending K.C.C. 4A.200.297, which regulates the Federal 

7 K.C.C. 24.13.020 
8 Ordinance 18070 
9 RCW 36.22.179 permits a dedicated $40 surcharge on recorded documents from September 1, 2012, 
through June 30, 2019 to be used by counties and cities for homeless housing.  

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 238



Housing and Community Development Fund, so as to change the name of the fund and 
to expand its uses to encompass both of the former funds. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed ordinance would consolidate two existing funds into one. It would not 
make any changes to the revenue sources directed into the new fund or to the 
regulations governing the uses of those revenue funds. 
 
Executive staff have stated that this consolidation is proposed to increase transparency 
on housing and homelessness spending. Passage of this legislation is necessary to 
adopt the budget authority for the Housing and Community Development appropriation 
unit as transmitted in the proposed 2017-2018 budget. 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
The ordinance as transmitted has a drafting error in Section 4.D. of the proposed 
ordinance (the legislation as transmitted did not use revision marks appropriately to 
show changes to the existing Code). Staff has worked with legal counsel and Executive 
staff to prepare a technical correction, which is included as Attachment 2. 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 239



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0481.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to passenger ferry service, 1 

revising passenger ferry fares; amending Ordinance 17935, 2 

Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C 4A.700.820. 3 

STATEMENT OF FACTS: 4 

1.  The 2015/2016 Biennium Budget Ordinance, Ordinance 17941, Section 94 5 

adopted the marine division operating fund budget. 6 

2.  As part of the budget, the council adopted the marine division's financial plan, 7 

which included new revenue from a proposed fare increase to take place in 2016. 8 

3.  On November 20, 2014, the council adopted Ordinance 17935, which assumed 9 

the governance of the King County ferry district, added new sections to K.C.C., 10 

assumed the ferry fare policies of the King County ferry district, and adopted the 11 

passenger ferry fares for King County. 12 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 13 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance 17935, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.700.820 14 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 15 

 A.1.  Except as may otherwise be provided by ordinance, the following fare 16 

categories and rates are established for regularly scheduled passenger ferry service: 17 

One-Way Water Taxi Fares  West Seattle  Vashon Island 18 

      Water Taxi Route Water Taxi Route 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 240



Ordinance  

 
 
Cash fare $((5.25)) 5.75 $((6.25)) 6.75 20 

Regular prepaid fare  $((4.50)) 5.00 $((5.25)) 5.75 21 

Child fare No Charge No Charge 22 

Youth prepaid fare  $((3.50)) 3.75 $((4.00)) 4.50 23 

Senior and persons with disabilities $((2.25)) 2.50 $((2.75)) 3.00 24 

fare 25 

Bicycle fare  No Charge No Charge 26 

Low-income fare   $((3.50)) 3.75  $((4.00)) 4.50 27 

   2.  The fare categories and rates are subject to, and defined by, the following: 28 

     a.  All fares shall be established only for a one-way trip; 29 

     b.  All fares shall be rounded up to the next whole twenty-five cent increment; 30 

     c.  The cash fare is determined by adding a fifteen-percent surcharge to the 31 

regular prepaid fare and applies to cash and ticket purchases; 32 

     d.  The regular prepaid fare is established as the base rate for persons nineteen 33 

years old and older using ORCA prepaid fare media; 34 

     e.  The child fare is available to persons five years and under when 35 

accompanied by a parent, guardian or other person aged sixteen or older and paying the 36 

proper fare as set forth in this chapter; 37 

     f.  The youth prepaid fare is available to persons from six through eighteen 38 

years old and persons over eighteen years old who receive valid student pass transit-fare 39 

products under K.C.C. 4A.700.450.  The youth prepaid fare shall be twenty-five percent 40 

less than the regular prepaid fare; 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 241



Ordinance  

 
 
     g.  The senior and persons with disabilities fare is available to persons who 42 

apply for and receive a regional reduced fare permit.  The permits are available to persons 43 

at least sixty-five years old and persons with disabilities as provided in the regional 44 

reduced fare permit program authorized under K.C.C. 28.94.255; 45 

     h.  A person with a disability who has been issued an "attendant ride free" 46 

permit as authorized under K.C.C. 4A.700.010 may be accompanied by an attendant, who 47 

is not required to pay a fare;  48 

     i.  A person who has paid fare may bring a bicycle onto a water taxi at no 49 

additional charge, up to the water taxi's bicycle capacity; and 50 

     j.  The low-income fare is available to persons who apply for and are 51 

determined to meet the threshold eligibility requirements for the low-income transit fare 52 

program authorized under K.C.C. 4A.700.490 and receive a valid low-income transit fare 53 

product.  The low-income fare shall be twenty-five percent less than the regular fare. 54 

 B.  A fare in subsection A. of this section is paid when a person pays the 55 

appropriate amount in cash or presents an appropriate pass, transfer or other fare payment 56 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 242



Ordinance  

 
 
media established under and used in accordance with this chapter. 57 

 SECTION 2.  This ordinance takes effect March 1, 2018. 58 

 59 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 243



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0482.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to fees charged by the medical 1 

examiner's office; amending Ordinance 11137, Section 1, 2 

as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.650.100; and amending 3 

Ordinance 17733, Section 16, as amended, and K.C.C. 4 

4A.650.150. 5 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 6 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance 11137, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.650.100 7 

are each hereby amended to read as follows:  8 

 A.  Any person, agent or company who requests and receives a copy of an 9 

autopsy report in accordance with RCW 68.50.105 shall be charged a fee of fifty dollars. 10 

 B.  Any person, agent or company who requests and receives a copy of a 11 

determination shall be charged a fee of twenty dollars. 12 

 ((C.  Revenues generated by the cremation permit shall be expended to support 13 

the King County medical examiner's office.)) 14 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 17733, Section 16, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.650.150 15 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 16 

 A person reporting a death to the medical examiner’s office of a person whose 17 

remains are to be buried, cremated or otherwise disposed of under K.C.C ((2.35A.090,)) 18 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 244



Ordinance  

 
 
2.35A.100 shall be charged a fee of ((sixty)) seventy dollars. 19 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017. 20 

 21 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 245



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 10 Name: Katherine Cortes 

Proposed No.: 2016-0482 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0482.2 increasing the fee for a body 
disposition permit issued by the Medical Examiner’s Office passed out of 
committee on November 1, 2016 with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The motion 
was amended in committee with Amendment S1 to perfect or remove references 
to state law and King County Code. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
This ordinance would increase from $60 to $70, effective January 1, 2017, the body 
disposition permit fee due to the medical examiner's office for a person whose remains 
are to be buried, cremated, or otherwise disposed of. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Medical Examiner’s Office conducts body disposition reviews to determine whether 
the circumstances surrounding each death in King County would warrant further 
investigation or invocation of the Medical Examiner’s jurisdiction prior to the destruction 
of remains.  This proposal is to raise a fee established in a more limited form in 2008 
from the current level of $60 to $70 to recover the current level of program costs. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The permit fee proposed for increase was first established in 2008 for cremation 
reviews, in the amount of $50. The table below shows the ordinance history and level of 
this fee since its inception. 
 

Year Fee Note 
2008 $50 Cremation review fee established (Ordinance 15952) 
2009 $50 

 2010 $50 
 2011 $50 Fee expanded to all body disposition (cremation & 

King County Council November 7, 2016 246



burial) (Ordinance 16973) 
2012 $50 

 2013 $50 
 

2014 $60 Fee recalculated based on cost of services provided 
(Ordinance 17692) 

2015 $60 Technical correction implementing increase 
approved for 2014 (Ordinance 18103) 

2016 $60 
 2017 $70 Proposed Increase 

 
According to Executive staff, the Medical Examiner’s Office “reviews and processes 
over 13,000 Disposition Authorizations (DA) … since inception, the DA program has 
caught over 1000 jurisdictional cases ranging from accident to homicide that would have 
gone unexamined otherwise.” This translates to an average of over 125 disposition 
reviews per year. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Executive staff further report that each disposition authorization takes approximately 40 
minutes of staff time, but that some cases (for example, cases requiring additional 
information from an outside physician) can take much longer. The MEO accommodates 
requests for expedited disposition review for religious or cultural reasons (e.g., when 
burial or cremation must occur within 24 hours following death) at no additional charge. 
   
4.2 FTE staff the DA program, including 1.5 FTE Death Investigators, 1.0 FTE 
Pathologist, and 1.7 FTE administrative support staff. Staffing costs comprise 
approximately 62 percent of the 2017-2018 proposed program budget of $1.98 million, 
with the remainder going towards operating supplies, information technology and other 
departmental and County infrastructure and administrative costs. 
 
At the proposed $70 level effective January 1, 2017, the body disposition fee is 
projected to realize $1.88 million in revenue, assuming 13,500 disposition authorization 
reviews per year. This amount is $100,000 less than the budgeted DA program 
expenditure level noted above; expenditure on this program in excess of the fee 
revenue will be borne by the General Fund. 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
Staff have prepared striking amendment S1 (and an accompanying title amendment T1) 
to correct technical errors in the ordinance. Specifically, S1 amends the proposed 
ordinance to remove superfluous descriptive language and reference to RCW, and to 
remove a superfluous and outdated fee reference from King County Code. T1 aligns the 
title with these changes. 
 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 247



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0483.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE establishing a new fund for the 1 

department of public health; and adding a new section to 2 

K.C.C. chapter 4A.200. 3 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 4 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 1.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 4A.200 5 

a new section to read as follows: 6 

 A.  There is hereby created the public health administration fund. 7 

 B.  The fund shall be a second tier fund.  It is a special revenue fund. 8 

 C.  The director of the department of public health shall be the manager of the 9 

fund. 10 

 D.  The fund shall account for administrative, leadership and overhead cost for the 11 

department of public health. 12 

 E.  The fund shall be used to support the department administrative and leadership 13 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 248



Ordinance  

 
 
activities.  The revenue in this fund shall be collected from other funds in the department 14 

of public health. 15 

 16 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 249



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 22 Name: Katherine Cortes 

Proposed No.: 2016-0483 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 
 
SUBJECT 
 
This ordinance would establish a Public Health Administration Fund (a second-tier fund, 
with any interest accruing to the General Fund) to contain Public Health departmental 
and King County administrative costs and overhead and King County central rates. This 
is an accounting measure to make these costs transparent within the Public Health 
department budget.   
 
SUMMARY 
 
The costs that will be budgeted in the Public Health Administration fund are for activities 
and expenditures supporting the operations of the entire department, including 
Contracts, Procurement and Real Estate; Finance; the Public Health Director’s Office; 
and King County central rates and Information Technology. 
 
Administrative costs in this fund are allocated to other funds and programs in the 
department using a variety of distribution methodologies.   
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Public Health Administration includes activities and expenditures supporting the 
operations of the entire department, including Contracts, Procurement and Real Estate; 
Finance; the Public Health Director’s Office; and King County central rates and 
Information Technology. 
 
The proposed budget for this fund in 2017-18 is $64,437,000, which would be entirely 
recovered from other funds and divisions within Public Health.  
 
Budget for these activities was previously reflected in the Public Health appropriation. 
The cost of the analogous Public Health administrative functions in the Public Health 
budget in 2015-16 was $61,197,610; the proposed budget for the new fund in 2017-18 
represents a 5.3 percent increase. This is attributable to standard increases in 
personnel budgets, and small changes in position authority. 
  
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 250



ANALYSIS 
 
Staff have identified no issues with this proposal, which implements in King County 
Code the fiscal structure proposed in the 2017-18 Executive Proposed budget for Public 
Health.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0483  
2. Fiscal Note 

 
INVITED 
 

1. Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 
2. Patty Hayes, Director, Public Health – Seattle and King County 

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 251



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0484.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE amending the application fee of the 1 

public benefit rating system program for open space and 2 

timber lands current use assessment provisions; and 3 

amending Ordinance 1076, Section 4, as amended, and 4 

K.C.C. 20.36.040. 5 

PREAMBLE: 6 

Current use taxation programs, as defined in chapters 84.33 and 84.34 7 

RCW, offer a property tax reduction to landowners who voluntarily 8 

preserve or manage lands within four categories: open space land or land 9 

in the public benefit rating system, farm and agriculture land, timber land 10 

and designated forest land. 11 

King County first adopted a public benefit rating system program in 1992, 12 

and a number of changes to the program have been made since to improve 13 

the program, including a fee increase in 2010.  The application fee 14 

contributes to the cost of processing the applications for participation in 15 

the public benefit rating system and additional revenue received from this 16 

proposed increase will reduce the proportion of processing costs covered 17 

by the general fund. 18 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 252



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 1.  A.  Section 2 of this ordinance amends fees currently charged 20 

related to applications for open space or timber land under the King County current use 21 

taxation program. 22 

 B.  These fees are assessed under RCW 84.34.030(2). 23 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 1076, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 20.36.040 are 24 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 25 

 A.  Except as provided in subsection B. of this section, the applicant shall pay a 26 

current use filing fee, payable to the King County finance and business operations 27 

division or its successor, in the amount of ((four hundred eighty)) one thousand two 28 

hundred dollars for each open space or timber land application and one hundred eighty 29 

one dollars for each farm and agriculture application. 30 

 B.  If an application is filed to add farm and agricultural conservation land, forest 31 

stewardship land, resource restoration, or rural stewardship land category to a parcel that 32 

is already enrolled in the public benefit rating system, no fee shall be charged for that 33 

application. 34 

 C.  In the case of all farm and agricultural land applications, whether the 35 

application is based on land within or outside of an incorporated area, the entire fee shall 36 

be collected and retained by the county.  In the case of open space or timber land 37 

applications based on land in an incorporated area of the county, where the city 38 

legislative authority has set no filing fee, the county fee shall govern and the entire fee 39 

shall be collected and retained by the county.  Where the city legislative authority has 40 

established a filing fee for open space or timber land applications based on land in an 41 

incorporated area of the county, the fee established in subsection A. of this section shall 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 253



Ordinance  

 
 
be collected by the county from the applicant and the county shall pay the city one-half of 43 

the fee collected.  The amount paid by the county to the city shall not exceed the fee 44 

established by the city.  The city shall be responsible for collecting any fees that it has 45 

established that exceed one-half of the amount established by subsection A. of this 46 

section. 47 

 48 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 254



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 12 Name: Hiedi Popochock 

Proposed No.: 2016-0484 Date: November 1-3, 2016 

 
 
SUBJECT 
 
An ORDINANCE to increase the Public Benefit Rating System application fee for 
eligible properties in King County.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
The King County Council approved Ordinance 10511 in 1992, establishing King 
County’s PBRS, intended to provide a property tax incentive to landowners to preserve 
open space land. The county’s PBRS program offers an incentive to preserve open 
space on private property in King County by providing a tax reduction based on a point 
system for eligible properties.  
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0484 would increase the King County Public Benefit Rating 
System application fee from $480 to $1,200. The Executive’s 2017-2018 Proposed 
Budget estimates $48,000 in new revenue would be collected annually due to the 
increased application fee for the PBRS program. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Public Benefit Rating System Legislative History 
 
The Open Space Taxation Act, enacted in 1970, allows property owners to have their 
open space, farm and agricultural, and timber lands valued at their current use rather 
than at their highest and best use. The Act states that it is in the best interest of the 
state to maintain, preserve, conserve, and otherwise continue in existence adequate 
open space lands for the production of food, fiber, and forest crops and to assure the 
use and enjoyment of natural resources and scenic beauty for the economic and social 
well-being of the state and its citizens.1 The state legislature had approved Chapter 
84.34 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW), granting current use assessment 
provisions for lands held as open space, agriculture, or timber lands, and describing the 
county role in a Public Benefit Rating System (PBRS). 
 

1 http://dor.wa.gov/docs/pubs/prop_tax/openspace.pdf 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 255



In 1992, the King County Council recognized the need to encourage landowners to 
preserve open space land in its natural condition, and to acknowledge the public benefit 
of such action.    The Council approved Ordinance 10511 in 1992, establishing King 
County’s PBRS, intended to provide a property tax incentive to landowners to preserve 
open space land.   
 
The county’s PBRS program offers an incentive to preserve open space on private 
property in King County by providing a tax reduction based on a point system for eligible 
properties.  
 
Property Eligibility 
 
In order to be eligible for open space classification in the PBRS program, a property 
must contain one or more qualifying open space resources and must score at least five 
points on the point system.  
 
Application Fee 
 
The current fee for the PBRS application is $480.2 The application fee for other 
jurisdictions varies based on a 2011 survey conducted by the Washington State 
Department of Revenue (Attachment 4). The fee ranges from $30 in Asotin County up 
to $4,535 in Cowlitz County. Pierce County’s application fee is $1,200 and Snohomish 
County’s application fee is $500.  
 
Application Process 
 
Executive staff state that PBRS applications may take up to six months to process. The 
following steps are completed for each PBRS application: 
 

1. Review of the PBRS application and property information; 

2. Site visit is scheduled for resource/property analysis; 

3. Review and approval of a forest stewardship, farm management, rural 

stewardship, or resource restoration plan, if required by PBRS category; 

4. Present PBRS staff report/recommendation at a scheduled public hearing or if 

property is located in the unincorporated area, then this hearing is held before 

the King County Hearing Examiner. If the property is located in a city, two 

hearings would be held; one by the city and a separate hearing by a committee 

of the Council; 

5. Affirmative action/approval required for enrollment in PBRS. If the property is 

located in the unincorporated area, then only King County Council’s action on the 

Examiner’s report is needed. If the property is located in a city, then affirmative 

action of three city council members and three county council committee 

members is needed – both the city and county must approve the application for 

enrollment to take place; 

6. County Council approval (or city/committee approval) allows for the execution of 

an Open Space Taxation Agreement; 

2 K.C.C 20.36.040  

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 256



7. DNRP staff completes legal description and final administrative actions; and 

8. Formal enrollment occurs once the signed Open Space Taxation Agreement is 

recorded by the King County Assessor. 
 
Point System of Eligible Properties 
 
Each property that is applying for the open space classification will be evaluated by the 
Department of Natural Resources and Parks (DNRP) staff according to the point system 
listed below in Table 1. 

 
Table 1. PBRS Property Point System 

 

Five Points Three Points Various Points 

 
• Public recreation area 
• Aquifer protection area 
• Farm & agriculture conservation 

land 
• Forest stewardship land 
• Historic landmark or 

archaeological site: designated 
site 

• Rural open space 
• Rural stewardship land 
• Scenic resource, viewpoint or 

view corridor 
• Significant plant or ecological 

site 
• Significant wildlife or salmonid 

habitat 
• Surface water quality buffer 
• Urban open space 
• Watershed protection area 
• Resource restoration 
• Unlimited public access 
• Limited public access because 

of resource sensitivity 
 

 
• Buffer to public & current 

use classified land 
• Historic landmark or 

archaeological site: buffer 
to designated site 

• Historic landmark or 
archaeological site:  eligible 
site 

• Special animal site 
• Environmental education 

access 
• Seasonally limited public 

access 

 
• Equestrian-pedestrian-

bicycle trail linkage   
(35 points) 

• Easement & access 
(35 points) 

• Conservation easement 
or historic preservation 
easement 
(15 points) 

• Active trail linkage 
(15 or 25 points) 

• Additional surface water 
quality buffer 
(3 or 5 points) 

• Contiguous parcels 
under separate 
ownership 
(minimal 2 points) 

• None or members only 
public access 
(0 points) 
 

 

 
Tax Reduction Determination 
 
The total points awarded for a PBRS applicant could result in a reduction between 50 to 
90 percent in the land assessed value for the portion of the property enrolled. According 
to the King County Code3, the public benefit rating system for open space land bases 
the level of assessed fair market value reduction on the total number of awarded points.  
The market value reduction establishes the current use value. This current use value 
will be expressed as a percentage of market value based on the public benefit rating of 
the property and the valuation schedule below in Table 2. 
 

 

3 K.C.C. 20.36.160 - Assessed valuation schedule-public benefit rating system for open space land 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 257



Table 2. Tax Reduction Benefit based on PBRS Point System 
  

Public Benefit Rating Tax Reduction Current Use Value 

0 – 4 points 0% 100% of market value 

5 – 10 points 50% 50% of market value 
11 – 15 points 60% 40% of market value 
16 – 20 points 70% 30% of market value 
21 – 34 points 80% 20% of market value 
35 – 52 points 90% 10% of market value 

 
PBRS Application History 
 
According to Executive staff, the number of PBRS applications has decreased 
significantly over the past two years. Table 3 below illustrates the number of 
applications received in the past 8.5 years. Executive staff also state that historically, 
rate increases have had no measurable impacts on the number of applicants. 
 

Table 3. 2008-2016 PBRS Applicant History  
  

Year Applied 
# of 

Applicants 
New (% of total) Reclassification4 

2016  (as of 6/7) 18 2 11% 16 

2015 33 12 36% 21 

2014 61 23 38% 38  

2013 55 30 55% 25 

2012 41 27 66% 14 

2011 63 42 67% 21 

2010 59 41 69% 18 

2009 71 40 56% 31 

2008 142 76 54% 66 

 
PBRS Program Compliance 
 
Executive staff indicates that the PBRS staff communicates with property owners 
throughout the application process and enrollment in the program to ensure applicants 
understand the requirements and implications of enrolling. Prior to application, PBRS 
staff provides information to help property owners determine if they are a good fit for the 
program. During the evaluation process, PBRS staff communicates regularly with 
property owners to provide them with detailed information on the requirements of 
enrollment. Applicants are provided with copies of the Staff Recommendation, Hearing 
Examiner’s Report, Notice of Ordinance, and then sign an Open Space Taxation 
Agreement, which is signed by the Chair of the Council and recorded on their deed. 
  
Executive staff also states that PBRS staff have a goal of reviewing the enrollment of 
200 properties annually. PBRS staff completes regular reviews of aerial maps, and 

4 Applicants may wish to “reclassify” their properties from or to open space land. There are three current 
use classifications: open space land, timber land and farm and agricultural land.  

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 258



conduct site visits when needed or when an enrolled property is sold. Over the last few 
years, according to Executive staff, approximately 50 to 100 properties that are enrolled 
in the program have been sold per year. At the point of the sale of the property, the King 
County Assessor’s Office notifies PBRS staff, who then communicates with the new 
property owner to make sure they understand the requirements of the PBRS program. 
Approximately 90 to 95 percent of properties that transfer through a sale remain 
enrolled in the PBRS program. 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0484 
 
The proposed ordinance would increase the PBRS application fee from $480 to $1,200, 
which would represent a 150 percent fee increase. The Executive’s 2017-2018 
proposed budget estimates $48,000 in new revenue would be collected annually due to 
the increased application fee for the PBRS program. The General Fund contributes 
approximately $668,000 of funding to operate the program for the biennium. The 2017-
2018 proposed budget would continue the $668,000 of General Fund support. 
Executive staff indicates that the $48,000 of new revenue was projected by utilizing the 
assumption that applications will decrease from 50 applications to 40 applications 
annually in the 2017-2018 biennium. 
 
Executive staff also states that the additional revenue could potentially be utilized for 
hiring a term-limited temporary (TLT) employee in 2017 or 2018 in order to assist in 
processing PBRS applications. The 2017-2018 Proposed Budget does not include a 
request for a TLT at this time. The proposed budget does include $48,000 in the 
program’s salary contingency line-item for the biennium. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed ordinance would increase the PBRS application fee from $480 to $1,200, 
which would represent a 150 percent fee increase.  
 
In Week 2 of the Physical Environment Panel discussion, Councilmembers asked 
about creating a sliding scale based on income for PBRS application fees. 
 
The Prosecuting Attorney’s Office legal (PAO) counsel did not find any significant legal 
barriers to proceeding with the creation of an income-based sliding scale for the PBRS 
application fees, so long as it is supported by an articulated policy justification.  
 
At the first Budget Reconciliation meeting, Councilmembers clarified to Council 
staff that they are interested in creating a sliding scale for PBRS application fees 
based on the amount of the tax benefit received. 
 
According to the PAO, creating a sliding scale would be legally permissible however, it 
poses an administrative issue. The problem is that the percentage of reduction of the 
tax amount is not known at the time the application is made. The statute (RCW 
84.34.030(2)) requires that the fee be paid at the time the application is filed 
(“application must be accompanied by a reasonable processing fee”). The same issue 
arises regarding application of a sliding scale based on the number of points to be 
awarded. The percentage of the reduction – that ultimately translates into a percentage 

King County Council November 7, 2016 259



of tax dollars not paid - and points to be awarded are the result of an administrative 
process culminating in a hearing before the hearing examiner, who then produces a 
recommendation, which (typically) is approved by Council through an ordinance. An 
applicant could receive a rebate of the initial application fee at the end of the process, 
once the points are known or the amount of tax reduction is known.  
 
Staff analysis of this request is ongoing. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0484 
2. Transmittal Letter 
3. Fiscal Note 
4. 2011 PBRS Application Fee Survey 

 
INVITED 
 

1. Dwight Dively, Budget Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 260



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0486.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to county property tax levies for 1 

collection in 2017; implementing RCW 84.55.0101, finding 2 

substantial need and providing for a limit factor of one 3 

hundred and one percent in accordance with RCW 4 

84.55.0101. 5 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 6 

 SECTION 1.  Findings: 7 

 A.  RCW 84.55.0101 allows the county council to set limit factors for regular 8 

property tax levies to a maximum of one hundred one percent upon a finding of 9 

substantial need. 10 

 B.  The total adopted King County budget for 2017-2018 is $10 billion and the 11 

total adopted general fund budget for 2017-2018 is $1.65 billion. 12 

 C.  The general fund and other funds are continuing to experience a fiscal 13 

shortfall that is the result of revenue growth that is not keeping pace with the increasing 14 

costs of providing services. 15 

 D.  The fiscal shortfall is expected to continue in 2018 and thereafter. 16 

 E.  King County has aggressively reviewed all expenditures in the general fund 17 

and other property-tax-supported funds for reductions and has reviewed possibilities for 18 

enhanced revenues. 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 261



Ordinance  

 
 
 F.  King County has reduced the general fund budget and other property-tax-20 

supported budgets below the amounts necessary to sustain current service levels through 21 

direct service reductions and efficiencies. 22 

 G.  The 2017-2018 Biennial Budget Ordinance assumes that property taxes 23 

increase by the one-percent limit factor and any increase less than that would require 24 

substantial direct service reductions. 25 

 H.  Because of the findings in subsections A. through G. of this section, the King 26 

County council finds that a substantial need exists for the use of property tax limit 27 

factors up to the maximum of one hundred one percent. 28 

 SECTION 2.  The limit factors to be used for county property tax levies for taxes 29 

to be collected in 2017 shall be as follows: 30 

  Levy      Limit Factor 31 

 Regular Levy     One hundred one percent 32 

 Emergency Medical Services (EMS)  One hundred one percent 33 

 County Road District    One hundred one percent 34 

 Conservation Futures    One hundred one percent35 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 262



Ordinance  

 
 
 Transit      One hundred one percent 36 

 Marine      One hundred one percent 37 

 38 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 263



Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item: 17, 18, 19, 20 Name: Patrick Hamacher 

Proposed No.: 2016-0485 

2016-0486 

2016-0487 

2016-0496 

Date: October 25-27, 2016 

SUBJECT:  

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0486 and Proposed Ordinance 2016-0487 are two 
ordinances necessary to levy property taxes for 2017. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0486 
declares substantial need of the county in order to implement a 1% levy increase. 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0487 is known as the sunshine ordinance and it declares tax 
increases in both dollar and percentage values.  

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0485 and Proposed Ordinance 2016-0496 would complete 
the levy certifications for 2016 (for collection in 2017). 

SUMMARY: 

This staff report provides background and analysis for the ordinances relating to property 
tax levies for 2016 for the County and for other taxing districts within King County. 

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0487 relates to the County’s property tax levies for collection in 
2015 and the percentage by which these levies will increase over the 2014 levies.  This 
ordinance, often referred to as the “Sunshine Ordinance”, is required by State law if a 
taxing district wishes to increase its levies by the lesser of 1% or the implicit price deflator. 
The Executive has proposed increasing levies by 1% over the prior year’s levies, with a 
couple exceptions which will be discussed later.  

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0486 is known as the substantial need ordinance which allows 
the taxing districts in Washington to increase taxes by 1%, even if the Implicit Price 
Deflator is below one percent provided that they make a declaration of substantial need. 
This ordinance would make the declaration of substantial need and allow the property tax 
levies to take a 1% increase.  

King County Council November 7, 2016 264



Proposed Ordinances 2016-0485 and 2016-0496 are known as the levy certification 
ordinances whereby the County Legislative Authority certifies the levies for all taxing 
districts in the County.  

ANALYSIS: 

King County levies property taxes for various purposes: 

• The County's regular levy of up to $1.80 per $1,000 of assessed value (AV) is for
general County purposes and is levied county-wide.  This levy, referred to broadly
as the Current Expense Levy, actually provides property tax funding for a variety of
County funds.  For 2017, the levy would provide funding for the general fund, AFIS,
mental health, veterans’ relief, parks, transit, children and family justice center and
veterans and human services.

• The Unincorporated Area Levy (UAL) of up to $2.25 per $1,000 of AV has
historically been limited to constructing, improving or maintaining roads and bridges
and any service provided in the unincorporated area.  This levy is assessed only in
unincorporated King County.

• The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) levy was renewed by the voters in
November 2013.  The renewed levy set a new base rate for the EMS levy.  In 2017,
the EMS levy is projected to be $123 million at a rate of $0.027 per $1,000 of AV.

• Voters approved a new parks and recreation levy in August 2013.  This levy was
added to the tax rolls in 2014 at a rate of $0.1877 per $1,000 of AV and collecting
$70.3 million in 2017 at a rate of $0.153

• The Conservation Futures levy is a county-wide levy.  The taxes collected for
Conservation Futures are restricted to preservation of open space.  The rate cannot
exceed $0.0625 per $1,000 of AV. In 2017 it will generate $19.4 with a rate of
$0.042 $1,000 of AV.

• The voters, at the August 2012 election approved a new levy for the construction
and rebuild of the Youth and Family Justice Center located at 12th and Alder. For
2017, that levy is projected to generate $24.3 million at a rate of $0.053 per $1,000
AV.

• The voters have authorized a levy to replace the region’s aging emergency radio
system. This levy, known as the PSERN levy, is expected to generate $30.5 million
at a rate of $0.066 per $1,000 AV for collection in 2017.

• Finally, the County’s newest lid-lift levy, the Best Starts for Kids Levy, is projected to
generate $62.1 million at a rate of $0.135 per $1,000 AV in 2017.

Current Expense Levy or General Fund Levy:  The Executive has proposed and based 
the 2017 proposed budget on a property tax levy increase of 1% plus new construction 
for 

King County Council November 7, 2016 265



the Current Expense Levy.  As discussed later in the report, the Executive and Council 
must declare substantial need under ordinance 2016-0486 to take the one percent as the 
Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) is below 1% for this year.  

Table 1 shows the estimate of the Current Expense Levy developed by the Executive for 
budget preparation purposes.  These estimates include new construction.  However, the 
assessed values for new construction and for public utility new construction have not been 
finalized.  The actual levy amounts are therefore subject to change.  

Table 1: Current Expense Levy 

Amount Totals 

Regular Levy: 

Current Expense 344,735,000 

Mental Health 6,500,000 

Veterans 2,900,000 

Intercounty River Improvement 50,000 

Total Regular Levy $354,185,000 
Lid Lifts: 

AFIS $20,939,000 

Veterans and Human Services 18,542,000 

Parks 70,288,000 

Children & Family Justice Center 24,414,000 

PSERN 30,479,000 

Best Starts for Kids 62,135,000 

Total Lid Lifts $226,797,000 
Grand Total $580,982,000 

As shown in the table, while an estimated total of $580 million is to be levied for current 
expenses, the levy actually funds a variety of programs.  The Mental Health and Veterans 
Relief distributions are levied in accordance with State statutes.1 

In total, the Current Expense Levy plus the lid-lift levies bring the County’s regular levy to 
$1.26 per $1,000 AV.  As a reminder, counties in Washington State are allowed to levy up 
to a maximum of $1.80 per $1,000 AV. This leaves the County with just under 58 cents 
(31%) of available levy capacity.  However, many areas of the County are experiencing 
levy suppression issues where the County’s levy plus all of the other taxing districts are 
currently projected to exceed the $5.90 per $1,000 AV aggregate limit in 2015. 

EMS Levy – The County also levies a county-wide property tax for Emergency 
Management Services.  This levy is not part of the Current Expense Levy.  A new EMS 
Levy was approved by the voters in 2013 at a beginning rate of $0.335 per $1,000 of 
assessed value.  The levy for 2016 is estimated to generate $123 million, a rate of $0.267 
per $1,000 of AV.  

1 In previous years, the levy also funded debt service on outstanding limited tax general obligation bonds. 

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 266



Unincorporated Area Levy (Road Levy) – State law also authorizes counties to collect a 
property tax, in the unincorporated area only, for the purpose of raising revenue for 
establishing, laying out, constructing, altering, repairing, improving, and maintaining county 
roads, bridges, and wharves necessary for vehicle ferriage and for other proper county 
purposes.  This levy cannot exceed $2.25 per $1,000 of assessed value.  The levy is 
limited to a 1% annual growth rate plus new construction.  For 2016, the Road Levy is 
projected to be $87.6 million, roughly $7.1 million more than the 2014 levy. This translates 
into a rate of $2.25 per $1,000 of AV, the statutory maximum. The Roads levy has banked 
taxation authority and because of this can be allowed to increase by just over 6% that is 
proposed as part of the Executive’s budget.   

Transit – In 2009, the Washington State Legislature passed SB 5433 which allowed all 
counties in the state with a population in excess of 1,500,000 to levy a property tax up to 
7.5 cents per $1,000 of AV for expanding transit capacity and capacity related expenses. 
The first 1 cent of this levy must be used for bus service on State Route 520.  For 2016, 
the Executive is proposing to levy $23.1 million with an estimated rate of $0.05. As part of 
his proposed plan to increase funding for the passenger only ferry system, the executive is 
proposing to levy approximately one cent less than allowed for Transit and increase the 
ferry levy by the same amount so that the taxpayer sees no increase.  

Ferry Levy – When the Ferry District was originally formed, the District Board had a 
broader vision than the current two passenger only runs from Vashon Island and West 
Seattle to downtown Seattle. As such, the initial levies were larger and a significant fund 
balance accumulated over time. For the last several years, the Ferry levy has been a 
fraction of a cent per $1,000 AV. This year, the levy was $0.00349 (or roughly 1/3 of a cent 
per $1,000 AV). The fund balance has now been exhausted and the Executive has 
proposed increase the levy to $0.0125 per $1,000 AV (one and one quarter cent per 
$1,000 AV). As noted above, the Executive has proposed an equivalent reduction in the 
Transit property tax as discussed above.  

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0487 would fulfill the County’s legal obligation to disclose the 
percentage increase that the 2017 levies will have over the 2016 levies, as required by 
Referendum 47 (the state law that requires disclosure of tax increases).  The calculation 
excludes the levy addition for new construction. Except for the changes to the Marine, 
Transit and Roads levy (previously discussed), all other levies are increasing by 1% or 
less. The actual percentages in the Sunshine Ordinance vary from about 0.75% to 1.2% 
because of various technical changes and other limitations.   

The County Charter requires the budget, including both revenue and appropriation 
ordinances, to be adopted by December 1.  Therefore, action on this ordinance is 
expected to be taken prior to the adoption of the County budget.  

An amendment to Proposed Ordinance 2016-0487 is expected to be prepared to update 
the property tax levy figures to align with the most recent forecast of the Office of 
Economic and Financial Analysis.  Those figures, and the amendment, are expected prior 
to the committee vote on levies.  

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 267



Proposed Ordinance 2016-0485 is the levy certification ordinance and is necessary for 
the Treasury Section of the Finance and Business Operations Division to issue property 
tax statements in the correct amounts.  State law requires that the county legislative 
authority establish the levy amounts for the county and for all other taxing districts in the 
county.  Proposed Ordinance 2016-0485 certifies the levies of all taxing districts in King 
County.  This ordinance is usually adopted by the Council after adoption of the budget. 
The ordinance requires information from the Assessor’s Office and the taxing districts that 
will not be available until early December. This ordinance is typically passed from 
Committee without recommendation and held at full Council until December.  

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0496 is identical to Proposed Ordinance 2016-0485 (as 
introduced).  The Budget and Fiscal Management Committee may wish to pass this 
proposed ordinance out of committee without recommendation, to be held at the full 
Council.  This ordinance may be needed if additional information is received from taxing 
districts that change levy amounts.  This is a placeholder ordinance that can be acted upon 
in either December or January if any districts (or the county) discover errors or other 
changes to their property tax ordinances.  

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0486 is known as the “substantial need” ordinance. Under 
state law and the requirements of Referendum 47. The taxing districts in the State can 
take the lesser of 1% or inflation as determined by the Implicit Price Deflator, a somewhat 
obscure measure of inflation that is rarely used. For this year, the IPD is less than 1% and 
therefore the county needs to make a declaration of substantial need to take the 1% 
increase for the general fund.  

AMENDMENT: 

Amendment 1 to Proposed Ordinance 2016-0487 will be prepared for the committee 
vote on revenue ordinances. The other three ordinances can be passed as introduced with 
the note that the levy certification ordinances will need to be amended at full Council to 
insert the proper final numbers.  

INVITED: 
1. Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget
2. Dave Reich, Chief Economist, Office of Economic and Financial Analysis

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0485
2. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0486
3. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0487
4. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0496

King County Council November 7, 2016 268



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0488.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to revenues from the sales and 1 

use tax on retail car rentals, amending the name and uses of 2 

the fund receiving such revenues; and amending Ordinance 3 

12076, Section 26, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.810, 4 

and Ordinance 10454, Sections 1 through 2, as amended, 5 

and K.C.C. 4A.500.200. 6 

STATEMENT OF FACTS: 7 

1.  King County imposes a one-percent retail rental car sales and use tax 8 

allowed by RCW 82.14.049.  The statute allows proceeds of the tax to be 9 

used solely for the following purposes:  (a) acquiring, constructing, 10 

maintaining, or operating public sports stadium facilities; (b) engineering, 11 

planning, financial, legal, or professional services incidental to public 12 

sports stadium facilities; (c) youth or amateur sport activities or facilities; 13 

or (d) debt or refinancing debt issued for the purposes of RCW 14 

82.14.049(1). 15 

2.  Under subsection RCW 82.14.049(2), at least seventy-five percent of 16 

the tax proceeds must be used to service the debt on the stadium until the 17 

debt is fully retired. 18 

3.  In 2016, King County fully retired its debt on the Kingdome Stadium. 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 269



Ordinance  

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 20 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance 12076, Section 26, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.810 21 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 22 

 A.  There is hereby created the youth and amateur sports ((facilities grant)) fund. 23 

 B.  The fund shall be a first tier fund.  It is a special revenue fund. 24 

 C.  The director of the department of natural resources and parks shall be the 25 

manager of the fund. 26 

 D.  The fund shall be used ((to develop, renovate or repair sports facilities 27 

primarily serving persons under twenty-one years of age in low and moderate income 28 

communities within county via an annual request for proposal process integrated as much 29 

as possible with the community development block grant program)) for youth or amateur 30 

sports activities or facilities.  Administrative costs shall be minimized and leveraging of 31 

moneys from other sources encouraged. 32 

 E.  For the purposes of this section, "sports facility" means any structure or field 33 

that is intended to be used primarily for athletic purposes. 34 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 10454, Sections 1 through 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 35 

4A.500.200 are each hereby amended to read as follows: 36 

 A.  There is hereby levied a sales or use tax, as the case may be, in addition to the 37 

tax authorized by RCW 82.14.030, upon retail car rentals within the county that are 38 

taxable by the state under chapters 82.08 and 82.12 RCW.  The rate of the tax shall be 39 

one percent of the selling price in the case of a sales tax or rental value of the vehicle in 40 

the case of a use tax.  "Rental car" means a passenger car, as defined in RCW 46.04.382, 41 

that is used solely by a rental car business for rental to others, without a driver provided 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 270



Ordinance  

 
 
by the rental car business, for periods of not more than thirty consecutive days.  "Rental 43 

car" does not include vehicles rented or loaned to customers by automotive repair 44 

business while the customer's vehicle is under repair and vehicles licensed and operated 45 

as taxicabs. 46 

 B.  ((Twenty-five percent of the car rental sales and use tax collections shall be 47 

deposited in the youth sports facilities grant fund.))  Moneys in the youth and amateur 48 

sports ((facilities grant)) fund shall only be expended for youth or amateur sports 49 

activities or facilities and debt service payments for debt or refinancing debt issued for 50 

those purposes.  ((The remaining seventy-five percent of the rental sales and use tax 51 

collections shall be deposited in the stadium operating fund and shall only be expended 52 

for the financing of stadium capital facilities.))  Proceeds of this tax shall be deposited in 53 

the youth and amateur sports fund and shall not be used to subsidize any professional 54 

sports team.  ((The proceeds of this tax shall also not be used to supplant existing55 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 271



Ordinance  

 
 
stadium capital improvement or youth sports facilities funding sources.)) 56 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017. 57 

 58 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 272



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 13 Name: Mary Bourguignon 

Proposed No.: 2016-0488 Date: November 1, 2016 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0488.2, which would make the Code change 
necessary to allow the County to spend the car rental tax, passed out of 
committee on November 1, 2016, with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The motion 
was amended in committee with Amendments S1 and T1 to allow the full range of 
State-permitted uses for this revenue source, including youth or amateur sport 
activities or facilities and debt service payments to support debt financing for 
those purposes. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0488 would make the Code changes necessary to allow 
King County to use the entire State-authorized car rental tax for youth sports and 
recreation.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
Under State law,1 King County is authorized to impose a one percent rental car tax. The 
State law requires that at least 75 percent of this tax be used to service the debt on the 
Kingdome.2 The remaining 25 percent of the car rental tax has been used for another 
State-approved use, youth sports and recreation, specifically, the Youth Sports Facilities 
Grant Program. 
 
Because the Kingdome debt has been retired, State law permits King County to use all 
the proceeds from the car rental tax on youth sports and recreation programs. Proposed 
Ordinance 2016-0488 would make the Code changes3 necessary to allow all proceeds 
from the car rental tax to be used for youth sports and recreation programs. Per the 
Executive’s proposal (see Attachment 3), the funds would be disbursed through four 
programs: 

1 RCW 82.14.049 
2 RCW 82.14.049(2) 
3 K.C.C. 4A.200.810, 4A.500.200 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 273



 

• Youth Sports Facilities Grants. Capital matching grants primarily to serve 

youth in low and moderate income areas. 

• Recreational Access Grants. Non-capital grants to increase access to sports 

for youth in low and moderate income areas. 

• Park and Recreation Improvement Grants. Capital grants for youth sports and 

recreation facilities in low and moderate income areas. 

• Recreation Programs in Underserved Areas. Funding for County Parks 

programs in low and moderate income areas. 
 
  

King County Council November 7, 2016 274



BACKGROUND  
 
Under State law,4 King County is authorized to impose a one percent rental car tax. The 
State law requires that at least 75 percent of this tax be used to service the debt on the 
Kingdome.5 The remaining 25 percent of the car rental tax has been used for another 
State-approved use, youth sports and recreation, specifically, the Youth Sports Facilities 
Grant Program.  
 

• Youth Sports Facilities Grants (YSFG). Twenty-five percent of the car rental 
tax revenue stream6 has been used to provide matching grant funds to develop 
or renovate sports fields and facilities serving youth in King County.7 These 
grants have been focused on providing athletic opportunities for as many youth 
as possible, with a particular focus on underserved areas. 

 
Under the YSFG Program, funding is provided to eligible public entities and non-
profit organizations.8 The maximum award is $75,000. Applicants seeking 
funding must provide a local match of 1:2,9 which means they must provide one 
dollar in cash, volunteer labor, donated supplies, or professional services for 
every two dollars requested.  
 
The YSFG program was originally designed to “primarily serve persons under 
twenty-one years of age in low and moderate income communities.”10 That has 
been operationalized in the program guidelines to provide additional points 
during the application phase to projects that are either:  
 
(a) Located in a Census tract in which 51 percent or more of the population earns 

80 percent or less of the median income; or  
 
(b) Located at an elementary school at which 40 percent or more of the students 

are enrolled in the National School Lunch Program. 
 
Because the Kingdome debt has been retired, State law permits King County to use all 
the proceeds from the car rental tax for “youth or amateur sport activities or facilities.”11 
The Executive has proposed to retain the YSFG Program and to fund three new youth 
sports and recreation programs with the additional funds (Attachment 3). These are: 
 

4 RCW 82.14.049 
5 RCW 82.14.049(2) 
6 A total of $2.3 million is proposed for the 2017-2018 biennium, with $883,950 proposed in grants for 
2017 
7 Ordinance 10454 
8 Eligible entities include such as school districts, park districts, utility districts, local governments, youth 
sports leagues and community organizations 
9 This local match was lowered from 1:2 to 1:4 in 2012 (Motion 13763) as a way of encouraging more 
applicants, particularly applicants from underserved areas. In 2014, the Executive responded with a 
report analyzing grant proposals in 2013 and 2014, and recommended restoring the match to 1:2 (Motion 
14254). 
10 KCC 4A.200.810 
11 RCW 82.14.049 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 275



• Recreational Access Grants. A portion of the car rental tax would be used for 

grants of up to $250,000 for non-capital items to increase access to sports 

opportunities for low-income youth. Items to be funded could include 

transportation, equipment, team fees, etc. 
 

• Park and Recreation Improvement Grants. A portion of the car rental tax 

would be used for capital grants of up to $300,000. This program would be 

similar to the traditional YSFG grants but would allow for larger grants and a 

lower (or no) local match. Grants would be focused on historically underserved 

communities. 
 

• Recreation Programs in Underserved Areas. The final portion of the car rental 

tax would be used to expand recreation programs in underserved areas. The 

Executive proposes to begin in urban unincorporated King County, including 

Skyway and East Federal Way. Uses for this portion of the funds would include 

staffing, program expenses, and capital improvements to County-owned parks in 

low and moderate income communities. 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0488 would make the Code changes12 necessary to allow all 
proceeds from the car rental tax to be used for youth sports and recreation programs as 
described above.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed ordinance is consistent with State law, although State law allows for 
broader usage than simply for youth, permitting funds to be allocated to “youth or 
amateur sport activities or facilities.”13 The proposed Code changes, as transmitted, 
would allow the entirety of the proceeds from the car rental tax to be used for youth 
sports and recreation programs.  
 
The proposed ordinance does not provide specific guidance for the new 75 percent of 
funds, except for the requirement that these funds, “shall be used to provide grants and 
programs that provide recreation for youth from low and moderate income communities 
in King County.”14 (Emphasis added) 
 
Councilmembers will wish to determine how the car rental tax funding should be 
disbursed, and amend the transmitted legislation accordingly. 
 

 
 

12 K.C.C. 4A.200.810, 4A.500.200 
13 RCW 82.14.049 
14 Proposed Ordinance 2016-0488 Lines 33-35 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 276



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0489.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to the Strategic Climate Action 1 

Plan; amending K.C.C. chapter 18.25, Strategic Climate 2 

Action Plan, in accordance with the 2015/2016 Biennial 3 

Budget Ordinance, Ordinance 17941, Section 104, Proviso 4 

P1, as amended; and amending Ordinance 17270, Section 5 

2, and K.C.C. 18.25.010 and Ordinance 17166, Section 2, 6 

as amended, and K.C.C. 18.50.010. 7 

PREAMBLE: 8 

Climate change is one of the paramount challenges of our generation. 9 

King County is already experiencing the impacts of a changing climate: 10 

warming temperatures, acidifying marine waters, rising seas, increasing 11 

flooding risk, decreasing mountain snowpack, and less water in the 12 

summer.  Climate change will have long-term consequences for the 13 

economy, the environment and public health and safety in King County. 14 

King County has a long record of innovation, leadership and investment in 15 

reducing greenhouse gas emissions and preparing for the impacts of 16 

climate change.  Consideration of climate change impacts and 17 

opportunities to reduce energy use and greenhouse gas emissions are 18 

deeply embedded throughout the work plans and capital investments of 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 277



Ordinance  

 
 

county departments and lines of business.  Since 2007, the investments in 20 

energy efficiency and changes in operations have reduced normalized 21 

building energy use by more than twenty percent, generating over three 22 

million dollars in annual savings.  King County Metro has pioneered the 23 

use of hybrid bus technology, and the county is on track to have an all-24 

hybrid or electric bus fleet by 2018.  King County is now producing 25 

renewable energy equivalent to more than one hundred percent of total 26 

operational energy use, excluding public transit vehicles. 27 

The county's first Strategic Climate Action Plan was adopted in 2012 and 28 

updated in 2015, consistent with K.C.C. chapter 18.25.  The 2015 update 29 

to the Strategic Climate Action Plan maps specific pathways and actions 30 

needed to achieve the ambitious countywide climate goals of reducing 31 

greenhouse gas emissions by eighty percent by 2050.  It also integrates the 32 

county’s energy efficiency and renewable energy commitments and 33 

outlines how the county will partner with cities, businesses and the civic 34 

sector to lead the nation in demonstrating successful climate solutions. 35 

The 2015 Strategic Climate Action Plan update responds to the 2014 36 

performance audit of the 2012 Strategic Climate Action Plan.  The 37 

performance audit made four recommendations: 38 

1.  Ensure that the 2015 Strategic Climate Action Plan update and its 39 

subsequent implementation and monitoring are informed by input from a 40 

broad representation of community stakeholders in King County; 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 278



Ordinance  

 
 

2.  Establish explicit, and whenever possible, quantifiable connections 42 

between the overarching climate goals and specific strategies and actions; 43 

3.  Incorporate verifiable economic analysis of the cost-effectiveness of 44 

current and potential actions to reach Strategic Climate Action Plan 45 

targets; and 46 

4.  Ensure there is an effective management structure and sufficient 47 

resources in place to conduct the 2015 Strategic Climate Action Plan 48 

update. 49 

In the report to the King County council dated August 4, 2015, the auditor 50 

noted that "…the county executive provided an effective management 51 

structure for strategic planning and that the updated Strategic Climate 52 

Action Plan established explicit connections between actions and goals 53 

based on rigorous technical analysis.  The update has also made 54 

substantive progress in strengthening community engagement and cost-55 

effectiveness analysis of climate actions." 56 

The updated 2015 Strategic Climate Action Plan was unanimously 57 

adopted by the King County council in November 2015. 58 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 59 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance 17270, Section 2, and K.C.C. 18.25.010 are each hereby 60 

amended to read as follows: 61 

 A.1.  The executive shall develop a strategic climate action plan ((that uses the 62 

King County Strategic Plan 2010-2014, adopted by Ordinance 16897, as the organizing 63 

framework.  The first strategic climate action plan shall be transmitted by June 29, 2012, 64 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 279



Ordinance  

 
 
with a motion adopting the plan.  Given the relatively short timeframe for completion of 65 

the initial climate strategic plan, the scope will focus primarily on county operations and 66 

activities that the county can influence through its direct operations, and will integrate 67 

and refine current policies, plans, interlocal collaborations, and performance measures)) 68 

to establish long-term targets and guide actions within county services and operations to 69 

reduce greenhouse gas emissions and adapt to a changing climate, consistent with the 70 

King County Strategic Plan.  The strategic climate action plan shall include the 71 

following: 72 

     a.  the identification of specific ((objectives)) goals, strategies, measures, 73 

targets and priority actions for ((reducing)) county services and operations to reduce 74 

emissions ((and mitigating climate impacts)) consistent with the countywide goal of 75 

reducing greenhouse gas emissions twenty-five percent by 2020, fifty percent by 2030 76 

and eighty percent by 2050, compared to a 2007 baseline.  The ((list of strategies shall be 77 

sufficiently detailed to provide clear guidance on how King County can directly affect the 78 

outcomes of reducing emissions and addressing the impact of climate change in King 79 

County)) strategic climate action plan should address five goal areas for reducing 80 

greenhouse gas emissions:  transportation and land use; building and facilities energy; 81 

green building; consumption and materials management, including the environmental 82 

purchasing program; and forestry and agriculture.  The strategic climate action plan 83 

should establish explicit and, whenever possible, quantifiable connections between the 84 

overarching climate goals and specific strategies and actions; 85 

     b.  ((related strategies, program activities and targets the 2010 Energy Plan 86 

adopted by Motion 13368, given the highly dependent relationship of reductions in 87 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 280



Ordinance  

 
 
climate pollution of both energy efficiency improvements and the strategic climate action 88 

plan)) the current assessment of climate change impacts in King County and 89 

identification of goals, strategies, measures, targets and priority actions within county 90 

services and county operations to address climate change impacts; ((and)) 91 

     c.  performance measures and related targets for both operational emissions and 92 

implementation of priority strategies that advance the strategic climate action plan and 93 

provide for assessment of progress relative to overarching climate goals at the community 94 

scale; and 95 

     d.  an assessment of cost effectiveness for key county services and operations 96 

building on the pilot cost effectiveness assessment in the 2015 strategic climate action 97 

plan update. 98 

   2.  Consistent with the county's strategic planning cycle, updates will occur at 99 

least every five years, unless more frequent updates are needed to respond to changing 100 

information about emissions sources, performance relative to targets, new technologies, 101 

or a changing regulatory context.  The executive shall transmit updates to the strategic 102 

climate action plan to the council for adoption by motion. 103 

   3.  In developing future updates to the ((King County)) strategic climate action 104 

plan, the executive shall continue to review climate change-related plans being developed 105 

by other municipalities, including the city of Seattle's climate action plan, and identify 106 

((any)) opportunities ((for partnerships with cities or strategies or activities that could be 107 

incorporated as part of the King County climate strategic plan)) and strengthen 108 

recommendations for partnership with cities, businesses and nonprofit organizations to 109 

advance actions to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and prepare for climate change 110 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 281



Ordinance  

 
 
impacts.  Future updates shall also continue to strengthen engagement of communities 111 

most impacted by climate change, review and address the disproportionate impacts of 112 

climate change, and develop solutions in a manner consistent with Ordinance 16948 113 

establishing the county's fair and just principle. 114 

   ((3.)) 4.  The council recognizes that ((the climate change related strategies 115 

identified in the King County Strategic Plan 2010-2014 may benefit from revision and 116 

thus the strategies identified for the climate action plan transmitted by June 29, 2012,)) 117 

science related to climate change and successful climate solutions is evolving, and the 118 

strategic climate action plan should build upon and refine the strategies, activities((,)) and 119 

performance targets ((identified as part of the King County Strategic Plan 2010-2014)) in 120 

accordance with best available science, practices and progress toward emissions 121 

reductions targets. 122 

   ((4.  Subsequently, the executive shall transmit an update to the strategic climate 123 

action plan by June 29, 2015, for adoption by motion.)) 124 

 5.  Future ((U))updates shall include the requirements of subsection A.1. of this 125 

section ((and should also identify community-level actions the county can implement to 126 

reduce climate pollution and prepare for the impacts of climate change. Given the strong 127 

interdependence between climate emissions and energy use, the King County Energy 128 

Plan will be combined and integrated with the 2012 update of the strategic climate action 129 

plan. 130 

   5.  Consistent with the county's strategic planning cycle, updates after 2015 will 131 

occur at least every five years, unless more frequent updates are needed to respond to 132 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 282



Ordinance  

 
 
changing information about emissions sources, performance relative to targets, new 133 

technologies, or a changing regulatory context)). 134 

   6.  Progress in achieving strategic climate action plan performance measure 135 

targets and accomplishment of priority actions identified in subsection A.1.((c.)) of this 136 

section, as well as findings outlining recommendations for changes in policies, priorities 137 

and capital investments, shall be reported and transmitted to council ((annually)) 138 

biennially.  The progress report shall be included as part of the report required in K.C.C. 139 

18.50.010. 140 

 B.  Future updates to climate-related objectives and strategies in the King County 141 

Strategic Plan should be informed by the strategic climate action plan. 142 

 C.  The executive must transmit the legislation and reports required to be 143 

submitted by this section in the form of a paper original and an electronic copy with the 144 

clerk of the council, who shall retain the original and provide an electronic copy to all 145 

councilmembers, the council chief of staff and the lead staff for the transportation, 146 

economy and environment committee or its successor. 147 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 17166, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 18.50.010 are 148 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 149 

 The executive shall transmit by June 30 of ((each)) every other year a report on 150 

the county's major environmental sustainability programs intended to reduce energy use, 151 

climate emissions and resource use and prepare for the impacts of climate change, as 152 

required in subsections A., B. and C. of this section.  The executive shall transmit the 153 

report to council, filed in the form of a paper original and an electronic copy with the 154 

clerk of the council, who shall retain the original and provide an electronic copy to all 155 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 283



Ordinance  

 
 
councilmembers, the council chief of staff and the lead staff for the transportation 156 

economy and environment committee or its successor.  ((The report shall cover the 157 

climate change, energy, green building and environmental purchasing programs.  For 158 

each of these programs, the executive shall describe the major accomplishments and 159 

include a summary of performance relative to key environmental goals and indicators, 160 

challenges and opportunities and recommendations.))  The report shall be structured in a 161 

way that links actual performance to established goals and indicators and can ((guide)) 162 

inform policy choices, program priorities ((,)) and investments in capital projects.  ((The 163 

report required in K.C.C. 18.25.010.A.6 shall be included as part of the report.)) The 164 

report should address the following: 165 

 A.  ((The climate change program)) Greenhouse gas emissions reductions, 166 

including: 167 

   1.  Progress towards achieving ((T)) the overarching greenhouse gas emissions 168 

reduction targets for both county government operations and the county as a whole ((and 169 

actions to reduce operational and community scale greenhouse gas emissions.)); 170 

   2.  ((Specific climate mitigation and adaptation strategies, performance measures 171 

and targets)) Progress against targets and measures and updates on the implementation of 172 

strategies and priority actions in five goal areas for the strategic climate action plan:  173 

transportation and land use; building and facilities energy; green building; consumption 174 

and materials management, including the environmental purchasing program; and 175 

forestry and agriculture; and 176 

   3.  ((All)) A summary of major expenses associated with the climate impacts 177 

research, community-scale emissions inventories, climate change ((program)) community 178 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 284



Ordinance  

 
 
engagement, and climate change and energy efficiency partnerships with businesses and 179 

cities; 180 

 ((4.  A cost-benefit analysis of the program;)) 181 

 B.  ((The energy program, including energy targets established in the 2010 Energy 182 

Plan)) An update on implementation of climate preparedness strategies and priority 183 

actions recommended in the current strategic climate action plan; and 184 

 C.  The green building program, ((including: 185 

   1.  The total number of capital projects for which a division is responsible, and 186 

the number of LEED projects and other sustainable development projects, such as 187 

historic restoration and adaptive reuse, and their status; 188 

   2.  The additional costs associated with achieving LEED certification; 189 

   3.  The total number of non-LEED projects that have completed a sustainable 190 

development scorecard; 191 

   4.  The green strategies employed; 192 

   5.  The operations and maintenance costs for all completed projects 193 

incorporating green building principles and practices and projects incorporating 194 

renewable energy or energy efficiency components, as well as the operations and 195 

maintenance costs that were projected before construction; 196 

   6.  The reductions in greenhouse gas emissions; 197 

   7.  The construction waste recycled; renewable resources used; 198 

   8.  The green materials used; and 199 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 285



Ordinance  

 
 
   9.  The fiscal performance of all projects incorporating green building principles 200 

and practices including an accounting of all project costs and benefits that can be 201 

quantified, documented and verified; and 202 

 D.  The environmental purchasing program, including: 203 

   1.  Quantities, costs and types of recycled and other environmentally preferable 204 

products purchased, and quantities of computers and electronics recycled; 205 

   2.  A summary of savings achieved through the purchase of recycled and other 206 

environmentally preferable products; 207 

   3.  A summary of program promotional efforts; and 208 

   4.  Recommendations for changes in procurement policies)) as required in 209 

K.C.C. 18.17.020.M.1. 210 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance amends K.C.C. chapter 18.25, in accordance with 211 

10 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 286



Ordinance  

 
 
the 2015/2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance, Ordinance 17941, Section 104, Proviso P1, as 212 

amended. 213 

 214 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

11 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 287



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 31 Name: Jenny Giambattista  

Proposed No.: 2016-0489 Date: November 1-3, 2016 

 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0489 updates requirements in KCC 18.25 related to the 
Strategic Climate Action Plan. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0489 would make changes to King County Code sections 
18.25 and 18.50 related to the Strategic Climate Action Plan (SCAP). The changes are 
in response to a proviso in the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance 17941, Section 
104, Proviso P1. The changes are also intended to update the planning and reporting 
requirements in code related to climate change so they are consistent with the 
organization of 2015 Strategic Climate Action Plan. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0489 
would also change the progress report requirement from annually to biennially. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The 2015-2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance 17941, Section 17941, Section 104, Proviso 
P1 which restricts expenditure of $200,000 by the Department of Natural Resources 
Administration until a proposed ordinance amending King County Code, title 18.25 is 
adopted by the King County Council.  
 
The proviso requires that “the ordinance shall include, but not be limited to: 
amendments to the requirements of K.C.C. chapter 18.25; legislative findings on 
how the King County Auditor's recommendations have been incorporated into the 
2015 action plan; and establishment of objective, measurable and accountable 
strategies to achieve the County's greenhouse gas reduction and other action plan 
priorities.” 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0492 meets the requirements of the proviso outlined above. 
In addition, the ordinance proposes to change the requirement for progress reports from 
annually to biennially (see line 140 of Po 2016-0489).  
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 288



Consistent with the proviso, Proposed Ordinance includes findings outlining the 
Auditor’s recommendations from the 2014 SCAP performance audit as well as the 
Auditor’s conclusions from a follow-up review. The proposed changes to K.C.C. title 
18.25 reflect recommendations from the Auditor to establish explicit quantifiable 
connections between the overarching climate goals and specific strategies and actions 
and to strengthen public engagement in the development of SCAP updates. The 
proposed changes also reflect: 
 

• the organization of the 2015 SCAP with two sections: reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions and preparing for climate impacts; 

• the five goal areas for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and the organizing 
framework of goals, strategies, measures, targets, and priority actions for each of 
five goal areas; 

• the grouping of priority actions into County services and County operations; 

• additional emphasis on community engagement, equity and social justice, and 
partnerships with the private sector, and 

• the Auditor’s recommendation for assessment of cost effectiveness. 
 
Additional changes are proposed to the reporting requirements specified under K.C.C. 
title 18.50, consistent with the organization of the 2015 SCAP update, including the 
incorporation of energy plan commitments and development of a green building goal 
area. 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0489 also amends K.C.C. Title 18.25 highlight the need to 
strengthen community engagement, consider Equity and Social Justice impacts, and to 
be consistent with the County’s Fair and Just Ordinance. 
 
The proposed ordinance would eliminate some specific reporting requirements related 
to Environmental Purchasing program. The Executive proposes to delete the existing 
reporting requirements for the environmental purchasing program an instead align the 
reporting requirements with the SCAP commitments.   
 
Under the proposed ordinance, the Executive would be required to report against the 
SCAP targets and measures and updates on the implementation of strategies and 
priority actions for the consumption and materials management goal area and the 
environmental purchasing program. The EPP related SCAP report will include 
performance data on paper use; computer server virtualization; and the purchase of 10o 
percent recycled content copy paper. This biennial reports will also include information 
on implementation of SCAP EPP priority actions including (1) Updating the EPP policy 
by 2017; (2) Targeting Concrete Use in Construction; (3) Purchase of Desktop Work 
Stations; and (4) Server Virtualization. Other EPP related purchases such as the use of 
Alternative Fuels are included are covered through reporting in sections such as the 
Transportation and Land Use goal area. 
 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
No amendments  
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 289



ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0489 
2. Transmittal letter for 2016-0489 
3. Fiscal Note 
 

 
INVITED 
 

1. Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 
2. Megan Smith, Director of Climate and Energy Initiatives, Office of the Executive 

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 290



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0490.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE regarding surface water management; 1 

revising surface water management service charges; and 2 

amending Ordinance 7590, Section 8, as amended, and 3 

K.C.C. 9.08.070. 4 

STATEMENT OF FACTS: 5 

1.  King County works in partnership with property owners and state and 6 

federal agencies to minimize the impacts of storm and surface runoff on 7 

the water quantity and quality of the waters of the state. 8 

2.  King County charges property owners within its surface water 9 

management service area, which is unincorporated King County, a 10 

graduated fee based on six nonresidential rate classes tied to relative 11 

amount of impervious surface and one uniform rate class for all residential 12 

parcels. 13 

3.  In 1986, the King County council adopted Ordinance 7590, which 14 

established the surface water management program to provide a 15 

comprehensive approach to surface and storm water problems including 16 

"basin planning, land use regulation, construction of facilities, 17 

maintenance and public education."  In 1991, the council increased the 18 

services provided by the surface water management program and set a rate 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 291



Ordinance  

 
 

structure and service charges by adopting Ordinance 10187.  In 2001, the 20 

council adopted Ordinance 14261, acknowledging that the costs to provide 21 

surface water management had increased due to the ordinary impacts of 22 

inflation and due to increased and more stringent federal and state 23 

requirements for the proper management of surface water quality and 24 

quantity.  In 2006, the council adopted Ordinance 15638, acknowledging 25 

that the then soon to be effective new National Pollutant Discharge 26 

Elimination System permit would require King County's compliance with 27 

more stringent requirements.  In 2010, the council passed Ordinance 28 

16958, acknowledging that costs had increased to comply with the 29 

stringent requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 30 

System permit and to meet the ordinary impacts of inflation.  In 2012, the 31 

council adopted Ordinance 17451, acknowledging that the surface water 32 

management program had increased capital construction needs, increased 33 

costs of National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit 34 

compliance, and revenue losses from annexations of unincorporated 35 

county areas to cities.  It also acknowledged that the King County road 36 

services program had identified construction needs to mitigate stormwater 37 

impacts and that these capital projects were necessary to protect life and 38 

property as well as to maintain or restore water quality and ecological 39 

functions in receiving waters.  Ordinance 17451 also incorporated changes 40 

to the rate adjustment program that provided incentives to property owners 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 292



Ordinance  

 
 

to improve on-site control of stormwater through the granting of additional 42 

discounts. 43 

4.  The current one hundred seventy-one dollars and fifty cents per 44 

residential parcel fee charged by King County is insufficient to meet the 45 

projected revenue requirements.  Since the fee was set in 2014, the cost of 46 

providing services has increased year over year, so revenues generated by 47 

the fee cannot support current programming including stormwater 48 

management and habitat restoration project implementation.  A number of 49 

County-managed stormwater assets are at risk of failure and will require 50 

additional investments above and beyond existing resources to maintain.  51 

There is a growing demand for agricultural drainage assistance to increase 52 

local agriculture productivity.  There are currently insufficient resources to 53 

adequately address chronic drainage and flooding problems associated 54 

with the natural drainage system, including streams, lakes, wetlands and 55 

other natural surface waters. 56 

5.  An increase in the base amount of the surface water management 57 

charge from one hundred seventy-one dollars and fifty cents per 58 

residential parcel to two hundred forty dollars and forty-four cents per 59 

residential parcel in 2017, a sixty-eight dollar and ninety-four cent 60 

increase over 2016, and corresponding adjustments in the rates for classes 61 

of nonresidential property are needed to provide necessary surface water 62 

management services to protect public health and safety. 63 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 293



Ordinance  

 
 

6.  It is in the public interest, and is necessary for the protection of health, 64 

safety, and welfare of the residents of King County, that the necessary 65 

costs of providing surface water management services continue to be 66 

funded and that such costs continue to be charged against those parcels 67 

benefitting from such services and/or contributing to the increase of 68 

surface water runoff, which the King County surface water management 69 

program must address. 70 

7.  Parcels owned by federally recognized tribes or members of such tribes 71 

that are located within the historical boundaries of a reservation are not 72 

subject to the surface water management charges provided for in K.C.C 73 

chapter 9.08. 74 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 75 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance 7590, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 9.08.070 are 76 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 77 

 A.  The service charges shall be based on the relative contribution of increased 78 

surface and storm water runoff from a given parcel to the surface and storm water 79 

management system. The percentage of impervious surfaces on the parcel, the total parcel 80 

acreage and any mitigating factors as provided in K.C.C. 9.08.080 shall be used to 81 

indicate the relative contribution of increased surface and storm water runoff from the 82 

parcel to the surface and storm water management system.  The relative contribution of 83 

increased surface and storm water runoff from each parcel determines that parcel's share 84 

of the service charge revenue needs.  The service charge revenue needs of the program 85 

are based upon all or any part, as determined by the council of the cost of meeting 86 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 294



Ordinance  

 
 
stormwater permit obligations of state and federal law and the cost of surface and storm 87 

water management services and to pay or secure the payment of all or any portion of any 88 

issue of general obligation or revenue bonds issued for that purpose. 89 

 B.  The division shall determine the service charge for each parcel within the 90 

service area by the following methodology: 91 

 Residential and very lightly developed nonresidential parcels shall receive a flat 92 

rate service charge for the reasons in K.C.C 9.08.060.  Light to very heavily developed 93 

parcels shall be classified into the appropriate rate category by their percentage of 94 

impervious surface coverage.  Land use codes or data collected from parcel 95 

investigations, or both shall be used to determine each parcel's percentage of impervious 96 

surface coverage.  After a parcel has been assigned to the appropriate rate category, the 97 

service charge for the parcel shall be calculated by multiplying the total acreage of the 98 

parcel times the rate for that category. 99 

 C.  There is hereby imposed upon all developed properties in the service area 100 

annual service charges as follows: 101 

Class  Impervious Surface %   Rate 102 

Residential  NA    (($171.50)) $240.44/parcel/year 103 

Very Light 0 to less than or equal to 10%  (($171.50)) $240.44/parcel/year 104 

Light  Greater than 10% to less than  (($413.38)) $647.96/acre/year 105 

  or equal to 20% 106 

Moderate Greater than 20% to less than  (($905.91)) $1,251.59/acre/year 107 

  or equal to 45% 108 

Moderately Greater than 45% to less than  (($1,546.40)) $2,133.78/acre/year 109 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 295



Ordinance  

 
 
Heavy  or equal to 65% 110 

Heavy  Greater than 65% to less than or (($2,116.79)) $2,955.98/acre/year 111 

  or equal to 85% 112 

Very Heavy Greater than 85% to less than or (($2,638.96)) $3,669.84/acre/year 113 

  equal to 100% 114 

County Roads  NA   Set in accordance with RCW 90.03.525 115 

State Highways NA   Set in accordance with RCW 90.03.525 116 

 The minimum service charge in any class shall be ((one hundred seventy one 117 

dollars and fifty cents)) two hundred forty dollars and forty-four cents per parcel per year.  118 

Mobile home parks' maximum annual service charges in any class shall be ((one hundred 119 

seventy one dollars and fifty cents)) two hundred forty dollars and forty-four cents times 120 

the number of mobile home spaces. 121 

 D.  The county council shall review the surface water management services 122 

biennially to ensure the long term fiscal viability of the program and to guarantee that 123 

debt covenants are met. The program shall use equitable and efficient methods to 124 

determine service charges. 125 

 E.  When a parcel that has impervious surface is divided by the boundary of the 126 

service area and a portion of the parcel's impervious surface drains into the service area, 127 

the parcel shall be charged as otherwise provided herein on the basis of the lands and 128 

impervious surfaces that drain into the service area. When the director has determined 129 

that the impervious surface of a parcel, divided by the boundary of the service area, 130 

completely drain outside of the service area, the parcel is exempt from the rates and 131 

charges of this chapter. 132 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 296



Ordinance  

 
 
 F.  The King County council by ordinance may supplement or alter charges within 133 

specific basins and subbasins of the service area so as to charge properties or parcels of 134 

one basin or subbasin for improvements, studies or maintenance that the council deems to 135 

provide service or benefit the property owners of one or more basins or subbasins. 136 

 SECTION 2.  This ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017. 137 

 138 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 297



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 14 Name: Hiedi Popochock 

Proposed No.: 2016-0490 Date: November 1, 2016 

 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0490.2 passed out of the Special Budget 
and Fiscal Management Committee on November 1, 2016, with a “Do Pass” 
recommendation. The proposed ordinance was amended in committee with 
Striking Amendment 1 (S1). S1 reduced the Executive’s proposed surface water 
management fee for a single-family residence in unincorporated King County 
from $258 to $240.44. S1 also reduced the Executive’s proposed SWM fee in the 
other rate classifications as listed in K.C.C. 9.08.070. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
An ORDINANCE to increase the surface water management fee in unincorporated King 
County as prescribed in King County Code 9.08.070. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The proposed ordinance would increase the annual surface water management fee for 
the single-family residence rate classification for unincorporated King County property 
owners by 50 percent (from $171.50 to $258). The SWM fee would also be increased in 
other rate classifications identified in K.C.C. 9.08.070. The revenue collected from the 
proposed rate increase would fund a number of the programs and projects in the 
Executive’s 2017-2018 Proposed Budget. 
 
At the Budget and Fiscal Management Committee Chair’s direction, Council staff has 
prepared a striking amendment to the proposed ordinance that would decrease the 
annual SWM fee for a single-family residence from $258 to $240.44, which represents a 
7 percent decrease compared to the Executive’s proposed 2017-2018 SWM fee. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
History of Surface Water Management Legislative Authority 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 298



In 1986, the King County Council adopted Ordinance 7590, initiating the Surface Water 
Management (SWM) Program. The SWM program was established to provide a 
comprehensive approach to surface and stormwater problems including basin planning, 
land use regulation, construction of facilities, maintenance, and public education and 
provided limited services to the urban-designated areas of the adopted 1985 King 
County Comprehensive Plan.   
 
King County is required to provide surface water management services by state and 
federal law.1  
 
The Revised Code of Washington2 and King County Code Chapter 9.08 are considered 
the applicable state and local legal framework for the SWM rate, generally as shown 
below.   
 
RCW 36.89.080:  Storm water control facilities – Rates and charges 
 

• Statutory authority for collection of the SWM fee 
 
RCW 90.03.525:  Storm water control facilities—Imposition of rates and charges with 
respect to state highway rights-of-way—Annual plan for expenditure of charges 
 

• SWM fees to WSDOT state road rights of within a local jurisdiction can be no 
more than 30 percent of the rate for comparable real property;  

• WSDOT cannot be charged a rate higher than what the local jurisdiction 
charges for its own road ROW; and 

• Funds collected from the state must be used solely for stormwater control 
facilities. 

 
King County Code 9.08 Surface Water Management Program 
 

• The SWM fee is collected based on a percentage of impervious surface; 

• Discounts are allowed to properties that have onsite stormwater management 
mechanisms; and 

• Both county and state roads pay a maximum of 30 percent of what would be 
paid by a comparable property. 

 
History of SWM Fee 
 
To pay for these services, a fee is assessed on property owners in unincorporated King 
County including Vashon Island. In 1991, the surface water management program first 
set a rate structure and service charges. Since then the costs of providing surface water 
management services have increased due to the impacts of 1) inflation and 
annexations; and 2) increasingly stringent federal and state requirements for the proper 
management of surface water quality and quantity. Foremost among the mandatory 
federal standards, is the permitting requirement of the National Pollutant Discharge 

1 United States Environmental Protection Agency https://www.epa.gov/npdes/npdes-stormwater-program 
RCW 90.03.500 -.525 provides the authorization for the county, as well as cities, towns, water-sewer 
districts and flood control zone districts, to impose rates and charges for storm water control facilities.   
2 RCW 36.90,080 & RCW 90.03.525 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 299

https://www.epa.gov/npdes/npdes-stormwater-program


Elimination System (NPDES) General Municipal Stormwater Permit. Table 1 below 
illustrates the historical SWM fees for a single-family residence in unincorporated King 
County. 
 

Table 1. Historical SWM Fees in Unincorporated King County 
(Single-family residence) 

 

Year 
SWM Fee 

(single-family 
residence) 

Dollar 
Increase 

Percent 
Increase 

1991 $85 $0 0% 

2002 $102 $17 20.0% 

2007 $111 $9 8.8% 

2011 $133 $22 19.8% 

2013 $151 $18 13.5% 

2014 $171.50 $20.50 13.6% 

 
The 2016 SWM fee for a single–family residence in unincorporated King County is 
$171.50. Table 2 below shows the 2016 SWM fees for the region. The average fee for 
all jurisdictions in the region based on the fees listed in Table 2 is $179.68. 
 

Table 2. 2016 Regional SWM Fees 
(Single-family residence) 

 

Jurisdiction 
2016 

Annual Fee 
Jurisdiction 

2016 
Annual Fee 

Woodinville $   87.15 King County $ 171.50 

Algona $   90.00 Milton $ 186.00 

Federal Way $   96.90 Mercer Island $ 191.28 

Pierce County $ 116.06 Lake Forest Park $ 191.98 

North Bend $ 118.32 Covington $ 193.66 

Maple Valley $ 119.20 Normandy Park $ 195.84 

Snohomish County $ 122.00 Redmond $ 198.72 

SeaTac $ 134.15 Sammamish $ 214.00 

Tukwila $ 142.00 Kirkland $ 217.62 

Pacific $ 156.00 Duvall $ 230.52 

Burien $ 156.99 Snoqualmie $ 232.32 

Newcastle $ 159.36 Auburn $ 236.76 

Shoreline $ 160.77 Des Moines $ 237.64 

Bothell $ 161.52 Bellevue $ 252.18 

Renton $ 164.76 Tacoma $ 267.00 

Kenmore $ 167.40 Seattle $ 390.03 

Issaquah $ 168.96   
  

King County Council November 7, 2016 300



2015-2016 SWM Budget Legislation  
 
In Ordinance 17941, Council authorized $4 million in SWM revenue to pay for drainage 
improvements in the Roadway right-of-way (ROW) as follows: 
 

• a $2 million transfer from the fund balance of the SWM Capital Improvement 

Program fund to the Road Services Division (RSD); and 

• a $2 million transfer from SWM operating reserves to the RSD, linked to an 

expenditure restriction3. 

Also, in the 2015-2016 budget, Council included a proviso requiring the Executive to 
transmit a plan regarding ongoing surface water management participation in funding 
roadway drainage projects and a motion that approves the plan.4  The Executive 
transmitted a report entitled, “Ongoing Surface Water Management Participation in 
Funding Roadway Drainage Projects” (“the Report”) on June 28, 2016. The Report was 
heard at the Transportation, Economy and Environment Committee on August 30, 
2016.5 
 
The Report provided a range of SWM fee scenarios that could potentially fund drainage 
projects that are within and outside the ROW in the 2017-2018 budget.6 In addition, the 
Report provided the financial impacts that would be experienced by the Road Services 
Division by each scenario in Table 3. The SWM fee scenarios that are outlined in the 
Report are briefly described below. The estimates provided in the proviso response 
were based on March labor rates by the Office of Economic and Financial Analysis 
(OEFA). 
 
Scenario One. This scenario would continue the status quo SWM fee of $171.50 with 
no increase in the 2017-2018 biennium. This would result in a reduction in 2017-2018 
programming since the current SWM fee does not capture inflationary impacts. 
 
Scenario Two. This scenario would fund only existing programs including inflationary 
impacts - $4.9 million and $2 million to ROW drainage expenditures which would 
increase the SWM fee by $24.87, from $171.50 to $195.87 for a single-family residence.  
 
Scenario Three. This scenario would only enhance and expand existing programming 
in WLRD.  
 
Scenario Four. This scenario would not charge Roads nor the Washington Department 
of Transportation a SWM fee by passing on their share of fees to the remaining 
ratepayers. This would also implement Scenario 3. 
 

3 Expenditure restriction ER1 in Section 77 required that $2 million of the appropriation to SWM be 
expended or encumbered “solely for transfer to the road services division to fund surface water 
management projects within the public right-of way in unincorporated King County.” 
4 Ordinance 17941, Section 77, Proviso P1 
5 2016-0348 
6 The Department of Transportation’s Road Services Division (RSD) manages drainage infrastructure 
located within the ROW, and WLRD manages the drainage infrastructure located outside of the ROW. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 301



Scenario Five. This scenario would allocate the amount of SWM fee paid by Roads 
associated with the fee increase to drainage in the ROW; cover the 2015-2016 $2 
million carryover into 2017-2018, and fund WLR programming from Scenario 3. 
 
Scenario Six. This scenario would add funding to respond to potential threats for 
imminent failure of drainage assets in the ROW in addition to elements in Scenario 3. 
 
The Report referenced a Road Right-of-Way Drainage Trunk Line Inventory report 
completed in response to a proviso in the 2015-2016 adopted budget (Ordinance 
17941, as amended by Ordinance 18110, Section 30, Proviso P3)7, which estimates 
that an outlay of $355 million to $500 million would be needed over a 10-year period to 
adequately maintain and preserve drainage assets that are 24 inches in diameter or 
greater. The Report estimates that this would require a SWM fee increase of 150% - 
200% above the current rate (up to $251 - $354 per single-family residential payer per 
year).  
 
The accompanying consultant report recommended immediate preservation action for 
33 critical risk drainage assets (Attachment 5) and estimated the associated cost to be 
$6.46 million, with all estimated costs subject to -50% to 100% accuracy.8 Scenario 6 
would address some of the 33 critical risk drainage assets in the ROW.  
 
Scenario Seven. This would spend the amount of fee collected from Roads in the ROW 
in addition to elements in Scenario 3. 
 

Table 3. Potential Funding Options for King County Drainage Projects 
(March 2016 OEFA estimates) 

 

Scenario 

Total 
Revenue 
Raised 

($ millions) 

2017/2018 
Annual 
fee for a 

SFR* 

Change 
from 

Status 
Quo 

WLRD 
Expenditures 
($ millions) 

ROW 
Drainage 

Expenditures 
($ millions) 

RSD’s 
SWM 

Payment  
($ millions) 

1. Status quo 48.5 171.50 0% 46.5 2.0 9.1 

2. Status quo 
plus inflation9 

55.4 195.87 14% 53.4 2.0 10.4 

3. Enhance/ 
expand existing 
WLR 
programming 

66.3 234.52 37% 66.3 0.0 12.5 

4. Eliminate 
SWM fee to RSD 
and WSDOT; +  
S3* 

66.3 306.01 78% 66.3 0.0 0.0 

5. Allocate 
marginal 
increase in RSD 

73.0 258.00 50% 66.3 6.6 13.7 

7 2016-0279 - Road Right-of-Way Drainage Trunk Line Inventory Report 
8 Road Right-of-Way Drainage Trunk Line Assessment Final Report 2/12/16, pp ES-4 and ES-5. 
9 This rate includes the full $4 million 2015-2016 carryover transfer and so is approximately $7 higher 
than the status quo cost. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 302



SWM fee to 
ROW drainage; 
cover 2015/16 
carryover; +S3 

6. Respond to 
imminent failure 
of ROW 
drainage + S3 

76.3 269.77 57% 66.3 10.0 14.4 

7. RSD SWM fee 
to ROW 
drainage +S3 

81.7 288.86 68% 66.3 15.4 15.4 

 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0490 
 
The proposed ordinance would increase the SWM fee for the single-family residence 
rate classification for unincorporated King County property owners by 50 percent (from 
$171.50 to $258). This proposal is Scenario 5 in Table 3 above. The SWM fee would 
also be increased in other rate classifications identified in K.C.C. 9.08.070. Table 4 
below illustrates the current SWM fees and the 2017-2018 proposed SWM fees for all 
rate classifications of properties in unincorporated King County. 
 

Table 4. 2015-2016 SWM Fee and 2017-2018 Proposed SWM Fee 
 

 
2017-2018 Executive Proposed Budget 
 
SWM has requested a significant number of programmatic changes in the 2017-2018 
proposed budget that would be funded by SWM fees through a proposed rate increase 
in Proposed Ordinance 2016-0490. 

 
Existing services within existing rate - $48.5 million. The current SWM fee equates 
to approximately $48.5 million in revenue for existing SWM programs. 
 
Inflation to maintain existing services - $7.3 million. This funding would cover the 
inflationary impacts that accumulated over the years when a new SWM fee was not 
adopted. Also, this includes some of the project costs for two IT projects: Cityworks 
Asset Management System project and the SWM billing replacement system project. 
Some of the project costs for these two projects are captured in the King County 

Rate 
Classification 

Percent 
Impervious 

Surface 

2015-2016 
Rate 

2017-2018 
Proposed Rate 

Number of 
Billable 
Parcels 

 Percent 
Revenue 

Generated 

1 Residential N/A $171.50 / parcel $258 / parcel 80,483 55% 

2 Very Light ≤ 10 $171.50 / parcel $258 / parcel 2,611 2% 

3 Light 10.1 ≤ 20 $ 413.38 / acre $ 695.28 / acre 538 4% 

4 Moderate 20.1 ≤ 45 $ 905.91 / acre $ 1,343.00 / acre 656 5% 

5 Moderately Heavy 45.1 ≤ 65 $ 1,546.40 / acre $ 2,289.61 / acre 1,509 4% 

6 Heavy 65.1 ≤ 85 $ 2,116.79 / acre $ 3,171.86 / acre 1,113 3% 

7 Very Heavy 85.1 ≤ 100 $ 2,638.96 / acre $ 3,937.85 / acre 560 4% 

King County Council November 7, 2016 303



Information Technology (KCIT) central rates in the division. Both projects are described 
below. 

Cityworks Asset Management System 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Project Summary. This project would implement an industry standard off-the-shelf 
asset/operations management solution named Azteca Cityworks AMS (Asset 
Management System) within the Stormwater Services Section (SWSS) in the 
Water and Land Resources Division (WLRD). 
 
According to SWSS’s business case, many of the data management solutions 
used by the SWSS work units are custom, decentralized, outmoded, and have not 
kept up with the growing demands of managing the County’s stormwater system 
and NPDES permit compliance. SWSS staff indicates that searching for data in 
the existing system is cumbersome and reduces productive labor hours because 
the data is spread across multiple and dissimilar sources (including paper). 
 
SWSS staff states that by implementing Cityworks, it would provide a 
collaborative environment for work tasks and a common operating interface for 
SWSS staff conducting inspections, maintenance, and inventory management of 
stormwater assets. Cityworks would replace the existing maintenance 
management system (MIS), multiple Access databases, several installs of 
Microsoft Visio, documents in network file shares, and paper inspection forms. 
Cityworks would be the primary data source for reporting permit compliance 
metrics to regulatory agencies. It would also allow SWSS to collect more 
information on asset condition, according to the business case. 

 
The King County International Airport and the Road Services Division both utilize 
Cityworks for managing its daily operations.   
 
SWSS has requested $349,214 of ongoing appropriation in operating in the 
WLRD Surface Water Management Fund for 1 new FTE Engineer 1 and the 
licensing costs associated with Cityworks. The appropriation would provide 
Cityworks license subscriptions for 49 users and also provide training for staff. 
SWSS would utilize $89,100 (including 10 percent contingency) of its 2015-2016 
operating appropriation, if approved by Council, to procure Cityworks and replace 
the current system, Maintenance Information System (MIS). The one-time project 
labor costs are captured in the 2017-2018 KCIT central rates for the division in the 
amount of $240,182. The project has a 10 percent contingency of $58,950. SWSS 
has begun planning for the system replacement with an anticipated completion 
date of January 2018, if approved by Council. Table 5 below shows the project 
milestones and anticipated completion dates. 

 
 
 

Prior appropriation $89,100 

2017-2018 Request $648,346 

Total Project Cost $737,446 

Fund Source Surface Water Management Fees 

King County Council November 7, 2016 304



Table 5. Cityworks Project Milestones and Anticipated Completion Dates 
 

Start Date End Date Major Milestones 

08/01/2016 12/31/2016 
Purchase Cityworks AMS with training package 
– Planning only 

01/01/2017 01/06/2017 
Install Cityworks and link with Central 
Stormwater Geodatabase 

01/09/2017 04/01/2017 
Implement Cityworks for SWS complaint and 
business inspection programs and migrate 
legacy data. 

04/03/2017 05/31/2017 
Implement Cityworks for Conveyance Screening 
Program 

01/06/2017 12/31/2018 
Implement Cityworks for Asset Management 
Program 

01/01/2018       
Project complete and begin continuous 
improvement cycle 

 
Review of Benefit Achievement Plan. The primary anticipated benefit of this 
project is to improve internal operations. According to the business achievement 
plan, the new system would streamline workflows in one system and provide a 
stable platform for the future. 

 
Staff has not identified any issues with this request. 
 

Surface Water Management Billing System Update 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Project Summary. This project would provide funding to update the Surface Water 
Management Division’s Billing System to accommodate all of the changes to the 
billing structures and discounts.   
 
According to SWM’s business case, the SWM billing system is used to calculate 
and bill the SWM fee on King County property tax statements for unincorporated 
King County and 17 contracting cities; a separate but analogous Drainage Billing 
System (DBS) handles billing for the City of Seattle. The SWM billing system is 30 
years old, and was originally written in a now-obsolete programming language.  
Although the platform was updated as part of the Mainframe Rehost project, the 
business logic is still outdated and as a result the system is not cost or business 
effective.  While many changes have been made to accommodate bug fixes and 
to add new cities as they contract with King County to bill their SWM fee, one 
contract city has changed their billing structure such that the current billing system 
can no longer handle it, forcing WLRD and Treasury staff to handle it via 
spreadsheet upload.  This causes extra work and possible errors in the Treasury 

Prior appropriation $71,586 

2017-2018 Request $702,944 

Total Project Cost $774,530 

Fund Source Surface Water Management Fees 

King County Council November 7, 2016 305



system during a very busy time of year.  In addition, King County changed its 
SWM discount structure several years ago, and discounts must be billed by 
spreadsheet as well.   
 
The SWM business case also states that the new SWM billing system would allow 
the discontinuation of a separate discount side system, along with the discount 
spreadsheet that Treasury must upload. 
 
SWM has requested $702,944 of one-time appropriation in the WLRD Surface 
Water Management Fund to fund project labor in KCIT which is captured in 
SWM’s 2017-2018 KCIT central rates. This includes a 20 percent contingency. 
There is also a $28,400 appropriation request in operating for KCIT to provide 
system support that would be paid via KCIT central rates. Table 6 below shows 
the project milestones and anticipated completion dates of the project. 

 
Table 6. Billing System Project Milestones and Anticipated Completion Dates 

 

Start Date End Date Major Milestones 

07/01/2016 12/30/2016 Requirements, Solution Analysis & Design 

01/02/2017 06/30/2017 
System Implementation w/Billing & Discount 
Modules 

07/03/2017 08/31/2017 
System Rollout for Billing & Discount, 
Completion of Rate Modeling Module 

09/01/2017 09/30/2017 Rate Modeling Module Rollout 

10/03/2017 12/30/2017 Stabilization & Close-out 

 
Review of Benefit Achievement Plan. The primary anticipated benefit of this 
project is to improve internal operations. According to the business achievement 
plan, the new application would eliminate the need for a separate discount 
database and spreadsheets by building in the functionality needed to 
accommodate various rate structures, discounts and other variable changes in the 
future. The new application will also eliminate the need for a separate fee 
forecasting model. 
 
Staff has not identified any issues with this request. 

 
Implement asset management for WLRD assets - $5 million. This funding would 
implement the asset management program for WLRD-maintained stormwater assets, 
prioritize investment based on condition assessments, and eliminate the backlog of high 
priority facilities in 10 years. 
 

Stormwater Asset Management                             $4,965,503, 4.0 FTEs 
To implement SWM’s 10-year Stormwater Management Asset Plan to proactively 
manage the 1,100 WLRD-owned stormwater facilities including stormwater ponds, 
vaults, tanks and swales. It also includes pipe systems, channels and ditches. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 306



Approximately $3.2 million of appropriation would address the expired and 
expiring components at 72 of the stormwater facilities. The remaining increase in 
appropriation would address inspection, assessments and maintenance demands 
that are not currently addressed in the 2015-2016 budget, according to Executive 
staff. 

 
Expand programs to support agriculture and rural residents - $2.2 million. This 
funding amount would expand local flood response and respond to rural flooding in 4 – 
5 drainages, pilot beaver management strategies in response to rural flooding concerns, 
and expand the Agricultural Drainage Assistance Program (ADAP) to expand rural farm 
production 200 acres / year. 
 

Implement Farm, Fish and Flood                                $251,843 (one-time), 1.0 TLT  
This $252,000 request of one-time funding is to hire a 1.0 TLT Agriculture 
Permitting Specialist to support the Farm, Fish and Flood effort and the 
Regulatory Task Force. The position would lead the Department of Natural 
Resources and Parks and the Department of Permitting and Environmental 
Review Agriculture Permit Team. The position would also work with the 
Agricultural Drainage Assistance Program staff to identify priority farmlands in 
need of drainage assistance and support landowners to navigate the permitting 
process. 

 
Agricultural Drainage Assistance Program                                             $700,000  

SWM has requested funding to increase farm ditch cleaning efforts in the 

Agricultural Drainage Assistance Program. This would enable SWM to clean 

approximately two miles or 10,000 linear feet of ditch (about 4 to 6 projects) 

annually. SWM currently has $400,000 proposed in the 2017-2018 base budget 

dedicated for this effort. This request would increase the total appropriation for 

ADAP to $1.1 million for the biennium. 
 
Beaver Management                            $284,689 

The request is to implement the Beaver Management Strategy identified in King 

County’s 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update. SWM would develop and implement 

a beaver management plan to address and monitor the growth of beaver 

populations in King County as well as develop effective approaches to various 

issues caused by beavers.  

 
Natural Drainage System Flood Projects              $1,000,000 

This request would increase the operating transfer to the CIP by $1 million to 

address chronic drainage flooding issues in unincorporated King County.  
 
Habitat restoration and water quality improvement capital program expansion - 
$1.7 million. This funding would increase habitat projects along rivers by four projects 
and implement continuous improvement monitoring of habitat investments. 
 

 
 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 307



Increase for the Habitat Restoration Capital Improvement Program,      $1,036,348 
SWM has requested to increase the transfer to the Habitat Restoration CIP and 
reallocate the Monitoring and Maintenance program from the CIP to SWM 
operating. 

 
 
Lower Green River Basin Stewardship               $122,229, 0.75 FTE 
This would add a .75 FTE Project Program Manager III to coordinate and help 
implement opportunities and programs to develop a continuous tall tree canopy 
along the twenty-one mile-long Lower Green river shoreline in order to provide the 
maximum potential shade as defined in the Green River Total Maximum Daily 
Load report and to implement the solar radiation maps, known as the Riparian 
aspect Priorities Map, prepared by the Muckleshoot Indian Tribe. This position 
would work closely with the King County Flood Control District, cities along the 
Lower Green river, the Water Resource Inventory Area (WRIA) 9 Ecosystem 
Forum and the Muckleshoot Tribe. 
 
Fish and Habitat Effectiveness Monitoring                    $500,000  
This request is a transfer from SWM to Shared Services to implement a 
monitoring program that would provide information on fish population and habitat 
status and trends in unincorporated King County. The program would evaluate the 
effectiveness of the ecosystem restoration and land protection projects completed 
and other salmon recovery efforts to determine if those investments improved 
habitat conditions and fish populations in King County watersheds over time. 
Currently, there is not a comprehensive program in WLRD to assess the return on 
these investments. 

 
Programs that improve performance – best run government - $1.7 million. This 
would provide fee discounts to low income property owners, provide grants for 
community projects, and improve data management in support of asset management. 
 

Stormwater Mapping                      $1,002,481(one-time), 9.0 TLTs 

SWM has requested one-time funding of approximately $1 million to extend 9 TLT 

Engineer I positions in order to continue collecting and updating stormwater right-

of-way mapping inventory as part of the National Pollution Discharge Elimination 

System (NPDES) permit requirements. The NPDES requires the county to map a 

portion of its stormwater system by the end of 2017. The 9 TLT positions would 

end on 12/31/2017.   
 

Cityworks Stormwater Information System    $349,214, 1 FTE 
This request would add 1.0 FTE Engineer I to implement the Cityworks 
Information Management System. In addition, the appropriation includes the 
ongoing licensing cost needed for the new system. 

 
Water Quality Grant Program                       $250,000 

This appropriation request would create a new program in SWM that would allow 

unincorporated King County residents to apply for grant funds in order to make 

water quality improvements through community-based projects and/or increasing 

King County Council November 7, 2016 308



community awareness. The program would be modeled similar to the Wastewater 

Treatment Division’s (WTD) Waterworks Program which provides grants for water 

quality improvements in the WTD service areas. Eligible applicants of the 

Waterworks Program includes: non-profits groups, cities and counties, special 

purpose districts and tribes. The Executive did not transmit any legislation to 

create the program and WLRD has yet to develop program criteria.  
 
Low-Income Discount Program            $50,000 expenditures, ($200,000) revenue 
This would create a discount program for low-income property owners in 
unincorporated King County in order to mitigate the impacts of a SWM rate 
increase. The new program would be administered by the Assessor’s Office 
similar to SWM’s current Low-Income Senior Exemption Program. Only residential 
properties are eligible for the low-income senior program. 

 
2015-2016 unfunded carryover transfer for ROW drainage projects - $2 million. 
This would provide $2 million of one-time funding of the $4 million 2015-2016 transfer. 
 
Funding to mitigate impacts of fee increase for RSD - $4,489,959. This would offset 
the cost of the increased SWM fee, if approved, to RSD for additional ROW drainage 
work. 
 
Respond to imminent failure in ROW - $0. This funding would have addressed some 
of the failed/failing drainage assets. 
 
Table 7 below illustrates the SWM funding options that were provided in the proviso 
response (2016-0348) and the proposed SWM funding levels in the Executive’s 2017-
2018 Proposed Budget. 
 
Table 7. Proviso Response Funding Options vs. 2017-2018 Proposed Funding 
 

Rate Component 

(A) 
2016-0348 
Proviso 

Response 
2017-2018 
Estimates 

(in millions) 

(B) 
2016-0348 

Proviso 
Response 
2017-2018 
Annual fee 
for a SFR* 

(C) 
2017-2018 
Executive  
Proposed 

(in millions) 

(D) 
2017-2018 
Executive 
Proposed 

Annual Fee 
for SFR* 

Existing services within existing rate $48.5 $171.50 $48.5 $171.50 

Inflation to maintain existing services $4.9 $17.32 $7.3¹ $25.76 

Implement asset management for 
WLRD assets 

$6.5 $23.12 $5.0 $17.56 

Expand programs to support 
agriculture and rural residents 

$2.3 $8.02 $2.2 $7.91 

Habitat restoration and water quality 
improvement capital program 
expansion 

$1.7 $6.00 $1.7 $5.86 

Programs that improve performance – 
best run government 

$2.5 $8.67 $1.7 $5.83 

King County Council November 7, 2016 309



Sub-total for WLRD programs $66.4 $234.63 $66.4 $234.42 

2015-2016 unfunded carryover transfer 
for ROW drainage projects 

$2.0 $7.07 $2.0 $7.08 

Funding to mitigate impacts of fee 
increase for RSD 

$4.6 $16.26 $4.5 $15.87 

 $73.0 $257.96 $72.9 $257.37 

Respond to imminent failure in ROW $3.4 $12.02 $0 $0 

Total $76.4 $269.98 $72.9 $257.37 

¹ This figure also includes $3.79 million of expenditures that are proposed to be supported by revenues 
other than the SWM fee - $1.70 million from the General Fund and $2.09 million from other revenues 
such as grants. 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Council staff has identified three issues that the Council may wish to consider. 
 
Funding to Respond to Imminent Failure in the ROW 
 
The 2017-2018 proposed budget does not include a funding proposal to address the 33 
drainage assets that are at-risk of imminent failure within the ROW, identified by the 
consultant referenced in the Drainage Trunk Line Inventory Report (2016-0279). 
Executive staff estimated $3.4 million in Table 7 – Column A, to respond to imminent 
failure of assets in the ROW. 
 
SWM Rate Stabilization Reserve 
 
In the proposed 2017-2018 SWM financial plan (Attachment 6), the SWM rate 
stabilization reserve would be increased by $2,954,877, if the fee increase is approved. 
The total rate stabilization reserves for SWM would be $3,981,908 for the 2017-2018 
biennium and is projected to be $3,790,392 for the 2019-2020 biennium. Executive staff 
indicates that the SWM fund does not have a reserve target. The King County 
Comprehensive Financial Policies, approved by Motion 14110, notes that: 
 

“The size of any rate stabilization fund balance shall depend on a specific 
analysis and legal requirements”. 

 
According to Executive staff, the rate stabilization reserve is accumulated to mitigate 
against future rate increases since the SWM program faces potential large revenue 
losses due to potential annexations in the future. Table 8 lists the potential annexation 
financial impacts in future biennia, if the proposed SWM fee is approved. 
 

Table 8. Future Annexation Financial Impacts 
($258 SWM Fee Rate)  

 

Area 
Estimated  

Loss of Revenue 

Sliver – 2017 ($287,626) 

North Highline – 2020 ($1,930,219) 

West Hill – 2020 ($1,416,966) 

King County Council November 7, 2016 310



East Federal Way – 2020 ($1,865,095) 

Roads Services Division ($801,312) 

 
Expenditures Backed by Other Revenues 
 
The proposed SWM fee increase includes approximately $3.8 million of expenditures 
that are revenue-backed by other revenues such as grants and the General Fund, as 
shown in the proposed 2017-2018 SWM financial plan (Attachment 6). The revenue for 
these expenditures were double-counted in the Executive’s proposed budget: $3.8 
million of revenue would have been collected from the proposed SWM fee increase and 
$3.8 million of revenue would be received in grants and in General Fund support.  
 
AMENDMENT 
 
Striking Amendment (S1) to Proposed Ordinance 2016-0490 would reduce the 
proposed annual SWM fee for a single-family residence from $258 to $240.44, which 
represents a 7 percent decrease. The 2017 annual SWM fee for a single-family 
residence ($240.44) in the striking amendment represents a 40 percent increase when 
compared to the 2016 SWM fee of $171.50. Table 9 below illustrates the changes 
between the 2017-2018 proposed SWM fee and the 2017-2018 SWM fee in the striking 
amendment for all rate classifications. 

 
Table 9.  Proposed SWM Fee and Striking Amendment SWM Fee Comparison 

 

 

Rate Classification 
Percent 

Impervious 
Surface 

2017-2018 
Proposed Rate 

2016-0490  
Striking 

Amendment 

Number of 
Billable 
Parcels 

 Percent 
Revenue 

Generated 

1 Residential N/A $258 / parcel $240.44 / parcel 80,483 55% 

2 Very Light ≤ 10 $258 / parcel $240.44 / parcel 2,611 2% 

3 Light 10.1 ≤ 20 $ 695.28 / acre $647.96 / acre 538 4% 

4 Moderate 20.1 ≤ 45 $ 1,343.00 / acre $ 1,251.59 / acre 656 5% 

5 Moderately Heavy 45.1 ≤ 65 $ 2,289.61 / acre $ 2,133.78 / acre 1,509 4% 

6 Heavy 65.1 ≤ 85 $ 3,171.86 / acre $ 2,955.98 / acre 1,113 3% 

7 Very Heavy 85.1 ≤ 100 $ 3,937.85 / acre $ 3,669.84 / acre 560 4% 

King County Council November 7, 2016 311



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0491.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to public transportation, 1 

adopting a two-year increase to the limit of lost revenue 2 

from waiving or discounting fares; and amending 3 

Ordinance 12643, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 4 

4A.700.610 and Ordinance 12643, Section 18, as amended, 5 

and K.C.C. 4A.700.610. 6 

STATEMENT OF FACTS: 7 

1.  K.C.C.4A.700.610 authorizes Metro transit to provide free or 8 

discounted fare media for the purpose of attracting new ridership, 9 

relieving congestion, developing market strategies, testing prices or 10 

experimental service and implementing other special transit programs or 11 

promotions. 12 

2.  The annual loss in revenue from such programs and promotions is 13 

limited to $350,000. 14 

3.  There is increasing interest in temporarily waiving or discounting fares 15 

to test new strategies for improving access to transit and to the customer 16 

benefits of ORCA fare payment for youth, college students and senior and 17 

disabled riders. 18 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 312



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 1.  Section 2 of this ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017. 20 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 12643, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C 4A.700.610 21 

are each hereby amended to read as follows:  22 

 For the purpose of attracting new ridership, relieving congestion, developing 23 

market strategies, testing prices or experimental service, and implementing other special 24 

transit programs or promotions, the director may waive or discount the fare or pass prices 25 

otherwise established in this chapter whenever the waiver or discount is not expected to 26 

require the addition of regularly scheduled public transportation services and, in the 27 

judgment of the director, the value of the program or promotion and the benefit to the 28 

public exceeds the expected loss of revenue. The loss in revenue of all such programs, 29 

promotions and fare discounts shall, in the aggregate, be no greater than ((three)) five 30 

hundred fifty thousand dollars annually. 31 

 SECTION 3.  Section 4 of this ordinance takes effect January 1, 2019. 32 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 12643, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C 4A.700.610 33 

are each hereby amended to read as follows:  34 

 For the purpose of attracting new ridership, relieving congestion, developing 35 

market strategies, testing prices or experimental service, and implementing other special 36 

transit programs or promotions, the director may waive or discount the fare or pass prices 37 

otherwise established in this chapter whenever the waiver or discount is not expected to 38 

require the addition of regularly scheduled public transportation services and, in the 39 

judgment of the director, the value of the program or promotion and the benefit to the 40 

public exceeds the expected loss of revenue. The loss in revenue of all such programs, 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 313



Ordinance  

 
 
promotions and fare discounts shall, in the aggregate, be no greater than ((five)) three 42 

hundred fifty thousand dollars annually. 43 

 44 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 314



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 23 Name: Paul Carlson 

Proposed No.: 2016-0491 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0491.2 amends the transmitted ordinance to 
correct the title as recommended by the Council’s legal counsel.   The proposed 
ordinance passed out of committee on November 1, 2016, with a “Do Pass as 
amended” recommendation. 
  
 
SUBJECT 
 
An ordinance to increase the maximum amount of transit fare revenue that can be 
waived for the years 2017 and 2018, to allow further promotional efforts to encourage 
transit ridership. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
K.C.C.4A.700.610 authorizes the Transit Division to waive fares or provide discounted 
fares to attract new ridership, relieve congestion, develop market strategies, test prices 
or experimental service, and implement other promotions.  The value of lost revenue 
from trips that would otherwise have been taken on Metro Transit is capped at $350,000 
per year.  Proposed Ordinance 2016-0491 would increase the annual cap to $550,000 
for 2017 and 2018.  For 2019 and future years, the cap would revert to $350,000. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The Executive’s budget transmittal letter includes this paragraph about Proposed 
Ordinance 2016-0491: 
 

Transit Special Rate Ordinance - This ordinance will temporarily raise the cap 
on lost revenue from programs and promotions pursuant to section 4A.700.610 
of the King County Code.  This proposal would raise the current cap by two-
hundred thousand dollars per year in the next two years from three hundred and 
fifty thousand dollars to five hundred and fifty thousand dollars.  This will provide 
Transit with greater ability to test new pricing strategies for improving access to 

King County Council November 7, 2016 315



transit and to the customer benefits of One Regional Card for All (ORCA) fare 
payment for youth, college students, seniors and disabled riders.    
 

The Transit Division encourages new riders to try transit through promotional efforts that 
may include distribution of free or discounted bus tickets.  Approaches include outreach 
events at key employment sites, direct mail residential promotions, and special events. 
These activities promote ridership by: providing citizens with information about transit, 
vanpool and ridematch services; selling passes; explaining High Occupancy Vehicle 
(HOV) incentives including pass subsidies and carpool parking discounts offered by 
employers at work sites; and providing personalized trip planning/ridematch services.  
 
A detailed list of events and activities is included in the Rates of Fare for the Transit 
Program report, which is submitted to the Council each year.  For 2015, the total 
revenue loss to King County Metro Transit for waiving or discounting fare or pass prices 
is estimated at about $154,834. These promotional activities allowed an estimated 
62,466 trips to be taken by individuals who do not usually ride the bus. 
 
For 2015, activities described in the report (with estimated revenue losses where 
available) include: 
 

• Employer Site Promotions – an estimated 10,500 tickets were distributed at 

employer site promotions. 
 

• Adopt-A-Stop Program – 60 free tickets per quarter are provided to volunteers 

who “adopt” one or more non-sheltered bus zones to assist in disposing of litter 

and cleaning minor graffiti from the zones. In 2015, 220 volunteers adopted 274 

stops. 
 

• Customer Service Office, Service Supervisors and Service Changes – free ride 

tickets were given to riders who had negative experiences on our transit service, 

and to aid riders in need (e.g. lost wallet, took wrong bus, route change impacts, 

etc.). 
 

• Marketing/Community Outreach events – an ORCA LIFT low-income fare card 

promotion went out to 35,000 low income households that included 70,000 free 

ride tickets. The RapidRide B-Line was promoted to 16,600 households with a 

direct mail piece that contained four tickets. A total of 9,809 tickets were 

redeemed for an estimated revenue loss of $12,254 from these marketing efforts. 
 

• Five In Motion projects were conducted to introduce including Community Van in 

Duvall and TripPool in Mercer Island, programs in Green Lake and southwest 

Seattle including White Center, South Park and West Seattle. Project participants 

were offered a two-week unlimited ride ORCA card in all programs resulting in an 

estimated 11,438 boardings taken by customers who usually do not ride Metro. 

The estimated revenue loss from these programs was $24,019.  In the I-405 

corridor, a similar promotion was covered by grant funds so no revenue was lost. 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 316



• 2015 Seafair Fleet Week – during the week of July 26 through August 3, Metro 

Transit provided free rides on all regular Metro Transit service for US Navy and 

US Coast Guard personnel in uniform or with proper identification. This service 

has been provided for many years. No estimate of lost revenue is available. 
 

• Rideshare/Access Program support – a total of 1,600 free ride tickets were 

distributed to customers in support of Rideshare programs and 4,490 free ride 

tickets were used for Access bus training and customer support. 
 

• Bikes on SR-520 Deadhead Service – beginning in 2008, deadheading coaches 

began providing free bike service between Montlake and Evergreen Point on the 

SR-520 Bridge for customers with bicycles. This is a low-cost way to assist 

bicycle riders while waiting for the completion of a bike/pedestrian lane on the 

new SR-520 Bridge.  Revenue loss for this program was estimated to be $9,392 

during 2015. 
 
In 2016, there were two promotions coordinated with the opening of the Sound Transit 
Link extension to Capitol Hill and University of Washington Stations and the associated 
restructure of Metro bus routes:   
 

• The first involved a promotional mailing to households in neighborhoods near the 
UW.  There were about 9,900 ORCA cards distributed in response to this 
mailing.  Each card had a 1-week unlimited use pass.  ORCA data show that 
Metro lost $38,536 from the free rides provided by these passes.  However, 
during the first two months after the promotion, customers added $116,722 of E-
purse and pass value to the ORCA cards they received. 
 

• The second promotion involved the distribution of ORCA cards to riders at the 
Capitol Hill Link and U-Link stations and nearby bus stops.  Customers received 
1,440 cards with a 1-week unlimited use pass.  Metro’s revenue loss from this 
promotion amounted to $7,634.  During the four months following this promotion, 
customers added $28,730 of E-purse and pass value to the cards they received.   

 
This authority was also used to allow the sale of fare media combining Metro tickets 
with Sound Transit Link day passes through the Human Services Ticket 
program.  These “combo” fare media were priced to allow human services agencies to 
avoid having to pay for both Metro tickets and the Link day pass for those clients that 
needed to make a trip involving a transfer between Metro and Link. As a result, the 
Metro discount exceeded the 80 percent established in the King County Code (K.C.C. 
4A.700.210).  To date, Metro has sold 704 books of combo fare media to human 
services agencies.  Each book contains 20 Metro tickets and 10 Link day passes and is 
priced at $11.  This has resulted in a revenue loss of about $3,700 beyond the 80 
percent discount. 
 
The Executive requests approval of Proposed Ordinance 2016-0491 to give Transit 
more flexibility in testing new pricing strategies for improving access to transit and to the 
benefits of ORCA use for youth, college students, seniors and disabled riders.  
Development of specific projects would be a 2017-2018 work program item.  

King County Council November 7, 2016 317



 
ANALYSIS 
 
Approval of this two-year increase in the maximum value of foregone revenue to Transit 
would allow more flexibility to promote transit ridership through the distribution of fare 
media to potential new riders.  This is a policy decision for the Council. 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
A title amendment is attached, reflecting Legal Counsel’s advice.   
 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 318



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0492.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE establishing the fee for computer 1 

facilities and certain computer equipment use; amending 2 

Ordinance 6666, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 3 

4A.660.010 and repealing Ordinance 14006, Section 2, as 4 

amended, and K.C.C. 4A.660.100. 5 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 6 

 SECTION 1.  K.C.C. chapter 2.99 authorizes the establishment of fees-for-service 7 

charged by county agencies.  The current schedule of fees charged by the department of 8 

information technology, codified in K.C.C. chapter 4A.660, dates back to the 1980s and 9 

is in need of updating to reflect new services provided by the department, to change fee 10 

amounts for certain existing services, and to eliminate obsolete services no longer 11 

provided by the department. 12 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 6666, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.660.010 13 

are hereby amended to read as follows: 14 

 The following fees shall be charged by the department of information technology: 15 

A.  OUTPUT PRODUCTS 16 

  1. ((Property Batch System Inquiries 17 

    a.  Customer Inquiries only $0.60 per 18 

 parcel 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 319



Ordinance  

 
 
    b.  Name and Address Labels only 0.65 per 20 

 parcel 21 

    c.  Legal Description Labels only 0.65 per 22 

 parcel 23 

    d.  Customer Inquiries plus Name and Address Labels 0.95 per 24 

 parcel 25 

    e.  Customer Inquiries plus Legal Description Labels 0.95 per 26 

 parcel 27 

    f.  Customer Inquiries plus Name and Address and Legal Description 1.30 per 28 

Labels parcel 29 

    g.  Name and Address Labels plus Legal Description Labels 1.00 per 30 

 parcel 31 

    h.  Batch Tax Statements .070 per 32 

 parcel 33 

    i.  Additional Copies of Inquiries, Labels or Statements (regardless 0.30 per 34 

of number of copies printed)  parcel 35 

    j.  Minimum Charge 25.00 per 36 

 order 37 

  2.))  Property On-Line System Inquiries 38 

    ((a.  Access Fee for Customer-Owned Terminals 425.00 per 39 

 month per 40 

 location 41 

    b. )) Online Property Inquiries ((0.60 per 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 320



Ordinance  

 
 
 transaction)) 43 

 Base Access 44 

 $1,745.00 per 45 

 company per 46 

 year.  User 47 

 Access: 48 

 $932.00 per 49 

 user per year 50 

  ((3.)) 2.  Property Extracts ((and Microfiche File)) 51 

    a.  Levy Code Fund and Summary Report (ASCRPT by Levy Code $100.00 52 

and District) 53 

    b.  Local Improvement District (LID) Assessment Roll and Master $100.00 54 

File 55 

    c.  Plat Index:  Data File $50.00 56 

    d.  Plat Index:  Hard Copy $50.00 57 

    e.  Real Property Account Extract $100.00 58 

    f.  Real Property Master File Extract (($350.00)) 59 

 $100.00 60 

    ((b.)) g.  Real Property Tax ((Roll on Microfiche)) Data Extract ((245.00)) 61 

 $100.00 62 

    ((c.  LID Assessment Roll and Master File on Microfiche 245.00 63 

    d.  LID Assessment Roll and Master   File on 8-1/2 x 14-inch paper 245.00 64 

    e.  LID Assessment Roll Plat to District Cross Reference Report 69.00 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 321



Ordinance  

 
 
    f.  Residential Characteristic Land File Copy 162.00 66 

    g.  Residential Characteristic Building File Copy 162.00 67 

    h.  Residential Characteristic Accessory File Extract 162.00 68 

    i.  Sales File Copy 220.00 69 

    j.  Commercial/Industrial Characteristics  Land File Extract 162.00 70 

    k.  Commercial/Industrial Characteristic  Building File Extract 162.00 71 

    l.  Commercial/Industrial Characteristic  Condo File Extract 162.00 72 

    m.  Plat Index File Copy 162.00 73 

    n.  Current Plat Index (Paper or Fiche) 43.00  74 

    o.  Property File Copy 162.00 75 

    p.  Sales History, Purged (Microfiche) 43.00 76 

    q.  Condominium Report (Microfiche) 43.00 77 

    r.  Comparable Sales (Microfiche) 100.00 78 

    s.)) h.  Real Property Full Legal Description Extract 200.00)) 79 

 $100.00 80 

     ((t.  Personal Property File Extract 125.00 81 

    u.  Personal Property Beginning Year Tax Roll (Microfiche) 110.00 82 

  4.  Voter Registration 83 

    a.  Printouts 275.00 base 84 

 file 85 

 processing 86 

 charge plus: 87 

      (1)  One-Part Paper - All Registered Voters within Precinct 0.12 per 88 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 322



Ordinance  

 
 
 precinct 89 

      (2)  Two-Part Paper - All Registered Voters within Precinct 0.25 per 90 

 precinct 91 

      (3)  Four-Part Paper - All Registered Voters within Precinct 0.35 per 92 

 precinct 93 

or: 94 

      (4)  One-Part Paper - New Registrations  and Transfers only 0.0004 per 95 

 voter selected 96 

      (5)  Two-Part Paper - New Registrations  and Transfers only 0.0008 per 97 

 voter selected 98 

      (6)  Four-Part Paper - New Registrations  and Transfers only 0.0010 per 99 

 voter selected 100 

     b.  Name and Address Labels 275.00 base 101 

 file 102 

 processing 103 

 charge plus: 104 

      (1)  All Registered Voters within Precincts 1.50 per 105 

 precinct 106 

or: 107 

      (2)  New Registrations and Transfers only 0.005 per 108 

 voter selected 109 

     c.  Standard Magnetic Tape  (1600 bits per inch minimum) 275.00 base 110 

 file 111 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 323



Ordinance  

 
 
 processing 112 

 charge plus: 113 

      (1)  All Registered Voters within Precincts 0.10 per 114 

 precinct 115 

      (2)  New Registrations and Transfers only 0.0005 per 116 

 voter selected 117 

    d.  Certify Tape 11.00 per reel 118 

    e.  King County Information and Telecommunications Services 30.00 119 

Supplied Magnetic Tape certified 120 

 check per 121 

 reel loaned 122 

  5.  Absentee Abstracts 123 

     a.  Printouts 25.00 base 124 

 file 125 

 processing 126 

 charge plus: 127 

        (1)  One-Part Paper 0.025 per 128 

 printed page 129 

        (2)  Two-Part Paper 0.05 per 130 

 printed page 131 

       (3)  Four-Part Paper 0.065 per 132 

 printed page 133 

  6.  Recording Index Tape 134 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 324



Ordinance  

 
 
    a.  General Index of Daily Recordings Year to date 25.00 per 135 

 copy 136 

    b.  Tract Index of Surveys Year to date 25.00 per 137 

 copy 138 

    c.  Sales Activity 25.00 per 139 

 copy 140 

  7.  Adult Detention 141 

    a.  Booking Recap Report 30.00 per 142 

 month 143 

    b.  Release Recap Report 15.00 per 144 

 month 145 

    c.  Bail Bond Inquiry 0.35 per 146 

 transaction 147 

  8.  Published Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Data 58.93 per 148 

 compact 149 

 disk)) 150 

 B.  Special circumstances and requests for output products other than those 151 

specified in subsection A. of this section shall be charged a fixed rate, determined by the 152 

department of information technology, based on the prevailing labor and resource costs. 153 

 C.  Based on their unique requirements, cash-on-delivery and non-King County 154 

customers may be assessed a fee of up to ten percent to cover undistributed overhead. 155 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance takes effect January 1, 2017.156 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 325



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 14006, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.660.100 157 

are each hereby repealed. 158 

 159 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 326



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 14 Name: Jenny Giambattista 

Proposed No.: 2016-0492 Date: November 1-3, 2016 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0492 passed out of committee on November 
1, 2016, with a “Do Pass” recommendation. The motion was amended in 
committee with Amendments 1 making technical corrections. 
 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0492 updates the current schedule of fees charged by the 
Department of Information Technology. The proposed fees will generate $640,000 in 
the biennium to the KCIT services fund. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
King County Code Chapter 2.99 authorizes the establishment of fees for services by 
county agencies. The current schedule of fees charged by the Department of 
Information Technology, codified in K.C.C. Chapter 4A.660 is outdated. Proposed 
Ordinance 2016-0492 would update this section of code to reflect new services 
provided by King County Information Technology (KCIT), change fee amounts for 
certain existing services, and eliminate obsolete services no longer provided by 
department.  
 
The proposed fees will generate $640,000 in the biennium to the KCIT services fund. 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
King County Code Chapter 2.99 authorizes the establishment of fees for services by 
County agencies. The current schedule of fees charged by the Department of 
Information Technology, codified in K.C.C chapter 4A.660 is outdated and is proposed 
to be updated with Proposed Ordinance 2016-0492. 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 327



ANALYSIS 
 
Many Fees Eliminated  
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0492 proposes to eliminate almost 50 fees for services that 
are no longer offered, largely because the information is now available on-line for free 
and thus there is no need for KCIT to provide the information Examples of services no 
longer provided include. Many of deleted fees are related to microfiche copies of 
property data and paper printouts of registered voters.  

 
Updated Fees  
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0492 proposes to change the amount charged for the fees in 
Table One. To determine the new fee structure, KCIT reviewed actual costs to offer the 
services and used those actual costs to set future rates. 
 
 

Table One 
Fee Changes 

 

Fee Current Fee  New Fee  

Access Fee for Customer Owned 
Terminals 
(Lines 39-48) 

$425 per 
month, per 
location 

$1,745 per company per year, 
plus $932 per user per year.  

This allows companies to have 
remote access to the Assessor-
Treasury database to search for 
property information. The largest 
customers are title companies, the 
City of Seattle, and Seattle Police 
Departments. There are currently 
20 customers and 700 users. KCIT 
establishes an Exchange account 
for every authorized user. 
 
Subsequent to the transmittal, 
Executive staff report this fee can 
be eliminated as it is duplicative 
of the fee below. This change is 
reflected in the amendment. 

  

Online Property Inquiries 
(Line 49-57) 

.60 per 
transaction 

$1,745 per company per year, 
plus $932 per user per year.  

Access & Inquiries are basically the 
same in the rehosted environment. 
Only one fee is charged for 
obtaining Assessor-Treasury data. 
Thus, this fee will not be charged. 
 
 

  
KCIT has included a per user fee 
to reflect the costs associated 
with establishing an exchange 
account for new users. 
 
KCIT anticipates this fee change 
will generate an additional 

King County Council November 7, 2016 328



$120,000 annually. 
 

   

Local Improvement District (LID) 
Assessment Roll and Master File 
This replaces LID assessment Roll 
and Master File on Microfiche, 
previously item c.  
 
(LID) are “self-taxing” neighborhood 
projects that King County Treasury 
Operations bills, collects, and 
distributes based upon the property 
tax parcel number and a project 
number. 
(Line 61-62) 

$245 $100 

Plat Index Data File  
(line 63) 
This includes a listing of parcel 
information: name, type, number, 
and location. Replaces the fee 
listed on line 80. 
 

162 $50 

Plat Index Hard Copy 
(Line 64) 
Same as Plat Index Data File but in 
paper format 
Replaces the fee listed on line 81 
 

$43 $50 

Real Property Master File Extract 
(Line 66) 
A listing by parcel that includes 
property values and billed/paid 
amounts used by property tax and 
title research companies. 
 

$350 $100 

Real Property Tax Roll on 
Microfiche 
(Line 68) 
A listing of property address and 
taxpayer name and mailing address 
by parcel used by Estate Tax, Title 
research and Property Information 
companies.  

$245 $100  
This will no longer be a 
microfiche. Instead, information 
will be saved to a File Transfer 
Protocol (FTP) folder and/or to a 
DVD and mailed to the customer. 

Real Property Full Legal 
Description Extract 
(Line 86) 
Provides legal description data for 
each active real property parcel on 

$200 $100 

King County Council November 7, 2016 329



the tax roll. Users of this report are 
Mortgage companies and Title 
Research companies. 

 
New Fees 
 
As shown in Table Two, Proposed Ordinance 2016-0492 also includes two new fees  
 

 
 

Table Two –New Fees 
 

Fee  New  

Levy Code Fund and Summary Report (ASCRPT 
by Levy Code and District)  
(Line 59) 
Assessed valuation and extended tax certification 
by Levy and District. This is an annual report used 
by integrated brokerage companies and investment 
banks. 

$100 

Real Property Account Extract  
(Line 65) 
Provides Account Number, Parcel Number, Plat 
Name, address, taxpayer name, mailing address. 
Used by Estate Tax, Title research and Property 
Information companies. 
 

$100 

 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
Subsequent to the transmittal of this Ordinance, KCIT reported the “Access Fee for 
Customer-Owned Terminals” on lines 39 to 48 is no longer necessary because there is 
a charge for the same service listed in lines 49 to 57. Amendment 1 deletes the “Access 
Fee for Customer-Owned Terminals” and also adds an effective date of January 1, 
2017. 
 

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 330



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0493.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to county automotive parking 1 

facilities; and amending Ordinance 15648, Section 2, as 2 

amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.006, Ordinance 8753, Section 6, 3 

as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.045, Ordinance 12077, 4 

Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.055, Ordinance 5 

8753, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.045 and 6 

Ordinance 12077, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 7 

3.32.055. 8 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 9 

 SECTION 1.  A. This ordinance proposes changes to the rates for county 10 

employees at County automotive parking facilities and includes the King Street Center 11 

into the County automotive parking facilities portfolio starting June 1, 2017. 12 

 B.  These fees are assessed pursuant to K.C.C. 2.99.030. 13 

 SECTION 2.  Section 3 of this ordinance takes effect June 1, 2017. 14 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 15648, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.006 are 15 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 16 

 The definitions in this section apply throughout this chapter unless the context 17 

clearly requires otherwise. 18 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 331



Ordinance  

 
 
 A.  "After hours parking" means work time parking for employees whose normal 19 

work shifts begin after 1:30 p.m. and end between 9:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. or who are 20 

required to come into work after 4:30 p.m.  "After hours parking" also includes parking 21 

on weekends and holidays that is required by the employee's agency. 22 

 B.  "Business convenience" means a county business-related requirement.  For the 23 

purposes of this chapter, "a county business-related requirement" includes after hours 24 

parking for county employees, parking for commissioned sheriff's office personnel, 25 

parking for county employees working for a specified and limited period on a time-26 

sensitive project that requires them to arrive before or stay after regular work hours, 27 

parking for county employees who are required as part of their jobs to use their private 28 

vehicles to routinely travel to multiple county business locations, and parking for county-29 

owned vehicles and paid parking for county volunteers authorized by ordinance or by any 30 

presiding elected official as defined by K.C.C. 3.24.010 or the presiding elected official's 31 

designee, but for the executive branch any designee must be at least the highest-ranking 32 

employee of a division. 33 

 C.  "County automotive parking facility" means: 34 

  1.  The Goat Hill parking garage located at Sixth Avenue and Jefferson in Seattle; 35 

  2.  The parking structure located at the regional justice center in Kent; 36 

  3.  County adult detention center parking facilities located at Fifth Avenue and 37 

James in Seattle; 38 

  4.  Open surface lots that are owned or leased by the county; ((and)) 39 

  5.  The Chinook Building parking located at Fifth Avenue and Jefferson in 40 

Seattle; and 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 332



Ordinance  

 
 
   6.  The King Street Center, located at 201 South Jackson Street in Seattle. 42 

 D.  "County volunteer" means a person who is not a county employee, who 43 

performs service for the county for civic, charitable or humanitarian reasons, without 44 

promise, expectation or receipt of compensation from the county for services rendered 45 

and who is accepted as a volunteer by the county.  "County volunteer" includes, but is not 46 

limited to, a person serving as a board member, officer, commission member, volunteer 47 

intern or direct service volunteer. 48 

 E.  "Director" means the director of the county department of executive services 49 

and his or her successor or designee, unless otherwise specified in this chapter. 50 

 F.  "Public parking" means general purpose parking by persons who are not 51 

county employees and by county employees that park for less than a full day. 52 

 SECTION 4.  Sections 5 and 6 of this ordinance take effect January 1, 2017. 53 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 8753, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.045 are 54 

each hereby amended as follows: 55 

 The rates for county employees parking at the Goat Hill parking garage shall be as 56 

follows:  57 

 A.  Daily parking for motorcycles: five dollars;  58 

 B.  Hourly parking: Hourly public parking rates shall apply up to a maximum of 59 

((fifteen)) twenty dollars per day for automobiles; and 60 

 C.  The rate for after-hours parking shall be seven dollars per day. 61 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinance 12077, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.055 are 62 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 63 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 333



Ordinance  

 
 
 A.  Monthly employee and county vehicle rates for parking in the Goat Hill 64 

parking garage, the Chinook Building, the King County Correctional Facility and open 65 

surface parking lots that are designated by rule to be subject to parking charges, shall be 66 

as follows: 67 

    Reserved/Designated Area  Unreserved Area 68 

 1.  Vehicle parking   (($300.00)) $385.00  (($260.00)) $300.00 69 

 2.  Electric Cars      (($182.00)) $210.00 70 

 3.  Open surface lots   $20.00   $20.00 71 

 4.  City of Seattle certified     (($182.00)) $210.00 72 

  carpool 73 

 5.  Employee ADA (Americans    (($130.00)) $150.00 74 

  with Disabilities Act) 75 

 B.  The facilities management division of the department of executive services 76 

shall identify surface parking lots where it is reasonable and feasible to charge employees 77 

for monthly parking.  These surface parking lots are located at county facilities outside 78 

the downtown Seattle metropolitan core and include, but are not limited to, district courts, 79 

health centers, alcohol treatment facilities, police precincts, youth service centers and 80 

similar facilities.  Designation of open surface lots that are subject to parking charges 81 

shall occur by administrative rule adopted pursuant to K.C.C. 3.32.010. 82 

 C.  For county employees with disabilities that make it difficult or impossible to 83 

use public transit, and who display a disabled parking permit, the fee for covered parking 84 

in facilities managed by the facilities management division shall be fifty percent of the  85 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 334



Ordinance  

 
 
monthly employee rate, rounding up to the next even dollar. Employees with disabilities 86 

shall receive first priority in the assignment of available parking stalls. 87 

 SECTION 7.  Section 8 and 9 of this ordinance takes effect June 1, 2017. 88 

 SECTION 8.  Ordinance 8753, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.045 are 89 

each hereby amended as follows: 90 

 The rates for county employees parking at the Goat Hill and King Street Center 91 

parking garages shall be as follows:  92 

 A.  Daily parking for motorcycles: five dollars;  93 

 B.  Hourly parking: Hourly public parking rates shall apply up to a maximum of 94 

twenty dollars per day for automobiles; and 95 

 C.  The rate for after-hours parking shall be seven dollars per day. 96 

 SECTION 9.  Ordinance 12077, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 3.32.055 are 97 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 98 

 A.  Monthly employee and county vehicle rates for parking in the Goat Hill 99 

parking garage, the Chinook Building, the King County Correctional Facility, the King 100 

Street Center garage and open surface parking lots that are designated by rule to be 101 

subject to parking charges, shall be as follows: 102 

     Reserved/Designated Area Unreserved Area 103 

 1.  Vehicle parking    $385.00   $300.00 104 

 2.  Electric Cars       $210.00 105 

 3.  Open surface lots   $20.00    $20.00 106 

 4.  City of Seattle certified      $210.00 107 

  carpool 108 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 335



Ordinance  

 
 
 5.  Employee ADA (Americans     $150.00 109 

  with Disabilities Act) 110 

 B.  The facilities management division of the department of executive services 111 

shall identify surface parking lots where it is reasonable and feasible to charge employees 112 

for monthly parking.  These surface parking lots are located at county facilities outside 113 

the downtown Seattle metropolitan core and include, but are not limited to, district courts, 114 

health centers, alcohol  115 

treatment facilities, police precincts, youth service centers and similar facilities.  116 

Designation of open surface lots that are subject to parking charges shall occur by 117 

administrative rule adopted pursuant to K.C.C. 3.32.010. 118 

 C.  For county employees with disabilities that make it difficult or impossible to 119 

use public transit, and who display a disabled parking permit, the fee for covered parking 120 

in facilities managed by the facilities management division shall be fifty percent of the 121 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 336



Ordinance  

 
 
monthly employee rate, rounding up to the next even dollar.  Employees with disabilities 122 

shall receive first priority in the assignment of available parking stalls. 123 

 124 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 337



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item:  Name: Andrew Kim 

Proposed No.: 2016-0493 Date: November 7, 2016 

 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION 
 

 
Proposed Substitute Ordinance 2016-0493.2, to increase County employee 
parking rates and add King Street Center parking facility to the County’s 
downtown parking facilities portfolio, passed out of the Special Budget and 
Fiscal Management Committee on November 1, 2016, without a recommendation. 
The proposed ordinance was amended in committee with Striking Amendment 1, 
to specify fee-setting authority as per K.C.C.299.030, format fee-table to more 
closely match Code, and correct the effective date of hourly rates for King Street 
Center, and Title Amendment 1 to reflect Striking Amendment 1. 
 
 
SUBJECT 
 
A proposed ordinance to revise King County Code to increase County employee 
parking rates at County parking facilities located in downtown Seattle, and add King 
Street Center parking facility to the County’s downtown parking facilities portfolio, in 
accordance with the 2017-2018 Executive Proposed Biennium budget. The changes will 
generate approximately $3.1 million in additional estimated revenues for the 2017-2018 
biennium for the General Fund. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0493 proposes to revise King County Code to reflect County 
employee parking fee increases to the Goat Hill Parking Garage, the King County 
Correctional Facility, the Chinook Building, and beginning in June 1, 2017, the King 
Street Center. This proposal is in accordance with the Executive’s Proposed 2017-2018 
Biennium budget. The last time employee parking rates were changed for these 
facilities were in 2011 and the Executive has proposed the rate increases to have 
parking rates be commensurate with market levels in the downtown area. The Executive 
also hopes that this will decrease the number of county employees parking at the 
garage to free up space for the public who may need to use the parking facilities for 
county services. 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 338



The proposed fee increases and the addition of the King Street Center to the County 
parking facilities portfolio will generate an additional $3.1 million in parking fee revenues 
for the 2017-2018 biennium. This includes an additional $70,000 allocation to the 
Children and Family Services Fund and an additional $1.4 million allocation to the 
General Fund. However, the proposed increases will also increase costs for County 
employees that rely on driving to work and increase costs to County agencies that 
reimburse for County employee parking and/or use the downtown parking facilities for 
County fleet. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The County currently has five parking garages: (1) Goat Hill Parking Garage, (2) 
Chinook Building, (3) King County Correctional Facility, (4) Maleng Regional Justice 
Center, and (5) Youth Services Center open surface lot. However, on June 1, 2017, the 
Facilities Management Division (FMD) is proposing to take over the King Street Center 
parking garage and increasing its parking facilities portfolio to six1. 
 
A Parking Facilities Fund was established as a subfund of the General Fund in the 
2015-2016 adopted budget to increase transparency of the parking facility revenues and 
expenditures under FMD management2. County Employee Parking Fees at County 
parking facilities and allocation of the parking fee revenues are governed by KCC 
Chapter 3.32. In accordance with KCC 3.32.090, the parking fee revenues are allocated 
in the following order: 

1. State and local taxes, 
2. Debt service and rent payments, 
3. Contribution to the Major Maintenance Reserve Fund (MMRF), 
4. FMD operating expenses for the parking facilities, 
5. Contribution to the Children and Family Services Fund, and 
6. General Fund 

 
According to KCC 3.32.010, public parking rates for County parking facilities are set by 
the contractor that operates the County parking facilities with oversight and periodic 
review by the Director of the Department of Executive Services. FMD has stated that 
public parking rates were last changed in January 2016. 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0493 proposes to revise King County Code to reflect County 
employee parking fee increases to the Goat Hill Parking Garage, the King County 
Correctional Facility, the Chinook Building, and beginning in June 2017, the King Street 
Center. In addition to individual employees, the employee parking rate change impacts 
those agencies that pay or reimburse for privately-operated vehicles and for agency-
assigned fleet vehicles that park in County parking facilities. The Executive’s rationale 
for increasing the employee parking fees for the downtown parking facilities are (1) to 

1 Ordinance 12614 (1/15/1997) allowed the King Street Center as the first lease-to-own facility developed for the 
County pursuant to U.S. Department of Treasury Revenue Procedure ruling 63-20. This decision was a direct result 
of the King County and Metro merger. This ruling was a development/financing tool for public entities to construct 
new properties in partnership with private developers. The National Development Council, the nonprofit 
intermediary required by the 63-20 ruling, financed the project via tax-exempt revenue bonds, and Wright Runstad 
& Company was the private developer. The building was completed and occupied in 1998 and King County will 
assume ownership as of June 1, 2017. Additional details can be found in the 2016 RAMP Section II.B.5. 
2 Administration may establish subfunds without Council approval (KCC 4A.200.02). 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 339



have parking rates be commensurate with market levels in the downtown area, and (2) 
to decrease the number of county employees parking at the garage to free up space for 
the public who may need to use the parking facilities for county services. The last time 
employee parking rates were changed for these facilities were in 20113. 
 
Table 1 below summarizes the current and proposed employee parking fee rates for 
County parking facilities: 
 

Table 1: Employee Parking Rates (Current vs. 2017-2018 Proposed) 
 

RATE TYPE 
CURRENT 

(since 2011) 

2017-2018 

PROPOSED 
% CHANGE 

Daily – Motorcycles $5 / day $5 / day 0.0% 

Hourly $15 max / day $20 max / day 33.3% 

After-Hours / Weekend $7 / day $7 / day 0.0% 

Monthly – Reserved $300 / month $385 / month 28.3% 

Monthly – Unreserved $260 / month $300 / month 15.4% 

Electric Cars – Unreserved $182 / month $210 / month 15.4% 

Certified Car Pool – Unreserved $182 / month $210 / month 15.4% 

Employee ADA – Unreserved $130 / month $150 / month 15.4% 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Parking Rate Survey 
In accordance with KCC 3.32.0204, FMD surveyed 28 parking facilities in the downtown 
area during October 2015 to determine the proposed employee parking rates for the 
new biennium. The survey grouped the parking facilities into three categories 
(Downtown, Civic Campus, and Pioneer Square) based on location. Table 2 below 
provides a summary of the survey, and Table 3 provides FMD’s methodology to 
determine the proposed employee parking rates. 
 

Table 2: FMD Parking Survey Summary (October 2015) 
 

Location 

Group 

Average Rate 

(1.5 – 2 hours) 

Average Rate 

(8-9 hours) 

Average 

(Monthly – 

Unreserved) 

Average 

(Monthly – 

Reserved) 

Average 

(Evening) 

Civic 

Campus 
$13.91 $24.21 $276.10 $383.33 $6.67 

3 Ordinance 16981 (11/15/2010). 
4 KCC 3.32.020.D states, “In order to evaluate the appropriateness of any potential adjustments to established 
employee parking rates, the department of executive services, facilities management division may conduct a survey 
of the monthly parking rates charged for public parking in comparable lots.  The survey and any employee parking 
fee recommendations shall be forwarded to the council for consideration during the budget process.” 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 340



Location 

Group 

Average Rate 

(1.5 – 2 hours) 

Average Rate 

(8-9 hours) 

Average 

(Monthly – 

Unreserved) 

Average 

(Monthly – 

Reserved) 

Average 

(Evening) 

Downtown $14.13 $27.50 $318.75 $425.00 $10.29 

Pioneer 

Square 
$8.49 $19.01 $213.51 n/a $6.88 

 
 

Table 3: FMD Methodology to Determine Proposed Employee Parking Rates 
 

RATE TYPE 
2017-2018 

PROPOSED 
METHODOLOGY 

Daily (Max) $20 max / day Prorated on proposed Monthly – Reserved rate 

Monthly – Reserved $385 / month Average of Monthly – Reserved for Civic Campus 

Monthly – Unreserved $300 / month 
Weighted Average of Monthly – Unreserved for 

Civic Campus and Downtown 

Electric Cars / Car Pool – 

Unreserved 
$210 / month 70% of proposed Monthly – Unreserved rate 

Employee ADA – 

Unreserved 
$150 / month 50% of proposed Monthly – Unreserved rate 

 
Parking Fee Revenue Allocations 
Overall, compared to 2015-2016 year-end forecasts, the overall estimated revenues for 
all County parking facilities are proposed to increase by approximately $3.1 million 
(45%) for the 2017-2018 biennium. This includes approximately $1 million (15%) 
increase due to the employee parking rate increases and approximately $2.1 million 
(30%) increase due to the addition of the King Street Center parking garage to the 
County’s parking facilities portfolio, which would also apply the proposed employee 
parking fee rates. 
 
Table 4 below provides a summary of the parking fee revenue allocations as governed 
by KCC 3.32.090 by comparing the 2015-2016 year-end forecasts to the 2017-2018 
proposed. Approximately 64% of the revenues were allocated to the payment of debt 
service, contribution to the Major Maintenance Reserve Fund (MMRF), and operating 
expenses for the parking facilities. The remaining $3.6 million was allocated to the 
Children and Family Services Fund and the General Fund. 
 
Table 4: County Parking Facilities Revenue Allocation (2015-2016 vs. 2017-2018) 

 

No. ALLOCATION 
2015-2016 

ESTIMATED 

2017-2018 

PROPOSED 
% CHANGE 

1 FMD O&M incl. State & local taxes5 $588,876 $813,528 38.1% 

5 This includes the City of Seattle commercial parking tax rate of 12.5%. According to the Seattle Municipal Code, 
the commercial parking tax is added to the fee drivers pay to park in Seattle's commercial parking lots. Drivers pay 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 341



No. ALLOCATION 
2015-2016 

ESTIMATED 

2017-2018 

PROPOSED 
% CHANGE 

2 Parking Facility Operator Expenses  $1,359,478 $2,569,000 89.0% 

3 Debt Service $2,440,624 $2,365,1646 (3.1%) 

4 Major Maintenance Reserve Fund $362,144 $594,852 64.3% 

5 Children and Family Services Fund $1,330,136 $1,400,000 5.3% 

6 General Fund $801,983 $2,263,456 182.2% 

 
Impacts to County Agencies and Employees 
As mentioned in the Background, the employee parking rate increases will not only 
impact individual employees but will also increase costs for agencies that use County’s 
downtown parking facilities for their fleet and/or reimburse parking costs to their 
employees. There may also be Equity and Social Justice (ESJ) impacts for those 
employees that rely on driving to work due to lack of access to public transportation, to 
frequently attend medical appointments, and/or to attend to childcare responsibilities. 
Lastly, there may be collective bargaining implications since almost every county 
bargaining unit has at least one member parking at a downtown garage. Department of 
Adult and Juvenile Detention (DAJD) employees that benefit from employer paid 
parking will also be impacted since the fee increase will exceed the threshold of any IRS 
Tax Benefits and likely result in an increase in income taxes for these employees. 
 
Executive staff have stated the proposed rate increase was communicated to all 
employees (represented and non-represented) in the summer of 2016, and employee 
feedback was submitted either through labor negotiations or directly to the Executive 
Office. They also mentioned that employee concerns were largely related to the size of 
the rate increases and the parking rate survey data were made available to requestors. 
Lastly, Executive has stated that the parking fee increases were negotiated between the 
County and the Coalition of Unions as part of the Total Compensation agreement. 
 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Striking Amendment 1 specifies granting fee-setting authority as per K.C.C.299.030, 
formats fee-table to more closely match Code, and corrects the effective date of hourly 
rates for King Street Center. 
 
Title Amendment 1 amends the title to reflect Striking Amendment 1. 
 
FOLLOW UP FROM WEEK 1 PANEL QUESTIONS 
 
Councilmembers asked for a breakdown of parking revenues paid by employees: 
In 2015-2016, approximately $3.7 million (53% of total estimated revenues) was 
revenue attributed to non-county agencies or individual parking fees. Approximately 
$894,000 of the $3.7 million was directly from employee payroll deduction, and $2.3m 

the tax when they park, but it is the business's responsibility to charge and collect the tax. Then, the business must 
pay the collected amount when taxes are filed. The business is liable for the tax whether or not it is collected. 
6 $1,264,093 of the total 2017-2018 debt service payment for the Goat Hill Properties will be for interest payments. 

                                                                                                                                                             

King County Council November 7, 2016 342



was privately-paid monthly and transient parking. Standard Parking (the County’s 
parking facility operator) estimated that approximately 64% of 2016 transient revenues 
are from those paying the employee parking rate. With that assumption, a total of $2.4 
million (35% of total estimated revenues) comes from individuals that pay the employee 
parking rate. It should be noted that County employees who do not provide their 
employee identification when parking in County parking facilities would pay the public 
parking rate and therefore would not be included in the $2.4 million calculation. 
 
Councilmembers asked for clarification on the allocation of the parking fee 
revenues as guided by King County Code and review any options, if any, to 
modify the allocations: 
The Background section above provides a summary of the allocation guidelines as 
outlined by KCC 3.32.090 and the excerpt of the code is provided below: 

 
3.32.090 Parking fee revenues - disposition.  All revenues derived from parking 
fees shall be distributed as follows: 

A. Applicable local and state taxes; 
B. An allocation to cover rent payments or debt service payments for the 

Goat Hill parking garage and pro-rated rent for the parking portion of the 
Chinook Building; 

C. It is the intent of the council to biennially, during the budget process, 
identify a portion of the revenue going to the current expense fund to be 
transferred to the major maintenance reserve fund to support major 
maintenance projects at the garage and other parking facilities, taking into 
account the major maintenance model and financial plan; 

D. An allocation to the facilities management division of the department of 
executive services's internal service fund to reimburse the fund for 
expenses associated with the operation of the parking program; 

E. An allocation to the children and family set-aside fund for support of health 
and human services activities sufficient to increase the allocation from 
2004 levels at the local consumer price index; and 

F. The residual revenues distributed to the current expense fund. 
 
Table 5 below provides a summary of the Executive staff analysis regarding possible 
modifications to the allocation model. 
 

Table 5: Executive Analysis on Parking Fee Revenue Allocation Modifications 
 

No. ALLOCATION EXECUTIVE ANALYSIS 

1 FMD O&M 

Altering this amount would result in a revenue 

shortfall to the ISF and affect FMD’s ability to 

service and administer the County’s parking 

facility portfolio 

2 Debt Service 

Altering the amount of debt-service backed by 

parking fee revenues would shift the burden to 

another source (presumably the County’s 

King County Council November 7, 2016 343



No. ALLOCATION EXECUTIVE ANALYSIS 

General Fund) 

3 Major Maintenance Reserve Fund 

Reducing this amount would lower revenue to 

support Major Maintenance projects and affect 

the FMD’s ability to address infrastructural needs 

in County facilities 

4 Children and Family Services Fund 
Altering would presumably require an adjustment 

to the direction given in code 

5 General Fund 
Altering this approach would affect the General 

Fund’s budgeted revenue for 2017-2018 

 
Council staff agree that there is little flexibility to modify FMD O&M and Debt Service 
contributions since these allocations impact current levels of operations and long-term 
debt obligations. However, allocation level to the MMRF is a policy decision that may be 
modified by the Council. Council staff also agree with Executive staff that allocations to 
the Children and Family Services Fund and General Fund may be modified with 
amendments to County Code. With Council’s direction, legal analysis can be conducted 
to confirm Council staff analysis. 
 
Councilmembers asked for details on the market survey: 
Details of the market survey is provided in the Analysis section above. 
 
Councilmembers asked for the interest payment amount on the 2017-2018 debt 
service payment: 
For 2017-2018, $1,264,093 of the $2,365,164 debt service amount shown in the 
Parking Facilities financial plan is for interest payments on the Goat Hill Properties. 

King County Council November 7, 2016 344



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0494.2 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to the 2017 King County 10 1 

Step Hourly Squared Schedule, 2017 King County 10 Step 2 

Annual/FLSA-Exempt Squared Schedule, 2017 King 3 

County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule, 2017 King 4 

County Standardized Annual/FLSA-Exempt Salary 5 

Schedule, and the annual general wage increase for 6 

nonrepresented King County employees as stipulated in 7 

K.C.C. 3.12.130 and K.C.C. 3.12.140. 8 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 9 

 SECTION 1.  The attached 2017 King County 10 Step Hourly Squared Schedule, 10 

2017 King County 10 Step Annual/FLSA-Exempt Squared Schedule, 2017 King County 11 

10 Step Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule and 2017 King County Standardized 10 12 

Step Annual/FLSA-Exempt Salary Schedule, are approved and adopted. 13 

 SECTION 2.  The salary tables listed in section 1 of this ordinance, reflect a two 14 

and one-quarter percent increase from the 2016 tables, thereby granting a general wage 15 

increase for nonrepresented employees of the King County executive branch, King 16 

County council, prosecuting attorney's office, district courts and superior courts, to be 17 

effective January 1, 2017.  The wages of any nonrepresented executive branch, county 18 

council, prosecuting attorney's office, district court or superior court employee whose 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 345



Ordinance  

 
 
wages are not based on any salary table listed in section 1 of this ordinance, shall be 20 

increased by two and one-quarter percent, effective January 1, 2017.  This ordinance shall 21 

not apply to elected officials, superior court commissioners, district court chief 22 

administrative officers or judges pro tem.  Represented employees' general wage 23 

increases shall be governed by the employees' respective collective bargaining 24 

agreements. 25 

 26 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  
Attachments: A. 2017 King County 10 Step Hourly Squared Schedule with 2.25% General Wage 
Increase for 2017, B. 2017 King County 10 Step Annual/FLSA Exempt Squared Schedule with 2.25% 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 346



Ordinance  

 
 

General Wage Increase for 2017, C. 2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule 2.25% 
General Wage Increase for 2017, D. 2017 King County Standardized Annual/FLSA Exempt Salary 
Schedule with 2.25% General Wage Increase for 2017 

 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 347



Attachment A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
H 11 $11.2624 $11.8086 $12.0920 $12.3822 $12.6794 $12.9837 $13.2953 $13.6144 $13.9411 $14.2757

H 12 $11.5327 $12.0920 $12.3822 $12.6794 $12.9837 $13.2953 $13.6144 $13.9411 $14.2757 $14.6183

H 13 $11.8095 $12.3823 $12.6795 $12.9838 $13.2954 $13.6145 $13.9412 $14.2758 $14.6184 $14.9692

H 14 $12.0929 $12.6794 $12.9837 $13.2953 $13.6144 $13.9411 $14.2757 $14.6183 $14.9691 $15.3284

H 15 $12.3831 $12.9837 $13.2953 $13.6144 $13.9411 $14.2757 $14.6183 $14.9691 $15.3284 $15.6963

H 16 $12.6803 $13.2953 $13.6144 $13.9411 $14.2757 $14.6183 $14.9691 $15.3284 $15.6963 $16.0730

H 17 $12.9846 $13.6144 $13.9411 $14.2757 $14.6183 $14.9691 $15.3284 $15.6963 $16.0730 $16.4588

H 18 $13.2962 $13.9411 $14.2757 $14.6183 $14.9691 $15.3284 $15.6963 $16.0730 $16.4588 $16.8538

H 19 $13.6153 $14.2756 $14.6182 $14.9690 $15.3283 $15.6962 $16.0729 $16.4586 $16.8536 $17.2581

H 20 $13.9421 $14.6183 $14.9691 $15.3284 $15.6963 $16.0730 $16.4588 $16.8538 $17.2583 $17.6725

H 21 $14.2767 $14.9691 $15.3284 $15.6963 $16.0730 $16.4588 $16.8538 $17.2583 $17.6725 $18.0966

H 22 $14.6193 $15.3283 $15.6962 $16.0729 $16.4586 $16.8536 $17.2581 $17.6723 $18.0964 $18.5307

H 23 $14.9702 $15.6963 $16.0730 $16.4588 $16.8538 $17.2583 $17.6725 $18.0966 $18.5309 $18.9756

H 24 $15.3295 $16.0730 $16.4588 $16.8538 $17.2583 $17.6725 $18.0966 $18.5309 $18.9756 $19.4310

H 25 $15.6974 $16.4587 $16.8537 $17.2582 $17.6724 $18.0965 $18.5308 $18.9755 $19.4309 $19.8972

H 26 $16.0741 $16.8537 $17.2582 $17.6724 $18.0965 $18.5308 $18.9755 $19.4309 $19.8972 $20.3747

H 27 $16.4599 $17.2582 $17.6724 $18.0965 $18.5308 $18.9755 $19.4309 $19.8972 $20.3747 $20.8637

H 28 $16.8549 $17.6724 $18.0965 $18.5308 $18.9755 $19.4309 $19.8972 $20.3747 $20.8637 $21.3644

H 29 $17.2594 $18.0965 $18.5308 $18.9755 $19.4309 $19.8972 $20.3747 $20.8637 $21.3644 $21.8771

H 30 $17.6736 $18.5308 $18.9755 $19.4309 $19.8972 $20.3747 $20.8637 $21.3644 $21.8771 $22.4022

H 31 $18.0978 $18.9755 $19.4309 $19.8972 $20.3747 $20.8637 $21.3644 $21.8771 $22.4022 $22.9399

H 32 $18.5321 $19.4309 $19.8972 $20.3747 $20.8637 $21.3644 $21.8771 $22.4022 $22.9399 $23.4905

H 33 $18.9769 $19.8973 $20.3748 $20.8638 $21.3645 $21.8772 $22.4023 $22.9400 $23.4906 $24.0544

H 34 $19.4323 $20.3748 $20.8638 $21.3645 $21.8772 $22.4023 $22.9400 $23.4906 $24.0544 $24.6317

H 35 $19.8987 $20.8638 $21.3645 $21.8772 $22.4023 $22.9400 $23.4906 $24.0544 $24.6317 $25.2229

H 36 $20.3763 $21.3646 $21.8774 $22.4025 $22.9402 $23.4908 $24.0546 $24.6319 $25.2231 $25.8285

H 37 $20.8653 $21.8773 $22.4024 $22.9401 $23.4907 $24.0545 $24.6318 $25.2230 $25.8284 $26.4483

H 38 $21.3661 $22.4024 $22.9401 $23.4907 $24.0545 $24.6318 $25.2230 $25.8284 $26.4483 $27.0831

H 39 $21.8789 $22.9400 $23.4906 $24.0544 $24.6317 $25.2229 $25.8282 $26.4481 $27.0829 $27.7329

H 40 $22.4040 $23.4906 $24.0544 $24.6317 $25.2229 $25.8282 $26.4481 $27.0829 $27.7329 $28.3985

H 41 $22.9417 $24.0544 $24.6317 $25.2229 $25.8282 $26.4481 $27.0829 $27.7329 $28.3985 $29.0801

H 42 $23.4923 $24.6317 $25.2229 $25.8282 $26.4481 $27.0829 $27.7329 $28.3985 $29.0801 $29.7780

H 43 $24.0561 $25.2228 $25.8281 $26.4480 $27.0828 $27.7328 $28.3984 $29.0800 $29.7779 $30.4926

2017 KING COUNTY 10 STEP HOURLY SQUARED SCHEDULE

(with 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) FOR 2017)

Range

King County Council November 7, 2016 348



Squared Hourly Table 2017.xls 2017 Squared Hourly 2

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 KING COUNTY 10 STEP HOURLY SQUARED SCHEDULE

(with 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) FOR 2017)

Range
H 44 $24.6334 $25.8281 $26.4480 $27.0828 $27.7328 $28.3984 $29.0800 $29.7779 $30.4926 $31.2244

H 45 $25.2246 $26.4480 $27.0828 $27.7328 $28.3984 $29.0800 $29.7779 $30.4926 $31.2244 $31.9738

H 46 $25.8300 $27.0828 $27.7328 $28.3984 $29.0800 $29.7779 $30.4926 $31.2244 $31.9738 $32.7412

H 47 $26.4499 $27.7327 $28.3983 $29.0799 $29.7778 $30.4925 $31.2243 $31.9737 $32.7411 $33.5269

H 48 $27.0847 $28.3983 $29.0799 $29.7778 $30.4925 $31.2243 $31.9737 $32.7411 $33.5269 $34.3315

H 49 $27.7347 $29.0798 $29.7777 $30.4924 $31.2242 $31.9736 $32.7410 $33.5268 $34.3314 $35.1554

H 50 $28.4003 $29.7777 $30.4924 $31.2242 $31.9736 $32.7410 $33.5268 $34.3314 $35.1554 $35.9991

H 51 $29.0819 $30.4924 $31.2242 $31.9736 $32.7410 $33.5268 $34.3314 $35.1554 $35.9991 $36.8631

H 52 $29.7799 $31.2242 $31.9736 $32.7410 $33.5268 $34.3314 $35.1554 $35.9991 $36.8631 $37.7478

H 53 $30.4946 $31.9736 $32.7410 $33.5268 $34.3314 $35.1554 $35.9991 $36.8631 $37.7478 $38.6537

H 54 $31.2265 $32.7410 $33.5268 $34.3314 $35.1554 $35.9991 $36.8631 $37.7478 $38.6537 $39.5814

H 55 $31.9759 $33.5267 $34.3313 $35.1553 $35.9990 $36.8630 $37.7477 $38.6536 $39.5813 $40.5313

H 56 $32.7433 $34.3314 $35.1554 $35.9991 $36.8631 $37.7478 $38.6537 $39.5814 $40.5314 $41.5042

H 57 $33.5291 $35.1553 $35.9990 $36.8630 $37.7477 $38.6536 $39.5813 $40.5313 $41.5041 $42.5002

H 58 $34.3338 $35.9990 $36.8630 $37.7477 $38.6536 $39.5813 $40.5313 $41.5041 $42.5002 $43.5202

H 59 $35.1578 $36.8630 $37.7477 $38.6536 $39.5813 $40.5313 $41.5041 $42.5002 $43.5202 $44.5647

H 60 $36.0016 $37.7477 $38.6536 $39.5813 $40.5313 $41.5041 $42.5002 $43.5202 $44.5647 $45.6343

H 61 $36.8656 $38.6536 $39.5813 $40.5313 $41.5041 $42.5002 $43.5202 $44.5647 $45.6343 $46.7295

H 62 $37.7504 $39.5813 $40.5313 $41.5041 $42.5002 $43.5202 $44.5647 $45.6343 $46.7295 $47.8510

H 63 $38.6564 $40.5312 $41.5039 $42.5000 $43.5200 $44.5645 $45.6340 $46.7292 $47.8507 $48.9991

H 64 $39.5842 $41.5040 $42.5001 $43.5201 $44.5646 $45.6342 $46.7294 $47.8509 $48.9993 $50.1753

H 65 $40.5342 $42.5001 $43.5201 $44.5646 $45.6342 $46.7294 $47.8509 $48.9993 $50.1753 $51.3795

H 66 $41.5070 $43.5201 $44.5646 $45.6342 $46.7294 $47.8509 $48.9993 $50.1753 $51.3795 $52.6126

H 67 $42.5032 $44.5646 $45.6342 $46.7294 $47.8509 $48.9993 $50.1753 $51.3795 $52.6126 $53.8753

H 68 $43.5233 $45.6342 $46.7294 $47.8509 $48.9993 $50.1753 $51.3795 $52.6126 $53.8753 $55.1683

H 69 $44.5679 $46.7294 $47.8509 $48.9993 $50.1753 $51.3795 $52.6126 $53.8753 $55.1683 $56.4923

H 70 $45.6375 $47.8509 $48.9993 $50.1753 $51.3795 $52.6126 $53.8753 $55.1683 $56.4923 $57.8481

H 71 $46.7328 $48.9993 $50.1753 $51.3795 $52.6126 $53.8753 $55.1683 $56.4923 $57.8481 $59.2365

H 72 $47.8544 $50.1753 $51.3795 $52.6126 $53.8753 $55.1683 $56.4923 $57.8481 $59.2365 $60.6582

H 73 $49.0029 $51.3795 $52.6126 $53.8753 $55.1683 $56.4923 $57.8481 $59.2365 $60.6582 $62.1140

H 74 $50.1790 $52.6127 $53.8754 $55.1684 $56.4924 $57.8482 $59.2366 $60.6583 $62.1141 $63.6048

H 75 $51.3833 $53.8754 $55.1684 $56.4924 $57.8482 $59.2366 $60.6583 $62.1141 $63.6048 $65.1313

H 76 $52.6165 $55.1684 $56.4924 $57.8482 $59.2366 $60.6583 $62.1141 $63.6048 $65.1313 $66.6945

King County Council November 7, 2016 349



Squared Hourly Table 2017.xls 2017 Squared Hourly 3

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 KING COUNTY 10 STEP HOURLY SQUARED SCHEDULE

(with 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) FOR 2017)

Range
H 77 $53.8793 $56.4924 $57.8482 $59.2366 $60.6583 $62.1141 $63.6048 $65.1313 $66.6945 $68.2952

H 78 $55.1724 $57.8483 $59.2367 $60.6584 $62.1142 $63.6049 $65.1314 $66.6946 $68.2953 $69.9344

H 79 $56.4965 $59.2366 $60.6583 $62.1141 $63.6048 $65.1313 $66.6945 $68.2952 $69.9343 $71.6127

H 80 $57.8524 $60.6582 $62.1140 $63.6047 $65.1312 $66.6943 $68.2950 $69.9341 $71.6125 $73.3312

H 81 $59.2409 $62.1141 $63.6048 $65.1313 $66.6945 $68.2952 $69.9343 $71.6127 $73.3314 $75.0914

H 82 $60.6627 $63.6048 $65.1313 $66.6945 $68.2952 $69.9343 $71.6127 $73.3314 $75.0914 $76.8936

H 83 $62.1186 $65.1314 $66.6946 $68.2953 $69.9344 $71.6128 $73.3315 $75.0915 $76.8937 $78.7391

H 84 $63.6094 $66.6945 $68.2952 $69.9343 $71.6127 $73.3314 $75.0914 $76.8936 $78.7390 $80.6287

H 85 $65.1360 $68.2951 $69.9342 $71.6126 $73.3313 $75.0913 $76.8935 $78.7389 $80.6286 $82.5637

H 86 $66.6993 $69.9342 $71.6126 $73.3313 $75.0913 $76.8935 $78.7389 $80.6286 $82.5637 $84.5452

H 87 $68.3001 $71.6127 $73.3314 $75.0914 $76.8936 $78.7390 $80.6287 $82.5638 $84.5453 $86.5744

H 88 $69.9393 $73.3314 $75.0914 $76.8936 $78.7390 $80.6287 $82.5638 $84.5453 $86.5744 $88.6522

H 89 $71.6178 $75.0913 $76.8935 $78.7389 $80.6286 $82.5637 $84.5452 $86.5743 $88.6521 $90.7798

H 90 $73.3366 $76.8934 $78.7388 $80.6285 $82.5636 $84.5451 $86.5742 $88.6520 $90.7796 $92.9583

H 91 $75.0967 $78.7389 $80.6286 $82.5637 $84.5452 $86.5743 $88.6521 $90.7798 $92.9585 $95.1895

H 92 $76.8990 $80.6286 $82.5637 $84.5452 $86.5743 $88.6521 $90.7798 $92.9585 $95.1895 $97.4740

H 93 $78.7446 $82.5637 $84.5452 $86.5743 $88.6521 $90.7798 $92.9585 $95.1895 $97.4740 $99.8134

H 94 $80.6345 $84.5453 $86.5744 $88.6522 $90.7799 $92.9586 $95.1896 $97.4742 $99.8136 $102.2091

H 95 $82.5697 $86.5743 $88.6521 $90.7798 $92.9585 $95.1895 $97.4740 $99.8134 $102.2089 $104.6619

H 96 $84.5514 $88.6521 $90.7798 $92.9585 $95.1895 $97.4740 $99.8134 $102.2089 $104.6619 $107.1738

H 97 $86.5806 $90.7798 $92.9585 $95.1895 $97.4740 $99.8134 $102.2089 $104.6619 $107.1738 $109.7460

H 98 $88.6585 $92.9584 $95.1894 $97.4739 $99.8133 $102.2088 $104.6618 $107.1737 $109.7459 $112.3798

H 99 $90.7863 $95.1894 $97.4739 $99.8133 $102.2088 $104.6618 $107.1737 $109.7459 $112.3798 $115.0769

H 100 $92.9652 $97.4740 $99.8134 $102.2089 $104.6619 $107.1738 $109.7460 $112.3799 $115.0770 $117.8388

H 101 $95.1964 $99.8134 $102.2089 $104.6619 $107.1738 $109.7460 $112.3799 $115.0770 $117.8388 $120.6669

H 102 $97.4811 $102.2089 $104.6619 $107.1738 $109.7460 $112.3799 $115.0770 $117.8388 $120.6669 $123.5629

H 103 $99.8206 $104.6619 $107.1738 $109.7460 $112.3799 $115.0770 $117.8388 $120.6669 $123.5629 $126.5284

H 104 $102.2163 $107.1738 $109.7460 $112.3799 $115.0770 $117.8388 $120.6669 $123.5629 $126.5284 $129.5651

H 105 $104.6695 $109.7460 $112.3799 $115.0770 $117.8388 $120.6669 $123.5629 $126.5284 $129.5651 $132.6747

H 106 $107.1816 $112.3799 $115.0770 $117.8388 $120.6669 $123.5629 $126.5284 $129.5651 $132.6747 $135.8589

H 107 $109.7540 $115.0771 $117.8390 $120.6671 $123.5631 $126.5286 $129.5653 $132.6749 $135.8591 $139.1197

H 108 $112.3881 $117.8389 $120.6670 $123.5630 $126.5285 $129.5652 $132.6748 $135.8590 $139.1196 $142.4585

H 109 $115.0854 $120.6670 $123.5630 $126.5285 $129.5652 $132.6748 $135.8590 $139.1196 $142.4585 $145.8775

King County Council November 7, 2016 350



Attachment B

 
2017 KING COUNTY 10 STEP ANNUAL/FLSA EXEMPT SQUARED SCHEDULE

(WITH 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) FOR 2017)

Range 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

S 11 $23,425.79 $24,561.89 $25,151.36 $25,754.98 $26,373.15 $27,006.10 $27,654.22 $28,317.95 $28,997.49 $29,693.46

S 12 $23,988.02 $25,151.36 $25,754.98 $26,373.15 $27,006.10 $27,654.22 $28,317.95 $28,997.49 $29,693.46 $30,406.06

S 13 $24,563.76 $25,755.18 $26,373.36 $27,006.30 $27,654.43 $28,318.16 $28,997.70 $29,693.66 $30,406.27 $31,135.94

S 14 $25,153.23 $26,373.15 $27,006.10 $27,654.22 $28,317.95 $28,997.49 $29,693.46 $30,406.06 $31,135.73 $31,883.07

S 15 $25,756.85 $27,006.10 $27,654.22 $28,317.95 $28,997.49 $29,693.46 $30,406.06 $31,135.73 $31,883.07 $32,648.30

S 16 $26,375.02 $27,654.22 $28,317.95 $28,997.49 $29,693.46 $30,406.06 $31,135.73 $31,883.07 $32,648.30 $33,431.84

S 17 $27,007.97 $28,317.95 $28,997.49 $29,693.46 $30,406.06 $31,135.73 $31,883.07 $32,648.30 $33,431.84 $34,234.30

S 18 $27,656.10 $28,997.49 $29,693.46 $30,406.06 $31,135.73 $31,883.07 $32,648.30 $33,431.84 $34,234.30 $35,055.90

S 19 $28,319.82 $29,693.25 $30,405.86 $31,135.52 $31,882.86 $32,648.10 $33,431.63 $34,233.89 $35,055.49 $35,896.85

S 20 $28,999.57 $30,406.06 $31,135.73 $31,883.07 $32,648.30 $33,431.84 $34,234.30 $35,055.90 $35,897.26 $36,758.80

S 21 $29,695.54 $31,135.73 $31,883.07 $32,648.30 $33,431.84 $34,234.30 $35,055.90 $35,897.26 $36,758.80 $37,640.93

S 22 $30,408.14 $31,882.86 $32,648.10 $33,431.63 $34,233.89 $35,055.49 $35,896.85 $36,758.38 $37,640.51 $38,543.86

S 23 $31,138.02 $32,648.30 $33,431.84 $34,234.30 $35,055.90 $35,897.26 $36,758.80 $37,640.93 $38,544.27 $39,469.25

S 24 $31,885.36 $33,431.84 $34,234.30 $35,055.90 $35,897.26 $36,758.80 $37,640.93 $38,544.27 $39,469.25 $40,416.48

S 25 $32,650.59 $34,234.10 $35,055.70 $35,897.06 $36,758.59 $37,640.72 $38,544.06 $39,469.04 $40,416.27 $41,386.18

S 26 $33,434.13 $35,055.70 $35,897.06 $36,758.59 $37,640.72 $38,544.06 $39,469.04 $40,416.27 $41,386.18 $42,379.38

S 27 $34,236.59 $35,897.06 $36,758.59 $37,640.72 $38,544.06 $39,469.04 $40,416.27 $41,386.18 $42,379.38 $43,396.50

S 28 $35,058.19 $36,758.59 $37,640.72 $38,544.06 $39,469.04 $40,416.27 $41,386.18 $42,379.38 $43,396.50 $44,437.95

S 29 $35,899.55 $37,640.72 $38,544.06 $39,469.04 $40,416.27 $41,386.18 $42,379.38 $43,396.50 $44,437.95 $45,504.37

S 30 $36,761.09 $38,544.06 $39,469.04 $40,416.27 $41,386.18 $42,379.38 $43,396.50 $44,437.95 $45,504.37 $46,596.58

S 31 $37,643.42 $39,469.04 $40,416.27 $41,386.18 $42,379.38 $43,396.50 $44,437.95 $45,504.37 $46,596.58 $47,714.99

S 32 $38,546.77 $40,416.27 $41,386.18 $42,379.38 $43,396.50 $44,437.95 $45,504.37 $46,596.58 $47,714.99 $48,860.24

S 33 $39,471.95 $41,386.38 $42,379.58 $43,396.70 $44,438.16 $45,504.58 $46,596.78 $47,715.20 $48,860.45 $50,033.15

S 34 $40,419.18 $42,379.58 $43,396.70 $44,438.16 $45,504.58 $46,596.78 $47,715.20 $48,860.45 $50,033.15 $51,233.94

S 35 $41,389.30 $43,396.70 $44,438.16 $45,504.58 $46,596.78 $47,715.20 $48,860.45 $50,033.15 $51,233.94 $52,463.63

S 36 $42,382.70 $44,438.37 $45,504.99 $46,597.20 $47,715.62 $48,860.86 $50,033.57 $51,234.35 $52,464.05 $53,723.28

S 37 $43,399.82 $45,504.78 $46,596.99 $47,715.41 $48,860.66 $50,033.36 $51,234.14 $52,463.84 $53,723.07 $55,012.46

S 38 $44,441.49 $46,596.99 $47,715.41 $48,860.66 $50,033.36 $51,234.14 $52,463.84 $53,723.07 $55,012.46 $56,332.85

S 39 $45,508.11 $47,715.20 $48,860.45 $50,033.15 $51,233.94 $52,463.63 $53,722.66 $55,012.05 $56,332.43 $57,684.43

S 40 $46,600.32 $48,860.45 $50,033.15 $51,233.94 $52,463.63 $53,722.66 $55,012.05 $56,332.43 $57,684.43 $59,068.88

S 41 $47,718.74 $50,033.15 $51,233.94 $52,463.63 $53,722.66 $55,012.05 $56,332.43 $57,684.43 $59,068.88 $60,486.61

S 42 $48,863.98 $51,233.94 $52,463.63 $53,722.66 $55,012.05 $56,332.43 $57,684.43 $59,068.88 $60,486.61 $61,938.24

S 43 $50,036.69 $52,463.42 $53,722.45 $55,011.84 $56,332.22 $57,684.22 $59,068.67 $60,486.40 $61,938.03 $63,424.61

King County Council November 7, 2016 351



Squared Annual Table 2017.xls 2017 Squared Annual/FLSA Exempt Page 2

 
2017 KING COUNTY 10 STEP ANNUAL/FLSA EXEMPT SQUARED SCHEDULE

(WITH 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) FOR 2017)

Range 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

S 44 $51,237.47 $53,722.45 $55,011.84 $56,332.22 $57,684.22 $59,068.67 $60,486.40 $61,938.03 $63,424.61 $64,946.75

S 45 $52,467.17 $55,011.84 $56,332.22 $57,684.22 $59,068.67 $60,486.40 $61,938.03 $63,424.61 $64,946.75 $66,505.50

S 46 $53,726.40 $56,332.22 $57,684.22 $59,068.67 $60,486.40 $61,938.03 $63,424.61 $64,946.75 $66,505.50 $68,101.70

S 47 $55,015.79 $57,684.02 $59,068.46 $60,486.19 $61,937.82 $63,424.40 $64,946.54 $66,505.30 $68,101.49 $69,735.95

S 48 $56,336.18 $59,068.46 $60,486.19 $61,937.82 $63,424.40 $64,946.54 $66,505.30 $68,101.49 $69,735.95 $71,409.52

S 49 $57,688.18 $60,485.98 $61,937.62 $63,424.19 $64,946.34 $66,505.09 $68,101.28 $69,735.74 $71,409.31 $73,123.23

S 50 $59,072.62 $61,937.62 $63,424.19 $64,946.34 $66,505.09 $68,101.28 $69,735.74 $71,409.31 $73,123.23 $74,878.13

S 51 $60,490.35 $63,424.19 $64,946.34 $66,505.09 $68,101.28 $69,735.74 $71,409.31 $73,123.23 $74,878.13 $76,675.25

S 52 $61,942.19 $64,946.34 $66,505.09 $68,101.28 $69,735.74 $71,409.31 $73,123.23 $74,878.13 $76,675.25 $78,515.42

S 53 $63,428.77 $66,505.09 $68,101.28 $69,735.74 $71,409.31 $73,123.23 $74,878.13 $76,675.25 $78,515.42 $80,399.70

S 54 $64,951.12 $68,101.28 $69,735.74 $71,409.31 $73,123.23 $74,878.13 $76,675.25 $78,515.42 $80,399.70 $82,329.31

S 55 $66,509.87 $69,735.54 $71,409.10 $73,123.02 $74,877.92 $76,675.04 $78,515.22 $80,399.49 $82,329.10 $84,305.10

S 56 $68,106.06 $71,409.31 $73,123.23 $74,878.13 $76,675.25 $78,515.42 $80,399.70 $82,329.31 $84,305.31 $86,328.74

S 57 $69,740.53 $73,123.02 $74,877.92 $76,675.04 $78,515.22 $80,399.49 $82,329.10 $84,305.10 $86,328.53 $88,400.42

S 58 $71,414.30 $74,877.92 $76,675.04 $78,515.22 $80,399.49 $82,329.10 $84,305.10 $86,328.53 $88,400.42 $90,522.02

S 59 $73,128.22 $76,675.04 $78,515.22 $80,399.49 $82,329.10 $84,305.10 $86,328.53 $88,400.42 $90,522.02 $92,694.58

S 60 $74,883.33 $78,515.22 $80,399.49 $82,329.10 $84,305.10 $86,328.53 $88,400.42 $90,522.02 $92,694.58 $94,919.34

S 61 $76,680.45 $80,399.49 $82,329.10 $84,305.10 $86,328.53 $88,400.42 $90,522.02 $92,694.58 $94,919.34 $97,197.36

S 62 $78,520.83 $82,329.10 $84,305.10 $86,328.53 $88,400.42 $90,522.02 $92,694.58 $94,919.34 $97,197.36 $99,530.08

S 63 $80,405.31 $84,304.90 $86,328.11 $88,400.00 $90,521.60 $92,694.16 $94,918.72 $97,196.74 $99,529.46 $101,918.13

S 64 $82,335.14 $86,328.32 $88,400.21 $90,521.81 $92,694.37 $94,919.14 $97,197.15 $99,529.87 $101,918.54 $104,364.62

S 65 $84,311.14 $88,400.21 $90,521.81 $92,694.37 $94,919.14 $97,197.15 $99,529.87 $101,918.54 $104,364.62 $106,869.36

S 66 $86,334.56 $90,521.81 $92,694.37 $94,919.14 $97,197.15 $99,529.87 $101,918.54 $104,364.62 $106,869.36 $109,434.21

S 67 $88,406.66 $92,694.37 $94,919.14 $97,197.15 $99,529.87 $101,918.54 $104,364.62 $106,869.36 $109,434.21 $112,060.62

S 68 $90,528.46 $94,919.14 $97,197.15 $99,529.87 $101,918.54 $104,364.62 $106,869.36 $109,434.21 $112,060.62 $114,750.06

S 69 $92,701.23 $97,197.15 $99,529.87 $101,918.54 $104,364.62 $106,869.36 $109,434.21 $112,060.62 $114,750.06 $117,503.98

S 70 $94,926.00 $99,529.87 $101,918.54 $104,364.62 $106,869.36 $109,434.21 $112,060.62 $114,750.06 $117,503.98 $120,324.05

S 71 $97,204.22 $101,918.54 $104,364.62 $106,869.36 $109,434.21 $112,060.62 $114,750.06 $117,503.98 $120,324.05 $123,211.92

S 72 $99,537.15 $104,364.62 $106,869.36 $109,434.21 $112,060.62 $114,750.06 $117,503.98 $120,324.05 $123,211.92 $126,169.06

S 73 $101,926.03 $106,869.36 $109,434.21 $112,060.62 $114,750.06 $117,503.98 $120,324.05 $123,211.92 $126,169.06 $129,197.12

S 74 $104,372.32 $109,434.42 $112,060.83 $114,750.27 $117,504.19 $120,324.26 $123,212.13 $126,169.26 $129,197.33 $132,297.98

S 75 $106,877.26 $112,060.83 $114,750.27 $117,504.19 $120,324.26 $123,212.13 $126,169.26 $129,197.33 $132,297.98 $135,473.10

S 76 $109,442.32 $114,750.27 $117,504.19 $120,324.26 $123,212.13 $126,169.26 $129,197.33 $132,297.98 $135,473.10 $138,724.56

King County Council November 7, 2016 352



Squared Annual Table 2017.xls 2017 Squared Annual/FLSA Exempt Page 3

 
2017 KING COUNTY 10 STEP ANNUAL/FLSA EXEMPT SQUARED SCHEDULE

(WITH 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) FOR 2017)

Range 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

S 77 $112,068.94 $117,504.19 $120,324.26 $123,212.13 $126,169.26 $129,197.33 $132,297.98 $135,473.10 $138,724.56 $142,054.02

S 78 $114,758.59 $120,324.46 $123,212.34 $126,169.47 $129,197.54 $132,298.19 $135,473.31 $138,724.77 $142,054.22 $145,463.55

S 79 $117,512.72 $123,212.13 $126,169.26 $129,197.33 $132,297.98 $135,473.10 $138,724.56 $142,054.02 $145,463.34 $148,954.42

S 80 $120,332.99 $126,169.06 $129,197.12 $132,297.78 $135,472.90 $138,724.14 $142,053.60 $145,462.93 $148,954.00 $152,528.90

S 81 $123,221.07 $129,197.33 $132,297.98 $135,473.10 $138,724.56 $142,054.02 $145,463.34 $148,954.42 $152,529.31 $156,190.11

S 82 $126,178.42 $132,297.98 $135,473.10 $138,724.56 $142,054.02 $145,463.34 $148,954.42 $152,529.31 $156,190.11 $159,938.69

S 83 $129,206.69 $135,473.31 $138,724.77 $142,054.22 $145,463.55 $148,954.62 $152,529.52 $156,190.32 $159,938.90 $163,777.33

S 84 $132,307.55 $138,724.56 $142,054.02 $145,463.34 $148,954.42 $152,529.31 $156,190.11 $159,938.69 $163,777.12 $167,707.70

S 85 $135,482.88 $142,053.81 $145,463.14 $148,954.21 $152,529.10 $156,189.90 $159,938.48 $163,776.91 $167,707.49 $171,732.50

S 86 $138,734.54 $145,463.14 $148,954.21 $152,529.10 $156,189.90 $159,938.48 $163,776.91 $167,707.49 $171,732.50 $175,854.02

S 87 $142,064.21 $148,954.42 $152,529.31 $156,190.11 $159,938.69 $163,777.12 $167,707.70 $171,732.70 $175,854.22 $180,074.75

S 88 $145,473.74 $152,529.31 $156,190.11 $159,938.69 $163,777.12 $167,707.70 $171,732.70 $175,854.22 $180,074.75 $184,396.58

S 89 $148,965.02 $156,189.90 $159,938.48 $163,776.91 $167,707.49 $171,732.50 $175,854.02 $180,074.54 $184,396.37 $188,821.98

S 90 $152,540.13 $159,938.27 $163,776.70 $167,707.28 $171,732.29 $175,853.81 $180,074.34 $184,396.16 $188,821.57 $193,353.26

S 91 $156,201.14 $163,776.91 $167,707.49 $171,732.50 $175,854.02 $180,074.54 $184,396.37 $188,821.98 $193,353.68 $197,994.16

S 92 $159,949.92 $167,707.49 $171,732.50 $175,854.02 $180,074.54 $184,396.37 $188,821.98 $193,353.68 $197,994.16 $202,745.92

S 93 $163,788.77 $171,732.50 $175,854.02 $180,074.54 $184,396.37 $188,821.98 $193,353.68 $197,994.16 $202,745.92 $207,611.87

S 94 $167,719.76 $175,854.22 $180,074.75 $184,396.58 $188,822.19 $193,353.89 $197,994.37 $202,746.34 $207,612.29 $212,594.93

S 95 $171,744.98 $180,074.54 $184,396.37 $188,821.98 $193,353.68 $197,994.16 $202,745.92 $207,611.87 $212,594.51 $217,696.75

S 96 $175,866.91 $184,396.37 $188,821.98 $193,353.68 $197,994.16 $202,745.92 $207,611.87 $212,594.51 $217,696.75 $222,921.50

S 97 $180,087.65 $188,821.98 $193,353.68 $197,994.16 $202,745.92 $207,611.87 $212,594.51 $217,696.75 $222,921.50 $228,271.68

S 98 $184,409.68 $193,353.47 $197,993.95 $202,745.71 $207,611.66 $212,594.30 $217,696.54 $222,921.30 $228,271.47 $233,749.98

S 99 $188,835.50 $197,993.95 $202,745.71 $207,611.66 $212,594.30 $217,696.54 $222,921.30 $228,271.47 $233,749.98 $239,359.95

S 100 $193,367.62 $202,745.92 $207,611.87 $212,594.51 $217,696.75 $222,921.50 $228,271.68 $233,750.19 $239,360.16 $245,104.70

S 101 $198,008.51 $207,611.87 $212,594.51 $217,696.75 $222,921.50 $228,271.68 $233,750.19 $239,360.16 $245,104.70 $250,987.15

S 102 $202,760.69 $212,594.51 $217,696.75 $222,921.50 $228,271.68 $233,750.19 $239,360.16 $245,104.70 $250,987.15 $257,010.83

S 103 $207,626.85 $217,696.75 $222,921.50 $228,271.68 $233,750.19 $239,360.16 $245,104.70 $250,987.15 $257,010.83 $263,179.07

S 104 $212,609.90 $222,921.50 $228,271.68 $233,750.19 $239,360.16 $245,104.70 $250,987.15 $257,010.83 $263,179.07 $269,495.41

S 105 $217,712.56 $228,271.68 $233,750.19 $239,360.16 $245,104.70 $250,987.15 $257,010.83 $263,179.07 $269,495.41 $275,963.38

S 106 $222,937.73 $233,750.19 $239,360.16 $245,104.70 $250,987.15 $257,010.83 $263,179.07 $269,495.41 $275,963.38 $282,586.51

S 107 $228,288.32 $239,360.37 $245,105.12 $250,987.57 $257,011.25 $263,179.49 $269,495.82 $275,963.79 $282,586.93 $289,368.98

S 108 $233,767.25 $245,104.91 $250,987.36 $257,011.04 $263,179.28 $269,495.62 $275,963.58 $282,586.72 $289,368.77 $296,313.68

S 109 $239,377.63 $250,987.36 $257,011.04 $263,179.28 $269,495.62 $275,963.58 $282,586.72 $289,368.77 $296,313.68 $303,425.20

King County Council November 7, 2016 353



Attachment C

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

35 $10.3091 $10.7793 $11.0265 $11.2789 $11.5383 $11.8038 $12.0754 $12.3551 $12.6418 $12.9344

36 $10.0227 $10.4799 $10.7203 $10.9656 $11.2178 $11.4759 $11.7400 $12.0119 $12.2906 $12.5751

37.5 $9.6218 $10.0607 $10.2914 $10.5270 $10.7691 $11.0169 $11.2704 $11.5314 $11.7990 $12.0721

40 $9.0204 $9.4319 $9.6482 $9.8691 $10.0960 $10.3283 $10.5660 $10.8107 $11.0616 $11.3176

35 $10.5448 $11.0265 $11.2789 $11.5383 $11.8038 $12.0754 $12.3551 $12.6418 $12.9344 $13.2347

36 $10.2519 $10.7203 $10.9656 $11.2178 $11.4759 $11.7400 $12.0119 $12.2906 $12.5751 $12.8671

37.5 $9.8418 $10.2914 $10.5270 $10.7691 $11.0169 $11.2704 $11.5314 $11.7990 $12.0721 $12.3524

40 $9.2267 $9.6482 $9.8691 $10.0960 $10.3283 $10.5660 $10.8107 $11.0616 $11.3176 $11.5803

35 $10.7858 $11.2789 $11.5383 $11.8038 $12.0754 $12.3551 $12.6418 $12.9344 $13.2347 $13.5433

36 $10.4862 $10.9656 $11.2178 $11.4759 $11.7400 $12.0119 $12.2906 $12.5751 $12.8671 $13.1671

37.5 $10.0667 $10.5270 $10.7691 $11.0169 $11.2704 $11.5314 $11.7990 $12.0721 $12.3524 $12.6404

40 $9.4375 $9.8691 $10.0960 $10.3283 $10.5660 $10.8107 $11.0616 $11.3176 $11.5803 $11.8503

35 $11.0327 $11.5383 $11.8038 $12.0754 $12.3551 $12.6418 $12.9344 $13.2347 $13.5433 $13.8584

36 $10.7263 $11.2178 $11.4759 $11.7400 $12.0119 $12.2906 $12.5751 $12.8671 $13.1671 $13.4735

37.5 $10.2972 $10.7691 $11.0169 $11.2704 $11.5314 $11.7990 $12.0721 $12.3524 $12.6404 $12.9345

40 $9.6537 $10.0960 $10.3283 $10.5660 $10.8107 $11.0616 $11.3176 $11.5803 $11.8503 $12.1261

35 $11.2846 $11.8038 $12.0754 $12.3551 $12.6418 $12.9344 $13.2347 $13.5433 $13.8584 $14.1825

36 $10.9712 $11.4759 $11.7400 $12.0119 $12.2906 $12.5751 $12.8671 $13.1671 $13.4735 $13.7886

37.5 $10.5323 $11.0169 $11.2704 $11.5314 $11.7990 $12.0721 $12.3524 $12.6404 $12.9345 $13.2370

40 $9.8740 $10.3283 $10.5660 $10.8107 $11.0616 $11.3176 $11.5803 $11.8503 $12.1261 $12.4097

35 $11.5436 $12.0754 $12.3551 $12.6418 $12.9344 $13.2347 $13.5433 $13.8584 $14.1825 $14.5141

36 $11.2229 $11.7400 $12.0119 $12.2906 $12.5751 $12.8671 $13.1671 $13.4735 $13.7886 $14.1109

37.5 $10.7740 $11.2704 $11.5314 $11.7990 $12.0721 $12.3524 $12.6404 $12.9345 $13.2370 $13.5465

40 $10.1007 $10.5660 $10.8107 $11.0616 $11.3176 $11.5803 $11.8503 $12.1261 $12.4097 $12.6998

35 $11.8106 $12.3551 $12.6418 $12.9344 $13.2347 $13.5433 $13.8584 $14.1825 $14.5141 $14.8538

36 $11.4826 $12.0119 $12.2906 $12.5751 $12.8671 $13.1671 $13.4735 $13.7886 $14.1109 $14.4412

37.5 $11.0233 $11.5314 $11.7990 $12.0721 $12.3524 $12.6404 $12.9345 $13.2370 $13.5465 $13.8635

40 $10.3343 $10.8107 $11.0616 $11.3176 $11.5803 $11.8503 $12.1261 $12.4097 $12.6998 $12.9970

35 $12.0833 $12.6418 $12.9344 $13.2347 $13.5433 $13.8584 $14.1825 $14.5141 $14.8538 $15.2024

36 $11.7477 $12.2906 $12.5751 $12.8671 $13.1671 $13.4735 $13.7886 $14.1109 $14.4412 $14.7801

37.5 $11.2778 $11.7990 $12.0721 $12.3524 $12.6404 $12.9345 $13.2370 $13.5465 $13.8635 $14.1889

40 $10.5729 $11.0616 $11.3176 $11.5803 $11.8503 $12.1261 $12.4097 $12.6998 $12.9970 $13.3021

35 $12.3612 $12.9344 $13.2347 $13.5433 $13.8584 $14.1825 $14.5141 $14.8538 $15.2024 $15.5604

36 $12.0178 $12.5751 $12.8671 $13.1671 $13.4735 $13.7886 $14.1109 $14.4412 $14.7801 $15.1282

37.5 $11.5371 $12.0721 $12.3524 $12.6404 $12.9345 $13.2370 $13.5465 $13.8635 $14.1889 $14.5231

40 $10.8160 $11.3176 $11.5803 $11.8503 $12.1261 $12.4097 $12.6998 $12.9970 $13.3021 $13.6154

35 $12.6485 $13.2347 $13.5433 $13.8584 $14.1825 $14.5141 $14.8538 $15.2024 $15.5604 $15.9269

36 $12.2972 $12.8671 $13.1671 $13.4735 $13.7886 $14.1109 $14.4412 $14.7801 $15.1282 $15.4845

37.5 $11.8053 $12.3524 $12.6404 $12.9345 $13.2370 $13.5465 $13.8635 $14.1889 $14.5231 $14.8651

40 $11.0675 $11.5803 $11.8503 $12.1261 $12.4097 $12.6998 $12.9970 $13.3021 $13.6154 $13.9360

7

8

9

10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

1

2

3

4

5

6

King County Council November 7, 2016 354



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 2

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $12.9422 $13.5433 $13.8584 $14.1825 $14.5141 $14.8538 $15.2024 $15.5604 $15.9269 $16.3021

36 $12.5827 $13.1671 $13.4735 $13.7886 $14.1109 $14.4412 $14.7801 $15.1282 $15.4845 $15.8492

37.5 $12.0794 $12.6404 $12.9345 $13.2370 $13.5465 $13.8635 $14.1889 $14.5231 $14.8651 $15.2153

40 $11.3244 $11.8503 $12.1261 $12.4097 $12.6998 $12.9970 $13.3021 $13.6154 $13.9360 $14.2643

35 $13.2422 $13.8584 $14.1825 $14.5141 $14.8538 $15.2024 $15.5604 $15.9269 $16.3021 $16.6870

36 $12.8744 $13.4735 $13.7886 $14.1109 $14.4412 $14.7801 $15.1282 $15.4845 $15.8492 $16.2235

37.5 $12.3594 $12.9345 $13.2370 $13.5465 $13.8635 $14.1889 $14.5231 $14.8651 $15.2153 $15.5745

40 $11.5869 $12.1261 $12.4097 $12.6998 $12.9970 $13.3021 $13.6154 $13.9360 $14.2643 $14.6011

35 $13.5508 $14.1825 $14.5141 $14.8538 $15.2024 $15.5604 $15.9269 $16.3021 $16.6870 $17.0811

36 $13.1744 $13.7886 $14.1109 $14.4412 $14.7801 $15.1282 $15.4845 $15.8492 $16.2235 $16.6067

37.5 $12.6474 $13.2370 $13.5465 $13.8635 $14.1889 $14.5231 $14.8651 $15.2153 $15.5745 $15.9424

40 $11.8569 $12.4097 $12.6998 $12.9970 $13.3021 $13.6154 $13.9360 $14.2643 $14.6011 $14.9460

35 $13.8661 $14.5141 $14.8538 $15.2024 $15.5604 $15.9269 $16.3021 $16.6870 $17.0811 $17.4848

36 $13.4809 $14.1109 $14.4412 $14.7801 $15.1282 $15.4845 $15.8492 $16.2235 $16.6067 $16.9991

37.5 $12.9417 $13.5465 $13.8635 $14.1889 $14.5231 $14.8651 $15.2153 $15.5745 $15.9424 $16.3191

40 $12.1328 $12.6998 $12.9970 $13.3021 $13.6154 $13.9360 $14.2643 $14.6011 $14.9460 $15.2992

35 $14.1902 $14.8538 $15.2024 $15.5604 $15.9269 $16.3021 $16.6870 $17.0811 $17.4848 $17.9000

36 $13.7960 $14.4412 $14.7801 $15.1282 $15.4845 $15.8492 $16.2235 $16.6067 $16.9991 $17.4028

37.5 $13.2442 $13.8635 $14.1889 $14.5231 $14.8651 $15.2153 $15.5745 $15.9424 $16.3191 $16.7067

40 $12.4164 $12.9970 $13.3021 $13.6154 $13.9360 $14.2643 $14.6011 $14.9460 $15.2992 $15.6625

35 $14.5226 $15.2024 $15.5604 $15.9269 $16.3021 $16.6870 $17.0811 $17.4848 $17.9000 $18.3247

36 $14.1192 $14.7801 $15.1282 $15.4845 $15.8492 $16.2235 $16.6067 $16.9991 $17.4028 $17.8156

37.5 $13.5545 $14.1889 $14.5231 $14.8651 $15.2153 $15.5745 $15.9424 $16.3191 $16.7067 $17.1030

40 $12.7073 $13.3021 $13.6154 $13.9360 $14.2643 $14.6011 $14.9460 $15.2992 $15.6625 $16.0341

35 $14.8619 $15.5604 $15.9269 $16.3021 $16.6870 $17.0811 $17.4848 $17.9000 $18.3247 $18.7592

36 $14.4491 $15.1282 $15.4845 $15.8492 $16.2235 $16.6067 $16.9991 $17.4028 $17.8156 $18.2381

37.5 $13.8711 $14.5231 $14.8651 $15.2153 $15.5745 $15.9424 $16.3191 $16.7067 $17.1030 $17.5086

40 $13.0042 $13.6154 $13.9360 $14.2643 $14.6011 $14.9460 $15.2992 $15.6625 $16.0341 $16.4143

35 $15.2111 $15.9269 $16.3021 $16.6870 $17.0811 $17.4848 $17.9000 $18.3247 $18.7592 $19.2061

36 $14.7886 $15.4845 $15.8492 $16.2235 $16.6067 $16.9991 $17.4028 $17.8156 $18.2381 $18.6726

37.5 $14.1970 $14.8651 $15.2153 $15.5745 $15.9424 $16.3191 $16.7067 $17.1030 $17.5086 $17.9257

40 $13.3097 $13.9360 $14.2643 $14.6011 $14.9460 $15.2992 $15.6625 $16.0341 $16.4143 $16.8053

35 $15.5686 $16.3021 $16.6870 $17.0811 $17.4848 $17.9000 $18.3247 $18.7592 $19.2061 $19.6633

36 $15.1362 $15.8492 $16.2235 $16.6067 $16.9991 $17.4028 $17.8156 $18.2381 $18.6726 $19.1171

37.5 $14.5307 $15.2153 $15.5745 $15.9424 $16.3191 $16.7067 $17.1030 $17.5086 $17.9257 $18.3524

40 $13.6225 $14.2643 $14.6011 $14.9460 $15.2992 $15.6625 $16.0341 $16.4143 $16.8053 $17.2053

35 $15.9349 $16.6870 $17.0811 $17.4848 $17.9000 $18.3247 $18.7592 $19.2061 $19.6633 $20.1323

36 $15.4923 $16.2235 $16.6067 $16.9991 $17.4028 $17.8156 $18.2381 $18.6726 $19.1171 $19.5731

37.5 $14.8726 $15.5745 $15.9424 $16.3191 $16.7067 $17.1030 $17.5086 $17.9257 $18.3524 $18.7902

40 $13.9431 $14.6011 $14.9460 $15.2992 $15.6625 $16.0341 $16.4143 $16.8053 $17.2053 $17.6158

16

17

18

19

20

11

12

13

14

15

King County Council November 7, 2016 355



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 3

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $16.3109 $17.0811 $17.4848 $17.9000 $18.3247 $18.7592 $19.2061 $19.6633 $20.1323 $20.6131

36 $15.8578 $16.6067 $16.9991 $17.4028 $17.8156 $18.2381 $18.6726 $19.1171 $19.5731 $20.0405

37.5 $15.2235 $15.9424 $16.3191 $16.7067 $17.1030 $17.5086 $17.9257 $18.3524 $18.7902 $19.2389

40 $14.2720 $14.9460 $15.2992 $15.6625 $16.0341 $16.4143 $16.8053 $17.2053 $17.6158 $18.0365

35 $16.6954 $17.4848 $17.9000 $18.3247 $18.7592 $19.2061 $19.6633 $20.1323 $20.6131 $21.1050

36 $16.2317 $16.9991 $17.4028 $17.8156 $18.2381 $18.6726 $19.1171 $19.5731 $20.0405 $20.5187

37.5 $15.5824 $16.3191 $16.7067 $17.1030 $17.5086 $17.9257 $18.3524 $18.7902 $19.2389 $19.6980

40 $14.6085 $15.2992 $15.6625 $16.0341 $16.4143 $16.8053 $17.2053 $17.6158 $18.0365 $18.4668

35 $17.0902 $17.9000 $18.3247 $18.7592 $19.2061 $19.6633 $20.1323 $20.6131 $21.1050 $21.6096

36 $16.6155 $17.4028 $17.8156 $18.2381 $18.6726 $19.1171 $19.5731 $20.0405 $20.5187 $21.0094

37.5 $15.9509 $16.7067 $17.1030 $17.5086 $17.9257 $18.3524 $18.7902 $19.2389 $19.6980 $20.1690

40 $14.9540 $15.6625 $16.0341 $16.4143 $16.8053 $17.2053 $17.6158 $18.0365 $18.4668 $18.9084

35 $17.4948 $18.3247 $18.7592 $19.2061 $19.6633 $20.1323 $20.6131 $21.1050 $21.6096 $22.1272

36 $17.0088 $17.8156 $18.2381 $18.6726 $19.1171 $19.5731 $20.0405 $20.5187 $21.0094 $21.5126

37.5 $16.3285 $17.1030 $17.5086 $17.9257 $18.3524 $18.7902 $19.2389 $19.6980 $20.1690 $20.6521

40 $15.3080 $16.0341 $16.4143 $16.8053 $17.2053 $17.6158 $18.0365 $18.4668 $18.9084 $19.3613

35 $17.9097 $18.7592 $19.2061 $19.6633 $20.1323 $20.6131 $21.1050 $21.6096 $22.1272 $22.6581

36 $17.4122 $18.2381 $18.6726 $19.1171 $19.5731 $20.0405 $20.5187 $21.0094 $21.5126 $22.0287

37.5 $16.7157 $17.5086 $17.9257 $18.3524 $18.7902 $19.2389 $19.6980 $20.1690 $20.6521 $21.1476

40 $15.6710 $16.4143 $16.8053 $17.2053 $17.6158 $18.0365 $18.4668 $18.9084 $19.3613 $19.8258

35 $18.3351 $19.2061 $19.6633 $20.1323 $20.6131 $21.1050 $21.6096 $22.1272 $22.6581 $23.2013

36 $17.8258 $18.6726 $19.1171 $19.5731 $20.0405 $20.5187 $21.0094 $21.5126 $22.0287 $22.5568

37.5 $17.1127 $17.9257 $18.3524 $18.7902 $19.2389 $19.6980 $20.1690 $20.6521 $21.1476 $21.6545

40 $16.0432 $16.8053 $17.2053 $17.6158 $18.0365 $18.4668 $18.9084 $19.3613 $19.8258 $20.3011

35 $18.7698 $19.6633 $20.1323 $20.6131 $21.1050 $21.6096 $22.1272 $22.6581 $23.2013 $23.7585

36 $18.2485 $19.1171 $19.5731 $20.0405 $20.5187 $21.0094 $21.5126 $22.0287 $22.5568 $23.0986

37.5 $17.5185 $18.3524 $18.7902 $19.2389 $19.6980 $20.1690 $20.6521 $21.1476 $21.6545 $22.1746

40 $16.4236 $17.2053 $17.6158 $18.0365 $18.4668 $18.9084 $19.3613 $19.8258 $20.3011 $20.7887

35 $19.2174 $20.1323 $20.6131 $21.1050 $21.6096 $22.1272 $22.6581 $23.2013 $23.7585 $24.3297

36 $18.6836 $19.5731 $20.0405 $20.5187 $21.0094 $21.5126 $22.0287 $22.5568 $23.0986 $23.6538

37.5 $17.9362 $18.7902 $19.2389 $19.6980 $20.1690 $20.6521 $21.1476 $21.6545 $22.1746 $22.7077

40 $16.8152 $17.6158 $18.0365 $18.4668 $18.9084 $19.3613 $19.8258 $20.3011 $20.7887 $21.2885

35 $19.6741 $20.6131 $21.1050 $21.6096 $22.1272 $22.6581 $23.2013 $23.7585 $24.3297 $24.9148

36 $19.1276 $20.0405 $20.5187 $21.0094 $21.5126 $22.0287 $22.5568 $23.0986 $23.6538 $24.2227

37.5 $18.3625 $19.2389 $19.6980 $20.1690 $20.6521 $21.1476 $21.6545 $22.1746 $22.7077 $23.2538

40 $17.2148 $18.0365 $18.4668 $18.9084 $19.3613 $19.8258 $20.3011 $20.7887 $21.2885 $21.8004

35 $20.1433 $21.1050 $21.6096 $22.1272 $22.6581 $23.2013 $23.7585 $24.3297 $24.9148 $25.5150

36 $19.5837 $20.5187 $21.0094 $21.5126 $22.0287 $22.5568 $23.0986 $23.6538 $24.2227 $24.8063

37.5 $18.8004 $19.6980 $20.1690 $20.6521 $21.1476 $21.6545 $22.1746 $22.7077 $23.2538 $23.8140

40 $17.6253 $18.4668 $18.9084 $19.3613 $19.8258 $20.3011 $20.7887 $21.2885 $21.8004 $22.3257

25

26

27

28

29

30

21

22

23

24

King County Council November 7, 2016 356



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 4

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $20.6247 $21.6096 $22.1272 $22.6581 $23.2013 $23.7585 $24.3297 $24.9148 $25.5150 $26.1301

36 $20.0518 $21.0094 $21.5126 $22.0287 $22.5568 $23.0986 $23.6538 $24.2227 $24.8063 $25.4042

37.5 $19.2497 $20.1690 $20.6521 $21.1476 $21.6545 $22.1746 $22.7077 $23.2538 $23.8140 $24.3881

40 $18.0466 $18.9084 $19.3613 $19.8258 $20.3011 $20.7887 $21.2885 $21.8004 $22.3257 $22.8638

35 $21.1170 $22.1272 $22.6581 $23.2013 $23.7585 $24.3297 $24.9148 $25.5150 $26.1301 $26.7608

36 $20.5304 $21.5126 $22.0287 $22.5568 $23.0986 $23.6538 $24.2227 $24.8063 $25.4042 $26.0174

37.5 $19.7092 $20.6521 $21.1476 $21.6545 $22.1746 $22.7077 $23.2538 $23.8140 $24.3881 $24.9767

40 $18.4773 $19.3613 $19.8258 $20.3011 $20.7887 $21.2885 $21.8004 $22.3257 $22.8638 $23.4157

35 $21.6216 $22.6581 $23.2013 $23.7585 $24.3297 $24.9148 $25.5150 $26.1301 $26.7608 $27.4071

36 $21.0210 $22.0287 $22.5568 $23.0986 $23.6538 $24.2227 $24.8063 $25.4042 $26.0174 $26.6458

37.5 $20.1802 $21.1476 $21.6545 $22.1746 $22.7077 $23.2538 $23.8140 $24.3881 $24.9767 $25.5799

40 $18.9189 $19.8258 $20.3011 $20.7887 $21.2885 $21.8004 $22.3257 $22.8638 $23.4157 $23.9812

35 $22.1389 $23.2013 $23.7585 $24.3297 $24.9148 $25.5150 $26.1301 $26.7608 $27.4071 $28.0697

36 $21.5240 $22.5568 $23.0986 $23.6538 $24.2227 $24.8063 $25.4042 $26.0174 $26.6458 $27.2900

37.5 $20.6630 $21.6545 $22.1746 $22.7077 $23.2538 $23.8140 $24.3881 $24.9767 $25.5799 $26.1984

40 $19.3716 $20.3011 $20.7887 $21.2885 $21.8004 $22.3257 $22.8638 $23.4157 $23.9812 $24.5610

35 $22.6714 $23.7585 $24.3297 $24.9148 $25.5150 $26.1301 $26.7608 $27.4071 $28.0697 $28.7488

36 $22.0417 $23.0986 $23.6538 $24.2227 $24.8063 $25.4042 $26.0174 $26.6458 $27.2900 $27.9503

37.5 $21.1600 $22.1746 $22.7077 $23.2538 $23.8140 $24.3881 $24.9767 $25.5799 $26.1984 $26.8322

40 $19.8375 $20.7887 $21.2885 $21.8004 $22.3257 $22.8638 $23.4157 $23.9812 $24.5610 $25.1552

35 $23.2150 $24.3297 $24.9148 $25.5150 $26.1301 $26.7608 $27.4071 $28.0697 $28.7488 $29.4440

36 $22.5701 $23.6538 $24.2227 $24.8063 $25.4042 $26.0174 $26.6458 $27.2900 $27.9503 $28.6262

37.5 $21.6673 $22.7077 $23.2538 $23.8140 $24.3881 $24.9767 $25.5799 $26.1984 $26.8322 $27.4811

40 $20.3131 $21.2885 $21.8004 $22.3257 $22.8638 $23.4157 $23.9812 $24.5610 $25.1552 $25.7635

35 $23.7720 $24.9148 $25.5150 $26.1301 $26.7608 $27.4071 $28.0697 $28.7488 $29.4440 $30.1580

36 $23.1117 $24.2227 $24.8063 $25.4042 $26.0174 $26.6458 $27.2900 $27.9503 $28.6262 $29.3203

37.5 $22.1872 $23.2538 $23.8140 $24.3881 $24.9767 $25.5799 $26.1984 $26.8322 $27.4811 $28.1474

40 $20.8005 $21.8004 $22.3257 $22.8638 $23.4157 $23.9812 $24.5610 $25.1552 $25.7635 $26.3882

35 $24.3438 $25.5150 $26.1301 $26.7608 $27.4071 $28.0697 $28.7488 $29.4440 $30.1580 $30.8885

36 $23.6676 $24.8063 $25.4042 $26.0174 $26.6458 $27.2900 $27.9503 $28.6262 $29.3203 $30.0305

37.5 $22.7209 $23.8140 $24.3881 $24.9767 $25.5799 $26.1984 $26.8322 $27.4811 $28.1474 $28.8293

40 $21.3008 $22.3257 $22.8638 $23.4157 $23.9812 $24.5610 $25.1552 $25.7635 $26.3882 $27.0275

35 $24.9302 $26.1301 $26.7608 $27.4071 $28.0697 $28.7488 $29.4440 $30.1580 $30.8885 $31.6385

36 $24.2377 $25.4042 $26.0174 $26.6458 $27.2900 $27.9503 $28.6262 $29.3203 $30.0305 $30.7596

37.5 $23.2682 $24.3881 $24.9767 $25.5799 $26.1984 $26.8322 $27.4811 $28.1474 $28.8293 $29.5292

40 $21.8139 $22.8638 $23.4157 $23.9812 $24.5610 $25.1552 $25.7635 $26.3882 $27.0275 $27.6837

35 $25.5305 $26.7608 $27.4071 $28.0697 $28.7488 $29.4440 $30.1580 $30.8885 $31.6385 $32.4065

36 $24.8213 $26.0174 $26.6458 $27.2900 $27.9503 $28.6262 $29.3203 $30.0305 $30.7596 $31.5063

37.5 $23.8284 $24.9767 $25.5799 $26.1984 $26.8322 $27.4811 $28.1474 $28.8293 $29.5292 $30.2460

40 $22.3392 $23.4157 $23.9812 $24.5610 $25.1552 $25.7635 $26.3882 $27.0275 $27.6837 $28.3557

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

31

32

33

King County Council November 7, 2016 357



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 5

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $26.1451 $27.4071 $28.0697 $28.7488 $29.4440 $30.1580 $30.8885 $31.6385 $32.4065 $33.1940

36 $25.4188 $26.6458 $27.2900 $27.9503 $28.6262 $29.3203 $30.0305 $30.7596 $31.5063 $32.2719

37.5 $24.4021 $25.5799 $26.1984 $26.8322 $27.4811 $28.1474 $28.8293 $29.5292 $30.2460 $30.9810

40 $22.8770 $23.9812 $24.5610 $25.1552 $25.7635 $26.3882 $27.0275 $27.6837 $28.3557 $29.0447

35 $26.7766 $28.0697 $28.7488 $29.4440 $30.1580 $30.8885 $31.6385 $32.4065 $33.1940 $34.0010

36 $26.0328 $27.2900 $27.9503 $28.6262 $29.3203 $30.0305 $30.7596 $31.5063 $32.2719 $33.0565

37.5 $24.9915 $26.1984 $26.8322 $27.4811 $28.1474 $28.8293 $29.5292 $30.2460 $30.9810 $31.7343

40 $23.4295 $24.5610 $25.1552 $25.7635 $26.3882 $27.0275 $27.6837 $28.3557 $29.0447 $29.7509

35 $27.4226 $28.7488 $29.4440 $30.1580 $30.8885 $31.6385 $32.4065 $33.1940 $34.0010 $34.8284

36 $26.6609 $27.9503 $28.6262 $29.3203 $30.0305 $30.7596 $31.5063 $32.2719 $33.0565 $33.8609

37.5 $25.5945 $26.8322 $27.4811 $28.1474 $28.8293 $29.5292 $30.2460 $30.9810 $31.7343 $32.5065

40 $23.9948 $25.1552 $25.7635 $26.3882 $27.0275 $27.6837 $28.3557 $29.0447 $29.7509 $30.4748

35 $28.0859 $29.4440 $30.1580 $30.8885 $31.6385 $32.4065 $33.1940 $34.0010 $34.8284 $35.6759

36 $27.3058 $28.6262 $29.3203 $30.0305 $30.7596 $31.5063 $32.2719 $33.0565 $33.8609 $34.6849

37.5 $26.2135 $27.4811 $28.1474 $28.8293 $29.5292 $30.2460 $30.9810 $31.7343 $32.5065 $33.2975

40 $24.5752 $25.7635 $26.3882 $27.0275 $27.6837 $28.3557 $29.0447 $29.7509 $30.4748 $31.2164

35 $28.7651 $30.1580 $30.8885 $31.6385 $32.4065 $33.1940 $34.0010 $34.8284 $35.6759 $36.5445

36 $27.9660 $29.3203 $30.0305 $30.7596 $31.5063 $32.2719 $33.0565 $33.8609 $34.6849 $35.5294

37.5 $26.8474 $28.1474 $28.8293 $29.5292 $30.2460 $30.9810 $31.7343 $32.5065 $33.2975 $34.1082

40 $25.1694 $26.3882 $27.0275 $27.6837 $28.3557 $29.0447 $29.7509 $30.4748 $31.2164 $31.9764

35 $29.4612 $30.8885 $31.6385 $32.4065 $33.1940 $34.0010 $34.8284 $35.6759 $36.5445 $37.4354

36 $28.6428 $30.0305 $30.7596 $31.5063 $32.2719 $33.0565 $33.8609 $34.6849 $35.5294 $36.3955

37.5 $27.4971 $28.8293 $29.5292 $30.2460 $30.9810 $31.7343 $32.5065 $33.2975 $34.1082 $34.9397

40 $25.7785 $27.0275 $27.6837 $28.3557 $29.0447 $29.7509 $30.4748 $31.2164 $31.9764 $32.7560

35 $30.1745 $31.6385 $32.4065 $33.1940 $34.0010 $34.8284 $35.6759 $36.5445 $37.4354 $38.3487

36 $29.3363 $30.7596 $31.5063 $32.2719 $33.0565 $33.8609 $34.6849 $35.5294 $36.3955 $37.2835

37.5 $28.1628 $29.5292 $30.2460 $30.9810 $31.7343 $32.5065 $33.2975 $34.1082 $34.9397 $35.7921

40 $26.4027 $27.6837 $28.3557 $29.0447 $29.7509 $30.4748 $31.2164 $31.9764 $32.7560 $33.5551

35 $30.9066 $32.4065 $33.1940 $34.0010 $34.8284 $35.6759 $36.5445 $37.4354 $38.3487 $39.2855

36 $30.0481 $31.5063 $32.2719 $33.0565 $33.8609 $34.6849 $35.5294 $36.3955 $37.2835 $38.1942

37.5 $28.8462 $30.2460 $30.9810 $31.7343 $32.5065 $33.2975 $34.1082 $34.9397 $35.7921 $36.6665

40 $27.0433 $28.3557 $29.0447 $29.7509 $30.4748 $31.2164 $31.9764 $32.7560 $33.5551 $34.3748

35 $31.6555 $33.1940 $34.0010 $34.8284 $35.6759 $36.5445 $37.4354 $38.3487 $39.2855 $40.2447

36 $30.7762 $32.2719 $33.0565 $33.8609 $34.6849 $35.5294 $36.3955 $37.2835 $38.1942 $39.1268

37.5 $29.5451 $30.9810 $31.7343 $32.5065 $33.2975 $34.1082 $34.9397 $35.7921 $36.6665 $37.5617

40 $27.6985 $29.0447 $29.7509 $30.4748 $31.2164 $31.9764 $32.7560 $33.5551 $34.3748 $35.2141

35 $32.4256 $34.0010 $34.8284 $35.6759 $36.5445 $37.4354 $38.3487 $39.2855 $40.2447 $41.2275

36 $31.5249 $33.0565 $33.8609 $34.6849 $35.5294 $36.3955 $37.2835 $38.1942 $39.1268 $40.0823

37.5 $30.2639 $31.7343 $32.5065 $33.2975 $34.1082 $34.9397 $35.7921 $36.6665 $37.5617 $38.4790

40 $28.3724 $29.7509 $30.4748 $31.2164 $31.9764 $32.7560 $33.5551 $34.3748 $35.2141 $36.0741

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

41

42

King County Council November 7, 2016 358



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 6

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $33.2127 $34.8284 $35.6759 $36.5445 $37.4354 $38.3487 $39.2855 $40.2447 $41.2275 $42.2349

36 $32.2901 $33.8609 $34.6849 $35.5294 $36.3955 $37.2835 $38.1942 $39.1268 $40.0823 $41.0617

37.5 $30.9985 $32.5065 $33.2975 $34.1082 $34.9397 $35.7921 $36.6665 $37.5617 $38.4790 $39.4192

40 $29.0611 $30.4748 $31.2164 $31.9764 $32.7560 $33.5551 $34.3748 $35.2141 $36.0741 $36.9555

35 $34.0208 $35.6759 $36.5445 $37.4354 $38.3487 $39.2855 $40.2447 $41.2275 $42.2349 $43.2687

36 $33.0758 $34.6849 $35.5294 $36.3955 $37.2835 $38.1942 $39.1268 $40.0823 $41.0617 $42.0668

37.5 $31.7527 $33.2975 $34.1082 $34.9397 $35.7921 $36.6665 $37.5617 $38.4790 $39.4192 $40.3841

40 $29.7682 $31.2164 $31.9764 $32.7560 $33.5551 $34.3748 $35.2141 $36.0741 $36.9555 $37.8601

35 $34.8481 $36.5445 $37.4354 $38.3487 $39.2855 $40.2447 $41.2275 $42.2349 $43.2687 $44.3279

36 $33.8801 $35.5294 $36.3955 $37.2835 $38.1942 $39.1268 $40.0823 $41.0617 $42.0668 $43.0965

37.5 $32.5249 $34.1082 $34.9397 $35.7921 $36.6665 $37.5617 $38.4790 $39.4192 $40.3841 $41.3727

40 $30.4921 $31.9764 $32.7560 $33.5551 $34.3748 $35.2141 $36.0741 $36.9555 $37.8601 $38.7869

35 $35.6971 $37.4354 $38.3487 $39.2855 $40.2447 $41.2275 $42.2349 $43.2687 $44.3279 $45.4124

36 $34.7055 $36.3955 $37.2835 $38.1942 $39.1268 $40.0823 $41.0617 $42.0668 $43.0965 $44.1509

37.5 $33.3173 $34.9397 $35.7921 $36.6665 $37.5617 $38.4790 $39.4192 $40.3841 $41.3727 $42.3849

40 $31.2350 $32.7560 $33.5551 $34.3748 $35.2141 $36.0741 $36.9555 $37.8601 $38.7869 $39.7358

35 $36.5669 $38.3487 $39.2855 $40.2447 $41.2275 $42.2349 $43.2687 $44.3279 $45.4124 $46.5253

36 $35.5512 $37.2835 $38.1942 $39.1268 $40.0823 $41.0617 $42.0668 $43.0965 $44.1509 $45.2329

37.5 $34.1291 $35.7921 $36.6665 $37.5617 $38.4790 $39.4192 $40.3841 $41.3727 $42.3849 $43.4236

40 $31.9960 $33.5551 $34.3748 $35.2141 $36.0741 $36.9555 $37.8601 $38.7869 $39.7358 $40.7097

35 $37.4575 $39.2855 $40.2447 $41.2275 $42.2349 $43.2687 $44.3279 $45.4124 $46.5253 $47.6658

36 $36.4171 $38.1942 $39.1268 $40.0823 $41.0617 $42.0668 $43.0965 $44.1509 $45.2329 $46.3418

37.5 $34.9604 $36.6665 $37.5617 $38.4790 $39.4192 $40.3841 $41.3727 $42.3849 $43.4236 $44.4881

40 $32.7753 $34.3748 $35.2141 $36.0741 $36.9555 $37.8601 $38.7869 $39.7358 $40.7097 $41.7076

35 $38.3711 $40.2447 $41.2275 $42.2349 $43.2687 $44.3279 $45.4124 $46.5253 $47.6658 $48.8347

36 $37.3053 $39.1268 $40.0823 $41.0617 $42.0668 $43.0965 $44.1509 $45.2329 $46.3418 $47.4782

37.5 $35.8130 $37.5617 $38.4790 $39.4192 $40.3841 $41.3727 $42.3849 $43.4236 $44.4881 $45.5791

40 $33.5747 $35.2141 $36.0741 $36.9555 $37.8601 $38.7869 $39.7358 $40.7097 $41.7076 $42.7304

35 $39.3074 $41.2275 $42.2349 $43.2687 $44.3279 $45.4124 $46.5253 $47.6658 $48.8347 $50.0331

36 $38.2155 $40.0823 $41.0617 $42.0668 $43.0965 $44.1509 $45.2329 $46.3418 $47.4782 $48.6433

37.5 $36.6869 $38.4790 $39.4192 $40.3841 $41.3727 $42.3849 $43.4236 $44.4881 $45.5791 $46.6976

40 $34.3940 $36.0741 $36.9555 $37.8601 $38.7869 $39.7358 $40.7097 $41.7076 $42.7304 $43.7790

35 $40.2680 $42.2349 $43.2687 $44.3279 $45.4124 $46.5253 $47.6658 $48.8347 $50.0331 $51.2602

36 $39.1495 $41.0617 $42.0668 $43.0965 $44.1509 $45.2329 $46.3418 $47.4782 $48.6433 $49.8363

37.5 $37.5835 $39.4192 $40.3841 $41.3727 $42.3849 $43.4236 $44.4881 $45.5791 $46.6976 $47.8428

40 $35.2345 $36.9555 $37.8601 $38.7869 $39.7358 $40.7097 $41.7076 $42.7304 $43.7790 $44.8527

35 $41.2518 $43.2687 $44.3279 $45.4124 $46.5253 $47.6658 $48.8347 $50.0331 $51.2602 $52.5091

36 $40.1059 $42.0668 $43.0965 $44.1509 $45.2329 $46.3418 $47.4782 $48.6433 $49.8363 $51.0505

37.5 $38.5017 $40.3841 $41.3727 $42.3849 $43.4236 $44.4881 $45.5791 $46.6976 $47.8428 $49.0085

40 $36.0953 $37.8601 $38.7869 $39.7358 $40.7097 $41.7076 $42.7304 $43.7790 $44.8527 $45.9455

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

51

King County Council November 7, 2016 359



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 7

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $42.2594 $44.3279 $45.4124 $46.5253 $47.6658 $48.8347 $50.0331 $51.2602 $52.5091 $53.7040

36 $41.0855 $43.0965 $44.1509 $45.2329 $46.3418 $47.4782 $48.6433 $49.8363 $51.0505 $52.2122

37.5 $39.4421 $41.3727 $42.3849 $43.4236 $44.4881 $45.5791 $46.6976 $47.8428 $49.0085 $50.1237

40 $36.9770 $38.7869 $39.7358 $40.7097 $41.7076 $42.7304 $43.7790 $44.8527 $45.9455 $46.9910

35 $43.2931 $45.4124 $46.5253 $47.6658 $48.8347 $50.0331 $51.2602 $52.5091 $53.7040 $54.9278

36 $42.0905 $44.1509 $45.2329 $46.3418 $47.4782 $48.6433 $49.8363 $51.0505 $52.2122 $53.4021

37.5 $40.4069 $42.3849 $43.4236 $44.4881 $45.5791 $46.6976 $47.8428 $49.0085 $50.1237 $51.2660

40 $37.8815 $39.7358 $40.7097 $41.7076 $42.7304 $43.7790 $44.8527 $45.9455 $46.9910 $48.0618

35 $44.3533 $46.5253 $47.6658 $48.8347 $50.0331 $51.2602 $52.5091 $53.7040 $54.9278 $56.1812

36 $43.1213 $45.2329 $46.3418 $47.4782 $48.6433 $49.8363 $51.0505 $52.2122 $53.4021 $54.6206

37.5 $41.3964 $43.4236 $44.4881 $45.5791 $46.6976 $47.8428 $49.0085 $50.1237 $51.2660 $52.4358

40 $38.8092 $40.7097 $41.7076 $42.7304 $43.7790 $44.8527 $45.9455 $46.9910 $48.0618 $49.1586

35 $45.4400 $47.6658 $48.8347 $50.0331 $51.2602 $52.5091 $53.7040 $54.9278 $56.1812 $57.4676

36 $44.1778 $46.3418 $47.4782 $48.6433 $49.8363 $51.0505 $52.2122 $53.4021 $54.6206 $55.8713

37.5 $42.4107 $44.4881 $45.5791 $46.6976 $47.8428 $49.0085 $50.1237 $51.2660 $52.4358 $53.6364

40 $39.7600 $41.7076 $42.7304 $43.7790 $44.8527 $45.9455 $46.9910 $48.0618 $49.1586 $50.2842

35 $46.5534 $48.8347 $50.0331 $51.2602 $52.5091 $53.7040 $54.9278 $56.1812 $57.4676 $58.7840

36 $45.2603 $47.4782 $48.6433 $49.8363 $51.0505 $52.2122 $53.4021 $54.6206 $55.8713 $57.1512

37.5 $43.4498 $45.5791 $46.6976 $47.8428 $49.0085 $50.1237 $51.2660 $52.4358 $53.6364 $54.8651

40 $40.7342 $42.7304 $43.7790 $44.8527 $45.9455 $46.9910 $48.0618 $49.1586 $50.2842 $51.4360

35 $47.6942 $50.0331 $51.2602 $52.5091 $53.7040 $54.9278 $56.1812 $57.4676 $58.7840 $60.1354

36 $46.3694 $48.6433 $49.8363 $51.0505 $52.2122 $53.4021 $54.6206 $55.8713 $57.1512 $58.4650

37.5 $44.5146 $46.6976 $47.8428 $49.0085 $50.1237 $51.2660 $52.4358 $53.6364 $54.8651 $56.1264

40 $41.7324 $43.7790 $44.8527 $45.9455 $46.9910 $48.0618 $49.1586 $50.2842 $51.4360 $52.6185

35 $48.8631 $51.2602 $52.5091 $53.7040 $54.9278 $56.1812 $57.4676 $58.7840 $60.1354 $61.5199

36 $47.5058 $49.8363 $51.0505 $52.2122 $53.4021 $54.6206 $55.8713 $57.1512 $58.4650 $59.8110

37.5 $45.6055 $47.8428 $49.0085 $50.1237 $51.2660 $52.4358 $53.6364 $54.8651 $56.1264 $57.4186

40 $42.7552 $44.8527 $45.9455 $46.9910 $48.0618 $49.1586 $50.2842 $51.4360 $52.6185 $53.8299

35 $50.0611 $52.5091 $53.7040 $54.9278 $56.1812 $57.4676 $58.7840 $60.1354 $61.5199 $62.9387

36 $48.6705 $51.0505 $52.2122 $53.4021 $54.6206 $55.8713 $57.1512 $58.4650 $59.8110 $61.1904

37.5 $46.7237 $49.0085 $50.1237 $51.2660 $52.4358 $53.6364 $54.8651 $56.1264 $57.4186 $58.7428

40 $43.8035 $45.9455 $46.9910 $48.0618 $49.1586 $50.2842 $51.4360 $52.6185 $53.8299 $55.0713

35 $51.2917 $53.7040 $54.9278 $56.1812 $57.4676 $58.7840 $60.1354 $61.5199 $62.9387 $64.3937

36 $49.8669 $52.2122 $53.4021 $54.6206 $55.8713 $57.1512 $58.4650 $59.8110 $61.1904 $62.6050

37.5 $47.8722 $50.1237 $51.2660 $52.4358 $53.6364 $54.8651 $56.1264 $57.4186 $58.7428 $60.1008

40 $44.8802 $46.9910 $48.0618 $49.1586 $50.2842 $51.4360 $52.6185 $53.8299 $55.0713 $56.3445

35 $52.5382 $54.9278 $56.1812 $57.4676 $58.7840 $60.1354 $61.5199 $62.9387 $64.3937 $65.8845

36 $51.0788 $53.4021 $54.6206 $55.8713 $57.1512 $58.4650 $59.8110 $61.1904 $62.6050 $64.0544

37.5 $49.0357 $51.2660 $52.4358 $53.6364 $54.8651 $56.1264 $57.4186 $58.7428 $60.1008 $61.4922

40 $45.9710 $48.0618 $49.1586 $50.2842 $51.4360 $52.6185 $53.8299 $55.0713 $56.3445 $57.6489

70

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

King County Council November 7, 2016 360



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 8

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $53.7324 $56.1812 $57.4676 $58.7840 $60.1354 $61.5199 $62.9387 $64.3937 $65.8845 $67.4116

36 $52.2399 $54.6206 $55.8713 $57.1512 $58.4650 $59.8110 $61.1904 $62.6050 $64.0544 $65.5391

37.5 $50.1503 $52.4358 $53.6364 $54.8651 $56.1264 $57.4186 $58.7428 $60.1008 $61.4922 $62.9175

40 $47.0159 $49.1586 $50.2842 $51.4360 $52.6185 $53.8299 $55.0713 $56.3445 $57.6489 $58.9852

35 $54.9571 $57.4676 $58.7840 $60.1354 $61.5199 $62.9387 $64.3937 $65.8845 $67.4116 $68.9788

36 $53.4305 $55.8713 $57.1512 $58.4650 $59.8110 $61.1904 $62.6050 $64.0544 $65.5391 $67.0627

37.5 $51.2933 $53.6364 $54.8651 $56.1264 $57.4186 $58.7428 $60.1008 $61.4922 $62.9175 $64.3802

40 $48.0875 $50.2842 $51.4360 $52.6185 $53.8299 $55.0713 $56.3445 $57.6489 $58.9852 $60.3564

35 $56.2116 $58.7840 $60.1354 $61.5199 $62.9387 $64.3937 $65.8845 $67.4116 $68.9788 $70.5843

36 $54.6501 $57.1512 $58.4650 $59.8110 $61.1904 $62.6050 $64.0544 $65.5391 $67.0627 $68.6236

37.5 $52.4641 $54.8651 $56.1264 $57.4186 $58.7428 $60.1008 $61.4922 $62.9175 $64.3802 $65.8786

40 $49.1851 $51.4360 $52.6185 $53.8299 $55.0713 $56.3445 $57.6489 $58.9852 $60.3564 $61.7612

35 $57.4981 $60.1354 $61.5199 $62.9387 $64.3937 $65.8845 $67.4116 $68.9788 $70.5843 $72.2300

36 $55.9009 $58.4650 $59.8110 $61.1904 $62.6050 $64.0544 $65.5391 $67.0627 $68.6236 $70.2236

37.5 $53.6649 $56.1264 $57.4186 $58.7428 $60.1008 $61.4922 $62.9175 $64.3802 $65.8786 $67.4146

40 $50.3108 $52.6185 $53.8299 $55.0713 $56.3445 $57.6489 $58.9852 $60.3564 $61.7612 $63.2012

35 $58.8175 $61.5199 $62.9387 $64.3937 $65.8845 $67.4116 $68.9788 $70.5843 $72.2300 $73.9160

36 $57.1837 $59.8110 $61.1904 $62.6050 $64.0544 $65.5391 $67.0627 $68.6236 $70.2236 $71.8628

37.5 $54.8964 $57.4186 $58.7428 $60.1008 $61.4922 $62.9175 $64.3802 $65.8786 $67.4146 $68.9883

40 $51.4653 $53.8299 $55.0713 $56.3445 $57.6489 $58.9852 $60.3564 $61.7612 $63.2012 $64.6765

35 $60.1685 $62.9387 $64.3937 $65.8845 $67.4116 $68.9788 $70.5843 $72.2300 $73.9160 $75.6451

36 $58.4972 $61.1904 $62.6050 $64.0544 $65.5391 $67.0627 $68.6236 $70.2236 $71.8628 $73.5438

37.5 $56.1573 $58.7428 $60.1008 $61.4922 $62.9175 $64.3802 $65.8786 $67.4146 $68.9883 $70.6021

40 $52.6475 $55.0713 $56.3445 $57.6489 $58.9852 $60.3564 $61.7612 $63.2012 $64.6765 $66.1895

35 $61.5533 $64.3937 $65.8845 $67.4116 $68.9788 $70.5843 $72.2300 $73.9160 $75.6451 $77.4173

36 $59.8435 $62.6050 $64.0544 $65.5391 $67.0627 $68.6236 $70.2236 $71.8628 $73.5438 $75.2668

37.5 $57.4497 $60.1008 $61.4922 $62.9175 $64.3802 $65.8786 $67.4146 $68.9883 $70.6021 $72.2561

40 $53.8591 $56.3445 $57.6489 $58.9852 $60.3564 $61.7612 $63.2012 $64.6765 $66.1895 $67.7401

35 $62.9734 $65.8845 $67.4116 $68.9788 $70.5843 $72.2300 $73.9160 $75.6451 $77.4173 $79.2342

36 $61.2241 $64.0544 $65.5391 $67.0627 $68.6236 $70.2236 $71.8628 $73.5438 $75.2668 $77.0332

37.5 $58.7751 $61.4922 $62.9175 $64.3802 $65.8786 $67.4146 $68.9883 $70.6021 $72.2561 $73.9519

40 $55.1017 $57.6489 $58.9852 $60.3564 $61.7612 $63.2012 $64.6765 $66.1895 $67.7401 $69.3299

35 $64.4289 $67.4116 $68.9788 $70.5843 $72.2300 $73.9160 $75.6451 $77.4173 $79.2342 $81.0953

36 $62.6392 $65.5391 $67.0627 $68.6236 $70.2236 $71.8628 $73.5438 $75.2668 $77.0332 $78.8427

37.5 $60.1337 $62.9175 $64.3802 $65.8786 $67.4146 $68.9883 $70.6021 $72.2561 $73.9519 $75.6890

40 $56.3753 $58.9852 $60.3564 $61.7612 $63.2012 $64.6765 $66.1895 $67.7401 $69.3299 $70.9584

35 $65.9200 $68.9788 $70.5843 $72.2300 $73.9160 $75.6451 $77.4173 $79.2342 $81.0953 $83.0041

36 $64.0888 $67.0627 $68.6236 $70.2236 $71.8628 $73.5438 $75.2668 $77.0332 $78.8427 $80.6985

37.5 $61.5253 $64.3802 $65.8786 $67.4146 $68.9883 $70.6021 $72.2561 $73.9519 $75.6890 $77.4705

40 $57.6800 $60.3564 $61.7612 $63.2012 $64.6765 $66.1895 $67.7401 $69.3299 $70.9584 $72.6286

79

80

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

King County Council November 7, 2016 361



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 9

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $67.4496 $70.5843 $72.2300 $73.9160 $75.6451 $77.4173 $79.2342 $81.0953 $83.0041 $84.9603

36 $65.5760 $68.6236 $70.2236 $71.8628 $73.5438 $75.2668 $77.0332 $78.8427 $80.6985 $82.6003

37.5 $62.9530 $65.8786 $67.4146 $68.9883 $70.6021 $72.2561 $73.9519 $75.6890 $77.4705 $79.2962

40 $59.0184 $61.7612 $63.2012 $64.6765 $66.1895 $67.7401 $69.3299 $70.9584 $72.6286 $74.3402

35 $69.0169 $72.2300 $73.9160 $75.6451 $77.4173 $79.2342 $81.0953 $83.0041 $84.9603 $86.9645

36 $67.0997 $70.2236 $71.8628 $73.5438 $75.2668 $77.0332 $78.8427 $80.6985 $82.6003 $84.5488

37.5 $64.4158 $67.4146 $68.9883 $70.6021 $72.2561 $73.9519 $75.6890 $77.4705 $79.2962 $81.1669

40 $60.3898 $63.2012 $64.6765 $66.1895 $67.7401 $69.3299 $70.9584 $72.6286 $74.3402 $76.0940

35 $70.6241 $73.9160 $75.6451 $77.4173 $79.2342 $81.0953 $83.0041 $84.9603 $86.9645 $89.0204

36 $68.6623 $71.8628 $73.5438 $75.2668 $77.0332 $78.8427 $80.6985 $82.6003 $84.5488 $86.5476

37.5 $65.9158 $68.9883 $70.6021 $72.2561 $73.9519 $75.6890 $77.4705 $79.2962 $81.1669 $83.0857

40 $61.7961 $64.6765 $66.1895 $67.7401 $69.3299 $70.9584 $72.6286 $74.3402 $76.0940 $77.8928

35 $72.2695 $75.6451 $77.4173 $79.2342 $81.0953 $83.0041 $84.9603 $86.9645 $89.0204 $91.1265

36 $70.2621 $73.5438 $75.2668 $77.0332 $78.8427 $80.6985 $82.6003 $84.5488 $86.5476 $88.5953

37.5 $67.4516 $70.6021 $72.2561 $73.9519 $75.6890 $77.4705 $79.2962 $81.1669 $83.0857 $85.0514

40 $63.2358 $66.1895 $67.7401 $69.3299 $70.9584 $72.6286 $74.3402 $76.0940 $77.8928 $79.7357

35 $73.9568 $77.4173 $79.2342 $81.0953 $83.0041 $84.9603 $86.9645 $89.0204 $91.1265 $93.2867

36 $71.9024 $75.2668 $77.0332 $78.8427 $80.6985 $82.6003 $84.5488 $86.5476 $88.5953 $90.6954

37.5 $69.0263 $72.2561 $73.9519 $75.6890 $77.4705 $79.2962 $81.1669 $83.0857 $85.0514 $87.0676

40 $64.7122 $67.7401 $69.3299 $70.9584 $72.6286 $74.3402 $76.0940 $77.8928 $79.7357 $81.6258

35 $75.6873 $79.2342 $81.0953 $83.0041 $84.9603 $86.9645 $89.0204 $91.1265 $93.2867 $95.4994

36 $73.5849 $77.0332 $78.8427 $80.6985 $82.6003 $84.5488 $86.5476 $88.5953 $90.6954 $92.8467

37.5 $70.6415 $73.9519 $75.6890 $77.4705 $79.2962 $81.1669 $83.0857 $85.0514 $87.0676 $89.1328

40 $66.2264 $69.3299 $70.9584 $72.6286 $74.3402 $76.0940 $77.8928 $79.7357 $81.6258 $83.5620

35 $77.4603 $81.0953 $83.0041 $84.9603 $86.9645 $89.0204 $91.1265 $93.2867 $95.4994 $97.7673

36 $75.3086 $78.8427 $80.6985 $82.6003 $84.5488 $86.5476 $88.5953 $90.6954 $92.8467 $95.0515

37.5 $72.2962 $75.6890 $77.4705 $79.2962 $81.1669 $83.0857 $85.0514 $87.0676 $89.1328 $91.2495

40 $67.7777 $70.9584 $72.6286 $74.3402 $76.0940 $77.8928 $79.7357 $81.6258 $83.5620 $85.5464

35 $79.2779 $83.0041 $84.9603 $86.9645 $89.0204 $91.1265 $93.2867 $95.4994 $97.7673 $100.0925

36 $77.0758 $80.6985 $82.6003 $84.5488 $86.5476 $88.5953 $90.6954 $92.8467 $95.0515 $97.3122

37.5 $73.9927 $77.4705 $79.2962 $81.1669 $83.0857 $85.0514 $87.0676 $89.1328 $91.2495 $93.4197

40 $69.3682 $72.6286 $74.3402 $76.0940 $77.8928 $79.7357 $81.6258 $83.5620 $85.5464 $87.5810

35 $81.1415 $84.9603 $86.9645 $89.0204 $91.1265 $93.2867 $95.4994 $97.7673 $100.0925 $102.4759

36 $78.8876 $82.6003 $84.5488 $86.5476 $88.5953 $90.6954 $92.8467 $95.0515 $97.3122 $99.6294

37.5 $75.7321 $79.2962 $81.1669 $83.0857 $85.0514 $87.0676 $89.1328 $91.2495 $93.4197 $95.6442

40 $70.9988 $74.3402 $76.0940 $77.8928 $79.7357 $81.6258 $83.5620 $85.5464 $87.5810 $89.6664

35 $83.0503 $86.9645 $89.0204 $91.1265 $93.2867 $95.4994 $97.7673 $100.0925 $102.4759 $104.9196

36 $80.7433 $84.5488 $86.5476 $88.5953 $90.6954 $92.8467 $95.0515 $97.3122 $99.6294 $102.0051

37.5 $77.5136 $81.1669 $83.0857 $85.0514 $87.0676 $89.1328 $91.2495 $93.4197 $95.6442 $97.9249

40 $72.6690 $76.0940 $77.8928 $79.7357 $81.6258 $83.5620 $85.5464 $87.5810 $89.6664 $91.8046

88

89

90

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

King County Council November 7, 2016 362



360 Standard Hourly Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Hourly 10

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Hourly Salary Schedule (2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017)

Pay Range 

Number 

Hours Per 

Week

35 $85.0076 $89.0204 $91.1265 $93.2867 $95.4994 $97.7673 $100.0925 $102.4759 $104.9196 $107.4229

36 $82.6463 $86.5476 $88.5953 $90.6954 $92.8467 $95.0515 $97.3122 $99.6294 $102.0051 $104.4390

37.5 $79.3404 $83.0857 $85.0514 $87.0676 $89.1328 $91.2495 $93.4197 $95.6442 $97.9249 $100.2614

40 $74.3817 $77.8928 $79.7357 $81.6258 $83.5620 $85.5464 $87.5810 $89.6664 $91.8046 $93.9951

35 $87.0136 $91.1265 $93.2867 $95.4994 $97.7673 $100.0925 $102.4759 $104.9196 $107.4229 $109.9895

36 $84.5965 $88.5953 $90.6954 $92.8467 $95.0515 $97.3122 $99.6294 $102.0051 $104.4390 $106.9342

37.5 $81.2127 $85.0514 $87.0676 $89.1328 $91.2495 $93.4197 $95.6442 $97.9249 $100.2614 $102.6569

40 $76.1369 $79.7357 $81.6258 $83.5620 $85.5464 $87.5810 $89.6664 $91.8046 $93.9951 $96.2408

35 $89.0703 $93.2867 $95.4994 $97.7673 $100.0925 $102.4759 $104.9196 $107.4229 $109.9895 $112.6203

36 $86.5962 $90.6954 $92.8467 $95.0515 $97.3122 $99.6294 $102.0051 $104.4390 $106.9342 $109.4919

37.5 $83.1323 $87.0676 $89.1328 $91.2495 $93.4197 $95.6442 $97.9249 $100.2614 $102.6569 $105.1122

40 $77.9365 $81.6258 $83.5620 $85.5464 $87.5810 $89.6664 $91.8046 $93.9951 $96.2408 $98.5427

35 $91.1786 $95.4994 $97.7673 $100.0925 $102.4759 $104.9196 $107.4229 $109.9895 $112.6203 $115.3164

36 $88.6459 $92.8467 $95.0515 $97.3122 $99.6294 $102.0051 $104.4390 $106.9342 $109.4919 $112.1132

37.5 $85.1001 $89.1328 $91.2495 $93.4197 $95.6442 $97.9249 $100.2614 $102.6569 $105.1122 $107.6287

40 $79.7813 $83.5620 $85.5464 $87.5810 $89.6664 $91.8046 $93.9951 $96.2408 $98.5427 $100.9019

35 $93.3388 $97.7673 $100.0925 $102.4759 $104.9196 $107.4229 $109.9895 $112.6203 $115.3164 $118.0807

36 $90.7460 $95.0515 $97.3122 $99.6294 $102.0051 $104.4390 $106.9342 $109.4919 $112.1132 $114.8006

37.5 $87.1162 $91.2495 $93.4197 $95.6442 $97.9249 $100.2614 $102.6569 $105.1122 $107.6287 $110.2086

40 $81.6714 $85.5464 $87.5810 $89.6664 $91.8046 $93.9951 $96.2408 $98.5427 $100.9019 $103.3206

35 $95.5524 $100.0925 $102.4759 $104.9196 $107.4229 $109.9895 $112.6203 $115.3164 $118.0807 $120.9131

36 $92.8982 $97.3122 $99.6294 $102.0051 $104.4390 $106.9342 $109.4919 $112.1132 $114.8006 $117.5544

37.5 $89.1823 $93.4197 $95.6442 $97.9249 $100.2614 $102.6569 $105.1122 $107.6287 $110.2086 $112.8522

40 $83.6084 $87.5810 $89.6664 $91.8046 $93.9951 $96.2408 $98.5427 $100.9019 $103.3206 $105.7989

35 $97.8231 $102.4759 $104.9196 $107.4229 $109.9895 $112.6203 $115.3164 $118.0807 $120.9131 $123.8177

36 $95.1058 $99.6294 $102.0051 $104.4390 $106.9342 $109.4919 $112.1132 $114.8006 $117.5544 $120.3783

37.5 $91.3015 $95.6442 $97.9249 $100.2614 $102.6569 $105.1122 $107.6287 $110.2086 $112.8522 $115.5632

40 $85.5952 $89.6664 $91.8046 $93.9951 $96.2408 $98.5427 $100.9019 $103.3206 $105.7989 $108.3405

35 $100.1492 $104.9196 $107.4229 $109.9895 $112.6203 $115.3164 $118.0807 $120.9131 $123.8177 $126.7942

36 $97.3673 $102.0051 $104.4390 $106.9342 $109.4919 $112.1132 $114.8006 $117.5544 $120.3783 $123.2722

37.5 $93.4726 $97.9249 $100.2614 $102.6569 $105.1122 $107.6287 $110.2086 $112.8522 $115.5632 $118.3413

40 $87.6306 $91.8046 $93.9951 $96.2408 $98.5427 $100.9019 $103.3206 $105.7989 $108.3405 $110.9450

35 $102.5339 $107.4229 $109.9895 $112.6203 $115.3164 $118.0807 $120.9131 $123.8177 $126.7942 $129.8447

36 $99.6858 $104.4390 $106.9342 $109.4919 $112.1132 $114.8006 $117.5544 $120.3783 $123.2722 $126.2379

37.5 $95.6983 $100.2614 $102.6569 $105.1122 $107.6287 $110.2086 $112.8522 $115.5632 $118.3413 $121.1884

40 $89.7172 $93.9951 $96.2408 $98.5427 $100.9019 $103.3206 $105.7989 $108.3405 $110.9450 $113.6142

91

92

93

98

99

94

95

96

97

King County Council November 7, 2016 363



Attachment D

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 $18,762.48 $19,618.32 $20,068.32 $20,527.68 $20,999.76 $21,482.88 $21,977.28 $22,486.32 $23,008.08 $23,540.64

2 $19,191.60 $20,068.32 $20,527.68 $20,999.76 $21,482.88 $21,977.28 $22,486.32 $23,008.08 $23,540.64 $24,087.12

3 $19,630.08 $20,527.68 $20,999.76 $21,482.88 $21,977.28 $22,486.32 $23,008.08 $23,540.64 $24,087.12 $24,648.72

4 $20,079.60 $20,999.76 $21,482.88 $21,977.28 $22,486.32 $23,008.08 $23,540.64 $24,087.12 $24,648.72 $25,222.32

5 $20,538.00 $21,482.88 $21,977.28 $22,486.32 $23,008.08 $23,540.64 $24,087.12 $24,648.72 $25,222.32 $25,812.24

6 $21,009.36 $21,977.28 $22,486.32 $23,008.08 $23,540.64 $24,087.12 $24,648.72 $25,222.32 $25,812.24 $26,415.60

7 $21,495.36 $22,486.32 $23,008.08 $23,540.64 $24,087.12 $24,648.72 $25,222.32 $25,812.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84

8 $21,991.68 $23,008.08 $23,540.64 $24,087.12 $24,648.72 $25,222.32 $25,812.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84 $27,668.40

9 $22,497.36 $23,540.64 $24,087.12 $24,648.72 $25,222.32 $25,812.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84 $27,668.40 $28,320.00

10 $23,020.32 $24,087.12 $24,648.72 $25,222.32 $25,812.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84 $27,668.40 $28,320.00 $28,986.96

11 $23,554.80 $24,648.72 $25,222.32 $25,812.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84 $27,668.40 $28,320.00 $28,986.96 $29,669.76

12 $24,100.80 $25,222.32 $25,812.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84 $27,668.40 $28,320.00 $28,986.96 $29,669.76 $30,370.32

13 $24,662.40 $25,812.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84 $27,668.40 $28,320.00 $28,986.96 $29,669.76 $30,370.32 $31,087.68

14 $25,236.24 $26,415.60 $27,033.84 $27,668.40 $28,320.00 $28,986.96 $29,669.76 $30,370.32 $31,087.68 $31,822.32

15 $25,826.16 $27,033.84 $27,668.40 $28,320.00 $28,986.96 $29,669.76 $30,370.32 $31,087.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08

16 $26,431.20 $27,668.40 $28,320.00 $28,986.96 $29,669.76 $30,370.32 $31,087.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08 $33,350.88

17 $27,048.72 $28,320.00 $28,986.96 $29,669.76 $30,370.32 $31,087.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08 $33,350.88 $34,141.68

18 $27,684.24 $28,986.96 $29,669.76 $30,370.32 $31,087.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08 $33,350.88 $34,141.68 $34,955.04

19 $28,334.88 $29,669.76 $30,370.32 $31,087.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08 $33,350.88 $34,141.68 $34,955.04 $35,787.12

20 $29,001.60 $30,370.32 $31,087.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08 $33,350.88 $34,141.68 $34,955.04 $35,787.12 $36,640.80

21 $29,685.84 $31,087.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08 $33,350.88 $34,141.68 $34,955.04 $35,787.12 $36,640.80 $37,515.84

22 $30,385.68 $31,822.32 $32,578.08 $33,350.88 $34,141.68 $34,955.04 $35,787.12 $36,640.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04

23 $31,104.24 $32,578.08 $33,350.88 $34,141.68 $34,955.04 $35,787.12 $36,640.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04 $39,329.52

24 $31,840.56 $33,350.88 $34,141.68 $34,955.04 $35,787.12 $36,640.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04 $39,329.52 $40,271.52

25 $32,595.60 $34,141.68 $34,955.04 $35,787.12 $36,640.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04 $39,329.52 $40,271.52 $41,237.76

26 $33,369.84 $34,955.04 $35,787.12 $36,640.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04 $39,329.52 $40,271.52 $41,237.76 $42,226.32

27 $34,161.12 $35,787.12 $36,640.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04 $39,329.52 $40,271.52 $41,237.76 $42,226.32 $43,240.56

28 $34,975.68 $36,640.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04 $39,329.52 $40,271.52 $41,237.76 $42,226.32 $43,240.56 $44,280.00

29 $35,806.80 $37,515.84 $38,411.04 $39,329.52 $40,271.52 $41,237.76 $42,226.32 $43,240.56 $44,280.00 $45,344.88

30 $36,660.72 $38,411.04 $39,329.52 $40,271.52 $41,237.76 $42,226.32 $43,240.56 $44,280.00 $45,344.88 $46,437.36

31 $37,536.96 $39,329.52 $40,271.52 $41,237.76 $42,226.32 $43,240.56 $44,280.00 $45,344.88 $46,437.36 $47,556.72

32 $38,432.88 $40,271.52 $41,237.76 $42,226.32 $43,240.56 $44,280.00 $45,344.88 $46,437.36 $47,556.72 $48,704.64

33 $39,351.36 $41,237.76 $42,226.32 $43,240.56 $44,280.00 $45,344.88 $46,437.36 $47,556.72 $48,704.64 $49,880.88

34 $40,292.88 $42,226.32 $43,240.56 $44,280.00 $45,344.88 $46,437.36 $47,556.72 $48,704.64 $49,880.88 $51,086.88

35 $41,262.00 $43,240.56 $44,280.00 $45,344.88 $46,437.36 $47,556.72 $48,704.64 $49,880.88 $51,086.88 $52,322.88

36 $42,251.28 $44,280.00 $45,344.88 $46,437.36 $47,556.72 $48,704.64 $49,880.88 $51,086.88 $52,322.88 $53,588.16

2017 King County Standardized Annual/FLSA Exempt Salary Schedule (with 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017) 

Pay Range 

Number

King County Council November 7, 2016 364



360 Standard Annual Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Annual/FLSA Exempt Page 2

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Annual/FLSA Exempt Salary Schedule (with 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017) 

Pay Range 

Number

37 $43,265.04 $45,344.88 $46,437.36 $47,556.72 $48,704.64 $49,880.88 $51,086.88 $52,322.88 $53,588.16 $54,887.52

38 $44,305.68 $46,437.36 $47,556.72 $48,704.64 $49,880.88 $51,086.88 $52,322.88 $53,588.16 $54,887.52 $56,217.12

39 $45,372.96 $47,556.72 $48,704.64 $49,880.88 $51,086.88 $52,322.88 $53,588.16 $54,887.52 $56,217.12 $57,582.00

40 $46,465.44 $48,704.64 $49,880.88 $51,086.88 $52,322.88 $53,588.16 $54,887.52 $56,217.12 $57,582.00 $58,979.76

41 $47,584.08 $49,880.88 $51,086.88 $52,322.88 $53,588.16 $54,887.52 $56,217.12 $57,582.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04

42 $48,733.44 $51,086.88 $52,322.88 $53,588.16 $54,887.52 $56,217.12 $57,582.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04 $61,881.84

43 $49,909.20 $52,322.88 $53,588.16 $54,887.52 $56,217.12 $57,582.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04 $61,881.84 $63,387.60

44 $51,116.40 $53,588.16 $54,887.52 $56,217.12 $57,582.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04 $61,881.84 $63,387.60 $64,930.08

45 $52,352.40 $54,887.52 $56,217.12 $57,582.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04 $61,881.84 $63,387.60 $64,930.08 $66,510.96

46 $53,619.36 $56,217.12 $57,582.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04 $61,881.84 $63,387.60 $64,930.08 $66,510.96 $68,132.40

47 $54,917.52 $57,582.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04 $61,881.84 $63,387.60 $64,930.08 $66,510.96 $68,132.40 $69,794.64

48 $56,250.00 $58,979.76 $60,413.04 $61,881.84 $63,387.60 $64,930.08 $66,510.96 $68,132.40 $69,794.64 $71,499.60

49 $57,612.96 $60,413.04 $61,881.84 $63,387.60 $64,930.08 $66,510.96 $68,132.40 $69,794.64 $71,499.60 $73,245.36

50 $59,014.56 $61,881.84 $63,387.60 $64,930.08 $66,510.96 $68,132.40 $69,794.64 $71,499.60 $73,245.36 $75,034.08

51 $60,447.12 $63,387.60 $64,930.08 $66,510.96 $68,132.40 $69,794.64 $71,499.60 $73,245.36 $75,034.08 $76,867.44

52 $61,917.84 $64,930.08 $66,510.96 $68,132.40 $69,794.64 $71,499.60 $73,245.36 $75,034.08 $76,867.44 $78,749.04

53 $63,423.60 $66,510.96 $68,132.40 $69,794.64 $71,499.60 $73,245.36 $75,034.08 $76,867.44 $78,749.04 $80,676.72

54 $64,968.72 $68,132.40 $69,794.64 $71,499.60 $73,245.36 $75,034.08 $76,867.44 $78,749.04 $80,676.72 $82,650.48

55 $66,551.76 $69,794.64 $71,499.60 $73,245.36 $75,034.08 $76,867.44 $78,749.04 $80,676.72 $82,650.48 $84,676.08

56 $68,172.72 $71,499.60 $73,245.36 $75,034.08 $76,867.44 $78,749.04 $80,676.72 $82,650.48 $84,676.08 $86,751.84

57 $69,835.44 $73,245.36 $75,034.08 $76,867.44 $78,749.04 $80,676.72 $82,650.48 $84,676.08 $86,751.84 $88,879.20

58 $71,539.44 $75,034.08 $76,867.44 $78,749.04 $80,676.72 $82,650.48 $84,676.08 $86,751.84 $88,879.20 $91,060.32

59 $73,287.84 $76,867.44 $78,749.04 $80,676.72 $82,650.48 $84,676.08 $86,751.84 $88,879.20 $91,060.32 $93,293.52

60 $75,078.24 $78,749.04 $80,676.72 $82,650.48 $84,676.08 $86,751.84 $88,879.20 $91,060.32 $93,293.52 $95,566.56

61 $76,912.08 $80,676.72 $82,650.48 $84,676.08 $86,751.84 $88,879.20 $91,060.32 $93,293.52 $95,566.56 $97,741.20

62 $78,793.44 $82,650.48 $84,676.08 $86,751.84 $88,879.20 $91,060.32 $93,293.52 $95,566.56 $97,741.20 $99,968.64

63 $80,723.04 $84,676.08 $86,751.84 $88,879.20 $91,060.32 $93,293.52 $95,566.56 $97,741.20 $99,968.64 $102,249.84

64 $82,700.88 $86,751.84 $88,879.20 $91,060.32 $93,293.52 $95,566.56 $97,741.20 $99,968.64 $102,249.84 $104,591.04

65 $84,727.20 $88,879.20 $91,060.32 $93,293.52 $95,566.56 $97,741.20 $99,968.64 $102,249.84 $104,591.04 $106,986.96

66 $86,803.44 $91,060.32 $93,293.52 $95,566.56 $97,741.20 $99,968.64 $102,249.84 $104,591.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48

67 $88,930.80 $93,293.52 $95,566.56 $97,741.20 $99,968.64 $102,249.84 $104,591.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48 $111,966.24

68 $91,111.20 $95,566.56 $97,741.20 $99,968.64 $102,249.84 $104,591.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48 $111,966.24 $114,548.40

69 $93,350.88 $97,741.20 $99,968.64 $102,249.84 $104,591.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48 $111,966.24 $114,548.40 $117,196.56

70 $95,619.60 $99,968.64 $102,249.84 $104,591.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48 $111,966.24 $114,548.40 $117,196.56 $119,909.76

71 $97,793.04 $102,249.84 $104,591.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48 $111,966.24 $114,548.40 $117,196.56 $119,909.76 $122,689.20

72 $100,021.92 $104,591.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48 $111,966.24 $114,548.40 $117,196.56 $119,909.76 $122,689.20 $125,541.36

King County Council November 7, 2016 365



360 Standard Annual Schedule 2017.xls 2017 Standardized Annual/FLSA Exempt Page 3

Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step Step

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2017 King County Standardized Annual/FLSA Exempt Salary Schedule (with 2.25% General Wage Increase (GWI) for 2017) 

Pay Range 

Number

73 $102,305.04 $106,986.96 $109,446.48 $111,966.24 $114,548.40 $117,196.56 $119,909.76 $122,689.20 $125,541.36 $128,463.36

74 $104,646.48 $109,446.48 $111,966.24 $114,548.40 $117,196.56 $119,909.76 $122,689.20 $125,541.36 $128,463.36 $131,458.56

75 $107,047.92 $111,966.24 $114,548.40 $117,196.56 $119,909.76 $122,689.20 $125,541.36 $128,463.36 $131,458.56 $134,527.20

76 $109,506.72 $114,548.40 $117,196.56 $119,909.76 $122,689.20 $125,541.36 $128,463.36 $131,458.56 $134,527.20 $137,674.08

77 $112,026.96 $117,196.56 $119,909.76 $122,689.20 $125,541.36 $128,463.36 $131,458.56 $134,527.20 $137,674.08 $140,899.44

78 $114,611.52 $119,909.76 $122,689.20 $125,541.36 $128,463.36 $131,458.56 $134,527.20 $137,674.08 $140,899.44 $144,206.16

79 $117,260.64 $122,689.20 $125,541.36 $128,463.36 $131,458.56 $134,527.20 $137,674.08 $140,899.44 $144,206.16 $147,593.52

80 $119,974.32 $125,541.36 $128,463.36 $131,458.56 $134,527.20 $137,674.08 $140,899.44 $144,206.16 $147,593.52 $151,067.52

81 $122,758.32 $128,463.36 $131,458.56 $134,527.20 $137,674.08 $140,899.44 $144,206.16 $147,593.52 $151,067.52 $154,627.68

82 $125,610.72 $131,458.56 $134,527.20 $137,674.08 $140,899.44 $144,206.16 $147,593.52 $151,067.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44

83 $128,535.84 $134,527.20 $137,674.08 $140,899.44 $144,206.16 $147,593.52 $151,067.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44 $162,017.04

84 $131,530.56 $137,674.08 $140,899.44 $144,206.16 $147,593.52 $151,067.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44 $162,017.04 $165,850.32

85 $134,601.36 $140,899.44 $144,206.16 $147,593.52 $151,067.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44 $162,017.04 $165,850.32 $169,781.76

86 $137,750.88 $144,206.16 $147,593.52 $151,067.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44 $162,017.04 $165,850.32 $169,781.76 $173,808.96

87 $140,977.68 $147,593.52 $151,067.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44 $162,017.04 $165,850.32 $169,781.76 $173,808.96 $177,936.48

88 $144,285.84 $151,067.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44 $162,017.04 $165,850.32 $169,781.76 $173,808.96 $177,936.48 $182,168.40

89 $147,677.52 $154,627.68 $158,275.44 $162,017.04 $165,850.32 $169,781.76 $173,808.96 $177,936.48 $182,168.40 $186,506.16

90 $151,151.52 $158,275.44 $162,017.04 $165,850.32 $169,781.76 $173,808.96 $177,936.48 $182,168.40 $186,506.16 $190,953.60

91 $154,713.84 $162,017.04 $165,850.32 $169,781.76 $173,808.96 $177,936.48 $182,168.40 $186,506.16 $190,953.60 $195,509.76

92 $158,364.72 $165,850.32 $169,781.76 $173,808.96 $177,936.48 $182,168.40 $186,506.16 $190,953.60 $195,509.76 $200,180.88

93 $162,108.00 $169,781.76 $173,808.96 $177,936.48 $182,168.40 $186,506.16 $190,953.60 $195,509.76 $200,180.88 $204,968.88

94 $165,945.12 $173,808.96 $177,936.48 $182,168.40 $186,506.16 $190,953.60 $195,509.76 $200,180.88 $204,968.88 $209,875.92

95 $169,876.56 $177,936.48 $182,168.40 $186,506.16 $190,953.60 $195,509.76 $200,180.88 $204,968.88 $209,875.92 $214,906.80

96 $173,905.44 $182,168.40 $186,506.16 $190,953.60 $195,509.76 $200,180.88 $204,968.88 $209,875.92 $214,906.80 $220,061.76

97 $178,038.00 $186,506.16 $190,953.60 $195,509.76 $200,180.88 $204,968.88 $209,875.92 $214,906.80 $220,061.76 $225,348.24

98 $182,271.60 $190,953.60 $195,509.76 $200,180.88 $204,968.88 $209,875.92 $214,906.80 $220,061.76 $225,348.24 $230,765.52

99 $186,611.76 $195,509.76 $200,180.88 $204,968.88 $209,875.92 $214,906.80 $220,061.76 $225,348.24 $230,765.52 $236,317.44

King County Council November 7, 2016 366



 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 

1 of 3 

 

REVISED STAFF REPORT 
 

Agenda Item: 31 Name: Nick Wagner 

Proposed No.: 2016-B0191 re: 
2016-0494 

Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494 was amended by Amendment 1 and reported out of 
committee with a Do Pass recommendation. 
 
SUBJECT 
 

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494 provides for a general wage and salary increase of 2.25% 
for non-represented county employees for 2017, and a revision of the county 
compensation schedules to reflect a 2.25% increase for 2017. 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494 (Att. 1) would adopt: (1) the 2017 King County 
compensation schedules, which reflect an increase of 2.25 percent over the amounts in 
the 2016 compensation schedules, and (2) a wage and salary increase of 2.25 percent for 
2017 for those non-represented county employees whose compensation is not based on 
the compensation schedules and is not set by the state. This would enable the Finance 
and Business Operations Division to issue paychecks in the appropriate amounts 
beginning January 1, 2017. 

The 2.25 percent increase for 2017 is the same as the increase negotiated with the King 
County Coalition of Unions in a tentative memorandum of agreement (“the Coalition MOA”) 
covering the employees whose bargaining units ratify the MOA. A proposed ordinance that 
would adopt the Coalition MOA is expected to be transmitted to the Council after the 
ratification process is complete (expected sometime during the week of Oct. 24). 

The proposed adjustments for non-represented employees follow the County’s practice of 
granting non-represented employees a compensation adjustment equal to that granted to 
most represented employees.1 In addition, having the same compensation adjustment for 
all employees helps maintain current pay differentials between non-represented managers 
and the represented employees they supervise. 

1 Adopting different compensation adjustments for represented and non-represented employees would be 
inconsistent with the county’s practice of maintaining pay equity between represented and non-represented 
employees and would greatly complicate the payroll process, as additional pay range and step schedules 
would need to be developed for each group. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 367



The proposed adjustments are built into the Executive’s proposed biennial budget for 
2017.2 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Approval of annual wage and salary schedules is required by section 3.12.130 of the King 
County Code.3 Most county job classifications are assigned pay ranges on the schedules 
that would be approved by Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494.4 

ANALYSIS 

The following schedules would be adopted by the proposed ordinance: 
 

1. 10-Step Hourly Squared Schedule (Attachment 1-A): This schedule applies to 
employees who are covered by the federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).  
These employees are eligible for overtime pay. 

 
2. 10-Step Annual/FLSA Exempt Squared Schedule (Attachment 1-B): This 

schedule applies to employees who are FLSA-exempt (i.e., they are not entitled to 
overtime pay). 

 
3. Standardized Hourly Schedule (Attachment 1-C): This schedule applies to 

employees who are still being paid on the “old” County schedule and are covered by 
the FLSA. 

 
4. Standardized Annual/FLSA Exempt Schedule (Attachment 1-D): This schedule 

applies to salaried employees who are still being paid on the “old” County schedule.   
 
The amounts in each schedule are 2.25 percent higher than in the corresponding schedule 
for 2016. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
According to the Executive’s Fiscal Note (Attachment 4), the proposed changes will add 
about $5.4 million to the County’s annual compensation costs in 2017. About 46 percent of 

2 Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494 does not include a wage and salary increase for 2018 or compensation 
schedules for 2018. That is because the Coalition MOA provides that the increase for 2018 will be either 1.75 
percent or, for employees whose unions are able to reach at least a tentative agreement with the County on 
a Master Labor Agreement no later than January 1, 2018, 2.75 percent. An increase of 2.75 percent for 2018 
is assumed in the Executive’s proposed budget. If no agreement is reached, the affected budgets will be 
adjusted downward for 2018, according to executive staff. 
3 Section 3.12.130 provides: “Salary ordinance. The executive shall prepare and submit a recommended 
salary ordinance to the council, which shall adopt a salary ordinance.  The salary ordinance shall establish a 
standardized salary schedule for all classifications, excluding classifications for temporary employees other 
than provisional employees and probationary employees, part-time employees, administrative interns, 
elected officials and employees of the council.” 
4 Some bargaining units—namely, those that are interest-arbitration eligible—have remained on separate, 
negotiated ranges and are not affected by this ordinance.  Overall, slightly more than one third of all full-time 
county employees are eligible for interest arbitration. 

Page 2 of 3 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 368



that amount will be paid from the General Fund. This impact reflects only the 
compensation increase for non-represented employees (and excludes elected officials and 
a small number of county employees whose compensation is set by state law). The fiscal 
impact of the increase in compensation for represented employees who are covered by the 
tentative Coalition MOA will described in the fiscal note on the ordinance that would 
approve that MOA. 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
Amendment 1 (Att. 2) would make technical corrections and clarifications in the proposed 
ordinance. 
 

Page 3 of 3 

King County Council November 7, 2016 369



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 3, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0495.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE setting the fees and costs to be paid by a 1 

utility company applying for a franchise or using the right-2 

of-way of county roads under a franchise; amending 3 

Ordinance 17515, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 4 

4A.675.020, Ordinance 17515, Section 8, as amended, and 5 

K.C.C. 4A.675.030, Ordinance 1710, Section 2, as 6 

amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.020, Ordinance 1710, Section 3, 7 

and K.C.C. 6.27.030, Ordinance 10171, Section 1, as 8 

amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.054, Ordinance 1710, Section 6, 9 

as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.060 and Ordinance 1711, 10 

Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.040 and adding 11 

new sections to K.C.C. chapter 6.27. 12 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 13 

 SECTION 1.  Findings: 14 

 A.  RCW 36.75.020 grants King County broad authority to establish and regulate 15 

the use of county roads. 16 

 B.  RCW 36.55.010 authorizes King County "to grant franchises . . . to use the 17 

right-of-way of county roads . . . for the construction and maintenance of waterworks, gas 18 

pipes, telephone, telegraph, and electric light lines, sewers and any other such facilities." 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 370



Ordinance  

 
 
 C.  RCW 80.32.010 authorizes the legislative authority of King County to grant 20 

authority and prescribe the terms and conditions for the construction, maintenance and 21 

operation of electrical lines for the transmission of electrical power upon, over, along or 22 

across the county streets and roads. 23 

 D.  King County grants franchises to public and private utility companies that 24 

authorize the utility companies to use the right-of-way of county roads to provide utility 25 

service within King County and elsewhere.  Franchises grant a valuable property right to 26 

utility companies to use the right-of-way, which allows the utility companies to profit and 27 

benefit from the use of the right-of-way in a manner not generally available to the public. 28 

 E.  Utility companies must apply for a franchise to use the right-of-way under 29 

K.C.C. chapter 6.27.  Franchises are memorialized in a franchise agreement that is 30 

negotiated by the parties, and approved by the King County council.  King County 31 

currently recovers from utility companies some but not all of the costs of reviewing and 32 

processing an application for a franchise. 33 

 F.  In exchange for the valuable property right to use the right-of-way, King 34 

County has authority to require utility companies to provide reasonable consideration. 35 

 G.  RCW 70.315.040 authorizes the county to contract with water purveyors for 36 

the provision of fire suppression water facilities and services. 37 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 17515, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.020 38 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 39 

 A.  The franchise application fee for a party requesting a new franchise, amended 40 

franchise, renewal, extension of an existing franchise or transfer under K.C.C. 6.27.054 is 41 

((two)) ten thousand ((five hundred)) dollars. 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 371



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  The advertising fee under K.C.C. 6.27.054 is the full advertising costs 43 

associated with the application. 44 

 C.  The real estate services section of the facilities management division may 45 

assess a surcharge to recover the actual costs and ((all)) expenses as specified in K.C.C. 46 

6.27.054.B. 47 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 17515, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.030 48 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 49 

 A.  The right-of-way construction permit application fee for a party requesting a 50 

permit under K.C.C. chapter 14.44, is two hundred dollars, ((as specified in K.C.C. 51 

14.44.040.A)) except that the fee is five hundred dollars when the utility requesting the 52 

permit has not been granted a franchise or has been previously granted a franchise but the 53 

term of the franchise as set forth in the franchise has expired. 54 

 B.  The real estate services section of the facilities management division may 55 

assess a surcharge to recover the actual costs and ((all)) expenses as specified in K.C.C. 56 

14.44.040.B. 57 

 ((C.  The total of the permit application fee under subsection A. of this section 58 

and the surcharge assessed under Subsection B. of this section shall not exceed two 59 

thousand dollars.)) 60 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 1710, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.020 are 61 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 62 

 Persons or private or municipal corporations are required, in accordance with 63 

RCW 36.55.010, to obtain and maintain in good standing a right-of-way franchise 64 

approved by the King County council in order to use the right-of-way of county roads for 65 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 372



Ordinance  

 
 
the construction and maintenance of waterworks, gas pipes, telephone, telegraph and 66 

electric lines, sewers, cable TV and petroleum products and any other such public and 67 

private utilities.  This requirement may be waived for the purpose of issuing 68 

((emergency)) right-of-way construction permits as provided in K.C.C. 14.44.055. 69 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 1710, Section 3, and K.C.C. 6.27.030 are each hereby 70 

amended to read as follows: 71 

 Applications for right-of-way franchises shall be submitted, in a form approved 72 

by the ((property and purchasing)) facilities management division, to the clerk of the 73 

King County council. 74 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinance 10171, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.054 are 75 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 76 

 A.  A party requesting a new franchise, amended franchise, renewal, extension of 77 

an existing franchise or transfer shall pay a franchise application fee as set forth in K.C.C. 78 

4A.675.020.  The fee is for ((reimbursement to the real estate services section of the 79 

facilities management division for)) the administrative costs and expenses incurred by the 80 

county in the reviewing and processing of the franchise application.  The franchise 81 

application fee is payable at the time the application is filed with the clerk of the council.  82 

In addition, each applicant shall pay an advertising fee as set forth in K.C.C. 83 

4A.675.020.B.  Franchise application and advertising fees are not refundable, even if the 84 

application is disapproved. 85 

 B.  The real estate services section may require applicants to reimburse the ((real 86 

estate services section)) county for the actual costs and ((all)) expenses incurred by the 87 

((real estate services section as a result of)) county in the reviewing and processing of an 88 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 373



Ordinance  

 
 
application for the issuance, renewal, amendment, extension or transfer of a franchise, to 89 

the extent the costs exceed the costs and expenses of reviewing and processing the 90 

application recovered by the application fee.  The payment of actual cost balances shall 91 

be made at the time of the franchise issuance. 92 

 C.  If a franchise is granted to an applicant, the real estate services section may 93 

require the grantee of the franchise to reimburse the county for the actual costs and 94 

expenses incurred by the county in administering a grantee's activities under the 95 

franchise, including but not limited to costs and expenses incurred for inspections, 96 

relocations, abatements and enforcement. 97 

 D.  The facilities management division is authorized to establish rules or policies 98 

that define actual costs and expenses that may be charged to an applicant for a franchise 99 

or to a grantee of a franchise under subsections B. and C. of this section.  Costs and 100 

expenses related to reviewing and processing applications for franchises and 101 

administering franchises may include, but are not limited to: 102 

   1.  Personnel costs, including payroll and management; 103 

   2.  Overhead costs, including office rent, maintenance and utilities; 104 

   3.  Program planning and development; 105 

   4.  Data processing and computer costs; 106 

   5.  Legal and accounting services; and 107 

   6.  Consulting services such as engineering and environmental assessment. 108 

 E.  The facilities management division is authorized to establish rules or policies 109 

to assess annual administration charges to grantees of franchises under subsection C to 110 

reasonably cover the costs and expenses of the county in administering franchises.  If the 111 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 374



Ordinance  

 
 
facilities management division institutes such an administration charge, the real estate 112 

services section may require applicants to reimburse the county for the actual costs and 113 

expenses incurred by the county in administering a franchise, to the extent the costs 114 

exceed the costs and expenses recovered by the administration charge. 115 

 F.  All ((franchise application)) payments received under this section shall be 116 

credited to the county current expense fund. 117 

 ((D.)) G.  This section shall not apply to franchise applications, renewal, 118 

amendments or transfers ((made)) or franchise administration under the county's cable 119 

television regulations, K.C.C. chapter 6.27A. 120 

 SECTION 7.  Ordinance 1710, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.060 are 121 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 122 

 A.  All franchises granted for county rights-of-way shall be consistent with the 123 

following criteria: 124 

   1.  A previously approved comprehensive plan for the applicant; if required to 125 

have such a plan by K.C.C. 13.24.010; 126 

   2.  The county ((c))Comprehensive ((p))Plan; 127 

   3.  The standards of good practice regarding accommodation of utilities on 128 

county road right-of-way as stated in the King County Road Standards, ((pursuant to 129 

Washington Administrative Code,)) under ((C))chapter 136-40 WAC; and 130 

   4.  The franchise shall include provisions requiring the grantee of a franchise to 131 

carry out a program acceptable to the county for the grantee to remove or relocate at its 132 

cost facilities in the right-of-way that pose a hazard to the general public. 133 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 375



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  In addition, all franchises granted for water and sewer utilities shall be 134 

consistent with the following criteria: 135 

   1.  Health and sanitation regulations of the Seattle-King County health 136 

department and the state; 137 

   2.  County standards for water mains and fire hydrants((,)) and other fire 138 

suppression water facilities and services as defined in chapter 70.315 RCW.  Consistent 139 

with the authority in chapter 70.315 RCW, except when the county is acting as a 140 

customer or as a purveyor, the grantee of a franchise shall, at no expense to the county, 141 

provide fire suppression water facilities and services and shall indemnify, defend and and 142 

hold harmless the county against damages arising from fire suppression activities during 143 

fire events; 144 

   3.  The grantee of the franchise shall, at no expense to the county, repair all 145 

existing facilities that it owns within county road rights-of-way, including all appurtenant 146 

facilities and service lines connecting its system to users, if ((such)) the repair is required 147 

by the county for any reasonable purpose; 148 

   4.  The grantee of the franchise shall, at no expense to the county, adjust, remove 149 

or relocate existing facilities with county road rights-of-way, including all appurtenant 150 

facilities and service lines connecting its system to users, if the county determines 151 

((such)) the adjustment, removal or relocation is reasonably necessary to allow for an 152 

improvement or alteration planned by the county in ((such)) the road right-of-way.  The 153 

county shall give the grantee written notice of ((such)) the requirement as soon as 154 

practicable, at the beginning of the ((pre-design)) predesign stage for projects that are part 155 

of the county's capital improvement program, including such available information as is 156 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 376



Ordinance  

 
 
reasonably necessary for the grantee to plan for ((such)) the adjustment, removal or 157 

relocation; 158 

   5.  For projects that are a part of the county's capital improvement program, in 159 

addition to any other notice given to the grantee of the franchise, the county shall provide 160 

a vertical and horizontal profile of the roadway and drainage facilities within it, both 161 

existing and as proposed by the county, and the proposed construction schedule; 162 

notwithstanding any permit conditions that may later be applied to the county project, this 163 

initial design information shall be given at least ((180)) one hundred eighty days before 164 

construction is scheduled  to  begin, except in cases of urgent construction or  165 

emergencies.  The grantee shall respond to this notice, and to any later notices of revised 166 

designs based on permit conditions, within no more than ((30)) thirty days by providing 167 

to the county the best available information as to the location of all of the grantee's 168 

facilities, including all appurtenant facilities and service lines connecting its system to 169 

users and all facilities that it has abandoned, within the area proposed for the public 170 

works project.  The county shall offer the grantee the opportunity to participate in the 171 

preparation of bid documents for the selection of a contractor to perform the public works 172 

project as well as all required adjustments, removals or relocations of the grantee's 173 

facilities.  ((Such)) The bid documents shall provide for an appropriate cost allocation 174 

between the parties.  The county shall have sole authority to choose the contractor to 175 

perform ((such)) the work.  The grantee and the county may negotiate an agreement for 176 

the grantee to pay the county for its allocation of costs, but neither party shall be bound to 177 

enter into such an agreement.  Under such an agreement, in addition to the grantee's 178 

allocation of contractor costs, the grantee shall reimburse the county for costs, such as for 179 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 377



Ordinance  

 
 
inspections or soils testing, related to the grantee's work and reasonably incurred by the 180 

county in the administration of ((such)) the joint construction contracts.  ((Such)) The 181 

costs shall be calculated as the direct salary cost of the time of county professional and 182 

technical personnel spent productively engaged in ((such)) the work, plus overhead costs 183 

at the standard rate charged by the county on other similar projects, including joint 184 

projects with other county agencies((.)); and 185 

   6.  The grantee of the franchise shall, at no expense to the county, assume the 186 

following obligations with respect to facilities connected to its system that are within 187 

county road rights-of-way and ((which)) that it does not own, including appurtenant 188 

facilities and service lines connecting its system to users: 189 

     a.  The grantee shall apply for, upon request and on behalf of the owner of the 190 

facilities, a county right-of-way construction permit for any repairs required for ((such)) 191 

the facilities((; provided such)), but only if the owner agrees to reimburse the grantee for 192 

all costs incurred by the grantee and any other reasonable conditions the grantee requires 193 

as a precondition to applying for the permit.  All work to be performed in the county 194 

right-of-way shall comply with all conditions of the county permit and all applicable 195 

county requirements.  The grantee may at its option perform any part of the repair with its 196 

own forces or require the owner to employ a contractor for that purpose, ((provided 197 

such)) but only if the contractor is approved by the county; 198 

     b.  In the event that the county determines emergency repair of ((such)) the 199 

facilities is necessary to halt or prevent significant damage to county road rights-of-way 200 

or significant threats to the health, safety or welfare of parties other than the owner or the 201 

occupants of the building served by ((such)) the facilities, the grantee shall take prompt 202 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 378



Ordinance  

 
 
remedial action to correct the emergency to the county's approval, which the county shall 203 

not unreasonably withhold; and 204 

     c.  When the county or its contractor provides notice to the grantee, ((pursuant 205 

to)) in accordance with chapter 19.122 RCW, of its intent to excavate with county road 206 

rights-of-way, the grantee shall provide to the county or its contractor the best 207 

information available from the grantee's records or, where reasonable, from the use of 208 

locating equipment as to the location of ((such)) the facilities, including surface markings 209 

where these would reasonably be of use in the excavation.  If the grantee fails to make 210 

good faith efforts to provide the ((above)) information required in this subsection B.6.c. 211 

within the deadlines provided by chapter 19.122 RCW, the grantee shall hold the county 212 

harmless for all reasonable costs that result from damage to ((such)) the facilities if 213 

((such)) the damage occurs as a result of the failure to provide ((such)) the information.  214 

Nothing in this subsection is intended or shall be construed to create any rights in any 215 

third party or to form the basis for any obligation or liability on the part of the county or 216 

the grantee toward any third party, nor is anything in this subsection intended or to be 217 

construed to alter the rights and responsibilities of the parties under chapter 19.122 RCW, 218 

as amended. 219 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 8.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 6.27 a 220 

new section, to read as follows: 221 

 If any person or entity installs or maintains utility facilities in the right-of-way of 222 

county roads without the required franchise, or has not complied with the terms of an 223 

existing franchise, the executive is authorized to initiate legal proceedings to seek all 224 

legal and equitable remedies to effectuate this chapter, including, but not limited to: 225 

10 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 379



Ordinance  

 
 
 A.  Ejecting a person or entity occupying the right-of-way of county roads but 226 

refusing to enter into a franchise with King County or to pay an application fee or other 227 

cost or expense related to use of the right-of-way; 228 

 B.  Enforcing the terms and conditions of a franchise; or 229 

 C.  Revoking a franchise. 230 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 9.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 6.27 a 231 

new section, to read as follows: 232 

 In addition to judicial enforcement under section 8 of this ordinance, the manager 233 

of the real estate services section and the director of the road services division are 234 

authorized to enforce this chapter and any rules or regulations adopted under this chapter 235 

in accordance with the enforcement and penalty provisions of K.C.C. Title 23.  A citation 236 

under K.C.C. 23.32.010.a.1.a. for violation of this chapter and any rules or regulations 237 

adopted under this chapter shall be in the amount of two hundred fifty to one thousand 238 

dollars, depending on the amount of right-of-way being occupied by the person 239 

responsible for code compliance.  A violation of a notice and order under K.C.C. 240 

23.32.010.a.1.b. for violation of this chapter and any rules or regulations adopted under 241 

this chapter shall be two hundred fifty to one thousand dollars, depending on the amount 242 

of right-of-way being occupied by the person responsible for code compliance. 243 

 SECTION 10.  Ordinance 1711, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.040 are 244 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 245 

 A.  Each application for a right-of-way construction permit requires a fee payable 246 

to the ((real estate services section)) county as set forth in K.C.C. 4A.675.030 for the 247 

administrative costs and expenses of reviewing and processing the application. 248 

11 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 380



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  The real estate services section shall have the authority to require applicants to 249 

reimburse the ((real estate services section)) county for the ((actual)) costs and all 250 

expenses incurred by the ((real estate services section)) county as a result of issuance, 251 

renewal or amendment of a right-of-way construction permit, to the extent the costs and 252 

expenses exceed the costs of reviewing and processing the application recovered by the 253 

application fee.  The payment of actual costs shall be made at the time of permit issuance. 254 

 255 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

12 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 381



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0497.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE relating to multiple internal service fund 1 

and certain capital funds; and amending Ordinance 12076, 2 

Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.150, 3 

Ordinance 16976, Section 3, as amended, and K.C.C. 4 

4A.200.160, Ordinance 14306, Section 1, as amended, and 5 

K.C.C. 4A.200.250, Ordinance 14005, Section 7, as 6 

amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.260, Ordinance 11591, 7 

Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.290, Ordinance 8 

17752, Section 13, and K.C.C. 4A.200.303, Ordinance 9 

14008, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.370, 10 

Ordinance 17752, Section 15, and K.C.C. 4A.200.372, 11 

Ordinance 12076, Section 29, as amended, and K.C.C. 12 

4A.200.410, Ordinance 3581, Section 3, as amended, and 13 

K.C.C. 4A.200.630 and Ordinance 12076, Section 15, as 14 

amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.670. 15 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 16 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance 12076, Section 18, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.150 17 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 18 

 A.  There is hereby created the building repair and replacement fund. 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 382



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection E. of this section, ((T))the fund 20 

shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is a capital projects fund. 21 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 22 

the fund. 23 

 D.  The fund shall provide for the receipt of revenues and disbursement of 24 

expenditures used to accommodate major building functions and programmatic 25 

infrastructure investment projects in existing county-owned buildings or for building 26 

replacement. 27 

 E.  Any subfund of the fund created to hold and manage bond proceeds shall be 28 

treated as a first tier fund. 29 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 16976, Section 3, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.160 30 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 31 

 A.  There is hereby created the business resource center fund 32 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is an internal service fund. 33 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 34 

the fund. 35 

 D.  All receipts from rates charged for the fund's services to county agencies shall 36 

be deposited in the fund. 37 

 E.  The fund shall be used to provide services in support of financial and budget 38 

enterprise software. 39 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 14306, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.250 40 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 383



Ordinance  

 
 
 A.  There is hereby created the department of information technology capital 42 

fund. 43 

 B.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection E. of this section, ((T))the fund 44 

shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is a capital projects fund. 45 

 C.  The director of the department of information technology shall be the manager 46 

of the fund. 47 

 D.  All revenues identified in the budget ordinance shall be deposited in the fund.   48 

 E.  Any subfund of the fund created to hold and manage bond proceeds shall be 49 

treated as a first tier fund.  50 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 14005, Section 7, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.260 51 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 52 

 A.  There is hereby created the department of information technology operating 53 

fund. 54 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((first)) second tier fund. 55 

 C.  The director of the department of information technology shall be the manager 56 

of the fund. 57 

 D.  All receipts from rates charged for the fund's services to county agencies shall 58 

be deposited in the fund. 59 

 E.  The fund shall provide for the receipt of revenues and disbursement of 60 

expenditures for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures pertaining to the 61 

department of information technology. 62 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 11591, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.290 63 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 64 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 384



Ordinance  

 
 
 A.  There is hereby created the facilities management fund. 65 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is an internal service fund. 66 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 67 

the fund. 68 

 D.  All receipts from rates charged for the fund's services to county agencies shall 69 

be deposited in the fund. 70 

 E.  The fund shall support building operations and maintenance with respect to 71 

county facilities. 72 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinance 17752, Section 13, and K.C.C. 4A.200.303 are each 73 

hereby amended to read as follows: 74 

 A.  There is hereby created the financial management services fund. 75 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is an internal services fund. 76 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 77 

the fund. 78 

 D.  All receipts from rates charged for the fund's services to county agencies shall 79 

be deposited in the fund. 80 

 SECTION 7.  Ordinance 14008, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.370 81 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 82 

 A.  There is hereby created the information technology services capital fund. 83 

 B.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection F. of this section, ((T))the fund 84 

shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is a capital projects fund. 85 

 C.  The director of the department of information technology shall be the manager 86 

of the fund. 87 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 385



Ordinance  

 
 
 D.  All revenues identified in the budget ordinance to be verified in the annual 88 

CIP revenue verification process shall be deposited in the fund. 89 

 E.  The fund shall account for countywide assets, liabilities, revenues and 90 

expenditures of information technology capital projects managed by the department of 91 

information technology. 92 

 F.  Any subfund of the fund created to hold and manage bond proceeds shall be 93 

treated as a first tier fund. 94 

 SECTION 8.  Ordinance 17752, Section 15, and K.C.C. 4A.200.372 are each 95 

hereby amended to read as follows: 96 

 A.  There is hereby created the information technology strategy and performance 97 

operating fund. 98 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is an internal service fund. 99 

 C.  The director of the department of information technology shall be the fund 100 

manager. 101 

 D.  The purpose of the information technology strategy and performance 102 

operating fund is to account for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures 103 

pertaining to the information technology strategy and performance operations including 104 

the chief information officer, the strategic planning office, performance evaluation, 105 

information technology governance and information technology security and privacy. 106 

 E.  All receipts from rates charged for the fund's services to county agencies shall 107 

be deposited in the fund. 108 

 SECTION 9.  Ordinance 12076, Section 29, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.410 109 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 110 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 386



Ordinance  

 
 
 A.  There is hereby created the major maintenance reserve fund. 111 

 B.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection H. of this section, ((T))the fund 112 

shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is a capital projects fund. 113 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 114 

the fund. 115 

 D.  The purpose of the fund is to provide for the periodic replacement or repair of 116 

major building systems and components at King County facilities maintained by the 117 

facilities management division so that each building will realize its full useful life.  118 

Expenditures from the fund shall only be used for capital maintenance projects and shall 119 

not be used to finance programmatic infrastructure investments. 120 

 E.  Programmatic infrastructure investments shall be financed from other 121 

appropriate funding sources but may be combined with work financed by the fund.   122 

 F.  Historic preservation and restoration projects shall be eligible for financing 123 

from the fund, but the maintenance of major building systems and components necessary 124 

for a building to realize its full useful life should be prioritized ahead of historic 125 

preservation and restoration projects, except where combining projects eligible for major 126 

maintenance reserve funds would achieve a cost savings.  Any historic preservation or 127 

restoration project analysis should consider the scheduling impact to other major 128 

maintenance projects and potential revenue sources other than the major maintenance 129 

reserve fund. 130 

 G.  Major maintenance program costs are financed by the fund.  The calculation 131 

of the amount necessary to finance the fund is based on the building-specific per-square-132 

foot charge corresponding to the mix of building systems and components and life cycle 133 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 387



Ordinance  

 
 
costs assumptions as determined by the maintenance financial model supported by the 134 

facilities management division.  The financial model shall include tenant area finishes to 135 

include carpet and paint.  The fund shall be fully financed based on the financial model 136 

and funding requirements shall be fulfilled by: 137 

   1.  Transfers that are contributions from the general fund; 138 

   2.  Transfers that are contributions from the non-general fund agencies: 139 

     a.  when housed in buildings owned by the county or for which the county is 140 

responsible for debt service costs; and 141 

     b.  for a proportional allocation of major maintenance reserve fund costs 142 

attributable to space occupied by general fund agencies included in the overhead cost 143 

allocation outlined in K.C.C. ((4.04.045)) 4A.100.050; and 144 

   3.  Contributions from the operating budgets of general fund agencies that 145 

receive partial reimbursement from other jurisdictions((; and 146 

   4.  Other revenue sources, including investment earnings)). 147 

 H.  Any subfund of the fund created to hold and manage bond proceeds shall be 148 

treated as a first tier fund. 149 

 SECTION 10.  Ordinance 3581, Section 3, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.200.630 150 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 151 

 A.  There is hereby created the risk management fund. 152 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is an internal service fund. 153 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 154 

the fund. 155 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 388



Ordinance  

 
 
 D.  All receipts from rates charged for the fund's services to county agencies shall 156 

be deposited in the fund. 157 

 E.  Uses of the fund shall be limited to: 158 

   1.  Payment of claims and related costs; 159 

   2.  Payment of negotiated settlements and related costs; 160 

   3.  Payment of judgments and related costs; 161 

   4.  Payment of costs incurred in litigation or in anticipation thereof, including 162 

but not limited to attorney's fees and the costs of discovery and witnesses; 163 

   5.  Payment of insurance premiums and related costs; 164 

   6.  Payment of program administration costs. 165 

 SECTION 11.  Ordinance 12076, Section 15, as amended, and K.C.C. 166 

4A.200.670 are each hereby amended to read as follows: 167 

 A.  There is hereby established the self insurance reserve fund, which shall be 168 

known as the safety and worker's compensation fund. 169 

 B.  The fund shall be a ((first)) second tier fund.  It is an internal service fund. 170 

 C.  The director of the department of executive services shall be the manager of 171 

the fund. 172 

 D.  All receipts from rates charged for the fund's services to county agencies shall 173 

be deposited in the fund. 174 

 E.1.  The fund shall be used for the purposes in chapter 51.15 RCW. 175 

   2.  The fund is intended to collect and disburse moneys to carry out the functions 176 

of the safety and worker's compensation program, and moneys shall not be attached for 177 

other purposes, unless that action is expressly approved by the council. 178 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 389



Ordinance  

 
 
   3.  Industrial insurance rates shall be established such that sufficient revenues 179 

shall accrue to the fund to pay for the cost of the program functions and to maintain an 180 

excess of current and other assets over liabilities, excluding estimated claims settlements.  181 

The rates shall take into consideration, but need not be limited to the following factors:  182 

past losses for each industrial insurance classification, the number of hours worked in 183 

each classification, and estimated claims settlements for injury claims. 184 

 185 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 390



Pg. 1 of 1

ATTACHMENT A:  2017 HARBORVIEW MEDICAL CENTER ANNUAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

Fund Title Project Project Name 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Grand Total

3961 - Harborview Building Repair and Replacement Fund

1039383 1WH Hand Gym/Aftercare (1,554)           (1,554)          

1039384 Airlock 8th Ave Lobby (18,515)         (18,515)        

1039462 Steam & Water 400,000        400,000       

1039464 HVAC Major Maintenance 100,000        100,000       

1040770 Office Backfill 5EH (678,004)       (678,004)      

1040783 KC central rate allocation 36,370          36,370         

1040816 Capital Project Oversight 6,557            6,557           

1040881 1EH Toilet Rms Renov / ADA (33,470)         (33,470)        

1040968 Office Backfill 4EH (152,091)       (152,091)      

1040968 Hand Gym/After Care (1,560)           (1,560)          

1040989 Projects under $90,000 650,000        650,000       

1040990 Fixed Equipment Purchases 330,000        330,000       

1046220 Clinic Exam Room Diagnostic Expansion 530,000        530,000       

1046221 West Hospital Upgrade (200,000)       (200,000)      

1046223 Sixplex demolition (14,147)         (14,147)        

1046241 Data Closets Upgrades 500,000        500,000       

1111452 Radiology Equipment (1,464)           (1,464)          

1117815 Hazardous Materials Abatement 50,000          50,000         

1117819 Diagnostic Equipment Installation 1,000,000     1,000,000    

1117823 Kitchen Disaster Preparedness (11,251)         (11,251)        

1117872 Paramdc Trng (31,868)         (31,868)        

1122163 8TH Ave Ill & Way (100,000)       (100,000)      

1122166 ED Entry & Renovations 1,150,000     1,150,000    

1124443 Pharmacy Clean room & Hazardous Drug contr 1,300,000     1,300,000    

1124444 Kitchen and Dishwasher Replacement 1,035,000     1,035,000    

1127436 CPU equipment replacement 700,000        700,000       

1127438 Clinic Lobby (280,000)       (280,000)      

1130212 Cooling Tower #5 EH 725,000        725,000       

1130213 Roof D7 CT 250,000        250,000       

1130214 Roof D8 WH 400,000        400,000       

1130215 Supply Fan 31 980,000        980,000       

1130216 Campus Fire Notification System 350,000        350,000       

1130217 Door upgrades 100,000        100,000       

1130218 Structural rooftop anchoring 100,000        100,000       

1130219 Office upgrade 800,000        800,000       

1130220 OR support space 150,000        150,000       

Grand Total 10,119,003   10,119,003  

King County Council November 7, 2016 391



Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

STAFF REPORT

Agenda Item: 24 Name: Patrick Hamacher

Proposed No.: 2016-0497 Date: October 25-27, 2016

SUBJECT

An ordinance that shifts eight county funds from Tier 1 to Tier 2 status, thereby allowing
any interest earned on fund balances to accrue to the County General Fund. This would
generate $3,000,000 in revenue for the General Fund during the biennium.

SUMMARY

This ordinance would change funds managed by the following agencies from a Tier 1
fund to a Tier 2 fund:

• KCIT – three different funds

• Facilities Management – two different funds

• Finance

• Risk Management

• Workers Compensation

BACKGROUND

Under County Code all county funds are either known as Tier 1 or Tier 2. A tier one fund
means that any fund balance in the fund is invested for its own benefit, meaning the
interest accrues back to the fund. Enterprise funds and bond funds almost always have
to be Tier 1 funds due to either accounting or tax statutes.

A Tier 2 fund is a fund whereby the interest earnings are not required to remain with the
fund. In the case of this ordinance, the Executive is proposing to convert 8 Tier 1 funds
to become Tier 2 funds. These funds (mentioned above) are governmental funds where
all county agencies pay in to receive a service. For example, charges to each fund for
Risk Management are used for Risk Management Activities, there is no requirement
that interest earned remain with the fund.

ANALYSIS

As part of the strategy to balance the County’s General Fund, the Executive has
proposed changing eight funds from Tier 1 to Tier 2 funds. The effect of this change

King County Council November 7, 2016 392



would generate approximately $3 million in interest earnings for the County General 
Fund for the 2017-2018 biennium using the current forecast.  
 
This change, if it sets precedent and continues, would be a permanent revenue source 
for the General Fund that will fluctuate over time based upon the interest rates paid by 
the investment pool and the balances maintained by the funds.  
 
Because the General Fund would be keeping interest earnings instead of the generating 
fund, the effect of this change would be slight increases over time in the internal service 
rates charged to other funds for these internal services.  
 
Council staff and Council Legal Counsel have completed our review and have not 
identified any issues with this change.  This policy choice is proposed by the Executive 
as part of the overall General Fund balancing.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0497 
2. Fiscal Note 

 
INVITED 
 

1. Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 393



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0499.1 Sponsors Upthegrove 

 
AN ORDINANCE that adopts the 2017 Annual Budget 1 

making appropriations for the capital improvements for the 2 

Harborview Medical Center for the fiscal year beginning 3 

January 1, 2017, and ending December 31, 2017. 4 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 5 

 SECTION 1.  The 2017 Annual Budget making appropriations for the capital 6 

improvements for the Harborview Medical Center is proposed and, subject to the 7 

provisions hereinafter set forth and the several amounts hereinafter specified or so much 8 

thereof as shall be sufficient to accomplish the purposes designated, appropriations are 9 

hereby authorized to be distributed for salaries, wages and other expenses of the 10 

Harborview Medical Center building repair and replacement fund, for capital 11 

improvements and for other specified purposes for 2017. 12 

 SECTION 2.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - The capital budget and 13 

program for 2017-2022 is incorporated as Attachment A to this ordinance.  The executive 14 

is hereby authorized to execute any utility easements, bill of sale or related documents 15 

necessary for the provision of utility services to the capital projects described in 16 

Attachment A to this ordinance, but only if the documents are reviewed and approved by 17 

the custodial agency, the real estate services division and the prosecuting attorney's 18 

office.  Consistent with the requirements of the Growth Management Act, Attachment A 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 394



Ordinance  

 
 
to this ordinance was reviewed and evaluated according to the King County 20 

Comprehensive Plan.  Any project slated for bond funding will be reimbursed by bond 21 

proceeds if the project incurs expenditures before the bonds are sold, and an intent to 22 

reimburse motion has been approved by the executive finance committee. 23 

 From the Harborview Medical Center capital improvement project funds there are 24 

hereby appropriated and authorized to be disbursed the following amounts for the specific 25 

projects identified in Attachment A to this ordinance: 26 

Fund Fund Name 2017 27 

3961 HARBORVIEW BUILDING REPAIR & REPLACEMENT FUND 10,119,003 28 

 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this ordinance or its application to any person 29 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 395



Ordinance  

 
 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance or the application of the 30 

provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 31 

 32 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: A. 2017 Harborview Medical Center Annual Capital Improvement Program 
 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 396



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 25 Name: Patrick Hamacher 

Proposed No.: 2016-0499 Date: October 25-27, 2016 

 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0499 would adopt the Harborview Medical Center Capital 
Improvement Program for 2017.   
 
SUMMARY 
 
Under the Management Agreement between King County and the University of 
Washington and King County, the County Council must approve the Capital 
Improvement Program for the hospital when it involves any changes to the physical 
plant or buildings themselves. For personal property acquisitions and other capital 
expenditures, only the Board of Trustees approves the budgets.  
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0499 includes 35 projects totaling $10.1 million. However, 
many of these projects are quite small. The four biggest appropriation requests total 
$4.8 million; the remaining 31 projects total a net appropriation of $5.3 million. Included 
in this amount is a number of disappropriations related to projects that are completed.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
All projects submitted to the County Council for approval have been presented to the 
Board of Trustees by the University of Washington and have been approved by the 
Board of Trustees. No county funds are associated with this request. All projects are 
paid for by Harborview Medical Center. As previously noted, there are four projects 
accounting for almost half of the appropriation request. These are briefly summarized 
below. All projects are listed in Attachment A to the ordinance.  
 

• Diagnostic Equipment Installation - $1,000,000: While Harborview would be 

purchasing the equipment itself, many pieces of diagnostic equipment also need 

changes to the physical structure in order to be installed or shielded. This 

appropriation would be used for those changes to the buildings associated with 

this installation.  

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 397



• ED Department Door/Entry - $1,150,000: This appropriation would allow for 

replacement to the entry doors in the Emergency Department. 

 

• Pharmacy Clean Room - $1,300,000: This project would install a clean room in 

the pharmacy allowing for segregation of hazardous drug handling without risk to 

the rest of pharmacy operations.  

 

• Kitchen & Dishwasher Replacement - $1,035,000: This project would replace 

commercial kitchen and dishwashing equipment.  

 
Staff have not identified any issues with this request.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0499 and its attachment 
2. Fiscal Note 
3. Transmittal Letter and its attachment 

 
INVITED 
 

1. Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 
2. Sid Bender, CIP Program Supervisor, Performance, Strategy and Budget 

 

King County Council November 7, 2016 398



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0521.2 Sponsors Balducci, Upthegrove, Lambert and 

Dembowski 
 

AN ORDINANCE setting the reasonable compensation, 1 

fees and costs to be paid by a utility company applying for 2 

a franchise or using the right-of-way of county roads under 3 

a franchise, and authorizing a utility company to make a 4 

forbearance payment to King County; amending Ordinance 5 

17515, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.020, 6 

Ordinance 17515, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 7 

4A.675.030, Ordinance 1710, Section 2, as amended, and 8 

K.C.C. 6.27.020, Ordinance 1710, Section 3, and K.C.C. 9 

6.27.030, Ordinance 10171, Section 1, as amended, and 10 

K.C.C. 6.27.054, Ordinance 1710, Section 6, as amended, 11 

and K.C.C. 6.27.060, Ordinance 1711, Section 4, as 12 

amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.040 and Ordinance 11790, 13 

Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.055 and adding 14 

new sections to K.C.C. chapter 6.27. 15 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 16 

 SECTION 1.  Findings: 17 

 A.  RCW 36.75.020 grants King County broad authority to establish and regulate 18 

the use of county roads. 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 399



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  RCW 36.55.010 authorizes King County "to grant franchises . . . to use the 20 

right-of-way of county roads . . . for the construction and maintenance of waterworks, gas 21 

pipes, telephone, telegraph, and electric light lines, sewers and any other such facilities." 22 

 C.  RCW 80.32.010 authorizes the legislative authority of King County to grant 23 

authority and prescribe the terms and conditions for the construction, maintenance and 24 

operation of electrical lines for the transmission of electrical power upon, over, along or 25 

across the county streets and roads. 26 

 D.  King County grants franchises to public and private utility companies that 27 

authorize the utility companies to use the right-of-way of county roads to provide utility 28 

service within King County and elsewhere.  Franchises grant a valuable property right to 29 

utility companies to use the right-of-way, which allows the utility companies to profit and 30 

benefit from the use of the right-of-way in a manner not generally available to the public. 31 

 E.  Utility companies must apply for a franchise to use the right-of-way under 32 

K.C.C. chapter 6.27.  Franchises are memorialized in a franchise agreement that is 33 

negotiated by the parties and approved by the King County council.  King County 34 

currently recovers from utility companies some but not all of the cost of reviewing and 35 

processing the application for a franchise and in some cases has reserved the right in 36 

franchise agreements to be compensated for the use of the right-of-way that is authorized 37 

by a franchise. 38 

 F.  In exchange for the valuable property right to use the right-of-way, King 39 

County has authority to require utility companies to provide reasonable compensation. 40 

 G.  Under these authorities and in light of the valuable property right granted by a 41 

franchise, it is in the best interests of the public to require a utility to provide reasonable 42 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 400



Ordinance  

 
 
compensation in return for its use of the right-of-way of county roads.  In pursuing the 43 

best interests of the public, King County intends to evaluate the use of the right-of-way 44 

by utilities not subject to the requirement for reasonable compensation in this ordinance, 45 

and as appropriate to extend the requirement for reasonable compensation to such 46 

utilities. 47 

 H.  RCW 35.58.050 authorizes King County to perform water supply and water 48 

pollution abatement and RCW 58.08.010 authorizes the County to establish a public 49 

utility district to form an electric utility, which authorities provide the opportunity for 50 

King County to establish its own municipal utilities for the benefit of the public. 51 

 I.  To assure access to the right-of-way of county roads, to increase long term 52 

certainty as to the compensation due for use of the right-of-way, and to ease the 53 

administrative burden of determining such compensation, some utility companies may 54 

desire to enter into an agreement to pay a negotiated amount in exchange for a 55 

commitment from King County to grant a franchise and to forbear from competing with 56 

the utility company or from requiring the utility company to pay reasonable 57 

compensation for use of the right-of-way.  Subject to approval by the King County 58 

council, such an agreement would be in the best interests of the public. 59 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 17515, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.020 60 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 61 

 A.  The franchise application fee for a party requesting a new franchise, an 62 

amended franchise, a renewal((,)) or extension of an existing franchise or a transfer of its 63 

franchise rights under K.C.C. 6.27.054 is ((two)) ten thousand ((five hundred)) dollars. 64 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 401



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  The advertising fee under K.C.C. 6.27.054 is the full advertising costs 65 

associated with the application. 66 

 C.  The real estate services section of the facilities management division may 67 

assess a surcharge to recover the actual costs ((and all expenses)) as specified in K.C.C. 68 

6.27.054.B. 69 

 SECTION 3.  Ordinance 17515, Section 8, as amended, and K.C.C. 4A.675.030 70 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 71 

 A.  The right-of-way construction permit application fee for a party requesting a 72 

permit under K.C.C. chapter 14.44, is two hundred dollars, as specified in K.C.C. 73 

14.44.040.A. 74 

 B.  The real estate services section of the facilities management division may 75 

assess a surcharge to recover the actual costs ((and all expenses)) as specified in K.C.C. 76 

14.44.040.B. 77 

 ((C.  The total of the permit application fee under subsection A. of this section 78 

and the surcharge assessed under Subsection B. of this section shall not exceed two 79 

thousand dollars.)) 80 

 SECTION 4.  Ordinance 1710, Section 2, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.020 are 81 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 82 

 ((Persons or private or municipal corporations are required, in accordance with 83 

RCW 36.55.010, to obtain a right-of-way)) In accordance with RCW 36.55.010, the 84 

county requires persons or private or municipal corporations to obtain a franchise 85 

approved by the King County council in order to use the right-of-way of county roads for 86 

the construction and maintenance of waterworks, gas pipes, telephone, telegraph and 87 

4 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 402



Ordinance  

 
 
electric lines, sewers, cable TV and petroleum products and any other such public and 88 

private utilities.  This requirement may be waived for the purpose of issuing 89 

((emergency)) right-of-way construction permits as provided in K.C.C. 14.44.055. 90 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinance 1710, Section 3, and K.C.C. 6.27.030 are each hereby 91 

amended to read as follows: 92 

 Applications for ((right-of-way)) franchises shall be submitted, in a form 93 

approved by the ((property and purchasing)) facilities management division, to the clerk 94 

of the King County council. 95 

 SECTION 6.  Ordinance 10171, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.054 are 96 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 97 

 A.  A party requesting a new franchise, an amended franchise, a renewal((,)) or 98 

extension of an existing franchise or a transfer of its franchise rights shall pay a franchise 99 

application fee as set forth in K.C.C. 4A.675.020.  The fee is for ((reimbursement to the 100 

real estate services section of the facilities management division for)) the administrative 101 

costs ((and expenses)) incurred by the county in the reviewing and processing of the 102 

franchise application.  The franchise application fee is payable at the time the application 103 

is filed with the clerk of the council.  In addition, each applicant shall pay an advertising 104 

fee as set forth in K.C.C. 4A.675.020.B.  Franchise application and advertising fees are 105 

not refundable, even if the application is disapproved. 106 

 B.  The real estate services section may require applicants to reimburse the ((real 107 

estate services section)) county for the actual costs ((and all expenses)) incurred by the 108 

((real estate services section as a result of)) county in the reviewing and processing of an 109 

application for the issuance, renewal or extension, amendment((, extension)) or transfer 110 

5 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 403



Ordinance  

 
 
of ((a)) franchise rights, to the extent the costs exceed the costs of reviewing and 111 

processing the application recovered by the application fee.  The payment of actual cost 112 

balances shall be made at the time of the franchise issuance. 113 

 C.  If a franchise is granted to an applicant, the real estate services section may 114 

require the grantee of the franchise to reimburse the county for the actual costs incurred 115 

by the county in administering a grantee's activities under the franchise, including but not 116 

limited to costs incurred for inspections, relocations, abatements and enforcement. 117 

 D.  The facilities management division is authorized to establish rules or policies 118 

that define actual costs that may be charged to an applicant for a franchise or to a grantee 119 

of a franchise under subsections B. and C. of this section.  Costs related to reviewing and 120 

processing applications for franchises and administering franchises may include, but are 121 

not limited to costs for: 122 

   1.  Personnel, including payroll and management; 123 

   2.  Overhead, including office rent, maintenance and utilities; 124 

   3.  Program planning and development; 125 

   4.  Data processing and computer; 126 

   5.  Legal and accounting services; and 127 

   6.  Consulting services such as engineering and environmental assessment. 128 

 E.  The facilities management division is authorized to establish rules or policies 129 

to assess annual administration charges to grantees of franchises under subsection C. of 130 

this section to reasonably cover the costs incurred by the county in administering 131 

franchises.  If the facilities management division institutes such an administration charge, 132 

the real estate services section may require applicants to reimburse the county for the 133 

6 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 404



Ordinance  

 
 
actual costs incurred by the county in administering a franchise, to the extent the costs 134 

exceed the costs recovered by the administration charge. 135 

 F.  All ((franchise application)) payments received under this section shall be 136 

credited to the county current expense fund.  The franchise application fee received under 137 

K.C.C. 4A.675.020.A. and K.C.C. 6.27.054.A. shall be credited against any franchise 138 

compensation required by K.C.C. 6.27.060.B. 139 

 ((D.)) G.  This section shall not apply to franchise applications, amended 140 

franchises, renewal ((, amendments)) or extension of existing franchises or transfers 141 

((made)) or franchise rights or franchise administration under the county's cable 142 

television regulations, K.C.C. chapter 6.27A. 143 

 SECTION 7.  Ordinance 1710, Section 6, as amended, and K.C.C. 6.27.060 are 144 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 145 

 A.  All franchises ((granted for county rights-of-way)) shall be consistent with the 146 

following criteria: 147 

   1.  A previously approved comprehensive plan for the applicant; if required to 148 

have such a plan by K.C.C. 13.24.010; 149 

   2.  The county ((c))Comprehensive ((p))Plan; 150 

   3.  The standards of good practice regarding accommodation of utilities on 151 

county road right-of-way as stated in the King County Road Standards, ((pursuant to 152 

Washington Administrative Code,)) under ((C))chapter 136-40 WAC;  153 

   4.  The franchise shall include provisions requiring the grantee of a franchise to 154 

carry out a program acceptable to the county for the grantee to remove or relocate at its 155 

cost its facilities in the right-of-way that pose a hazard to the general public; and 156 

7 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 405



Ordinance  

 
 
   5.  The franchise shall include provisions acceptable to the county requiring the 157 

grantee of the franchise to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the county against 158 

damages, including environmental damages, caused by, arising out of, or incidental to the 159 

grantee’s exercise of rights and obligations set forth in the franchise agreement. 160 

 B.  All franchises granted for electric, gas, water and sewer utilities shall include a 161 

requirement that the grantee provide the county with franchise compensation under 162 

section 8 of this ordinance in return for the right to use the right-of-way. 163 

 C.  In addition, all franchises granted for water and sewer utilities shall be 164 

consistent with the following criteria: 165 

   1.  Health and sanitation regulations of the Seattle-King County department of 166 

public health ((department)) and the state; 167 

   2.  County standards for water mains and fire hydrants and other fire suppression 168 

water facilities and services as defined in chapter 70.315 RCW.  Consistent with the 169 

authority in chapter 70.315 RCW, except when the county is acting as a customer or as a 170 

purveyor, the grantee of a water utility franchise shall, at no expense to the county, 171 

provide fire suppression water facilities and services required by applicable law and shall 172 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless the county against damages arising from fire 173 

suppression activities during fire events.  The costs incurred by the grantee for such fire 174 

suppression water facilities and services shall be credited against any franchise 175 

compensation required by K.C.C. 6.27.060.B; 176 

   3.  The grantee of the franchise shall, at no expense to the county, repair all 177 

existing facilities that it owns within county road rights-of-way, including all appurtenant 178 

8 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 406



Ordinance  

 
 
facilities and service lines connecting its system to users, if ((such)) the repair is required 179 

by the county for any reasonable purpose; 180 

   4.  The grantee of the franchise shall, at no expense to the county, adjust, remove 181 

or relocate existing facilities with county road rights-of-way, including all appurtenant 182 

facilities and service lines connecting its system to users, if the county determines 183 

((such)) the adjustment, removal or relocation is reasonably necessary to allow for an 184 

improvement or alteration planned by the county in ((such)) the road right-of-way.  The 185 

county shall give the grantee written notice of ((such)) the requirement as soon as 186 

practicable, with the goal to provide the notice at the beginning of the ((pre-design)) 187 

predesign stage for projects that are part of the county's capital improvement program, 188 

including such available information as is reasonably necessary for the grantee to plan for 189 

((such)) the adjustment, removal or relocation; 190 

   5.  For projects that are a part of the county's capital improvement program, in 191 

addition to any other notice given to the grantee of the franchise, the county shall provide 192 

a vertical and horizontal profile of the roadway and drainage facilities within it, both 193 

existing and as proposed by the county, and the proposed construction schedule; 194 

notwithstanding any permit conditions that may later be applied to the county project, this 195 

initial design information shall be given at least ((180)) one hundred eighty days before 196 

construction is scheduled to begin, except in cases of urgent construction or emergencies.  197 

The grantee shall respond to this notice, and to any later notices of revised designs based 198 

on permit conditions, within no more than ((30)) thirty days by providing to the county 199 

the best available information as to the location of all of the grantee's facilities, including 200 

all appurtenant facilities and service lines connecting its system to users and all facilities 201 

9 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 407



Ordinance  

 
 
that it has abandoned, within the area proposed for the public works project.  The county 202 

shall offer the grantee the opportunity to participate in the preparation of bid documents 203 

for the selection of a contractor to perform the public works project as well as all required 204 

adjustments, removals or relocations of the grantee's facilities.  ((Such)) The bid 205 

documents shall provide for an appropriate cost allocation between the parties.  The 206 

county shall have sole authority to choose the contractor to perform ((such)) the work.  207 

The grantee and the county may negotiate an agreement for the grantee to pay the county 208 

for its allocation of costs, but neither party shall be bound to enter into such an 209 

agreement.  Under such an agreement, in addition to the grantee's allocation of contractor 210 

costs, the grantee shall reimburse the county for costs, such as for inspections or soils 211 

testing, related to the grantee's work and reasonably incurred by the county in the 212 

administration of ((such)) the joint construction contract((s)).  ((Such)) The costs shall be 213 

calculated as the direct salary cost of the time of county professional and technical 214 

personnel spent productively engaged in ((such)) the work, plus overhead costs at the 215 

standard rate charged by the county on other similar projects, including joint projects 216 

with other county agencies((.)); and 217 

   6.  The grantee of the franchise shall, at no expense to the county, assume the 218 

following obligations with respect to facilities connected to its system that are within 219 

county road rights-of-way and ((which)) that it does not own, including appurtenant 220 

facilities and service lines connecting its system to users: 221 

     a.  The grantee shall apply for, upon request and on behalf of the owner of the 222 

facilities, a county right-of-way construction permit for any repairs required for ((such)) 223 

the facilities((; provided such)), but only if the owner agrees to reimburse the grantee for 224 

10 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 408



Ordinance  

 
 
all costs incurred by the grantee and any other reasonable conditions the grantee requires 225 

as a precondition to applying for the permit.  All work to be performed in the county 226 

right-of-way shall comply with all conditions of the county permit and all applicable 227 

county requirements.  The grantee may at its option perform any part of the repair with its 228 

own forces or require the owner to employ a contractor for that purpose, ((provided 229 

such)) but only if the contractor is approved by the county; 230 

     b.  In the event that the county determines emergency repair of ((such)) the 231 

owner's facilities is necessary to halt or prevent significant damage to county road rights-232 

of-way or significant threats to the health, safety or welfare of parties other than the 233 

owner or the occupants of the building served by ((such)) the facilities, the grantee shall 234 

take prompt remedial action to correct the emergency to the county's approval, which the 235 

county shall not unreasonably withhold; and 236 

     c.  When the county or its contractor provides notice to the grantee, ((pursuant 237 

to)) in accordance with chapter 19.122 RCW, of its intent to excavate with county road 238 

rights-of-way, the grantee shall provide to the county or its contractor the best 239 

information available from the grantee's records or, where reasonable, from the use of 240 

locating equipment as to the location of ((such)) the facilities, including surface markings 241 

where these would reasonably be of use in the excavation.  If the grantee fails to make 242 

good faith efforts to provide the ((above)) information required in this subsection C.6.c. 243 

within the deadlines provided by chapter 19.122 RCW, the grantee shall defend, 244 

indemnify and hold the county harmless for all claims and reasonable costs that result 245 

from damage to ((such)) the facilities if ((such)) the damage occurs as a result of the 246 

failure to provide ((such)) the information.  Nothing in this subsection is intended or shall 247 

11 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 409



Ordinance  

 
 
be construed to create any rights in any third party or to form the basis for any obligation 248 

or liability on the part of the county or the grantee toward any third party, nor is anything 249 

in this subsection intended or to be construed to alter the rights and responsibilities of the 250 

parties under chapter 19.122 RCW, as amended. 251 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 8.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 6.27 a 252 

new section to read as follows: 253 

 A.  Each franchise for electric, gas, water or sewer utilities granted by King 254 

County shall include a requirement that the grantee of the franchise provide the county 255 

reasonable compensation in return for the right to use the right-of-way for the purposes of 256 

constructing, operating, maintaining and repairing utility facilities and related 257 

appurtenances, which for the purposes of this section is "franchise compensation."  This 258 

requirement and the process outlined in this section for determining franchise 259 

compensation shall apply to franchises granted after the effective date of this ordinance, 260 

and to existing franchises that include terms that authorize compensation in return for the 261 

right to use the right-of-way.  For the purpose of determining franchise compensation 262 

under this section, an applicant for a franchise and a grantee of an existing franchise that 263 

includes terms that authorize compensation in return for the right to use the right-of-way 264 

is "the applicant." 265 

 B.  Franchise compensation shall be in the nature of rent and shall be paid 266 

annually.  Franchise compensation may be in the form of money, in-kind services or 267 

other nonmonetary benefits, accruing to King County. 268 

 C.  Franchise compensation shall be determined through consideration of the 269 

following relevant factors, not all of which must be applied to each franchise:  the land 270 

12 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 410



Ordinance  

 
 
value of right-of-way within the applicant's service area; the approximate amount of area 271 

within the right-of-way that will be needed to accommodate the applicant's use; a 272 

reasonable rate of return to King County for the applicant's use of the right-of-way; the 273 

business opportunity made available to the applicant; density of households served; a 274 

reasonable annual adjustment; and other factors that are reasonably related to the value of 275 

the franchise or the cost to King County of negotiating the franchise. 276 

 D.  The facilities management division is authorized to establish policies that  277 

create a process for the determination of franchise compensation.  These policies may 278 

include different processes for the determination of franchise compensation depending on 279 

the size and complexity of the franchise.  As part of the process, the facilities 280 

management division may request from the applicant information relevant to the 281 

determination of franchise compensation.  Also as part of the process, the facilities 282 

management division shall make a reasonable estimate of franchise compensation and 283 

provide that estimate to the applicant.  Thereafter, the applicant shall have a reasonable 284 

opportunity to suggest adjustments to the estimate in order to reach agreement with King 285 

County as to the amount and type of franchise compensation. 286 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 9.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 6.27 a 287 

new section to read as follows: 288 

 A.  The executive is authorized to consider alternative means of providing utility 289 

services, including but not limited to: 290 

   1. Establishing a King County utility to provide utility services, or 291 

   2. Granting nonexclusive franchises. 292 

13 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 411



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  In exchange for a forbearance payment by a utility company, the county may 293 

contract with the utility company: 294 

   1.  To forbear from establishing a King County utility to compete with the utility 295 

company; and 296 

   2.  To forbear from requiring the utility company to provide the county 297 

reasonable compensation in return for the right to use the right-of-way as required by 298 

K.C.C. 6.27.060.B. 299 

 C.  The forbearance agreement may take the form of a franchise agreement, an 300 

interlocal agreement under chapter 39.34 RCW or an agreement under other contracting 301 

authority, and shall be subject to approval by the King County council. 302 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 10.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 6.27 a 303 

new section to read as follows: 304 

 If any person or entity installs or maintains utility facilities in the right-of-way of 305 

county roads without the required franchise, or has not complied with the terms of an 306 

existing franchise, the executive is authorized to initiate legal proceedings to seek all 307 

legal and equitable remedies to effectuate this chapter, including, but not limited to: 308 

 A.  Ejecting a person or entity occupying the right-of-way of county roads that 309 

refuses to enter into a franchise with King County or to pay franchise compensation as 310 

required by K.C.C. 6.27.060.B., or an application fee or other cost related to use of the 311 

right-of-way; 312 

 B.  Confirming the reasonableness of the franchise compensation required by 313 

K.C.C. 6.27.060.B. that is sought by King County; 314 

 C.  Enforcing the terms and conditions of a franchise; or 315 

14 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 412



Ordinance  

 
 
 D.  Revoking a franchise. 316 

 NEW SECTION.  SECTION 11.  There is hereby added to K.C.C. chapter 6.27 a 317 

new section to read as follows: 318 

 In addition to judicial enforcement under section 10 of this ordinance, the 319 

manager of the real estate services section and the director of the road services division 320 

are authorized to enforce this chapter and any rules or regulations adopted under this 321 

chapter in accordance with the enforcement and penalty provisions of K.C.C. Title 23.  A 322 

citation under K.C.C. 23.32.010.A.1.a. for violation of this chapter and any rules or 323 

regulations adopted under this chapter shall be in the amount of two hundred fifty to one 324 

thousand dollars, depending on the amount of right-of-way being occupied by the person 325 

or entity responsible for code compliance.  A violation of a notice and order under K.C.C. 326 

23.32.010.A.1.b. for violation of this chapter and any rules or regulations adopted under 327 

this chapter shall be two hundred fifty to one thousand dollars, depending on the amount 328 

of right-of-way being occupied by the person or entity responsible for code compliance. 329 

 SECTION 12.  Ordinance 1711, Section 4, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.040 are 330 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 331 

 A.  Each application for a right-of-way construction permit requires a fee payable 332 

to the ((real estate services section)) county as set forth in K.C.C. 4A.675.030 for the 333 

administrative costs ((and expenses)) of reviewing and processing the application. 334 

 B.  The real estate services section shall have the authority to require applicants to 335 

reimburse the ((real estate services section)) county for the actual costs ((and all 336 

expenses)) incurred by the ((real estate services section)) county as a result of issuance, 337 

renewal or amendment of a right-of-way construction permit, to the extent the costs ((and 338 

15 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 413



Ordinance  

 
 
expenses)) exceed the costs of reviewing and processing the application recovered by the 339 

application fee.  The payment of actual costs shall be made at the time of permit issuance. 340 

 SECTION 13.  Ordinance 11790, Section 1, as amended, and K.C.C. 14.44.055 341 

are each hereby amended to read as follows: 342 

 A.  Before January 1, 2018, ((T))the facilities management division may issue 343 

right-of-way construction permits to unfranchised utilities.  Thereafter, the facilities 344 

management division may issue right-of-way construction permits to unfranchised 345 

utilities only under the following circumstances: 346 

   1.  When the Seattle-King County department of public health has 347 

((determined)) certified in writing to the facilities management division that the proposed 348 

work is necessary to address a specifically identified public health hazard; ((or)) 349 

   2.  When the road services division of the department of transportation has 350 

((determined)) certified in writing to the facilities management division that the proposed 351 

work is necessary to address specifically identified actual or imminent damage to county 352 

right-of-way or to address specifically identified hazards to users of county right-of-wa; 353 

or 354 

   3.  If the unfranchised utility is involved in good-faith negotiation with the 355 

county that is likely to result in a franchise that will be submitted to the council for 356 

approval and the executive has certified that status in writing.  The certification shall be 357 

in a letter that shall be filed with the clerk of the council in the form of a paper original 358 

and an electronic copy with the clerk of the council, who shall retain the original and 359 

provide an electronic copy to all councilmembers. 360 

16 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 414



Ordinance  

 
 
 B.  No right-of-way construction permit for sewer or water facility construction 361 

shall be issued unless the facilities management division receives a determination from 362 

the chair of the utilities technical review committee that the proposed work is consistent 363 

with the King County Comprehensive Plan codified in K.C.C. Title 20 and with K.C.C. 364 

13.24.132, 13.24.134, 13.24.138 and 13.24.140.365 

17 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 415



Ordinance  

 
 
 C.  The permit applicant shall be required to meet all conditions of this chapter, 366 

except K.C.C. 14.44.050.A. and C. 367 

 368 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

18 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 416



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
REVISED STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: x Name: Patrick Hamacher 

Proposed No.: 2016-0521 Date: October 31, 2016 

 
 

 

 
At the November 1st meeting of the BFM Committee, the committee adopted the 
amendment as described in this staff report and forwarded the item to the full 
council with a do pass recommendation.  

 
 
SUBJECT 
 
This ordinance would set the costs for a franchise application and authorize the 
Executive to charge reasonable compensation for use of the County’s Rights of Way 
(ROW) by utility companies.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0521 would authorize the Executive to begin charging utility 
companies for the right to construct its facilities and to remain in the ROW. These 
charges would be similar to rent in that they will be assessed based upon the value of 
the land and the portion of the ROW occupied by the utility.  
 
This ordinance also increases the application fee and the construction permit fee for a 
franchise, as well as establishes an administrative fee in the same manner prescribed 
by Proposed Ordinance 2016-0495. If this ordinance moves forward, Proposed 
Ordinance 2016-0495 would not be needed.  
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 36.55.010 authorizes the county to “grant 
franchises …to use the right-of-way of county roads…for the construction and 
maintenance of waterworks, gas pipes, telephone, telegraph and electric lines sewers 
and other such facilities.” 
 
RCW 80.32.010 authorizes the County Council to grant and prescribe terms and 
conditions for the construction, maintenance and operation of electrical lines for the 
transmission of electrical power upon, over, along or across county streets and roads.  

King County Council November 7, 2016 417



 
King County currently grants franchises to public and private utility companies that 
authorize the utility companies to use the ROW of county roads to provide utility service 
within King County and elsewhere. The County charges an application fee for these 
franchise applicants, but does not currently charge any additional compensation for the 
value use of the ROW.  This ordinance would authorize the Executive to begin charging 
a fee for that valuable use of the County’s ROW.  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The County currently has 6.9 million linear feet of ROW. This equates to roughly 460 
million square feet of space or 10,500 acres. The County incurs the costs of maintaining 
this area, which has an average width of 67 feet. The County is not currently 
compensated for use of this asset. The County also incurs the potential liability 
associated with accidents that may happen in the ROW if there is not an agreement in 
place to indemnify the County. Currently 73 franchise agreements are either expired or 
set to expire during the next biennium. The Proposed Ordinance would authorize the 
Executive to begin charging for reasonable compensation for use of this asset. 
 
The specific provisions of the program are discussed below. There is also a striking 
amendment requested by the Budget Leadership Team. The highlights of this 
amendment are also included in the description and summarized at the end under the 
amendments section.   
 
Section1: Findings 
 
Section 2: Would increase the franchise application cost from $2500 to $10,000. This is 
the same change included in Proposed Ordinance 2016-0495. 
 
Section 3: This section would increase the fee for construction permits in the ROW for 
expired franchisees from $200 to $500. This would provide an incentive for franchisees 
to keep their franchise agreements current. Amendment: the amendment would give all 
franchise applicants one year (until January 1, 2018) to get their franchise agreements 
current and incorporate the new program. If they do not have an active franchise 
agreement by January 1, 2018 then any application for a construction permit by that 
utility company would be denied unless the Executive certifies to the Council that the 
utility is involved in good faith bargaining likely to result in a franchise agreement or one 
of the code provisions related to emergencies applies. The construction permit fee 
under the amendment would remain at $200.  
 
Section 4: This section, referencing RCW 36.55.010, adds a requirement that the 
utilities seek and maintain in good standing their franchise agreements. Amendment:  
would clarify the authority RCW 36.55.010 gives the County to grant franchises.  
 
Section 5: updates a dated reference by using the correct and current name of the 
Facilities Management Division.  
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 418



Section 6: This section gives FMD the option of requiring additional reimbursement for 
reviewing and processing the franchise applications should the costs exceed the 
amount covered by the application fee and authorizes FMD to develop fees associated 
with the ongoing maintenance of the program in subsequent years. Amendment: The 
introduced ordinance granted a credit against the rent the costs associated with 
processing the application. This actually provides an incentive for obstacles to be 
created during the negotiating process. This is eliminated in the amendment. Only the 
application fee is credited against the rent payment in the amendment.  
 
Section 7: This section adds provisions to require that franchise agreements include 
terms requiring the utility franchisee to pay for use of the right of way and to relocate or 
address hazards associated with their use and access of the ROW. This section also 
requires the franchise agreement contain a provision that makes the water and sewer 
franchisees responsible   for fire suppression facilities (hydrants) are included in the 
ROW. Amendment: The amendment also includes the requirements that the 
agreements include indemnification language protecting the county from liability 
associated with the utility’s use of the ROW.  
 
Section 8: This section set the compensation for use of the ROW. It establishes criteria 
for how the Executive will determine the value of the rent, including:  
 

1. the land value of right-of-way within the franchise applicant's service area,  

2. the approximate amount of area within the right-of-way that will be needed to 

accommodate the franchise applicant's use,  

3. a reasonable rate of return to King County for the franchise applicant's use of the 

right-of-way,  

4. the business opportunity made available to the franchise applicant and density of 

households served,  

5. a reasonable annual adjustment and other factors that are reasonably related to 

the value of the franchise or the cost to King County of negotiating the franchise 
 
Section 9: Authorizes an alternative type of agreement called a forbearance 
agreement. Because the County has the legal authority to provide public utilities, it may 
also receive compensation for the County to not exercise those rights. This may be a 
less burdensome way to reach an agreement for compensation with the utilities and 
may also provide increased certainty to utilities as to their long-term customer base, and 
therefore is included in the ordinance. Amendment: The amendment eliminates the 
“cap” on the rate that was blank in the proposed ordinance, this would allow the 
Executive to negotiate and set the rates based upon the value to the utility.  
 
Section 10: This Section grants the Executive the authority to enforce the agreements 
through use of the courts up to and including ejecting the utility from the ROW if an 
agreement cannot be reached.  
 
Section 11: This section grants the Executive the authority to enforce the agreement 
through issuance of fines for lack of an agreement of compliance with an existing 
agreement. The fines are set between $250 and $1,000 per occurrence.  
 

King County Council November 7, 2016 419



Section 12: Clarifies how the County can recover its cost of reviewing and approving 
the franchise agreement when those costs exceed the application fee.  
 
Section 13: This section is added in the amendment. Amendment:  As also set forth 
with regard to Section 3, the amendment would give all franchise applicants one year 
(until January 1, 2018) to get their franchise agreements current and incorporate the 
new program. If they do not have an active franchise agreement by January 1, 2018 
then any application for a the construction permit by that utility company would be 
denied unless the Executive certifies to the Council that the utility is involved in good 
faith bargaining likely to result in a franchise or one of the code provisions related to 
emergencies applies. These emergency provisions are also modified to require greater 
specificity as to the hazards that need to be addressed. The construction permit fee 
under the amendment would remain at $200.  
 
Potential Financial Benefit to the County:  
The Executive branch has evaluated the potential revenue from reasonable franchise 
compensation. A conservative estimate for the potential revenue from the program 
(once it is fully operational) is $10 million per year or $20 million per biennium. This 
revenue would accrue to the County General Fund. This assumes a full year collection 
beginning in 2018, as it is likely that it will take time to complete franchise agreement 
negotiations.  It is expected that over the biennium revenue will slowly increase until a 
full year of collections is reached with all franchisees. That projection is roughly 
estimated as follows:  
 

Utility 2018 Est 
Electricity 5,070,000 
Gas 1,570,000 
Water 1,570,000 
Sewer 1,570,000 
Total  $9,780,000 

 
 
The ability to estimate how much of these fees will impact the individual rate payers is 
speculative for a number of reasons. First, some utilities are subject to needing state 
approval for setting their utility rates, so it is not known whether these increased 
operating costs will be passed along in full, in part, or not at all. Staff have attempted to 
estimate a potential annual and monthly cost to rate payers. It should be noted that this 
is likely to be a worst-case scenario because it assumes that all of the revenue will be 
passed on and will be passed on equally to all payers. 
 
Type  #of Customer  Est. Revenue1   Per Year Per Month 
Electric 1,900,0002  $5,070,000   $2.67  $0.22 
Gas  800,0003  $1,570,000   $1.96  $0.16 
Water/Sewer 90,0004  $3,140,000   $34.89  $2.90 

1 Assumes all franchisees are under agreement and making payments for a full year.   
2 Total from PSE and Seattle City Light Websites, does not distinguish between residential and commercial, 
assumes equal usage and billing.  
3 From PSE website, does not distinguish between residential and commercial. Assumes equal usage and billing.  

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 420



 
Total Costs        $39.52  $3.29 
 
AMENDMENT 
 
The Striking Amendment has been described throughout the staff report. The changes 
made in the amendment include:  

1. Granting a one year grace period for applying franchises to reach an agreement, 
after which subsequent construction permits would be denied except under 
emergency circumstances as required by state law.  

2. Clarification that only the application fee is credited against the franchise 
payments.  

3. Adding a requirement that the agreements include indemnification language.  
4. Removal of policy direction on rates associated with the forbearance 

agreements.  
 
 

4 Based upon Households estimated by the King County Office of Economic and Financial Analysis, Does not 
distinguish between residential and commercial. Assumes equal usage and billing.  

                                                                                                                                                             

King County Council November 7, 2016 421



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Blank Page] 



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0523.1 Sponsors Dembowski, Balducci, Lambert and 

Upthegrove 
 

AN ORDINANCE relating to the disposition of sale 1 

proceeds; changing the designation of the distribution of 2 

gross sale proceeds; and amending Ordinance 12045, 3 

Section 12, as amended, and K.C.C. 4.56.130. 4 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 5 

 SECTION 1.  Findings: 6 

 A.  In 2001, the King County council adopted Ordinance 14260, which directed 7 

that, for transactions with gross sale proceeds of two hundred fifty thousand dollars or 8 

greater that are to accrue to the current expense fund, ten percent of the gross sale 9 

proceeds are to be deposited into the arts and cultural development fund. 10 

 B.  The council took this action in recognition of the fact that, beginning in 2002, 11 

arts and heritage programs experienced a sharp drop in funding due to a change in state 12 

law that reduced support from the lodging tax and the inability of the county's current 13 

expense fund to maintain ongoing support for arts and heritage programs. 14 

 C.  In 2002, the council adopted Ordinance 14482, which transferred King 15 

County's arts and heritage programs to a quasi-governmental public development 16 

authority known as the King County cultural development authority.  The charter of the 17 

cultural development authority requires the council to transfer moneys from the arts and 18 

cultural development fund, to the cultural development authority. 19 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 422



Ordinance  

 
 
 D.  In 2011, the Washington state Legislature authorized and the Governor signed 20 

ESSB 5834, which provided an ongoing source of funding for arts and cultural purposes 21 

through chapter 67.28 RCW, which will provide dedicated lodging tax revenues for these 22 

purposes beginning in 2021. 23 

 E.  King County's current expense fund has been increasingly unable to meet 24 

critical public safety and human services funding needs over the last fifteen years due to 25 

state-imposed revenue limitations. 26 

 F.  Shortfalls in the current expense fund have required the executive and council 27 

to make difficult reductions in the face of significant need. 28 

 G.  Because the arts and cultural purposes have been granted an ongoing and 29 

dedicated source of funding, and because the current expense fund is facing significant 30 

projected shortfalls, it is no longer necessary for a portion of surplus property sales to be 31 

used for arts and cultural purposes. 32 

 SECTION 2.  Ordinance 12045, Section 12, as amended, and K.C.C. 4.56.130 are 33 

each hereby amended to read as follows: 34 

 A.  The county organizations responsible for conducting sales shall be reimbursed 35 

for advertising, postage and selling fees, if any, from the proceeds of the sale.  The 36 

manager of the finance and business operations division is authorized to establish such 37 

funds and accounts necessary to deposit sale proceeds until final disposition.  The balance 38 

of the proceeds shall be deposited into the proper county fund or account, as directed by 39 

the facilities management division, the fleet administration division or the county council, 40 

as applicable.  ((On transactions with gross sale proceeds of two hundred fifty thousand 41 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 423



Ordinance  

 
 
dollars or greater that are to accrue to the current expense fund, ten percent of the gross 42 

sale proceeds are to be deposited into the arts and cultural development fund.)) 43 

 B.  In no case shall the title be transferred until the purchase price has been fully 44 

paid. 45 

 46 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  

Attachments: None 
 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 424



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 34 Name: Mary Bourguignon 

Proposed No.: 2016-0523 Date: November 1-3, 2016 

 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Proposed Ordinance 2016-0523 would end the transfer of sales proceeds from General 
Fund-owned properties into the Arts and Cultural Development Fund. This change 
would be made because an arts and culture endowment is no longer necessary due to 
changes in State law, as well as because of the structural imbalance in the General 
Fund, which has resulted in cuts to County services. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
In 2001, the Council directed that, upon the sale of any General Fund property of 
$250,000 or more, 10 percent of the gross sales proceeds would be dedicated to the 
Arts and Cultural Development Fund.1 
 
The Council took this action in recognition of the fact that arts and culture programs had 
experienced a decline in funding due both to a change in state law that reduced support 
from the hotel/motel (lodging) tax, and also because the General Fund had not kept 
pace. At the time, the Council anticipated that these sales proceeds could be used to 
fund an endowment for arts and culture, which would be needed to fund these programs 
after 2012, when their State lodging tax funding was to end entirely (see Attachment 2).  
 
In 2011, the State Legislature passed legislation providing an ongoing source of funding 
for arts and culture through a dedicated share of lodging tax revenue beginning in 2021, 
meaning the arts and culture endowment that had been created could be spent down. 
 
In the meantime, King County’s General Fund has become increasingly unable to meet 
public safety and human services funding needs due to state-imposed revenue 
limitations. General Fund shortfalls have required reductions in County services.  
 
To date, the 10 percent of gross sales proceeds from General Fund-owned properties 
has generated $1.28 million for King County arts and culture. The proposed ordinance 
would eliminate this transfer, both because an arts and culture endowment is no longer 
needed, and to make General Fund available for human services and public safety.   

1 Ordinance 14260 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 425



 
BACKGROUND  
 
Change in Lodging Tax Support for Arts and Culture. In 1995, the Washington State 
Legislature approved and the Governor signed Second Engrossed Substitute Senate 
Bill 6049.2 This bill maintained an earlier threshold level of $5.3 million each year to be 
set aside from hotel/motel (lodging) taxes to repay the debt on the Kingdome.3 But it 
adjusted how revenues collected above that $5.3 million could be dedicated. 
 

Table 1: 1995 Uses of Lodging Taxes Collected Above $5.3 Million Threshold4 
 

Amount for 
Arts and 
Culture Time Period Allowed Uses 

75% 

Jan 1, 1992 

through 

Dec 31, 2000 

Art museums, cultural museums, heritage 
museums, the arts, and the performing arts 

 

Of this amount, at least 70% for capital: 
purchase, design, construction, and 
remodeling of performing arts, visual arts, 
heritage, and cultural facilities, and for the 
purchase of fixed assets that will benefit art, 
heritage, and cultural organizations 

70% 

Jan 1, 2001 

through 

Dec 31, 2012 

Art museums, cultural museums, heritage 
museums, the arts, and the performing arts  

 

Of this amount, at least 40% of revenues shall 
be deposited in an account to be used as an 
endowment to support arts and culture over 
the long term 

 
As Table 1, above, shows, support for arts and culture was to be reduced in two ways: 
first, by reducing the total amount (above the $5.3 million threshold) dedicated to arts 
and culture from 75 to 70 percent; and second, by requiring that 40 percent of the arts 
and culture revenues received after January 2001 be set aside into an endowment, 
which was originally expected to be sufficient to permanently support arts and culture 
functions beginning in 2013.5 
 
County Dedication of Sales Proceeds. In 2001, in anticipation of this State reduction 
of arts and culture funding and the need to build an endowment, and in 
acknowledgement of the inability of the General Fund to keep pace with these needs, 

2 SESSB 6049 made changes to RCW 67.28.180 
3 SHB 120 Section 139(3)(a), Ch. 363, Laws of 1991 (partial veto) 
4 SESSB 6049 Section 10(3) 
5 In 2011, in response to concerns that the endowment would not be sufficient to provide permanent, 
ongoing revenue, the State Legislature approved ESSB 5834, which permitted spend-down of the 
accumulated endowment between 2013 and 2020, and authorized a new, ongoing lodging tax set-aside 
for arts and culture beginning in 2021. 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 426



the Council took action6 to provide an additional source of funding for the County’s arts, 
cultural and heritage programs. Ordinance 14260 required that, for sales of General 
Fund-owned properties of more than $250,000, 10 percent of the gross sales proceeds 
would be deposited into the Arts and Cultural Development Fund. At the time, the 
Council anticipated that these sales proceeds could be used to help fund the 
endowment (see Attachment 2). 
 
4Culture (formally known as the Cultural Development Authority of King County) was 
created by the Council in 2002 following the economic downturn of the early 2000s as a 
more efficient way to manage the County’s arts and cultural programs than a County 
department.7 4Culture was established as a tax-exempt public development authority. It 
is governed by a fifteen member Board of Directors, who are nominated to their 
positions by the Executive and confirmed by the Council.  
 
4Culture’s charter requires the Council to transfer moneys from the Arts and Cultural 
Development Fund to the Cultural Development Authority. This has included 10 percent 
of the gross sales proceeds from four General Fund-owned properties, which have 
resulted in a combined total of $1.28 million to date for arts and culture. 
 

Table 2: Arts and Culture Funding Generated by Property Sales Proceeds 
 

Property Year 
Amount for  

Arts and Culture 

Federal Way District Court 2005 $130,000 

Renton District Court 2005 $108,750 

Kingdome North Lot* 2012 $1,011,000 

Auburn Health Clinic 2016 $35,000 

TOTAL 
 

$1,284,750 

Notes:  
*$200,000 of the North Lot proceeds was designated for the Duwamish Longhouse.  
 
In addition to the totals listed above, 4Culture contributed $50,000 to the Pacific Science Center’s Pompei 
exhibit last year from the anticipated sale of the Blackriver building. 4Culture sent the money to the Pacific 
Science Center, but the Blackriver building never actually sold. 
 
Each time a building is sold, 4Culture spends money to remove art from the building using the proceeds 
to defray these costs.  

 
Approval of Ongoing Lodging Tax Revenue Stream. State law governing use of the 
lodging tax required that 40 percent of the arts and culture revenues received after 
January 1, 2001, be set aside into an endowment. The concept was that the 
endowment would provide ongoing, long-term support for arts and culture beginning in 
2013, at which time the lodging tax set-aside for arts and culture would expire.  
 
However, during the years that these funds were collected, it became clear that the 
endowment would not be sufficient to provide permanent support to arts and culture. As 

6 Ordinance 14260 
7 Ordinance 14482, K.C.C. 2.49 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 427



a result, in 2011, the Washington State Legislature approved and the Governor signed 
legislation8 that: 
 

• Changed the endowment to a “special account” to be used to sustain arts and 
culture from January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2020, during which time no 
lodging tax revenue would be available for arts and culture purposes;9  
 

• Provided that any lodging tax revenues available after the Kingdome debt was 
retired and before December 31, 2015, would be devoted to arts and culture;10 
 

• Established a permanent funding stream for arts and culture – of 37.5 percent of 
the total lodging tax revenues – to begin on January 1, 2021.11 

 
General Fund Imbalance. The General Fund has continued to be insufficient to meet 
the County’s public safety, human services, and housing and homelessness needs due 
to a structural imbalance resulting from state-imposed limitations. This structural 
imbalance has required the County Executive and County Council to make significant 
and repeated reductions in core public services. Without action from the State 
Legislation, the 2017-2018 County budget will require additional reductions in service. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
In 2001, the Council approved a transfer of sales proceeds from General Fund-owned 
property to arts and culture in response to a decline in State funding through the lodging 
tax, and with the expectation that these sales proceeds could be used to help build an 
endowment that would be necessary when State funding for arts and culture ended 
permanently in 2012.  
 
Since that time, however, the State Legislature approved a new, dedicated source of 
lodging tax funding for arts and culture, which will begin in 2021. Based on the August 
2016 King County forecast, the arts and culture share of lodging taxes is anticipated to 
be $12.75 million in 2021.12  
 
Approval of this new funding source has allowed the arts and culture endowment (now 
called a “special account”) to be spent down, to support operations between 2013 and 
2020. 
 
During the same time, the General Fund has suffered from an ongoing structural 
imbalance that has resulted in budget cuts to core County services. The proposed 
ordinance responds to the fact that an arts and culture endowment is no longer needed 
given the new State support, as well as to the as-yet unresolved imbalance in the 

8 ESSB 5834, Chapter 38, Laws of 2011 
9 ESSB 5834 Section 1(3)(e) 
10 ESSB 5834 Section 1(3)(b), these funds were used for the Building For Culture Program, Ordinances 
18179, 18180, 18181 
11 ESSB 5834 Section 1(3)(d)(i) 
12 August 2016 King County Economic and Revenue Forecast, Office of Economic and Financial 
Analysis, Approved by the King County Forecast Council on September 14, 2016 (KCFC 2016-05) 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 428



General Fund, by ending the transfer of property sales proceeds to arts and culture and 
returning these proceeds to the General Fund. 
 
For the 2017-2018 biennium, the Executive estimates that property sales proceeds that 
would have been dedicated to arts and culture would total $600,000, in anticipation of 
the potential upcoming sales of the Northshore ($4.1 million) and Renton ($2 million) 
Public Health clinics.13  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0523 
2. Archival materials from Council consideration of Ordinance 14260 
 

INVITED 
 

• Dwight Dively, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 

• Jim Kelly, Director, 4Culture 
 

13 Northshore (Ordinance 18379), Renton (Not yet transmitted) 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 429



 

KING COUNTY 
 

Signature Report 
 

November 2, 2016 

1200 King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

   
 Ordinance   
   

 
Proposed No. 2016-0524.1 Sponsors McDermott 

 
AN ORDINANCE approving and adopting a memorandum 1 

of agreement negotiated by and between King County and 2 

the King County Coalition of Labor Unions, establishing a 3 

"Total Compensation" package for King County employees 4 

for 2017 and 2018, which includes general wage 5 

adjustments, paid insurance benefits and a timeline for 6 

bargaining a "Master Labor Agreement" that will reflect 7 

standardized labor agreement provisions; representing 8 

employees in the departments of adult and juvenile 9 

detention, community and human services, elections, 10 

executive services, judicial administration, information 11 

technology, natural resources and parks, permitting and 12 

environmental review, public defense, public health and 13 

transportation and the assessor, council, district court, 14 

superior court, sheriff's office and office of the prosecuting 15 

attorney; and establishing the effective date of said 16 

agreement. 17 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF KING COUNTY: 18 

1 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 430



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 1.  The memorandum of agreement negotiated by and between King 19 

County and the King County Coalition of Labor Unions representing employees in the 20 

departments of adult and juvenile detention, community and human services, elections, 21 

executive services, judicial administration, information technology, natural resources and 22 

parks, permitting and environmental review, public defense, public health and 23 

transportation and the assessor, council, district court, superior court, sheriff's office and 24 

office of the prosecuting attorney, which is Attachment A to this ordinance, is hereby 25 

approved and adopted by this reference made a part hereof.26 

2 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 431



Ordinance  

 
 
 SECTION 2.  Terms and conditions of said agreement shall be effective from 27 

January 1, 2017, through and including December 31, 2018. 28 

 29 

 

 
 
  

 

 
KING COUNTY COUNCIL 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

  

 ________________________________________ 

 J. Joseph McDermott, Chair 
ATTEST:  

________________________________________  

Melani Pedroza, Acting Clerk of the Council  
  

APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, ______. 
  

 ________________________________________ 

 Dow Constantine, County Executive 

  
Attachments: A. Memorandum of Agreement by and Between King County and the Undersigned 
Unions Addressing Total Compensation 

 

3 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 432



ATTACHMENT A

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY

AND

THE UNDBRSIGNED UNIONS

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION''

COALITION BARGAINING 2017.2018 BUDGET

Introduction:

King County (the County) and the King County Coalition of Unions (the Coalition Unions) have

had a longstanding history of working collaboratively to address challenges and solve problems.

The parties' first "total compensation" agreement, effective2015-2016, established the

parameters for bargaining a successor agreement. That 2015-2016 Agreement (King County

document code: 000U0414_TotalComp_2015-2016, attached as Exhibit 1) committed the

parties to bargaining a successor coalition agreement that covered "all compensation elements"

of Coalition Unions' respective collective bargaining agreements (CBAs), as well as elements of

two county initiatives identified, respectively, as "Employer of the Future" (or Best Run

Govemment), and "standards." "Compensation elements" were defined as "wages, premiums,

incentives, and other monetary payments; and all forms of leave and benefits'"

The County and the Coalition of Unions have bargained in good faith to address the interests of

the parties relating to total compensation and the specified county initiatives. Bargaining began

with a training session addressing fundamentals ofjoint interest-based bargaining on October 1,

2015, and bargaining concluded with the parties signing a tentative agreement (TA) on

Wednesday, September 7,2016. A copy of the September 7,2016, TA is attached as Exhibit 2.

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to set forth with greater specificity

the terms of the 2017-2018 total compensation agreement outlined in the attached TA. The

Coalition of Unions unanimously supports the terms of this MOA, and recommends ratification

of this MOA by each bargaining unit in the Coalition.

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
0 0 0 U0 5 1 6 _TotalC omp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I I
Page I
King County Council November 7, 2016 433



Agreement:

NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned Unions and King County agree as follows:

2016:
1. MOA Ratification - The undersigned unions agree this MOA is the result of good

faith bargaining, and will notify the King County Office of Labor Relations of the status of their

member ratification votes on or before 5 pm on Monday, October 17,2016. This date may be

changed in writing by mutual agreement of the parties.

2. Master Labor Agreement (MLA) - The parties will meet no later than November 11,

2016, to discuss a structure for bargaining standard practices, procedures, and collective

bargaining agreement (CBA) provisions via a Master Labor Agreement (MLA). Successful

MLA bargaining will bring greater efficiency to King County and support its Best Run

Government principles. The MLA will meet the parties' joint interests in financial and

operational stability and sustainability, and help create a desirable, competitive and consistent

employment package for the County's highly capable workforce.

January 1.2017:

1. Wases - Employees who were bargaining unit members on or after September 7,

2016, and who are current bargaining unit members, shall receive al.75Yo general wage

increase, plus a 0.5ohtotal compensation coalition premium,for atotal of a 2.25% increase over

2016 base wages.

2. Paid Parental Leave - King County's Paid Parental Leave benefit (piloted in20l6

and outlined in the attached MOA as Exhibit 3, King County document code

000U05 1 6_TotalComp_20 1 7-20 1 8 Exhibit 3_000U08 1 5_PPL) will continue through 2017 .

This benefit will be one of many standardizationtopics discussed in MLA bargaining in2017.

3. JLMIC - The Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee (JLMIC) Agreement

covering 2017-2018 benefits is attached as Exhibit 4 (King County document code

000u0516_Totalcomp 2017-2018_Exhibit 4_JLMIC MOA). This JLMIC Agreement includes

the following changes, effective January 1,2017, from the insured health benefits of the previous

year:

A. There will be no increase (0%) in county contributions over the 2016 funding

rate ($1,465);

B. The County will end its subsidy for self-pay county medical insurance after

Total Compensation - Coalilion of Unions
00 0U0 5 1 6 _TotalC omp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8
Page 2

2017:

King County Council November 7, 2016 434



early retirement, with reopener allowed in the event of Affordable Care Act (ACA) repeal; and

C. The current emergency room copay is increased from $100 to $200 (no

changes to conditions under which this copay is reimbursed).

4. Leave Day - One (1) additional vacation day will be added to employee vacation

banks in the first full pay period of 2017. Eligibility for this additional leave, rules relating to

usage, and the process for awarding the additional Leave Day are all outlined in the paragraph

addressing January 1,2018, below.

5. Parking - New parking rates for both the downtown civic campus (Goat Hill Garage,

King County Correctional Facility, Chinook Building) and the King Street Center will be

increased in accordance with the following chart. The increases for the downtown civic campus

are effective January 1,2017; the increases for the King Street Center will be effective June l,
2017.

Current Increase

Monthly Rates

Unreserved $260 $300

Reserved $300 $38s

Carpool/Electric Car s 182 $210

ADA sl30 $l s0

Daily Rates

Daily Maximum $1s $20

After-Hours /
Weekend

s7 $z

Motorcycles $s S5

6. Coalition'oAdministrative Sunport" MOA - The "Administrative Support" MOA

attached as Exhibit 5 (King County document code 000U0516_TotalComp_2017-2018_Exhibit

5_000U011l_Administrativesupport) provisions will continue through 2017 but are subject to

MLA bargaining and thus may change effective January 1,2018. If changes to this

prograrn/benefit are not part of the MLA, the "Administrative Support" MOA expires on

December 31,2018.

2018:

Januarv 1.2018:

1. Wages and Master Labor Agreement - Employees who will be bargaining unit

members on or after January I , 2018, shall receiv e a I .7 5%o general wage increase over 20 I 7

base wages. If an MLA is successfully bargained and fully ratified by both the Unions and the

County, employees who will be bargaining unit members on or after January 1, 2018, shall also

Total Compensqtion - Coalition of Unions
0 0 0U0 5 1 6 _TotalC omp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8
Page j
King County Council November 7, 2016 435



receive an additional lo/o of their 2017 base pay as a coalition MLA premium.* If the premium

is earned, the total2018 base wage increase will equal 2.75%.

*All partiestu agree to be bound by the Master Labor Agreement to be negotiated

to a tentative agreement no later than January 1,2018, in conjunction with small

table bargaining; provided that:

Current Unions' collective bargaining agreements (hereinafter Addenda)

shall remain in effect unless modified by mutual agreement by the MLA.

Any lesser conditions contained in any Union's collective bargaining

agreement shall be superseded by the conditions contained in this Master

Agreement. However, except where specifically stated otherwise in the

Master Agreement, nothing in the Master Agreement shall deprive any

employee of any superior benefit contained in his/her Union's collective

bargaining agreement.

Eligibility for the I%MLA premium is conditioned upon the parties

signing a Tentative Agreement (TA) no later than January l, 2018. The

parties acknowledge that the MLA must be TA'd by October 2,2017,in

order for the MLA premium to be included in January 2018 paychecks.

Thus the parties' shared goal is to reach a TA by October 2,2011. The

MLA must be then ratified both by the County and by participating union

membership in order to effectuatethe lo/o MLA premium.

2. JLMIC - Insured health benefits will be as reflected in the attached JLMIC

Agreement, Exhibit 4. This Agreement includes the following changes from20l7:

A. A 4Yo increase in King County contribution rate over 2017 rates ($1,524); and

B. The County domestic partner benefit will be changed to match state law.

3. Leave Days - Two (2) additional vacation days will be added to employee vacation

banks in the first full pay period of 2018, under the conditions described below:

A. The one (1) additional vacation day awardedin2}lT and the two (2)

additional vacation days awarded in 2018 are granted on a one-time basis only and doing so does

not establish an ongoing stotus quo obligation on the part of the County to continue granting

them subsequent to January l, 2018.

t'l Agencies that, by law, are authorized to bargain working conditions separate from the coalition are eligible for the

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
000U0 5 1 6 _TotalC omp L 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8
Page 4

King County Council November 7, 2016 436



B. The vacation days will be granted in the same manner as personal holidays

(e.g., not available for temporary employees and other non-leave eligible employees, prorated for

parl-time employees, 8 hours for full-time 40-hour employees, 480 hour year-end cap), provided

that any employee who is unable to use any of the additional vacation days identified in this

Agreement shall be permitted to cary those additional days forward.

C. The additional vacation days are only available to bargaining units that were

participants in the Coalition at the time of signature of the TA referenced as Exhibit 2.

D. The additional vacation days are contingent on unanimous recommendation

for ratification of this MOA by all Coalition Unions.

It is further asreed that:

1. The general wage increases, total compensation coalition premium, MLA premium,

and additional leave days award outlined in this Agreement establish no precedent

with respect to future payments or awards to county employees;

2. All parties have fulfilled their obligations to engage in good faith collective bargaining

over the subjects contained in this Agreement and those subjects listed in Exhibit 2;

3. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to approval by the King

County Council and the Agreement has been ratified by membership of the

undersigned Unions (Unions having notified the County by 5 pm on Monday October

17 ,2016 of the ratification results);

4. Any dispute regarding the interpretation and/or application of this Agreement shall be

handled pursuant to the terms of the applicable Union's grievance procedure,

provided that if more than one bargaining unit has the same or similar dispute, the

grievances shall be consolidated; and

5. The parties agree that this MOA is effective once fully ratified by King County

(having already been ratified by the undersigned Unions), through December 31,

2018.

For King County:

t0.21 . (G
Megan n, Interim Director
Office of Relations
King County Executive Office

Date

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
0 00 U0 5 1 6 _TotalC o mp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I I
Page 5
King County Council November 7, 2016 437



EXHIBIT 1

MDMOBANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BYAND BETWESN
KIN6 COUNTY ANI)

THE UNDERSIGNED UNIONS

AI}DRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION" COALITION BARGAIIYING; 20 15.2016

BUDGET; AND COST-OF-LMNG WAGE ADJUSTMENTS F'OR KING COUNTY
COALITION OF LABOR UNIONS SARGATNING UNIT MAMBERS 2015.2016

Introduction:

King County and the Coalition of King County Labor Unions have a longstanding history of
working collaboratively to address the nrarry serious challengcs faced by King County over ths
past two decades.

The padnership between King County and the Coalition of King County Labor Unions has

resulted in several Agreements ovor the years intended to preserve the high quallty and diversity
of services offered 1o the publico to preserve positions held by the county's high quality

einployees, to standardize pay ranges and pructices iu King County and to reorganize county
fi:nctions to bring greater elficiencies to King County government.

Agreemonts between King County and the Coalition of King County Labor Unions have

inctuded agreemerrts allowing unpaid fudoughs, agreements supporting a Leanprocess and

implementation of Lean proposals, agreements standardizing certain classification and

cornpensation processes, agreements that rnake efficient use of counff resources by bargaining
many labor issues in countywide caalitions, agreements establishing effective use of Labor
Management Committees acrosc King Counry to facilitate fl'equent and transpatent information
sharing and discussion and agreements sueh as the zero (o'0') cost-of-living adjustrnent (COLA)

Agreement intended to address the county's budget crisis at the height of the,great reoession"

The parties have also worked together in Olympia and elsewhere in attempting to secure

additional funding options for King County seruices. The pafii*s continue to engagp in solution-
based discussions aimed at addressing funding shortages for various public serYices.

The parties have an interest in continuing their longstanding history of working collaboratively
to meet the serious challenges facing King County and its employees, and have bargained in
good faith to address the interests of the parties as they relate to econornic issues. The County
continues to faoe serious fiscal challenges due to a longstanding skuctural imbalance between

non-discretionar.y ex$enditure growth rates and revenue grCIwth rates restricted by state law; and

in20l5-20l6 expects to eliminate hundreds of positions due to the loss of state and federal funds

and to budget cuts to several departments. This Agreement meets the interests of the parties and

advances the goals of the King County Strategic Plan by demonstrating "sound financial
management" as well as by recognizing King County employees, the countyos "most valued

fesoulre," in working with King County to meet thc ohallenges that will be presented duriug the

term ofthis Agreement

Total Coupensatian - Coalition of Unims
AA0U04 I 4._.I"otalContp ^20 i 5-20 I 6
Page I 000U0 5 1 6-TotatComp-20 I 7-20 I 9-Exhibil I 

-000U 
04 I 4-TotalComp-2L 1 5-20 I 6-scsg-pdfKing County Council November 7, 2016 438



EXHIBIT 1

Aqrg&mentr

NOIV THEREI"IORH, the nndersigned Union and tfing County agree as follows.

Jnnuary 11 2015 Cost-of-Living Adjustmcnt contract rollovcrs and re-upcners

1, Effuctive January l,Zlls,employees covered by this Agreement and employed in
2015 will rcceive aZYo Cost-of-Living Wage Adjustmenl;

2. All other compensation elements ("wages, premiums, incentives, and other monetary
payments; and all fbrrns of leave and benefits") of cuuent eollective bargaining agreements
(CBAs) are "rnlled pver" and neither increased nor decreased ttuough 2}fi;provided, however,
that whert the County and a urion were already in the process of collective bargaining with
re$psst to cefiain elements of "Total Compensation" pdor to June 27,20!4,there may be
incrsases or decreases in oertain elements of "Total Compensation" in those c,ollective
baryaining agreements. Additionally, the Coalition "Administrative Support" Memorandum of
Agreenrent (attached as Addendum A) is also effective 2015-2016 and expires January 31,2016;

3. All componsation olements of CBAs shall be oponed on January l, 2015, or later, as

requested by the County, for the puryose of bargaining in union coalition a "Total
Compensation" &greement that will be effective January 1,2017 or later, as agreed to by the
parties. "Total Compensation" elements are w&ges, premiums, incentivos, and othermonetary
payrnents; and all forms of leave and benefits. The parties agrce to bargain, to the extsnt
required by law, the ef,fects of any newly created job classificdtions and other organizational
changes. Discussion during re-opsner will include these "Total Compensation" elenrents as well
as county initiatives that include but are not limited to'*Employer of the l'uture" and
"l3tandards." Il is noted that the Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee (JLMIC)
Agleement covedng benefits (part of "Total Compensation") is ah'eady opened in 2016 and
nothing in this Agreement is intended to change the tenns of that Agreement.

January 112*16 Cost-af-Living Adjustmcnt cortract rollovefs aud ro-openors

1. H,ffective.Ianuary 1, 2016, employees covered by this Agreement and employed in
2016 will receive a2.?5Yo Cost-of-Living li[age Adjustment;

2, Consistent with #2 for 2015 above, all compensation elements of CBA o'rolled ovef'
and neither increased nor decroa$ed through ?016; pravidsd, hewever, that wherc the County and
a union were already in the process of collective bargaining with respect to certain elemerits of
":lbtal Cornpensation" prior to June 27,}Al4,there may be inueases or decrseses in certain
elennents of "Total Compensation" iuthose collective bargaining agrcements. Additionally, the
Coalition "Administrative Support" Memorandum of Agreement (attached as Adderrdum A) is
also efifective 2015-2016 and expires January 37,2016;

3. Re-openers consistent with #3 for 2015 above.

Lump $um Coalition Participation Premium Payment

On or before Decorirber 31,2A14, a flat lump sum Coalition Participation Premium payment of
S500.00 per employee will be paid to bargaining unit members who are employed by King
County on June n,2014, and whose bargaining units ratify this agreement on or before

Tolal Campensation - Coal itian af Unians
0 00U0 4 I 4. _Tor alCom p *2 0 I 5-Z 0 I 6
Page 2 000U0516_TotalComp_2017-201|_Exhibit 1_000a0414_TotalComp_2015-2016_scsg.pdf

King County Council November 7, 2016 439



EXHIBIT 1

August 15,2AM. This payment is in consideration of thc agreement by participating unions to
balgain esonomic issues wi& King Counf as a coalition rather than as individual bargaining
units, resulting in prccess efficiencies and savings iu adminishative sosts for King County.
Additionally, this payment is in consideration for the agreement by participating unions to open
all cornpcnsation elements of CBAs on Jzuruary 7,2A15 or latet, at the tequest of King County,
for the purposo of bargaining a "'l otal Compcnsation" agrsonrerrt in ooalition, "Total
Compeneation" elements are defined earlier in this Memorandum ofAgreement.

Changes to King County Family and Msdical Leave

The parties agree to a changc in practice that will run King County F'amily Medical Leave
(KCFML) and Fanrily Medical Leave Act (FMLA) concurrenrln rather than consecutively. ilhis
change is contingent upon the necessary King County Code change/policy being adopted by the
King County Council and then implemented fornon-represented ICng County employees. This
agrcemont doss not prnhibit the use af I(CFML intermittent leave after 12 weeks. The agreed

upon chauge will uot be implemerrted for represented employees before July 1, 2015. "lhe

parties agree to work together to identify the King County Code language changes uecessary to
implernent this change. As with all deeision rnaking in lfing County, the Equif and Sosial
Justice Ordinance (#16948) will be applied.

Itis further agrced that:

t. The COLA increases and lump sum payments outlined in this Agreement establish no
precedent with respect to future paymonts to King County employees;

2. The parties acknowledge that all parties have fulfilled their obligations to engage in
collective bargaining over the subjects contained in this Agreement;

3. The parties acknowledge that this Agreenrent is subject to approval by the King
County Counsil and ratificstion by ths mombership of the aforomentioned Unions;

4. Any disputo r*garding the interpretation an#or application ofthis Ap'eement shall be

handted pursuant to the terms of the applicable Union's grtevance procedure, provided that if
more than one bargaining unit has the sams or similar dispute, the grievances shall be

consolidated; and

5. The parties agree that this Mernorandum of Agreement is contingent upon ratification
by the King Counly Council, and shall he effective once fully ratified by King County (having
already becn ratifiod by the undersigned Unions) tfuough December 31, 2016.

s #"/I
DatePatti Cole-Tindall, Director

Office of Labor Relations
King County Executive Office

For King County:

Total Compercatlon -Coulilion of Unions
000U0a I 4 Jstal Caup_! 0 t 5-Z 0 I 6
P*ge 3 000U05 1 6_TotalComp_20 I 7-201 8_Exhibil I _000U04 I 4-Totalcomp-20l 5-201 6-scsg.pdfKing County Council November 7, 2016 440



EXHTBIT 2

KING COUNTY ANd thE KING COUNTY COATITION OF UNIONS

TENTATTVE AGREEMENT - 9l7l20t6

t. Duration: January 1.,2017 - December 3L,20\8

2. General Wage lncrease and Master Agreement Premium:

a. 2OL7 - 1.75% GWI and separate total compensation coalition premium of 0.5%

effective L/1.1L7 (for a total of 2.25%in 20771.

b. 2018 - 1.75% GWI effective Ll1./L8.
c. 2018 - 1.0% Master Agreement premium effective U1./78 for unions that sign

onto Master Agreement. Note that this premium is contingent upon successful

negotiation and mutual ratification of a Master Agreement per paragraph 5

below. This premium is also added to the L.75% GWI for a total of 2.75%.

3. Health and Welfare (JLMIC)

a. 2O!7 - 0% increase over 2016 (S1,465)

b. 2OlB-A%oincrease over 2OL7 (5L,5241

c. Effective L/L/!8, change domestic partner benefit to match state law.

d. Effective L/1,/17 , no longer subsidize County medical after early retirement with
reopener for ACA repeal.

e. Effective L/7h7, increase emergency room copay from Sroo to 5200.

4. Paid Parental Leave, for 2OL7 then subject to Paragraph 5.

5. Master Agreement and 2018 Coalition Premium:

All partiesl agree to be bound by the Master Agreement to be negotiated to a tentative
agreement no later than Janua ry L,2OL8 in conjunction with small table bargaining;
provided that all parties agree that:

Present coalition union's collective bargaining agreements (hereinafter Addenda) shall

remain in effect unless modified by mutual agreement.

Any lesser conditions contained in any Union's collective bargaining agreement shall be

superseded by the conditions contained in this Master Agreement. However, except where
specifically stated otherwise in the Master Agreement, nothing in the Master Agreement
shall deprive any employee of any superior benefit contained in their Union's collective
bargaining agreement.

6. Leave days:

a. One (1) additional vacation day added to vacation bank in the first full pay period

of 20L7.

1 Agencies that, by law, are authorized to bargain working conditions separate from the coalition are eligible for
the Master Agreement premium provided the labor group adopts the economics of the Master Agreement.

I
000 U 0 5 7 6_Tota I Co m p_20 77 - 2 0 1 8_E xh i b it 2_T e nta ti v e Ag re e m e ntKing County Council November 7, 2016 441



7.

EXHIBIT 2

KING COUNTY ANd thc KING COUNTY COALITION OF UNIONS

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT - 9l7l2OL6

b. Two (2) additional vacation days added to vacation bank in the first full pay

period of 2018.

c. The three (3) additional vacation days referenced above are granted on a one-

time basis only and do not establish an ongoing stotus guo obligation to continue

providing past JanuarY L,2OL8.

d. The vacation days are to be provided in the same manner as personal holidays

(i.e. not available fortemps and other non-leaves eligible employees, prorated

for part time employees, 8 hours for full time 40 hour employees, 480 hour year

end cap, etc.); provided, that any employee that is unable to use any of the

additional vacation days identified in 6(a) or 6(b), shall be permitted to carry

those additional days forward.
e. The additional vacation days are only available to bargaining units that were in

the coalition at the time of the tentative agreement (TA) signed and dated

below.
f. The additional vacation days are contingent on unanimous recommendation of

this TA by all coalition unions.

parking: Parking rates at the downtown civic campus (Goat Hill Garage, King County

Correctional Facility, the Chinook Building) will be increased in accordance with the

following chart effective January L,2OL7, and for King Street Center effective June 1,

2017.

Current lncrease

Monthly Rates

Unreserved Szoo s3oo

Reserved s3o0 s38s

Carpool/Electric Car Srez s210

ADA s130 s1s0

Daily Rates

Daily Maximum Srs Szo

After-Hours /
Weekend

5t s7

Motorcycles ss ss

2

000U05 76-Toto lCom p-20 77-20 l8-Exhibit 2-Te ntotive Ag re e me ntKing County Council November 7, 2016 442



Exhibit 3
Memorandum of Agreement

By and Between
King County

and
UNION NAME

SUBJECT: Paid Parental Leave - Benefit Pitot for 2016

Introduction:

The parties, King County and the union referenced above, enter into this agreement for the
purpose of implementing King County Ordinance 18190, an Ordinance that authorizes a2016
pilot program of Paid Parental Leave for leave-eligible King County employees. This
Agreement is entered into under the authority granted by said Ordinance, which is attached to
this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) as Exhibit I and incorporated herein by reference.

Brief Summary of Ordinance 18190:

The2016 Paid Parental Leave Benefit Pilot (Pilot) provides leave-eligible employees Paid
Parental Leave to supplement paid sick leave, vacation leave, executive leave and other forms of
paid leave. The Pilot ensures that an employee will receive the equivalent of the employee's
salary for up to a total of twelve (12) weeks, when combined with the employee's accrued paid
leaves, except for one week of sick leave and one week of vacation leave (or the equivalent for
Benefit Time), while on a qualifying approved leave following the birth, adoption or foster-to-
adopt placement of a child with the employee ("quali$zing event,,).

Eligible employees are those who have been employed with the County for at least six (6)
months of continuous service at the time of the qualifying event. An employee's supplemental
Paid Parental Leave benefit would be calculated based on the employee's existing leave accruals
at the time of the qualifying event, while permitting the employee to reserve one week of sick
leave and one week of vacation leave (or the equivalent for Benefit Time). The duration of the
Pilot is January 1,2016, through December 31,2016, expiring on January l,z0l7.

Agreement:

The parties agree that leave-eligible employees, covered by the terms of the collective bargaining
agreements (CBAs) for the bargaining unit(s) listed below, are eligible for the 2016 Pilot under
the terms included both in this MOA and in Exhibit l, Ordinance 18190. This includes, but is
not limited to, the specific duration, conditions, restrictions, and eligibility requirements
provided in each of these two (2) documents. Additionally, the parties acknowledge that the
King County Human Resources Division will establish process and documentation requirements
for implementatiorVadmini stration of thi s Pilot.

The undersigned union has agreed to the King County Code changes whereby Family and
Medical Leave (KCFML) will run concurrent to the federal Family and Medical Leave Act
(FMLA), as provided by Ordinance 18191, by way of either: 1) the union's signature to the
2015-2016 Coalition Total Compensation Memorandum of Agreement (Document

Page I
000U0 5 I 6_TotalComp_20 I 7-20 I 8_Exhibit 3 000U05 t S ppl
King County Council November 7, 2016 443



Exhibit 3
000u0414_TotalComp_2015-2016; Ordinance 17916),o1 2) the union's signature to this MOA.

King County OrdinancJl8lgl, which enacts the KCFML/FMLA concurrency Code changes, is

attached as Exhibit 2 arrd incorporated herein by reference.

The parties further acknowledge that:

This Agreement supersedes any and all CBA provisions or current practices which may

conflict with the terms of this MOA or the underlying Ordinances;

While on paid parental leave, employees shall retain and continue to accrue seniority in
accordance with the terms specified in the applicable collective bargaining agreement;

All parties have fulfilled their obligation to engage in collective bargaining over the

subjects referenced in this Agreement; and

Any dispute regarding the interpretation andlor application of this Agreement shall be

resolved through discussion by the parties in Labor/Management Round Table, or if the

issue is department specific, in a meeting between the Office of Labor Relations Director

or hislher designee and a Union Coalition Co-Chair or hislher designee. A department

representative and/or King County Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) staff person

may also be invited to participate in this discussion. Disputes will under no

circumstances be resolved through the CBA, Career Service or Civil Service Rules

grievance processes, but will alternatively be resolved through a process that utilizes

ADR staff in a manner agreed to by the parties.

Effective Dates:

This Agreement is effective January | , 2016. The Pilot (Ordinance I 8 190) expires on January I ,

2017. The FML King County Code changes (Ordinance 18191) will not expire.

Conclusion:

This MOA, along with the Ordinances referenced herein, constitutes the full and final agreement

between the parties on the topic of the Paid Parental Leave Benefit Pilot. The terms of this

Agreement may not be changed, modified or continued beyond the expiration date without the

express written authorization (and ratification as may be required) of the parties.

For King County:

Gerald W. Topping
Interim Director
Offrce of Labor Relations
King County Executive Office

000U0 S 1 5 J aid P ar ental Lew e 
-UNION 

NA ME
Page 2
000[10 5 1 6_Totatcomp-20 t 7-20 I |-Exhibit 3 

-000 
U08 I S-PPL

King County Council November 7, 2016 444



EXHIBIT 4

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
Regarding Insured Benefits

January 1,2017 through December 31,2018
For Represented Benefits-Eligible Employees

By and Between King CountY
And

The Joint Labor Management Insurance committee Unions

WHEREAS, certain designated representatives of King County ("County") and the Unions

signatory to this Memorindrr* oi Agreement ("Agreement") have agreed to participate 
-in

negotiations as members of the Joint iabor Management Insurance Committee ("JLMIC") for

thJpurposes of negotiating the plan provisions and funding of the County's.fully insured and

self-insured medici, dentil, vision, disability, accidental death and dismemberment, and life

insurance programs ("insured benefits"); and

WHEREAS, the County and the Unions signatory hereto have agreed to a format for funding and

negotiating plan provisions to meet the anticipated cost increases associated with providing

insured benefits to represented, benefits-eligible employees; and

WHEREAS, it is the policy objective of the County that a sustainable compensation package be

achieved by reducing the year-over-year growth rate of the county's overall employee

compensation budget 6 align with the county's population-adjusted inflation rate; and

WHEREAS, the total compensation budget includes, but is not limited to, adopted expenditures

for all wages, leaves, retirernent contributions, and insured benefits for active employees; and

WHEREAS, the County provides total compensation in a manner that is sustainable and enables

it to recruit and retain quality employees; and

WHEREAS, the County and the Unions agree that for the term of this Agreement, insured

benefits will include a wellness program, a Health Maintenance Organization Plan ("HMO"),

and a Preferred Provider Organization Plan ("PPO"); and

WHEREAS, the JLMIC agrees to explore options that incent benefits-eligible employees to

choose health care that is more effective and produces better health outcomes;

000U01 1 6_HealthBenefits-201 7-201 8
page 1 OOOaOstA_irtatComp_2u17-201|-Exhibit 4-000U0116-HeulthBeneiits-2017-201|-JLMIC MOAKing County Council November 7, 2016 445



EXHIBIT 4

NOW THEREFORE, having bargained in good faith, the JLMIC hereby agrees to the following:

1. Scope of Agreement. This Agreement shall apply to all county employees represented

by the Unions signatory hereto ("the Parties"), with the exception of employees
represented by the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 587, and the King County Police
Officers' Guild. In addition, this Agreement shall apply to any non-represented County
employees identified by Council to be treated in the same way as the represented

employees covered by this Agreement. All employees to which this Agreement applies
shall be referred to as "JLMIC-Eligible Employees."

2. Continuation of JLMIC Protected Fund Reserve. The balance of the 2016 JLMIC
Protected Fund Reserve ("PFR") shall be carried over to this Agreement and the PFR
shall continue to be maintained solely for the purpose of funding, providing and

maintaining insured benefits, and providing a reserve fund to self-insure against
unanticipated increases to the cost of those insured benefits for JLMIC-Eligible
Employees. It is expressly agreed that no funds from the PFR shall at any time be used

for any other purpose. It is further agreed that the County and organizations handling
PFR funds have a responsibility to ensure that PFR funds are being used solely on behalf
of JLMIC-Eligible Employees.

3. County Funding Rate.

A. 2017. Commencing on January 1,2017, the County shall maintain the same

funding rate contributed in 2016 (i.e., $1,465 per month) on behalf of each

JLMIC-Eligible Employee.

B. 2018. Commencing on January 1,2018, the County shall contribute four percent
(4o/o) more than was contributed in the prior year (i.e., $1,524 per month) on
behalf of each JLMIC-Eligible Employee.

4. Insufficient County Funding. To the extent that the County's funding rate identified in
Paragraph 3, and other yearly non-funding rate revenue (".g., interest earnings,
participant benefit access fees, and other plan participant contributions such as COBRA
payments), attributed proportionally to JLMIC-Eligible Employees, are at any time
inadequate to fully fund the cost of providing insured benefits for JLMIC-Eligible
Employees, the parties agree that the PFR will be used to fund the difference until such

time as the PFR is exhausted.

5. Excess County Funding. To the extent that the County's funding identified in
Paragraph 3, and other yearly non-funding rate revenue, attributed proportionally to
JLMIC-Eligible Employees, provide greater funding than is necessary to fully fund the
cost of insured benefits for JLMIC-Eligible Employees, the Parties agree that the excess

shall be added to the PFR.

Joint Labor Management Insurqnce Committee Health Benefits Memorqndum of Agreement 2017 through 2018
000U0 1 1 6 _HealthB enefits _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8
Page 2 000U0516_TotalComp_2017-201t_Exhibit 4_000UU I6_HealthBeneJits_2017-2019_JLMIC MOAKing County Council November 7, 2016 446



6.

EXHIBIT 4

Ilealth and Welfare Plan Provisions. Insured benefits provisions for JLMIC-Eligible
Employees during the term of this Agreement shall be as described in Attachments A and

B, including but not limited to maintaining the 2016 JLMIC-Eligible Employees' out-of-
pocket costs for the PPO Plan and HMO Plan, unless otherwise modified by the Parties or

modified pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The parties hereby agree to make the

following modifi cations:

a. Effective January 1,2018, the definition of domestic partner shall be conformed

to match State law;
b. Effective January l, 2OlJ , the JLMIC will no longer subsidize the cost of medical

benefits for those eligible for early retirement; provided that, if the Affordable
Care Act is repealed or substantially modified, the parties agree to reopen

negotiations to address this Section 6(b).

Modification to Plan Provisions and Administration of Protected Fund Reserve.

The JLMIC is hereby empowered to negotiate and implement modifications to insured

benefits for JLMIC-Eligible Employees during the term of this Agreement. The JLMIC
will negotiate any changes to plan provisions and/or supplemental premium funding

methodology to be effective on January I of the following calendar year.

Supplemental Medical Plans and Healthy Incentives. During the term of this
Agreement, the JLMIC will add supplemental plan options beyond the PPO Plan and the

HMO Plan for the 2018 benefit year. In addition, the JLMIC agrees to negotiate changes

to the Healthy Incentives program to be effective for the 2018 benefit year; provided that,

in the absence of agreement to the contrary, the County will absorb any additional cost

above the status quo 2016 cost associated with those changes for the life of this
Agreement.

Scope and Purpose of the Annual Reconciliation Meeting. The JLMIC will convene a

"true-up meeting" no later than April 15 of each calendar year to review the insured

benefits expenditures for the prior year, projected expenditures for the current and future
year(s), plan provisions, and any other information or factors that the JLMIC deems

relevant.

Dispute Resolution. If at any time during the term of this Agreement, the PFR is
projected to fall below fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000), the JLMIC must consider

plan changes and may consider other funding options to be implemented by the following
January 1. If the JLMIC is unable to reach agreement on such modifications by June 1 of
any calendar year, the matter will be submitted to a panel of three (3) subject matter

experts ("Panel") for final and binding resolution, whose decision must be issued no later

than August 15 of the same calendar year. The Panel shall be comprised of one expert

selected by the County, one expert selected by the Unions signatory hereto, and one

expert selected jointly by the two selected partisan experts. The Parties agree to

cooperate to present relevant information to the Panel in sufficient time for the Panel to

issue a decision by August 15. The Panel shall be empowered to make plan design

changes and/or add employee premium share and/or County contribution increases. The

costs of the Panel shall be shared equally by the Parties.

Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee Heqlth Benefits Memorandum of Agreement 2017 through 2018

000U0 1 1 6 _H ealthB enefits _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I I
Page 3 000U0516_TotatComp_2017-2019_Exhibit 4_000aU 1f_HeulthBeneJits-2017-201|-JLMIC MOA

7.

8.

9.

10.

King County Council November 7, 2016 447



EXHIBIT 4

11. Subsequent Agreement. The Parties agree to commence negotiations for a successor

insured benefits agreement (to be effective starting January l, 2019) no later than January

of2018.

12. Agreement To All Provisions. This Agreement supersedes any statutory or contractual

provision in any existing contract that in any way conflicts with this Agreement.

13. Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association (VEBA). The County will continue to

offer VEBA benefits to JLMIC-Eligible Employees consistent with the program

parameters outlined in the attached Memorandum of Agreement (Attachment C).

14. Total Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties

with respect to the matters covered herein, and no other agreement, statement or promise

made by any party that is not included herein shall be binding or valid. This Agreement

may be modified or amended only by a written agreement.

15. Term. This Agreement shall be in effect, upon approval of the King County Council,

from January 1,2017, through December 31,2018.

APPROVED this L{ day of OcTffi.? ,2016.

By: King County Executive

000U0 I I 6 _H ealthB enefits _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8
page 4 OOOUOSIA_iotiComp_2017-201|_Exhibit 4-000U011f-HeatthBeneiits-2017-2018-JLMIC MOAKing County Council November 7, 2016 448



c>o=
OL
(I,).(o
g-\

ox
B<.
{.n N

<.o

-Y -Y
oo33
PP(u(u
CC
ro clfr?
NP'f

o
>s
rn
rn

Oo
N
<l'r

C>C>o= o=
6L6!
LLLL8_€ 8_EbP bR8x-+3{.is ! i3

P
G)

v
g

ot
=?PPo:,zO

frP E
J66

E-o-o
.9oobE9
;(U(U
bo ar br

hh+Occoo<tt c
o
(O
lJ.l

C>oEVI'-
oJ .(oo-{bP
36-i3

.E

E
oz

-C
C
o
E
(u
o-
oo
-l{./}

c>o=
t, ,
OJ .(o
g-\

ox
3E-
<rr -l{./.}

J -:ZLLoo33
PP
ooJ
ro .lfre
NP

o
>R
tn
tJ]

oo
N
<J}

C>E>o= o=qrol-
LLLL8.€ 8_ibP bR3x-*3{.i3 gi3

6
-Y-Li9b>lPPo=zo

SE:
:J6(O
a-o-o
.9 c'ob9E
6-e-soo hr brhb+

Ocmo
{/lc

o(o
(.4

o=
6'

8_€>o
HAi3

.:
E
oz

-CPc
o
E
L
OJ
o-
o
O
r-l
IG

C>
EE(U.(o

fl5

.YI
LLoo
==PPoJ o)cc
ro c]-fr9oo!

o
\o
o\ln
(o

Ooc!
<J)

c>c>o= oEqroL
LLLL
cJ .(IJ qJ .(o
g\ s'\bR bR
3 4+ I {:c\ = :stJ+{r};;{/}

P,. c)-:z cLto!}Y
PP
oJfzo

foP E
-r6(o
E-o-o
.9oabEE
.'- o.r o-r

uob bha+OCcoo
1r> c

o
(O
1.r\

C>oE
OL

f. i.
oxox
rJ] --:fi.)
;{ <n

.=
E

oz

P

o
E
L
OJ
o-
oo
-lItt

U
6L

sl)\oo
S. ,S:ir vXry!r
-Sb
Nnl s
\t
ss
P oo'

S^S
\lF:.o'\
SR

\ol
8tr.

srat
.Ehd\.C tssM I

A ,S'S'*Xx-E\s
r NsutrP*\'
.\:!

ESss \,{
.! "o' .i'!

I

BNoo's(si\.\
iRsS -rsE€\,
s P'ss$s
$E r:
stE>ts
LI
O \o'\o'
-Q\\
Bxia{ss:55.:asoos
\SS

rfl
-Eli-r orlFq EI

-tii !li! (Jlxstt-r El

King County Council November 7, 2016 449



t:
2c
-onaE

F

--i+(JXgI-I E

C >!J X
o= = b q
6rrrL
LLa!L
or.foU=po-< - o o

ERE=Io-I;3 
= 

o
3-^€ E

e{(}(oq3
-o
XP
d

SE P
i(oro
E-o-o
.9o-obEE
i o.l o.r

bo br br

ts oo
{n O cNO

{/} C
O
co
{-n

c >!J xo= = b q
OrrrL
LLa!Lo.r.!ou=p
=tS: o 

-9OXErotrC)X-:oo-].3 
= 

o
s-^€ h

e{
o_(U9=eo
XP
d.

&: P
i(tr16-o -o -o.9oobEE
6-9-e
bo br br

ts oo
{.r}O cNO<J'l c

o
aoItt

SP E
rJ(I,(o
E-o-o
.9'o ob9E
6-9-9
bo Ar hr

ts oP
{.r}O cNOtel c

o
cO
{.r}

c >!J xoE = b q
6\rrL
LL !Lo.r.rou=eo< - o o

'\^- i1 
- 

J

8F E S 3?I'3 
= 

o
S*n€ E

a{o-(oa=-oXP
d.

\)

=\sa.\s
9p(5!r!rasE

t'\ \J\sRrss
R eo'

Sn ei\n' c\
i hl.o'\
SR*tsc.
SsA
< s=
.Er s
E +Eb 6*lea,! <
::JS
dtsst c=u S-,P*\'.: d.ESss\ \,s
.! oo',tt

PRo"l
it-.si\e\
DXt'.
'\ ,^rs
EN.\.
xs$
ssEis:c9i>f;s
I\ll
O \o \6'
-Q\\
B\ia{ss:)b
oss

\SS

King County Council November 7, 2016 450



EXHIBIT 4 ATTACHMENT C

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

By and Between

King County and the Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee

Regarding

HRA VEBA

Elections and Health Benefits for 2015 and 2016

For Represented Benefits-Eligible Employees

Whereas, the parties have negotiated employees' participation in the Health Reimbursement

Arrangement (HRA) Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association (VEBA) Medical

Reimbursement Plan for Public Employees in the Northwest since 2007; and

Whereas, the parties seek to clarify, update and make consistent the HRA VEBA options and

elections process available to King County employees; and

Whereas, the parties have negotiated in good faith; now

Therefore, the parties hereby agree to the following HRA VEBA-related provisions:

1. The County adopted the HRA VEBA Plan in 2007. The HRA VEBA Plan is a tax-

exempt trust authorized by Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(9). Under the IRS code

requirements, if a VEBA bargaining unit opts to participate in the HRA VEBA Plan, all eligible

employees in positions covered by the bargaining unit must participate. The specific VEBA

funding options put in place via the agreed upon King County VEBA elections process will remain

in effect for that bargaining unit, unless specific action is taken through this same process to amend

or terminate it. Prior to having access to HRA VEBA contributions, the employee must complete

and submit an HRA VEBA enrollment packet to Benefits, Payroll and Retirement Operations

(BPROS).

The following options are currently available to participating bargaining units:

Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee VEBA Memorandum of Agreement

000U0 t 1 4 -VEBA 000U0 I I 6-HealthB eneJits-2 0 I 7-20 1 $-Attachment C-VEBA
Page t OOOAOSIA_fotulcomp_2ll7-201|_Exhibit 4_000aU 16_HealthBeneJits-2017-201|-Attachment C-VEBA
King County Council November 7, 2016 451



EXHIBIT 4 ATTACHMENT C

a. Sick Leave Cash Out at Retirement VEBA Option: If a retiring employee is in a

VEBA bargaining unit that has opted to participate in the HRA VEBA Plan and has elected this

option, the County will transfer funds equal to that participating employee's cash out of eligible,

compensable sick leave tax-free to a VEBA trust account on that employee's behalf at his/her

retirement. These funds will be transferred to the HRA VEBA account in lieu of the regular cash

out to the employee, not in addition to the regular cash out. The funds will be available to the

member to pay for eligible health care-related expenses after retirement. De minimis amounts

under $200 will not be subject to the HRA VEBA provisions and will be paid out directly to the

employee and subject to appropriate supplemental taxes.

b. Vacation Cash Out at Retirement Option: If a retiring employee is in a bargaining

unit that has opted to participate in HRA VEBA and has elected this option, the County will transfer

funds equal to fifty (50) percent of that participating employee's cash out of eligible vacation leave

tax-free to an HRA VEBA trust account on that employee's behalf at his/her retirement. These

funds will be transferred to the HRA VEBA account in lieu of the regular cash out to the employee,

not in addition to the regular cash out. The funds in the HRA VEBA Plan will be available to the

member to pay for eligible health care-related expenses after retirement. De minimis amounts

under $200 will not be subject to the HRA VEBA provisions and will be paid out directly to the

employee and subject to appropriate supplemental taxes.

The following conditions (as well as any additional conditions required by law) apply to this

Option:

. All benefit-eligible union members must complete HRA VEBA enrollment forms to

establish HRA VEBA accounts.

. To access HRA VEBA contributions while an active employee, a union member

must be covered by a qualified group health plan.

. If a union member opts out of King County's medical plan and is not covered under

another qualif,red group health plan, he/she must continue to contribute $50 a month

but will be unable to access the funds until separation of employment.

Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee VEBA Memorandum of Agreement
00 0U0 I I 4 _VEBA 000U0 1 I 6_HeolthBeneJits_2 0 I 7-2 0 I 8_Attachment C-VEBA
Page 2 000U0516_Totalcomp-2017-201|_Exhibil 4_000U0116_HeslthBeneJits_2017-201|_Attachment C-VEBA
King County Council November 7, 2016 452



EXHIBIT 4 ATTACHMENT C

. If a union member subsequently opts back into a King County medical plan (and was

not covered under a qualified group health plan) then:

o HRA VEBA frrnds contributed during the opt-out period may only be accessed

upon separation.

o HRA VEBA funds contributed after the opt-in period may be accessed

immediately for qualified expenses.

The parties understand that the VEBA options and elections process must comply with applicable

law, and options available or conditions placed on specific options may change from time to time as

necessary to comply with legal and systems requirements. Should the County need to change

options or process due to legal requirements or systems changes, it will so notify unions and discuss

such changes in the Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee (JLMIC).

A Qualified Group Health Plan is defined as a health plan that meets the minimum value

requirements of the Affordable Care Act (ACA) law. For example, these may include plans

sponsored by an employer or group of employers, coverage through a former employer and

TRICARE but do not usually include Medicare, Medicaid, Veterans Administration (VA) coverage

or individual plans purchased through the Health lnsurance Marketplace (exchange)'

Unions opting to conduct a VEBA election must report election results for each bargaining unit to

King County BPROS using the King County standardized form found on the BPROS Website. If

there are discrepancies in the parties' understandings of the makeup of the individual bargaining

units, the parties will meet to discuss and resolve the issue.

Unions may conduct VEBA elections once per year, if they so choose. Election results must be

received by King County BPROS by the last Friday in June each year, for implementation the

following year. Bargaining Units that are participating in the HRA VEBA Plan and wish to

terminate, or who wish to change their options, may do so via the above referenced election process

and agreed upon reporting process. Union representatives must noti$ the King County BPROS no

later than the last Friday in June of 2014 and2015, using the County's standardized VEBA

elections report form, of the VEBA Program Option election results for each County identified

bargaining unit.

Joint Lqbor Management Insurance Committee VEBA Memorandum of Agreement

000u0 1 I 4 -YEBA 000u0 I t 6_Health B enelits_20 I 7-20 I 8_Attachment c-vEBA
page 3 OOOUOSIA_fotulComp_2017-201|_Exhibit 4_000U0116_HealthBeneJits-2017-2019-Attachment C-VEBA
King County Council November 7, 2016 453



EXHIBIT 4 ATTACHMENT C

Bargaining units that are not currently participating in the HRA VEBA Plan may elect to participate

in the HRA VEBA Plan effective January 1,2015, by following the VEBA election and reporting

process outlined in this Memorandum of Agreement.

2. Irrevocability. Contributions to HRA VEBA are irrevocable and will be available to

provide payment for health care-related expenses incurred by the participating employee, hislher

spouse, and eligible dependents until exhausted, as provided for by the terms of the HRA VEBA

Plan and regardless of any subsequent changes to future contributions elected by the bargaining

unit.

3. The parties agree that a standardized VEBA elections process is in their best interests and

that they consequently may meet from time to time in JLMIC to discuss changes that may

contribute to the efficiency of this process.

4. Total Agreement. This Agreement is the complete and final agreement on the subject of

VEBA elections (in addition to any applicable collective bargaining agreement provisions) between

the parties, and may be modified or amended only by a written amendment executed by all parties

hereto.

5. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are intended to be severable. If any term

or provision of this Agreement is deemed illegal or invalid for any reason, such illegality or

invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement.

6. Term. This Agreement shall be effective January 1,2014, through December 3I,2016,

consistent with the duration of the JLMIC Benefits Agreement, and any successor to this

Memorandum of Agreement is intended to track with future JLMIC Benefits Agreements.

Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee VEBA Memorandum of Agreement
0 0 0U0 1 1 4 _VEBA 000U 0 I 1 6_HealthBeneilts_2 0 I 7-20 I 8_Attachment C-VE BA
Page 4 000U0516_TotalComp_2017-2019_Exhibit 4_000U0116_HealthBeneJits-2l17-2019-Attachment C-VEBA

King County Council November 7, 2016 454



EXHIBIT 5

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY

AND

COALITION OF LABOR UNIONS

REPRESENTING

KING COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT CLASSIFICATIONS

Subject: Coalition bargaining for employees in specified administrative support
classifications

WHEREAS, King County and the undersigned labor unions representing certain administrative
support classifications ("the Coalition") have agreed to bargain wages for those classifications in

a coalition so that any agreements reached would be binding on all parties to the negotiations and

would satisfy all bargaining obligations between the parties with respect to wages for the

duration agreed to by the parties in such an agreement; and

WHEREAS, King County and the Coalition have reached an agreement on wages, pursuant to
the terms set forth herein, and therefore have fully satisfied their bargaining obligations on the
issue of wages for the duration of this Agreement;

Now THEREFORE, the parties have agreed as follows:

1. The terms set forth in this Agreement shall apply to all positions which are in the

following classifications and which are currently represented by any of the undersigned

bargaining units:

Fiscal Specialist 1-4
Administrative Specialist I - 4

Customer Service Specialist 1 - 4

Technical Information Processing Specialist 1 - 4
Administrative Offi ce Assistant
Public Health Administrative Support Supervisor
Administrative Staff Assistant

The positions referenced herein shall be referred to as "Coalition Administrative Support

Positions" and shall not include positions covered by bargaining units eligible for interest

arbitration.

C o al iti o n B ar gaining - A dmini s tr at iv e Supp ort C I as s i/i c at i o ns

000u01 I t
Page I 000U0516_TotalComp_2017-2018_Exhibit s_0h0u0L(|_AdministrativeSupportKing County Council November 7, 2016 455



EXHIBIT 5

2. Beginning on January 1,2012, regular employees in Coalition Administrative Support

Positions shall receive a wage increase of l.5oh above Step 10 upon completing 15 years service

with King County, and a3.\Yo increase (not cumulative with the 1.5oh increase after l5 years)

above Step 10 upon completing 20 years service with King County; provided, however, that the

employee is eligible for the above Step l0 premium only if he/she receives at least a3.25 rating
on the prior year's performance evaluation. For purposes of this provision, years of service shall

be based on the employee's Adjusted Service Date as that term is defined in the King County
Personnel Guidelines. The requirement that the employee earn at least a3.25 rating on the

performance evaluation shall be waived for any year in which the employee did not receive a

performance evaluation prior to the start of the calendar year. There shall be no limit or quota on

the number of employees eligible to receive this wage premium above Step 10.

3. This Agreement fully satisfies the parties' bargaining obligations with respect to
wages for any and all Coalition Administrative Support Positions through December 31,2013.
The parties have agreed to bargain a successor agreement on wages in coalition utilizing the

same process as was agreed to in these negotiations (see September 30, 2008 "Ground Rules for
King County Administrative Support Coalition Bargaining" (attached hereto as Exhibit A)) with
the additional agreement that any market surveys conducted for those negotiations will be based

on the following list ofjurisdictions:

1. Snohomish County
2. Pierce County
3. City of Seattle
4. City of Bellevue
5. City of Tacoma
6. City of Everett
7, City of Redmond
8. City of Renton
9. City of Kent

10. Port of Seattle

4. It is the parties' intent to not simultaneously provide employees with both: a) the

wage premiums referenced in Paragraph 2 of this Agreement, and b) an above-top-step merit
premium program. Therefore, employees in bargaining units which have eligibility for above-

top-step merit pay are not eligible for premium under Paragraph 2 of this Agreement; however,

such bargaining units may elect to forgo above-top-step merit for their members who are part of
this coalition in order for those members to be eligible for the premium under Paragraph 2 of this
Agreement. This provision would give employees who are covered by these administrative
support coalition negotiations the option of: a) continuing to receive above-top-step merit pay

they have access to under their respective bargaining unit's existing collective bargaining
agreement, or b) receiving the wage premium under Paragraph 2 of this Agreement. Such

employees must elect their preferred option as a group as part of these negotiations, and must

indicate their selection within 60 days of execution of this Agreement, and that selection will
remain in effect for the duration of this Agreement.

C o aliti on B ar gaining - A dmini s tr at iv e Supp o r t C I as s iJi c at i o ns

000u01 I I
Page 2 000U0516-TotalComp_2017-201|-Exhibit 5-000U0111-AdministrativeSupportKing County Council November 7, 2016 456



Union Contract cba
Code

Intemational Brotherhood of Teamsters

Local ll7
Professional & Technical and

Administrative Employees

154

International Brotherhood of Teamsters

Local 117

Wastewater Treatment Division,
Professional & Technical and

Administrative Support - Department of
Natural Resources and Parks

156

Joint Crafts Council, Construction Crafts Appendix K: Departments: Executive
Services (Facilities Management; Records,

Elections & Licensing Services), Natural

Resources & Parks. Transportation

350

Office & Professional Employees
Intemational Union. Local 8

Department of Assessments 03s

Office & Professional Employees
International Union, Local 8

Departments: Public Health (Division of
Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drugs
Prevention), CommunitY and Human
Services (Mental Health, Chemical Abuse

and Deoendencv Services Division)

038

Professional and Technical Employees,

Local 17

Professional and Technical - Department of
Transoortation

046

Professional and Technical Employees,

Local 17

Departments: DeveloPment and

Environmental Services, Executive Services,

Natural Resources and Parks, Transportation

040

Professional and Technical Employees,

Local 17

Departments: Public Health, Community and

Human Services

060

Public Safety Employees Union Non-Commissioned - Department of Adult
and Juvenile Detention

191

Public Safety Employees Union Non-Commissioned - King County Sheriffs
Office

193

Technical Employees Association Wastewater Treatment Division, Department

of Natural Resources and Parks, Staff 

-

428

Washington State Council of County and

Citv Emplovees" Council 2, Local 2084-SC
Superior Court - Staff (Wages Only) 273

Washington State Council of County and

Citv Emolovees. Council 2. Local 2084SC-S
Superior Court - Supervisors (Wages Only) 274

Washington State Council of County and

Citv Emolovees. Council 2. Local 2l AD
Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention 080

Washington State Counc
Citv Emolovees. Council

Iof County and

2.Local1652
Medical Examiner - Department of Public

Health

260

Washington State Counc
Citv Employees, Counci

Iof County and
Z,Local I652M

WorkSource - Department of Community
and Human Services

263

Washington State Council of County and

Citv Employees. Council 2, Local 1 652R
Industrial and Hazardous Waste 275

EXHIBIT 5

5. This Agreement applies to positions in the classifications referenced above

(Paragraph 1) covered by the following collective bargaining agreements:

6. This Agreement shall remain in effect through December 31,2013.

Coalition Bargaining - Administrative Support Classificarions

000u0t I I
page 3 000u0516_TotalComp_2017-2018_Exhibit 5_000U01lL-AdministutiveSupportKing County Council November 7, 2016 457



EXHIBIT 5

t.

EXHIBIT A

GNOUND RULES TOR KINC COUIT{TY

ADMINISTRATIVE SIJPTORT COALITION BANCAINING

Authority of the Coalition. The parties agree that the Union coalition is

speaking with one voico, and that the parties are engaged in coalition

Uargaimng rather than coordinated bargaining. To that end each of the unions

party to coulition bargaining agree that they will be boq{ by the results of the

*uiition bargaining, and that their autharity witl be limited by the Union

coalition's lead negotiator. Each of the unions further a$ec that the County's

participation in coalition bargaining fulfitls the County's statutory obligation

io Uargain regarding lhe issues within the scope of this coalition bargaining

wlile the parfius u.* 
"ogug" 

in this coalition bargaining and for the duration of
any agreement reached. The eoalition has agreed that for ratifisation

p.rrpo"*r, the Unions will conduct a pooled vote with one employee, ons vote,

witir all votes consolidated and the result determined by a simple majority.

Authority of the County. The parties agree that the County is speaking with

one voics, and the partiee are engaged in poalition bargaining rather thnn

coordinated bargaining. The County's interest in coalition bargaining ste1ls

&om it effort to 
-maintain a consistent ccmpensation structure for

adminis*ative staff across Departments. The Cou:rty as a whole, and each of
its departments, will be bound by any agreement reaehed in this prosess.

Status of Contrac$. The status of contracts will not affbct a union's

partieipation ir this process) nor will it aflbct the other provisions of this

agfeement. Tho partiis are agreeing to reopeil all confiacts,for the purpose of
negotiating compensation relating to the specified administrative support

classifications.

$cope of Topic. The scope of the discussions will be to negotiate wage raGs

{i:r ihe classifications at issue. The parties may agree to address additional

issues in the csurse of this bargaining.

Scope of Classilications. Adminiseative Support classificatious, including

the following:
fiscal Specialist 1-4

Adminiskative SPeialist I -4
Customers Service SPecialist 14
Technical Inforrnation Processing Specialist I -4

Administrative Oltice Assistant
Medical Application Specialist (Hoalth)

Administrative Specialist Supervisor (Health)

Administrative St*ffAssistant f Itr.
and any othei;hssification that &e parties may agree ts includ{during the

courso of negotiations.

3.

I

000110516_Totatcomp_2017-201y_Exhibit 5_000u01I l-administativesupport000U0111 Exhibit AKing County Council November 7, 2016 458



EXHIBIT 5

000U0111 Exhibit A

6.

7,

Seope of Bargaining Units Included. The bargaining units as defined in
Addendum A to this agreement are included in this coalition bargaining.

Negotiation Process.

A" Lead Negotiators. The lead negofiator for the County will be the
Manager of Labor Relations or such other negotiator as may be appointed by
the County. The lead negotiator for the Coalition will be the General Counsel

for Teamsters Local 117 or such other negotiator as may be appointed by the
Coalition. Only the lead negotiator will have the authority to bind the party
that they represent.

B. Table Composition. Each party will name a fixed set of participants in
the negotiation. Others may be permitted to participate as subject matter

experts but not as members of each negotiating teanr. The rlrions agree to
name no more than fwo (2) employee representatives pcr union; provided that
Local 17 may appoint fow (a) omployee representatives. The County agrees

to provide release time to participate i* negotiation provided that such release

time does not interfere with the operations of the County. In such event, the
parties will discuss alternatives to address the issue.

C. Dntes. The lead negotiator for each party shall set a complete set of
negotiating dates beginniug in January, 2009, and concluding by April 15,

2009.

D. Location. Bargaining sessions will be held at downtown County
facilities.

Communication. The expectation is that the parties will bargain at the table
rather tlmn in the workplace. Prior to issuing written communications with
County employees or Union members regmding the substance of these

negotiations, a party intending to issue such a conrmunication will provide the

other party with prior notice of that communication and will attempt to resolve
any issues regarding the content of the communioation prior to publication.
The parties retain the right to communicate with their constituencies in non-
qnitten form. However, consistent with the spirit of this commitment, the

parties will respect the concept of prior notice outlined in this paragraph.

2

000U0516_TotatComp_2017-201y_Exhibit 5_000U0111_AdministrativeSupport

8.

King County Council November 7, 2016 459



EXHIBIT 5

9. Mediation and Fact X'inding. If the parties fail to reach agreemenf the

parties will simultaneously (1) request the assistance of an impartial third
party selected by the parties; if the parties cannot teach agleement, then the

mediator will be selected through the Public Employment Relations

Commission to mediate the negotiations; and (2) appoint a neirtral fact-finder
pursuant to the selection process below. The mediation will be scheduled

atread of the fact finding hearing. The fact-finder shall be charged to make

non-binding recommendations to the parties as to the terms of an agfeement
regarding wage rates fbr the classifications at issue. The fact-finder shall
oonsider the market position of the classifications and the economic

sircumstanses of the employer in making his or her recommendations. The

fact-finding will be concluded no later than sixty (60) days after the

oonclusion of mediation with the recommendation to each party. The cost of
the fact-finder shall be bome equally by the parties,

a. Selection. The parties will attempt to mutually agree on a fact.finder.
Absent such agreenrent, the parties will request a panel from the Public
Employment Relations Commission and will select a faot finder through
mutual striking.

b. Henring. The hearing procedure shall be determined by the fact finder
but shall be conducted fairly and expeditiously"

c. Recommendation. Prior to issuing a fonnal recommendation, the fact
finder will meet informally with the parties to inform them of his or hsr
findings. Thereafter, the parties will have one week to attempt to reach an

agreement. If thc parties are unable to reach agreement the fact finder
shall issue his or her decision.

3

000u0516_Totalcomp_2017-201y_Exhibir 5_000u011l_Administrativesuppott000U0111 Exhibit AKing County Council November 7, 2016 460



EXHIBIT 5

000U0111 Exhibit A

l{}. Rqturn to Individu*l B*rgriring. After the issuance of &e

rccommendetio& the partie* may rcturn 1o msdiation or othenvise attempt to

resolve the agreement. If the paftiss fail to agre€ aftsr the fact finding
prses$$, the coalition pross$$ will bs concluded and the parties will return to

bargaining their individual contracts. Thc parties understmd that zuch

bargaining will begirl fresh, and the positions taken in this coalition bargeining

will not be applie*bte to that bargaining.

trlntsd this 30s day of $eptember,2008'

4

000u0 5 1 6_Totalcomp_20 I 7-2 0 I 8_Exhibil 5_000u 0 I I I _AdministrativesupportKing County Council November 7, 2016 461



Subject:

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICERS GUILD

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Animal Control Officers Guild

Ratified by the Memhers covered by the contracts listed below:

For Animal Control Officers Guild:

t"/=, //o
Date

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

t70 ACOG Animal Control - Department of Executive Services
(Records and Licensing Services)

President

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
000U0 5 I 6 _TotalComp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I I _ACOG

King County Council November 7, 2016 462



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERIIOOD OF TEAMSTERS LOCAL 117

Subject: ADDRESSING"TOTALCOMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2017 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: International Brotherhood of Teamsters Local 11,7

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

465 PDMG-LI17 Department of Public Defense - Supervisors and

Manasers
412 Teamsters Local 117 Administrator I - Transit, Department ot.

Transportation

456 Teamsters Local ll7 Information Technology Managers and Supervisors
- Department of King County Information
Technology, Executive Branch Departments;
Department of Executive Services

46t Teamsters Local ll7 Joint Units Agreement

454 Teamsters Local lll Lesislative Analysts - King County Council

231 Teamsters Local lI7 Print Shop - Graphic Communications; Department
of Executive Services (Facilities Management
Division)

t54 Teamsters Local ll7 Professional & Technical and Administrative
Employees

155 Teamsters Local ll7 Prosecuting Attorney's Offi ce

352 Teamsters Local ll7 Securitv Screeners - Kine County Sheriffs Office

t52 Teamsters Local 117 Transit Section Managers - Department of
Transportation

159 Teamsters Local ll7 Wastewater Treatment Division, Managers and

Assistant Managers - Department of Natural
Resources and Parks

ts6 Teamsters Local 117 Wastewater Treatment Division, Professional &
Technical and Administrative Support - Department
of Natural Resources and Parks

For International Brotherhood of Teamsters Local 117:

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
0 0 0 U0 5 1 6 _Tot alC omp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8 _Teqmst er s L o c ql I I 7

King County Council November 7, 2016 463



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

JOINT CRAFTS COUNCIL, CONSTRUCTION CRAFTS

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7 -2018 BUDGET

Subject:

Labor Organization: Joint Crafts Council, Construction Crafts

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

For Joint Crafts Council, Construction Crafts:

Business Representative
International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers Local 46

For Joint Crafts Council, Construction Crafts:

/e -z/'/L
Date

ro/zt I lb
Date

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

350 JCC Construction Crafts

Pacific Northwest Regional Council of Carpenters

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
0 0 0 U0 5 I 6 _Tot alC omp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8 _JC C

King County Council November 7, 2016 464



Subject:

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

KING COUNTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEYS ASSOCIATION

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION'
COALITION BARGAINING 2017 -2018 BUDGET

Labor organization: King county Prosecuting Attorneys Association

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions

000 U 0 5 t 6 
-TotalC 

omp 
-2 

0 I 7 -2 0 I 8 
-KC 

P AA

Contractcba
code

Labor Organization

370 KCPAA Prosecutine AttorneY' s Office

uting Attorne

President

nty Prosecuting Attorneys Association:

Christian Brown
Vice President

Date

t1ilto
Date

Secretary

For King County Prosecuting Attorneys Association:

King County Council November 7, 2016 465



Subject:

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

KING COUNTY SECURITY GUILD

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: King County Security Guild

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

460 KCSG Security Officers, Dispatchers, Sergeants -

Department of Executive Services, Facilities

Manasement Division

For King Qounty Security

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions

0 0 0U0 5 1 6 
-Tot 

alC omp 
-2 

0 I 7 -2 0 I 8 
-KC 

SG

King County Council November 7, 2016 466



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

OFFICE & PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 8

Subject: ADDRESSING"TOTALCOMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Office & Professional Employees International Union, Local8

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

For Office & Professional Employees International Union,
Local 8:

Date
Lo l>t / lA

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

037 OPEIU, Local 8 Dental - Department of Public Health

035 OPEIU, Local 8 Department of Assessments

038 OPEIU, Local8 Departments : Public Health (Prevention Division),
Community and Human Services (Mental Health,

Chemical Abuse and Dependency Services

Division)

Amanda Montoya
Union Representative

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions

000U05 1 6 TotalComp-2} I 7-20 I 8-OPEIU, Local 8
King County Council November 7, 2016 467



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

PROFESSIONAL AND TECHNICAL EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 17

Subject: ADDRESSING"TOTALCOMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7.2OI8 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Professional and Technical Employees, Local L7

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

0s0 PTE. Local 17 Court Reporters - Superior Court

040 PTE, Local 17 Departments : Executive Services, Natural
Resources and Parks, Permitting and Environmental
Review. Transoortation

060 PTE, Local 17 Departments: Public Health, Community and

Human Services

048 PTE. Local 17 lnformation Technolo gy

055 PTE, Local 17 Offrce of Emergency Management, Department of
Executive Services; Emergency Management
Prosram Manager

046 PTE, Local 17 Professional and Technical - Department of
Transportation

043 PTE, Local 17 Professional and Technical, Interest Arbitration -

Department of Transportation, Metro Transit
Division

066 PTE, Local 17 Section Managers - Departments: Natural Resources

and Parks, Permitting and Environmental Review,
Transportation

065 PTE, Local 17 Supervisors - Departments: Executive Services
(Facilities Management Division), Natural
Resources and Parks, Transportation

047 PTE, Local 17 Transit Administrative Support

042 PTE, Local 17 Transit Chiefs - Department of Transportation,
Metro Transit Division

044 PTE, Local 17 Transit Supervisors and Superintendents -

Department of Transportation, Metro Transit
Division

T&sfCompensation - Coalition of Unions

000 u0 5 1 6 _TotalComp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8 
-PTE, 

Local I 7
King County Council November 7, 2016 468



Subject:

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES UNION

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Public Safety Employees Union

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

2t2 PSEU Communications Specialists Supervisors - King
County Sheriffs Office

330 PSEU Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention
Management

2t4 PSEU Fire Investigator - King County Sheriffs Office
430 PSEU Kins County Civic Television (CTV)
021 PSEU Legal Administrative Specialists - Department of

Judicial Administration
191 PSEU Non-Commissioned - Department of Adult and

Juvenile Detention
t92 PSEU Non-Commissioned - Department of Community

and Human Services

193 PSEU Non-Commissioned Professional Employees - King
Countv Sheriffs Office

464 PSEU Non-Commissioned Professional Employees -

Supervisory - King County Sheriffs Office
020 PSEU Suoerior Court Clerks - Judicial Administration

For Public Safety Employees

rederick'

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
000U0 5 I 6 _TotalC omp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8 J SEU
King County Council November 7, 2016 469



MEMORANDUM OF AGRBEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

PUBLIC, PROFESSIONAL & OFFICE-CLERICAL EMPLOYEES AND DRMRS,
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 763

Subject: ADDRESSING"TOTALCOMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2AI1.2OI8 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Public, Professionat & Office-Clerical Employees and Drivers,
Teamsters Local763

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

For Public, Professional & Office-Clerical Employees and

Drivers, Teamsters Local 7 63:

[o.zt- lt
Date

Total Compen.salion - Coalition of Unionl;
000U05 l6 'l'oralComp_2017-2018 Teamsters Local 763

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

450 Teamsters Local763 Communications Specialists - King County Sheriffs
Office

220 Teamsters Local763 Department of Assessments

Secretary-Treasurer

King County Council November 7, 2016 470



Subject:

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 925

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Service Employees International Union, Local 925

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

ctra
code

Labor Organization Contract

012 SEIU, Local925 Department of Executive Services - Facilities
Management Division

010 SEIU, Local925 Deparlment of Natural Resources and Parks - Parks

and Recreation
462 SEIU" Local925 Department of Public Defense

030 SEIU, Local925 Involuntary Commitment Specialists - Mental
Health, Department of Community and Human
Services

011 SEIU, Local925 Wastewater Treatment Division - Department of
Natural Resources and Parks

For Service Employees International Union, Local925:

MKo""
Ida Kovacic, Organizer/Representative

fi/at//6' Dat6

rclatlk
Date

/oz-/-/ f,
Date

Date

) -\

Roberts/Bar ining Team Member

/o
Date

Teresa Ha ning Team Member

blm:anlBargaini

'c/+/

Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
000U0516 TotalComp 2017-2018 SEIU, Local925
King County Council November 7, 2016 471



Subject:

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 174

ADDRESSING "TOTAL COMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2OI7 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Teamsters Local 174

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

160 Teamsters Local174 Departments: Natural Resources and Parks,

Transportation

Business Agent

Total Compensqtion - Coalition of Unions
000U0 5 I 6 TotalComp _2 0 I 7 -2 0 I 8 _Teamsters Lo cal I 7 4

King County Council November 7, 2016 472



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

KING COUNTY
AND

WASHINGTON STATE COUNCIL OF COUNTY AND CITY EMPLOYEES,
COUNCIL 2

Subject: ADDRESSING"TOTALCOMPENSATION"
COALITION BARGAINING 2017 -2018 BUDGET

Labor Organization: Washington State Council of County and City Employees, Council 2

Ratified by the Members covered by the contracts listed below:

For Washinglon State Council of County and City
Employees, Council2:

cba
code

Labor Organization Contract

260 WSCCCE, Council2,
Local1652

Medical Examiner - Department of Public Health

275 WSCCCE, Council 2,

Local 1652R
Industrial and Hazardous Waste

272 WSCCCE, Council 2,

Local 2084-FM
Department of Executive Services, Facilities
Manasement Division

276 WSCCCE, Council2,
Local 2084-5

Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention
(Juvenile Detention Division Supervisors)

4s8 WSCCCE, Council2,
Local 2084-SC

Superior Court - Family Court Operations; Court
Appointed Special Advocates Specialists and
Attornevs (CASA)

273 WSCCCE, Council 2,
Local 2084-SC

Superior Court - Staff (Wages Only)

274 WSCCCE, Council2,
Local2084SC-S

Superior Court - Supervisors (Wages Only)

080 WSCCCE, Council2,
Local 2lAD

Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention

090 WSCCCE, Council2,
Local 2lDC

District Court - Wages

070 WSCCCE, Council2,
Local2l}fD

Department of Public Health

Mary Louis
Staff Representative

w
Total Compensation - Coalition of Unions
000U05 1 6 TotalComp_20 I 7-20 I B_WSCCCE, Council 2
King County Council November 7, 2016 473



 
 

Metropolitan King County Council 
Budget and Fiscal Management Committee 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Agenda Item: 36 Name: Nick Wagner 

Proposed No.: 2016-0524 Date: November 1-3, 2016 

 
SUBJECT 

Proposed adoption of a memorandum of agreement between King County and the King 
County Coalition of Unions providing for compensation increases and modifying certain 
other terms of employment for county employees represented by the union members of 
the Coalition. 

SUMMARY 

Proposed Ordinance 2016-0524 (Att. 1) would adopt a memorandum of agreement (“the 
MOA”) between King County and the King County Coalition of Unions (“the Coalition”) 
(Att. 1-A). According to the Executive’s transmittal letter (Att. 2), the agreement covers 
about 5,750 employees, working in 17 county departments and agencies, represented 
by 21 unions, and covered by 59 different collective bargaining agreements. 

The MOA provides in part as follows. The terms are described in greater detail in the 
Analysis section of this staff report. 

1. Term. The MOA would cover the 2017 and 2018 calendar years. (Att. 1-A, p. 5) 

2. Wage Increases. The MOA provides for wage increases totaling 2.25 percent 
effective January 1, 2017, and 2.75 percent effective January 1, 2018 (with one 
percentage point of the 2018 increase being contingent on the parties’ successful 
negotiation of a Master Labor Agreement). (Att. 1-A, pp. 2, 3-4) 

3. Master Labor Agreement. The MOA provides: “The parties will meet no later than 
November 11, 2016, to discuss a structure for bargaining standard practices, 
procedures, and collective bargaining agreement (CBA) provisions via a Master 
Labor Agreement (MLA).” The MLA would contain terms applicable to all covered 
bargaining units. (Att. 1-A, p. 2) 

4. Added Leave Days: one added vacation day in 2017; two in 2018. Both changes 
are one-time-only and set no precedent for the future. (Att. 1-A, pp. 3, 4-5)  

5. Paid Parental Leave. The 2016 pilot program would be made into an ongoing 
employee benefit through at least 2017. Continuation beyond 2017 would be 

 

 
King County Council November 7, 2016 474



subject to the MLA negotiations (and Council review and approval of any 
proposed changes). (Att. 1-A, p. 2) 

6. JLMIC Agreement on Health Benefits for 2017-2018. The existing agreement on 
health benefits with the Joint Labor Management Insurance Committee (JLMIC), 
which is due to expire at the end of 2016, would be extended through 2018 with 
the following changes and others that are described in the Analysis section:  

a. Per-Employee-Per-Month Funding Rate: No increase in 2017 (would continue 
at $1,465); 4 percent increase in 2018 (to $1,524).  

b. Emergency Room Copay. Would increase from $100 to $200 for Regence 
members, effective January 1, 2017. 

7. Increased Parking Rates: King County employee parking rates at the Goat Hill 
Garage, the Chinook Building, the King County Correctional Facility, and the King 
Street Center would be increased (details in the Analysis section). The changes 
would be effective January 1, 2017, except that the King Street Center changes 
would be effective June 1, 2017. (Att. 1-A, p. 3) 

8. Extension of Longevity Pay MOA. An existing “Coalition ‘Administrative Support’ 
MOA” (Att. 1-A, p. 3 and Ex. 5), which provides for longevity pay of up to 3% for 
employees in certain administrative support classifications, would be extended at 
least through 2017, but could be renegotiated or terminated thereafter. 

9. Rollover of Other CBA Terms. Except as modified by the proposed new MOA or 
a separate written agreement, and except for bargaining units whose working 
conditions are bargained by separately elected officials (e.g., the Prosecuting 
Attorney), all other terms of the existing collective bargaining agreements with 
the Coalition unions would continue in effect through 2017. (Att. 1-A, Ex. 2, p. 1) 

The Executive’s proposed 2017-2018 biennial budget assumes approval of the MOA. 

BACKGROUND 

The proposed new MOA is the latest in a series of agreements between King County 
and the King County Coalition of Unions, which represents slightly less than half of all 
county employees. Previous agreements have dealt with issues such as: (1) providing 
or forgoing cost of living adjustments (the 2011-2014 “Zero COLA” MOA, entered into in 
2010); (2) supporting a Lean process and implementation of Lean proposals (March 
2012); and (3) setting the stage for coalition bargaining of all economic terms as part of 
a single agreement (the 2015-2016 “Total Compensation” MOA). The current proposed 
MOA is the result of bargaining that was provided for in the 2015-2016 “total 
compensation” MOA. 

As the Executive explains in his transmittal letter (Att. 2), he views the proposed new 
MOA as achieving the following three objectives: 

Page 2 of 8 

King County Council November 7, 2016 475



1. Total Compensation Bargaining. As envisioned in the 2015-2016 “Total 
Compensation” MOA, the new MOA is the County’s first labor agreement that was 
focused, from the outset of negotiations, on the total cost of the compensation package, 
including wages and salaries, paid leave, and health benefits.1 As described in the 
transmittal letter (Att. 2): 

This Agreement is the first in King County to use a process that 
began with identifying the total cost of labor on a per employee 
basis, after which the parties proceeded to bargain the allocation of 
that cost among the various areas of compensation.  The 
transparency created by the use of this process insured that, 
throughout the course of bargaining, all parties had a clear 
understanding of the impact a proposed increase in one area of 
compensation would have on other areas of compensation, which 
resulted in a compensation package that is more accurate, more 
carefully crafted and better balanced than it would otherwise have 
been. 

2. Flat Rate Compensation Increases. The wage and salary increases provided 
for in the MOA are fixed percentages of employees’ current wages and salaries, instead 
of being tied to an index such as the consumer price index, which is inherently 
unpredictable and therefore an unreliable basis for fiscal planning. 

3. Agreement to Bargain to Standardize Contract Terms. The MOA provides that 
by November 11, 2016, the parties will begin the process of bargaining a Master Labor 
Agreement (MLA), which would govern all bargaining unit members whose unions have 
signed the MLA. To the extent that the MLA bargaining is successful, it will achieve the 
County’s goal of standardizing labor contract terms to promote administrative efficiency 
and equitable treatment of employees. The parties aim to reach a tentative agreement 
on an MLA before the end of 2017. 

ANALYSIS 

The key provisions of the proposed new MOA are: 

1. Term 

The MOA would cover the 2017 and 2018 calendar years. (Att. 1-A, p. 5) 

2. Wage and Salary Increases 

The MOA provides for the following wage and salary increases for employees in the 
bargaining units that sign the MOA: 

1 According to executive staff, the 2015-2016 Total Compensation MOA does not rule out the possibility of 
separate, market-based adjustments in compensation for individual classifications. 

Page 3 of 8 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 476



a. 2017: Effective January 1, 2017, a “general wage increase” (GWI) of 1.75 
percent above 2016, plus a 0.5 percent “total compensation coalition 
premium” (for having participated in the “total compensation” coalition 
bargaining that led to the proposed MOA), for a total increase of 2.25 percent. 
(Att. 1-A, p. 2) 

b. 2018: Effective January 1, 2018, a GWI of 1.75 percent above 2017, plus a 
1.0 percent “coalition MLA premium” that is contingent upon a Master Labor 
Agreement being “successfully bargained and fully ratified by both the Unions 
and the County.” To be eligible for the additional 1.0 percent, a bargaining 
unit must sign a tentative agreement (TA) no later than January 1, 2018. 
Practically speaking, the TA must be signed by October 2, 2018, for the 1.0 
percent increase to be reflected in employee paychecks in the first pay period 
of 2018. (Att. 1-A, pp. 3-4)  The contingent MLA premium provides an 
incentive for the Coalition to reach an agreement on a Master Labor 
Agreement, which would be a step in the direction of standardizing terms of 
employment across County government where that is appropriate. 

c. The MOA provides that the GWIs and the premium payments “establish no 
precedent with respect to future payments or awards to county employees.” 
(Att. 1-A, p. 5) 

3. Master Labor Agreement (MLA) 

The MOA provides: “The parties will meet no later than November 11, 2016, to discuss 
a structure for bargaining standard practices, procedures, and collective bargaining 
agreement (CBA) provisions via a Master Labor Agreement (MLA).” The parties intend 
that the MLA negotiations be complete by the end of 2017. As noted in section 2(b) 
above, the 1.0 percent premium pay for 2018 is contingent on a TA being reached in the 
MLA negotiations by January 1, 2018. (Att. 1-A, pp. 2, 3-4) 

4. Added Leave Days 

The MOA would provide for one additional vacation day to be added to the vacation 
banks of covered employees in the first full pay period of 2017 and two more days in the 
first full pay period of 2018. (Att. 1-A, pp. 3, 4-5)  These would be one-time awards and 
would “establish no precedent with respect to future payments or awards to county 
employees.” (Att. 1-A, p. 5)  They are provided only to bargaining units that were 
participants in the Coalition when the tentative agreement on the new MOA was signed. 
According to executive staff, the leave days are in consideration for the agreement to 
forgo a 2017 increase in the health care funding rate (see section 6(a) below) and to 
accept market-based increases in the parking rates at county parking facilities (see 
section 7 below). 

5. Paid Parental Leave.  

The 2016 paid parental leave (PPL) pilot program would be made into an ongoing 
employee benefit through at least 2017. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0463 (currently in 

Page 4 of 8 

King County Council November 7, 2016 477



the Council’s Budget and Fiscal Management Committee) would achieve that result for 
non-represented county employees and would allow represented employees to 
participate in the program if their union representatives signed a participation agreement 
similar to the one that was a condition for participation in the 2016 pilot program. The 
parties consider this MOA to constitute a participation agreement for 2017. 

The MOA provides that PPL “will be one of many standardization topics discussed in 
MLA bargaining in 2017.” (Att. 1-A p. 2)  If MLA bargaining leads to an agreement that 
the current PPL program should be modified, any such agreement would be subject to 
review and either approval or rejection by the Council, as would the other terms of an 
MLA. 

6. JLMIC Agreement on Health Benefits for 2017-2018 

The existing JLMIC agreement is due to expire at the end of 2016. The proposed new 
MOA would extend the agreement through 2018 with certain changes. The changes 
would include:  

a. Per-Employee-Per-Month Funding Rate: The funding rate would remain at 
$1,465 per employee per month for 2017, just as it is in 2016. The rate would 
increase by four percent, to $1,524, for 2018. (Att. 1-A, pp. 2, 4)  The absence 
of an increase for 2017 represents a savings compared with recent years, in 
which there has been an annual increase of four percent. To the extent that 
the County’s actual health care costs increase in 2017, the increase would be 
covered by drawing from the JLMIC Protected Fund Reserve, which has 
increased substantially since it was originally created in 2014 and is 
considered larger than it needs to be to guard against unexpected increases 
in health care costs. 

b. Emergency Room Copay. This payment would increase from $100 to $200 
for Regence members, effective January 1, 2017. (Att. 1-A, p. 3)  According 
to executive staff, $200 is the prevailing ER copay in the King County area. 

c. End to Subsidy of Early Retiree Medical Health Coverage: The County 
currently provides a substantial subsidy to early retirees from county 
employment who choose to buy health coverage from the County until they 
become eligible for Medicare. Effective January 1, 2017, the subsidy would 
end (subject to renegotiation if the Affordable Care Act were repealed or 
substantially modified). (Att. 1-A, pp. 2-3) 

d. Domestic partner benefit. The King County domestic partner benefit would be 
changed to match state law, effective January 1, 2018. (Att. 1-A, p. 4) The 
need for this benefit has diminished as a result of marriage equality. 

e. Supplemental Medical Plans. The MOA would require the addition of 
“supplemental plan options beyond the PPO Plan [Regence] and the HMO 
Plan [Group Health] for the 2018 benefit year.” (Att. 1-A, Ex. 4 § 8)  Though it 

Page 5 of 8 

King County Council November 7, 2016 478



is not mentioned in the proposed MOA, the option that the Executive is 
focusing on is Accountable Care Networks. As described by executive staff: 

The ACN model brings together physicians, hospitals, and other 
partners into narrow networks where the amount of money the 
network receives for treating a population of patients is based in 
part on the quality of care they deliver and the patient satisfaction 
with the care experience. . . . Over time, it is expected that these 
results-based plans will deliver better care at a lower cost than the 
current PPO model. 

f. Healthy Incentives. The MOA would require negotiation of changes to the 
Healthy Incentives program to be effective for the 2018 benefit year, with any 
additional cost to be borne by the County unless otherwise agreed. (Att. 1-A, 
Ex. 4 § 8) 

7. Increased Parking Rates 

Parking rates at the Goat Hill Garage, the Chinook Building, the King County 
Correctional Facility, and the King Street Center would be increased as shown in the 
table below to conform more closely to applicable market rates. The changes would be 
effective January 1, 2017, except that King Street Center changes would be effective 
June 1, 2017 (since the County will not assume ownership of that facility until then). The 
new rates are expected to generate additional annual revenue of about $1.03 million. 

  Current New 

Monthly Rates 

Unreserved $260 $300 

Reserved $300 $385 

Carpool/Electric Car $182 $210 

ADA $130 $150 

Daily Rates 

Daily Maximum $15 $20 

After-Hours / 

Weekend 
$7 $7 

Motorcycles $5 $5 

 
8. Extension of Longevity Pay MOA 

An existing “Coalition ‘Administrative Support’ MOA” (Att. 1-A, Ex. 5), which provides for 
longevity pay of up to 3 percent to employees in certain administrative support 
classifications who have been employed by the County for a specified minimum period 
of time, would be extended through 2017, but could be renegotiated, effective January 
1, 2018, through MLA bargaining (see section 3 above). If not continued in some form 
through MLA bargaining, the Longevity Pay MOA would expire at the end of 2018. 

Page 6 of 8 

King County Council November 7, 2016 479



9. Rollover of Other CBA Terms.  

Except as modified by the proposed new MOA or a separate written agreement, , and 
except for bargaining units whose working conditions are bargained by separately 
elected officials (e.g., the Prosecuting Attorney), all other terms of the existing collective 
bargaining agreements with Coalition unions would continue in effect through 2017. 
(Att. 1-A, Ex. 2, p. 1) 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The fiscal impact of the proposed MOA is detailed in the Executive’s Fiscal Note (Att. 3), 
which is summarized in the table below.2 

 2017 2018 

Wages and Salaries $12,584,004 $16,677,005 

Health Benefits Funding Rate $0 $3,778,294 

Total increase over previous year $12,584,004 $20,455,299 

Cumulative increase over 2016  $33,039,303 

About 29 percent of these costs will be payable from the General Fund, the remainder 
from the other funds listed in the Fiscal Note. 

If the County and the Coalition fail to reach a tentative agreement on a Master Labor 
Agreement by January 1, 2018, a condition for payment of the 1% premium pay in 2018 
will not have been met, and the 2018 costs will be reduced by about $5.2 million, as 
noted in the Fiscal Note. In that event, according to executive staff, department and 
agency budgets would be adjusted downward at the mid-biennium. 

According to executive staff, approval of the MOA is assumed in the Executive’s 
proposed budget for 2017-2018. 

INVITED 
 
1. Megan Pedersen, Interim Director of Labor Relations, 

King County Executive Office 
2. Whitney Abrams, Deputy Executive for Employee Engagement,  

King County Executive Office 
3. Dustin Frederick, Co-Chair, King County Coalition of Labor Unions 
4. Denise Cobden, Co-Chair, King County Coalition of Labor Unions 
 

2 Not included in the table is the cost of paid parental leave (PPL), since that is the subject of separate 
legislation: Proposed Ordinance 2016-0463. The fiscal note for that ordinance projects the cost of PPL to 
be about $6.5 million in the 2017-2018 biennium and about $6.7 million in the 2019-2020 biennium. 

 

Page 7 of 8 

                                                 

King County Council November 7, 2016 480



ATTACHMENTS 

1. Proposed Ordinance 2016-0524 
Att. A: MOA  

2. Transmittal letter 
3. Fiscal Note 
 

Page 8 of 8 

King County Council November 7, 2016 481


	11-7-16 council meeting agenda
	10-31-16 council meeting minutes
	2016-0399 proposed ordinance  pg 23
	2016-0399 staff report

	2016-0456 proposed ordinance   pg 35
	2016-0456 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT
	Since 1993, the County has authorized the sale of transit tickets to human service agencies at a discount:  The agency pays for part of the ticket cost, and K.C.C. 4A.700.210 defines the discount as a percentage of the ticket cost (“twenty percent of ...
	To distribute these tickets, the King County Department of Community and Human Services (DCHS) issues a Request for Proposals (RFP) to the agencies0F .  Agencies are awarded an allotment of the available tickets and purchase a combination of adult two...
	When the County Council approved the temporary Congestion Reduction Charge (CRC) in 2012, the Transit Incentives Program was established allowing households paying the CRC to receive eight free transit tickets.  Individuals were permitted to donate th...
	For 2016 and future years, the total amount of the 80 percent discount is set at $3,200,000.  In 2016 and 2017 only, there is an additional discount amount for the CRC-donated tickets.  For 2017, this corresponds to a total ticket amount estimated at ...
	Table 1, A-C, shows the current law effects for 2017 and the striking amendment’s effects for 2017 (with the CRC-donated ticket value) and for 2018 and future years.
	*Authorized, but amount not specifically mentioned in the version of K.C.C. 4A.700.210 effective in 2017


	2016-0463 proposed ordinance   pg 49
	2016-0474 A-M
	2016-0463 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0474 proposed ordinance   pg 79
	2016-0474 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0475 proposed ordinance   pg 91
	2016-0475 A.
	ATTACHMENT A


	2016-0476 proposed ordinance   pg 153
	2016-0476 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0477 proposed ordinance   pg 163
	2016-0477 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT
	“…Nothing contained in this section permits the expenditure of public funds to defray costs of private litigation. Such costs shall be borne by the party seeking action by the sheriff, and may be recovered from the proceeds of any subsequent judicial ...
	(3) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, a county legislative authority may set the amounts of fees that shall be collected by the sheriff under subsection (1) of this section to cover the costs of administration and operation.”


	2016-0478 proposed ordinance   pg 175
	2016-0478 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0479 proposed ordinance   pg 235
	2016-0479 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0480 proposed ordinance   pg 239
	2016-0480 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0481 proposed ordinance   pg 247
	2016-0482 proposed ordinance   pg 251
	2016-0482 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0483 proposed ordinance   pg 255
	2016-0483 staff report
	STAFF REPORT


	2016-0484 proposed ordinance   pg 259
	2016-0484 staff report
	STAFF REPORT


	2016-0486 proposed ordinance   pg 269
	2016-0486 staff report
	STAFF REPORT


	2016-0488 proposed ordinance   pg 277
	2016-0488 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0489 proposed ordinance   pg 285
	2016-0489 staff report
	STAFF REPORT


	2016-0490 proposed ordinance   pg 299
	2016-0490 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0491 proposed ordinance   pg 321
	2016-0491 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0492 proposed ordinance   pg 329
	2016-0492 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0493 proposed ordinance   pg 341
	2016-0493 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0494 proposed ordinance   pg 355
	2016-0494 A
	2017 Squared Hourly

	2016-0494 B
	2017 Squared Annual

	2016-0494 C
	2017 KC Standardized Hourly

	2016-0494 D
	2017 Standardized Annual

	2016-0494 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT
	The 2.25 percent increase for 2017 is the same as the increase negotiated with the King County Coalition of Unions in a tentative memorandum of agreement (“the Coalition MOA”) covering the employees whose bargaining units ratify the MOA. A proposed or...
	The proposed adjustments for non-represented employees follow the County’s practice of granting non-represented employees a compensation adjustment equal to that granted to most represented employees.0F  In addition, having the same compensation adjus...
	The proposed adjustments are built into the Executive’s proposed biennial budget for 2017.1F
	Approval of annual wage and salary schedules is required by section 3.12.130 of the King County Code.2F  Most county job classifications are assigned pay ranges on the schedules that would be approved by Proposed Ordinance 2016-0494.3F



	2016-0495 proposed ordinance   pg 381
	2016-0497 proposed ordinance   pg 393
	2016-0497 staff report
	STAFF REPORT

	2016-0499 A
	Attachment A


	2016-0499 proposed ordinance   pg 405
	2016-0499 staff report
	STAFF REPORT


	2016-0521 proposed ordinance   pg 411
	2016-0521 staff report
	REVISED STAFF REPORT


	2016-0523 proposed ordinance   pg 435
	2016-0523 staff report
	STAFF REPORT


	2016-0524 proposed ordinance  pg 443
	2016-0524 staff report
	2016-0524 A
	STAFF REPORT





